
            

 

Planning Sub Committee 

 
MONDAY, 12TH SEPTEMBER, 2011 at 19:00 HRS - CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH ROAD, WOOD 
GREEN, N22 8LE. 
 
MEMBERS: Councillors Basu, Beacham, Demirci (Chair), Erskine, Peacock (Vice-Chair), 

Reid, Rice, Schmitz and Waters 
 

 
This meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the Council’s internet 
site.  At the start of the meeting the Chair will confirm if all or part of the meeting is to 
be filmed.  The Council may use the images and sound recording for internal training 
purposes. 
 
Generally the public seating areas are not filmed.  However, by entering the meeting 
room and using the public seating area, you are consenting to being filmed and to the 
possible use of those images and sound recordings for web-casting and/or training 
purposes. 
 
If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the Principal Support Officer 
(Committee Clerk) at the meeting. 

 
 
AGENDA 
 
 
1. APOLOGIES    
 
2. URGENT BUSINESS    
 
 The Chair will consider the admission of any late items of urgent business. Late items 

will be considered under the agenda item where they appear. New items will be dealt 
with at item 15 below.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

2 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
 
 A member with a personal interest in a matter who attends a meeting of the authority 

at which the matter is considered must disclose to that meeting the existence and 
nature of that interest at the commencement of that consideration, or when the 
interest becomes apparent.  
 
A member with a personal interest in a matter also has a prejudicial interest in that 
matter if the interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the 
relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice the 
member’s judgement of the public interest and if this interest affects their financial 
position or the financial position of a person or body as described in paragraph 8 of 
the Code of Conduct and/or if it relates to the determining of any approval, consent, 
licence, permission or registration in relation to them or any person or body described 
in paragraph 8 of the Code of Conduct.  
 

4. DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS    
 
 To consider receiving deputations and/or petitions in accordance with Part Four, 

Section B, Paragraph 29 of the Council’s Constitution.  
 

5. MINUTES  (PAGES 1 - 32)  
 
 To confirm and sign the minutes of the Planning Sub Committee held on 11 and the 

special Planning Sub Committee held on 20 July 2011. 
 

6. PLANNING APPLICATIONS  (PAGES 33 - 34)  
 
 In accordance with the Sub Committee’s protocol for hearing representations; when 

the recommendation is to grant planning permission, two objectors may be given up 
to 6 minutes (divided between them) to make representations. Where the 
recommendation is to refuse planning permission, the applicant and supporters will 
be allowed to address the Committee. For items considered previously by the 
Committee and deferred, where the recommendation is to grant permission, one 
objector may be given up to 3 minutes to make representations.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

3 

7. CORONATION SIDINGS, NORTH OF TURNPIKE LANE, HORNSEY, AND 
HORNSEY DEPOT, SOUTH OF TURNPIKE LANE N8  (PAGES 35 - 154)  

 
 Construction of rolling stock maintenance depot and associated works including main 

depot building, office and storage space; track and sidings; underframe cleaning 
facility and plant room; two train washers and plant rooms; waste compactors; partial 
rebuilding of Hornsey Station footbridge; two shunters cabins; bridge widenings over 
the New River and Turnpike Lane; associated works including engineering, signalling, 
electrification and other operational works and equipment for the railway; hard 
surfacing and new internal site access road; landscaping; fences; car, motorcycle and 
bicycle parking; construction of retaining walls; temporary construction haul bridge 
and use of land as a temporary construction compound.  
RECOMMENDATION: Grant permission subject to conditions and subject to sec. 106 
Legal Agreement.  
 

8. EDEN PRIMARY, 79 CREIGHTON AVENUE, N10 1NR  (PAGES 155 - 202)  
 
 Erection of three storey school building with associated external works including 

landscaping, access ways, disabled and cycle parking.  
RECOMMENDATION: Grant permission subject to conditions and subject to sec.106 
Legal Agreement.  
 

9. 550 WHITE HART LANE, N17 7RQ  (PAGES 203 - 228)  
 
 Development comprising of construction of three industrial buildings accommodating 

a total of 13,251 sqm (142,629 sqft) of gross B1/B2/B8 employment floorspace and 
divided into six employment units, together with revised access and associated 
highway works, parking and sustainable urban drainage. 
RECOMMENDATION: Grant permission, subject to conditions, subject to sec.106 
Legal Agreement. 
 

10. 26 LORDSHIP LANE, N17 8NS  (PAGES 229 - 242)  
 
 Erection of 2 storey terrace of 5 x three bedroom units. Demolition of existing two 

storey building on Bruce Castle Road and erection of two storey building to match 
existing. Demolition of existing building on Birkbeck Road and erection of 2 x two 
storey terrace house.  
RECOMMENDATION: Grant permission subject to conditions and to a Deed of 
Variation to the current S106 Agreement. 
 

11. APPEAL DECISIONS  (PAGES 243 - 248)  
 
 To advise the Sub Committee on Appeal decisions determined by the Department for 

Communities and Local Government during June and July 2011. 
 
 
 
 



 

4 

12. DELEGATED DECISIONS  (PAGES 249 - 298)  
 
 To inform the Sub Committee of decisions made under delegated powers by the 

Head of Development Management and the Chair of the above Sub Committee 
between 23 May 2011 and 19 June 2011. 
 

13. PERFORMANCE STATISTICS  (PAGES 299 - 330)  
 
 To advise the Sub Committee of performance statistics on Development 

Management, Building Control and Planning Enforcement since the Sub Committee 
meeting on 14 June 2011. 
 

14. PLANNING ENFORCEMENT UPDATE  (PAGES 331 - 340)  
 
 Report of the Director of Place and Sustainability to inform Members on Planning 

Enforcement’s progress in maintaining service delivery 2011/12. 
 

15. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS    
 
 To consider any items admitted at item 2 above. 

 
16. DATE OF NEXT MEETING    
 
 Special meeting (tbc): 22 September 2011 

10 October 2011 
 

 
 
David McNulty 
Head of Local Democracy  
and Member Services  
Level 5 
River Park House  
225 High Road  
Wood Green  
London N22 8HQ 
 

Helen Chapman 
Principal Committee Coordinator 
Level 5 
River Park House  
225 High Road  
Wood Green  
London N22 8HQ 
 
Tel: 0208 4892615 
Email: 
helen.chapman@haringey.gov.uk 
 
Friday, 02 September 2011 

 
 
 
 



Agenda Item 5Page 1



Page 2



Page 3



Page 4



Page 5



Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL PLANNING SUB COMMITTEE 

WEDNESDAY, 20 JULY 2011 

 
Councillors: Basu, Christophides, Egan, Erskine, Rice, Scott, Solomon, Strang and Waters 

 

 
Also  
Present: 

Councillors Diakides, Watson, Vanier, Schmitz and Bevan 
 

 

MINUTE 

NO. 

SUBJECT/DECISION ACTION 

BY 

 

PC32.   
 

ELECTION OF CHAIR FOR PROCEEDINGS  

 Nominations were sought from the Committee for Chair for the 
duration of proceedings, in the absence of the Chair and Vice-
Chair of the Planning Sub Committee. Cllr Egan nominated Cllr 
Rice as Chair, and this was seconded by Cllr Basu. The 
Committee was asked to approve the appointment of Cllr Rice as 
Chair for proceedings and it was: 
 
AGREED 

 

That Cllr Rice take the Chair for the duration of proceedings. 
 

 
 

PC33.   
 

APOLOGIES  

 Apologies for absence were received from Cllr Demirci, for whom 
Cllr Christophides was substituting, from Cllr Peacock, for whom 
Cllr Egan was substituting, from Cllr Schmitz, for whom Cllr 
Solomon was substituting, from Cllr Beacham, for whom Cllr 
Erskine was substituting and from Cllr Reece for whom Cllr 
Strang was substituting. 
 
NOTED 

 

 
 

PC34.   
 

URGENT BUSINESS  

 It being a special meeting of the Sub Committee, there were no 
new items of urgent business.  
 

 
 

PC35.   
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 Cllr Strang declared a personal interest as an employee of 
London Underground.  
 

 
 

PC36.   
 

WARDS CORNER SITE, HIGH ROAD, N15  

 Members were advised at the start of the meeting that a Member 
information pack and hard copy of the officer presentation had 
been provided, and that Charles Solomon from the District Valuer 
Service and Nicola Hodges from URS Scott Wilson were present 
at the meeting to answer Members’ questions as necessary. Paul 
Smith gave a presentation on the application, setting out the site, 

 
 

Page 19



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING SUB COMMITTEE 

WEDNESDAY, 20 JULY 2011 
 

relevant planning policies, the development agreement and brief, 
planning history, details of the proposal, access, housing and 
amenity space, conservation views, design panel, daylight and 
sunlight, key objections and responses, the independent 
Equalities Impact Assessment (EqIA), viability appraisal, reports 
from the GLA and Transport for London and the officer 
recommendations as set out on page 46 of the agenda pack.  
 
Mr Smith reported that 21 objections had been received since the 
report had been completed, and these were summarised along 
with the officer responses in the pack for Members. An additional 
6 objections had been received on the day of the meeting, for 
which it had not been possible to provide a written response, 
however these broadly reflected objections which had already 
been lodged.  
 
The Chair reminded all present that the meeting was being 
webcast for broadcast on the Council’s webcast.  
 
The Committee asked questions of Mr Smith regarding his 
presentation. In response to a question regarding the proposed 
new rents for traders, were the development to go ahead, Mr 
Smith reported that these would be renegotiated on the basis of 
acceptable rent levels at that point in time. The Committee noted 
that regeneration was the main aim of the proposal and, given 
that an incomplete development would be the worst possible 
scenario, asked what safeguards were in place to protect against 
such an outcome. Mr Smith advised that, other than the issue of 
affordable housing, viability was a matter for the developer and 
was not a matter for the Committee to take into consideration. 
Allan Ledden, Legal Services, clarified in respect of the 
Conservation Area that it would be a condition that a contract be 
in place for the replacement of buildings in the Conservation Area 
before any demolition of such buildings took place.  
 
The Committee asked about the amendment to the aspirations for 
the Seven Sisters Corridor under Policy SP1 of the Core Strategy, 
and who had instigated this, in response to which it was reported 
that this was instigated by a borough-wide residents’ association. 
The Committee asked how the development could be seen to be 
enhancing the Conservation Area, in line with the Development 
Brief, when demolition was proposed, and also how it could 
protect the diversity of the area when no affordable housing was 
proposed. The Committee further asked whether the Wards Store 
building, as a significant landmark building, could have been 
incorporated into the design. In response to the issue regarding 
affordable housing, it was reported that this had been carefully 
looked at and found not to be viable on account of the physical 
constraints of the site, but that there were wider regeneration 
benefits from the scheme despite the lack of affordable housing. It 
was noted that there had been attempts to nationally list buildings 
on the site, but that these had been unsuccessful, and that the 

Page 20



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING SUB COMMITTEE 

WEDNESDAY, 20 JULY 2011 
 

design proposed was felt to be acceptable and to enhance the 
Conservation Area as a landmark building of a higher quality of 
architecture than the existing structures.  
 
In response to a question regarding the provision of 44 parking 
spaces, it was reported that these were to replace the existing 
parking provision for the commercial units, and also for the 
proposed housing units on Suffield Road. The majority of the 
scheme would be car-free, and residents other than those on 
Suffield Road would not be able to apply for parking permits. It 
was also reported that the proposed education contribution under 
the s106 had been negotiated to relate to the impact of the 
development on local education infrastructure, and had remained 
the same from the outset. 
 
The Committee asked about the EqIA and the criticism that it had 
been a paper-based exercise, and whether the methodology 
could be explained. Nicola Hodges of URS Scott Wilson, who had 
undertaken the EqIA, responded and explained that it had been a 
desk study, drawing on a very high amount of evidence from 
previous consultations and from elsewhere. The Committee 
asked for legal guidance on whether the EqIA satisfied the 
requirements of the judgement in the Judicial Review in 2010, 
and Mr Ledden advised the Committee of their duties under 
section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, which was to consider to 
the need to promote equality of opportunity between persons of 
different racial groups and the need to promote good relations 
between persons of different racial groups, and reminded 
Members that the judgement made in 2010 emphasised that the 
duty was not to achieve a result, but rather to have due regard to 
the need to achieve the goals of eliminating racial discrimination 
and promoting equality of opportunity. Mr Ledden advised that the 
EqIA identified issues, made recommendations to mitigate 
impacts and had been endorsed by the GLA, with each 
recommendation being incorporated in the s106 agreement. 
Officers advised that this should satisfy the Committee’s duty 
under the Act, and it was for Members to determine for 
themselves whether they felt this was the case.  
 
Marc Dorfman, Assistant Director, Planning, Regeneration and 
Economy, asked Ms Hodges whether in her opinion undertaking 
interviews as part of the EqIA was necessary, and would have led 
to a different conclusion or further recommendations for 
mitigation. In response, it was reported that the results from all 
consultations undertaken up until April 2011 were reviewed, and 
that whilst it was always possible to consult further, it was not felt 
that the outcome would have been substantially different. Ms 
Hodges reported that she was pleased that all the 
recommendations had been incorporated into the s106 
agreement, and that the engagement strategy should ensure that 
progress continued to be made with regards to engaging with 
local residents moving forward. 

Page 21



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING SUB COMMITTEE 

WEDNESDAY, 20 JULY 2011 
 

 
The Chair invited objectors to address the Committee.  
 
Victoria Alvarez, a local trader, addressed the Committee to state 
that the mitigation proposed in the s106 agreement was 
insufficient, and that the £144k ‘Trader’s Financial Assistance 
Sum’ worked out at only £2,322.58 per trader. Because there had 
been no engagement process locally, there were less likely to be 
social benefits from the scheme. The local community and traders 
should have been an integral part of the whole process but 
instead had been antagonised. It was the Council’s opportunity 
now to demonstrate that it was taking its duties seriously, and that 
development should unite rather than divide the local community.  
 
Raul Mancera, President of the Pueblito Paisa traders’ 
association, stated that many traders were scared that they were 
going to lose their businesses and would end up unemployed or 
even homeless. Mr Mancera noted that relocation costs, publicity, 
storage and other necessities would cost much more than the 
amount of mitigation allocated and that it would personally cost 
him around £6-7k to relocate. Many traders’ businesses would not 
survive the two years before a new scheme was ready, and those 
that did may not then be able to afford the new market rents. Mr 
Mancera said that the proposal offered no guarantees, only the 
likelihood that people would lose their businesses. The process 
was causing many people stress and ill-health, as well as 
financial costs. Mr Mancera asked the Committee not to make a 
decision based on emotion or pity, but purely on the facts. The 
market serves many cultures and people travel specifically to it to 
get services they can’t get elsewhere, as well as sustaining 
around 500 families in supplying the market. Mr Mancera stated 
that the traders did not want pity, but justice.  
 
The Committee asked questions of the objectors, and in response 
to a question regarding the extent to which mitigation such as 
three months rent free would assist traders, objectors reported 
that this was insufficient to meet the true costs of relocation and 
would lead to many businesses not surviving. Mr Dorfman 
clarified that the package proposed was that the existing market 
would not close until a new temporary location had been offered, 
and that there was an additional £280k relocation package in 
addition to the £144k traders’ financial assistance sum. The aim 
of all these measures was to provide some certainty to market 
traders and to enable them to continue to trade. In response, Mr 
Mancera stated that while the package appeared attractive, in 
reality traders would be starting their businesses from scratch, in 
a new location where not all their existing clients would follow and 
that in the current economic climate this meant that businesses 
were more likely to fail. The Committee asked whether traders 
would be relocated together, in response to which Mr Dorfman 
advised that the s106 provided for those who wanted to stay 
together to relocate together and also to have first refusal to come 

Page 22



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING SUB COMMITTEE 

WEDNESDAY, 20 JULY 2011 
 

back to the new market together. Mr Dorfman added that in 
addition to financial support, the package also offered traders 
business advice.  
 
In response to a question from the Committee regarding how long 
it had taken them to build up their businesses on the market, Ms 
Alvarez said that it had taken her about 8 years to build up a 
customer base, and Mr Mancera said he had been at the market 
for 5 years.  
 
David Divers, Tottenham Conservation Area Advisory Committee 
(CAAC), advised the Committee that the CAAC’s primary 
objections were the demolition of the historic buildings which 
make a positive contribution to the conservation area and the 
replacement of these with an uninspiring building. The fact that 
the buildings had not been nationally listed was irrelevant as this 
was a local matter, and their local listing demonstrated the 
interest in them. Mr Divers reported that the Council’s own 
policies suggest that the existing buildings should be retained and 
that the conservation area should be preserved and enhanced. 
The CAAC did not feel that it had been demonstrated that the 
regeneration benefits of the scheme would outweigh the 
demolition of buildings which make a positive contribution to the 
conservation area and reflected the area’s history as a local hub. 
The CAAC recommended that a refurbishment approach be 
taken. 
 
Glen Lake, a local resident, addressed the Committee and said 
that two aspects of the scheme were of particular concern, 
physical and the humanitarian. It was reported that since 2008 
there had been a pattern of concern regarding both these aspects 
– people did not accept the proposals for the physical buildings 
and the consequences these would have on local people. The 
existing building had been turned into something vibrant by the 
community and the consequences of development on jobs and 
the community had to be considered. The building had been 
allowed to run down so that it could be taken on by developers, 
and the Committee were asked to stop this today. 
 
Moaz Nanjuwany, Chair of the Tottenham Traders, and Mital 
Patel reminded the Committee Members that they must make 
their decision as individuals, weighing up the rights and wrongs of 
the scheme. Ms Patel reported that the officer report and EqIA did 
not mention the large Wards Corner Coalition (WCC) meetings 
held, and telephone calls had been made only in English and that 
the actual questions asked had not been released. The EqIA did 
not reflect the specific people affected by the scheme and 
therefore the Committee could not discharge its section 149 duty 
on this basis. It was reported that a scheme with no social 
housing made no sense, as it placed the social housing burden 
on the Council in a time of cuts. Mr Nanjuwany advised that 
residents had been told that they would get to see the proposal in 

Page 23



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING SUB COMMITTEE 

WEDNESDAY, 20 JULY 2011 
 

good time before the meeting, but had only been able to see it 
today. Granger’s business model was to make money, and this 
was not a model the community wanted to see in Tottenham. The 
community wanted a project that reflected its diverse culture and 
this did not fit with the proposal. The Committee was urged to 
consider the community plan. In response to a question from the 
Committee, Ms Patel confirmed that the legal advice emailed to 
Members in advance of the meeting regarding the errors of 
approach in the EqIA had been provided by John Halford, 
Bindmans Solicitors. 
 
Ruth Allen, a local resident, advised the Committee that the local 
community felt that the application was an infringement of their 
human rights, and that as a democratically elected body, the 
Council should represent people and promote their well-being and 
rights. It was felt that the current scheme was being imposed on 
the community from outside, rather than engaging with local 
people to regenerate the area and make it as good as it could be. 
A building in a conservation area should not be demolished when 
there was the option of renewal and refurbishment. It was felt that 
the EqIA supplied did not meet its obligations and was 
fundamentally flawed in that it was not possible to assess the 
impact on people when you didn’t know who those people were 
and had not spoken to them, nor how they would be affected and 
therefore how effective mitigation would be. 
 
Jean-Jacques Best, a local resident, stated that this was an issue 
of people and happiness and that the decision would affect the 
lives of the local community. Diversity was the great strength of 
the local area, as reflected in its small businesses, and any 
development should add to this. Mr Best questioned how this 
scheme had come about. Many of the small businesses were 
family-run and had been operating for many years, offering a 
personal service and contributing to community well-being. The 
application and s106 did not offer businesses the support they 
needed, and that there could be no mitigation for the loss of 
people’s livelihoods.  
 
The Committee asked about the specific rights that the objectors 
felt were infringed by the application, in response to which Ms 
Allen advised that she felt that Human Rights and Equalities 
Rights were being affected, and that the application amounted to 
degrading treatment. It was also noted that the mitigation 
measures were only for market traders and not the other 
businesses, many of which were long-standing. The Committee 
asked about any possible alternative solutions for the 
development of the site, in response to which it was reported that 
the Princes Regeneration Trust were interested in the site, but 
would need partnership from the Council to take this forward, 
there was also a live planning application from the community for 
the refurbishment of the market and of the Wards Store building. 
The Committee asked the objectors about the legal advice 

Page 24



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING SUB COMMITTEE 

WEDNESDAY, 20 JULY 2011 
 

received in respect of the EqIA, and Ms Allen reported that the 
advice indicated that the EqIA did not enable the Committee to 
discharge its duties, as it did not identify the people affected by 
the development and that the role of the market within the 
community needed to be better understood. The objectors asked 
for the decision to be deferred until full consultation had been 
undertaken. It was felt that the lack of social housing was a 
serious issue and would have equalities implications which had 
not been addressed, and it was also not known how many of the 
businesses to be affected were BME-owned.  
 
The Committee asked what implications reaching a decision on 
the application before them would have on any alternative 
application, in response to which Mr Dorfman reported that this 
was not a matter to be considered in relation to the determining of 
this particular application as each application had to be 
considered on its own merits, and added that multiple planning 
permissions could be granted on the same site. Ms Allen argued 
that the existence of an alternative to demolition should be a 
material consideration under PPS5 and that the Council needed 
to make a proactive approach to the Princes Regeneration Trust.  
 
Marta Hinestroza addressed the Committee with the assistance of 
an interpreter, and stated that she wanted justice and respect for 
Human Rights. She felt that the Grainger scheme was designed 
to make a profit and turned a blind eye to the social impact. The 
small businesses wanted to be allowed to continue to trade as at 
present – the application would benefit those who already had a 
lot at the expense of the community who were happy with the little 
they had. The Community were prepared to fight, however, for 
their human rights.  
 
Isaac Bigio, Coordinator of the Iberian American Alliance, 
addressed the Committee to advise that the date of the meeting, 
20th July,  was the celebration of Colombian Independence. Mr 
Bigio highlighted the size of the Iberian American population in 
London, and the need for this community to be recognised, 
particularly in Tottenham, with such a vibrant Latin American and 
Caribbean Community.    
 
Belinda Batten, a local resident, addressed the Committee in 
support of the application, which it was felt would improve the 
retail space in the area, which was an area with great potential, 
and would also bring benefits to business and employment.  
 
Cllr John Bevan addressed the Committee as Cabinet Member 
for Housing and a member of the design panel. Cllr Bevan 
advised that the design panel had recommended a bolder 
approach between the station and flats, and improvements to the 
corner building, which was subsequently remodelled in response 
to the comments made. The design panel had identified the 
courtyard and public art elements as potentially positive elements 

Page 25



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING SUB COMMITTEE 

WEDNESDAY, 20 JULY 2011 
 

of the scheme, but had commented that the elevations and bulk 
made the scheme appear bland and over-scaled and they had 
been remodelled to address these concerns. A further comment 
that the housing elements needed to be displayed more obviously 
and their relationship to the street should be enhanced had also 
been responded to. Cllr Bevan reported that there was no 
obligation for the developers to comply with recommendations of 
the design panel, but in this instance every point made had been 
responded to, which was very welcome.  
 
In response to a question from the Committee regarding the lack 
of affordable housing, Cllr Bevan reported that while the Council 
would want social housing and were generally wary of schemes 
where none was proposed, it had been independently confirmed 
by two external bodies that in this case the social housing would 
not be viable. Cllr Bevan also advised that social housing was 
planned for the area, and that the number of social housing units 
in the area in future would exceed the number of housing units 
proposed in this application.  
 
Cllr Diakides, local ward councillor, addressed the Committee to 
state that the Committee could and should reject the application 
on planning grounds relating to housing, as not only was no social 
housing proposed but the application would also reduce the 
amount of existing affordable housing. Cllr Diakides also reported 
that the application contravened policies on the environment,  that 
the design and materials were not in keeping with the area and 
would remove locally listed buildings. The Committee needed to 
decide whether they were convinced individually regarding this 
schemed which was unpopular and damaging to local 
businesses.   
 
At 9.45pm, the Chair asked the Committee to agree to suspend 
standing orders to continue the business after 10.00pm. The 
Committee: 
 
AGREED 

 

To suspend standing orders to continue the business of the 
meeting after 10pm. 
 
Cllr David Schmitz addressed the Committee to state that under 
PPS5 it was wrong to dispose of a locally listed building without a 
compelling reason. Cllr Schmitz reported that the regeneration 
was doubtful with the development and the return of the indoor 
market unlikely. The Latin American community had still not been 
taken into consideration. It was felt that the Wards Store building 
was worth saving and that no proof had been provided that it was 
not possible to retain the building. As written, the future of the 
market would not be assured as it entailed an agreement to 
agree, which would not be legally enforceable. Cllr Schmitz 
advised that were the market unable to return to the site, the 

Page 26



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING SUB COMMITTEE 

WEDNESDAY, 20 JULY 2011 
 

basis of the EqIA would fall. The EqIA itself included no data on 
the Latin American community, and didn’t seek assistance from 
the Haringey Racial Equality Council. Cllr Schmitz asked the 
Committee to show that they cared about these issues. 
 
Cllr Richard Watson and Cllr Bernice Vanier, local ward 
councillors, addressed the Committee. Cllr Watson noted that 
most residents opposed the scheme as not being the right way 
forward, and expressed concern regarding the equalities issues, 
lack of social housing and demolition of heritage assets. While it 
was good that the EqIA recommendations had been included in 
the s106, it would have been stronger if members of the 
community had been spoken to directly and that not doing so was 
a missed opportunity. It was also felt that the impact of the 
development on businesses that were not part of the market had 
been underestimated and should be a concern. Local residents 
believed that demolition was not the right way forward and 
wanted to refurbish and preserve the existing buildings, which 
was a fundamental difference in approach. Consultation had not 
been as good as it could have been, and Cllr Watson welcomed 
the EqIA recommendation for an ongoing engagement strategy. It 
was essential to move forward, but there should be no section of 
the community who were not being listened to. Cllr Vanier 
recalled a time when Wards Corner had been a vibrant area and 
centre of the community, and emphasised that it was necessary 
to address its current condition. She looked forward to a time 
when the area was revitalised and that there was no doubt 
regarding the importance of development of the site. The 
Committee was urged to consider what was best for the area in 
reaching their decision.  
 
The Committee took a 10-minute break from 9.55 to 10.05pm.  
 
The applicants addressed the Committee. Andrew Beharrell 
noted that the officer presentation at the start of the meeting had 
covered many of the details of the application, and that he was 
happy to respond to any questions raised by Members. Shops, 
homes and public space were identified as the three key aspects 
of the scheme, and that one of the aims was to transform the 
street-level experience of the millions of people who passed 
through the area, sweeping away current obstructions on the High 
Road and enhancing the tube entrances. The buildings would be 
set back to create more public space and new retail space would 
attract a mix of independent and national stores, in addition to the 
indoor market which would have a prominent entrance onto 
Wards Corner. The main entrance to the flats would have a 24 
hour concierge service; all flats would be fully accessible and 
arrange in 10 separate blocks to make a safer and more sociable 
environment. There would also be family maisonettes onto 
Suffield Road, and a variety of areas for the recreation of 
residents. Each of the four street elevations would have very 
different characters, and upper levels of the building would be set 

Page 27



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING SUB COMMITTEE 

WEDNESDAY, 20 JULY 2011 
 

back. The development would be of its own time and would reflect 
modern lifestyles, while taking cues from the conservation area. 
Ultimately, it would be a setting for civic life for the existing 
community and newcomers, and it would be the activities taking 
place there, rather than the buildings, which would come to define 
the area.  
 
Christopher Frost, ASP Planning, addressed the Committee on 
the outcome of the 2010 judicial review decision that the Planning 
Committee should have expressly considered the impacts of the 
development in line with the duty of the Equalities Act. Every 
development had both positive and negative impacts, and it was 
for the Committee to weigh these up  and decide what was 
acceptable on balance. The application before the Committee 
was broadly the same as in 2008, but had been improved in 
respect of sustainability and the finance appraisal had been 
resubmitted to reflect current market conditions. The applicants 
had agreed to the inclusion of all the recommendations of the 
EqIA in the s106 agreement. There was no question of Grainger 
not wanting the market to flourish, and were working hard to 
ensure the success of the market. There was ongoing monitoring 
taking place to ensure that nobody missed out and that it was in 
Grainger’s own interests to make the market successful.  
 
David Walters, Grainger, stated that there was real potential for 
the regeneration of Seven Sisters and that this application would 
create a thriving, safe and secure area. As part of the process, 
the applicants had engaged, reflected and responded to the views 
of the community whilst ensuring the deliverability of the scheme.  
The scheme would provide quality housing at a time when there 
was a shortage, in an area which would benefit from this. As a 
busy tube station, the site would be attractive to retailers and 
would increase footfall, benefiting existing businesses. Although 
there would be challenges to come, Mr Walters confirmed that 
Grainger was committed to delivering the regeneration of Seven 
Sisters.  
 
The Committee asked whether there was any possibility of 
incorporating the Wards Store windows into the new design, and 
also asked about the proposed contrast between the two sides of 
Suffield Road and whether there was any way of regenerating the 
frontages of the old buildings so that there was less of a marked 
contrast with the new. The applicants responded that they had 
considered a wide range of options for the site, including the 
retention of the existing Wards Store building, and that while it 
was technically possible to do so, such a design had been 
carefully assessed on the basis of regeneration benefits and 
practicality, and a conclusion had been reached that replacement 
would be better. The decision to demolish the historic building 
had not been taken lightly, and consultation responses from a 
number of bodies had led to the current proposal. Mr Walters also 
advised that the contrast between the old and new which would 

Page 28



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING SUB COMMITTEE 

WEDNESDAY, 20 JULY 2011 
 

arise on Suffield Road was one of the natural impacts of 
regeneration.  
 
The Committee asked whether there would be any preferential 
arrangement for existing independent shops over new tenants, in 
response to which Mr Walters advised that individual units could 
not be allocated to tenants at this stage, but that within the 
development there would be 9 units for independent traders and 8 
for national stores, which was felt to be an appropriate balance.  
 
The Committee noted that the scheme would deliver £1m in s106 
contributions but had cost £2m of public investment, and asked 
whether there might not be a better way of investing public money 
directly in the local area without the use of private development. 
Mr Walters responded that they had worked with the WCC in 
2008 but had found that the scheme proposed was not viable; it 
had taken 4 years to develop a viable scheme. Mr Dorfman 
clarified that the Committee was asking for justification of why, 
when the local authority and Government had invested £2m in the 
scheme, there was still no social housing included and no higher 
levels of compensation for existing businesses. Mr Walters 
explained that the structural constraints caused by the tube lines, 
the right to light at the northern end of the site and the fragmented 
ownership of the site all contributed to the issues of delivery and 
viability of the scheme. Charles Solomon, District Valuer Service, 
addressed the Committee and stated that the site was considered 
a high risk in financial terms because of the constraints outlined 
by Mr Walters, and that this impacted on deliverability. Because 
of these uncertainties and risk levels it was important for Grainger 
to be able to manage their risk, and that the overall profit 
assumed was no higher than it would be for any other developer. 
Having considered the application, Mr Solomon concluded the 
overall the scheme was both viable and deliverable.  
 
The Committee asked the applicants what assurances they could 
provide with respect to the EqIA, in response to which Mr Frost 
advised that the Committee had a duty to comply with the 
relevant legislation and the fact that this issue had been 
considered in such detail demonstrated that the Committee was 
undertaking this and protecting itself from legal challenge. It was 
reported that this was an ongoing process and would not end at 
the close of this meeting, but the overall aim was to achieve a 
scheme which did not disadvantage any particular group.  
 
The Committee went to examine the drawings and then asked 
further questions of officers. In response to a question regarding 
the proposed commercial hours of 7am to 1am, Mr Smith advised 
that this was felt to be consistent with a busy town centre location. 
The Committee asked about the level of detail of the scheme and 
the issue that had been raised about the Committee not having 
sufficient time to give the application due consideration, in 
response to which Mr Dorfman advised that the scheme was 

Page 29



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING SUB COMMITTEE 

WEDNESDAY, 20 JULY 2011 
 

largely unchanged from that submitted in 2008, apart from the 
environmental elements and s106 agreement which had been 
amended in light of the new EqIA and viability appraisal, and that 
there had been sufficient time for the determination of the 
application. The Committee asked about the mitigation of the 
impact of the development on Suffield Road, and it was agreed 
that, were the application to be granted, officers would be given 
delegated authority to negotiate the reallocation of the s106 Town 
Centre Fund contribution between that and Suffield Road with the 
applicants.  
 
Mr Dorfman addressed the Committee on the 6 key areas which 
were: design, whether the regeneration benefits warranted the 
demolition of local heritage assets, retention of local businesses, 
whether the complexity of the scheme required a deferral, 
diversity, and human rights and equalities, including social 
housing. With regards to design, the officer view was that the key 
form of the site was castellated, particularly on the High Road, 
Seven Sisters Road and West Green Road, rising at the corners 
but relatively low-rise elsewhere, and that the development would 
echo this form, but on a larger scale. The details of the facades 
would reference the conservation area. The applicants had been 
asked to look at the retention of the Wards Store building, but 
from an officer point of view this had failed in design terms, and a 
completely new scheme had been recommended. The model and 
drawings demonstrated what was felt to be a well-detailed, 
striking corner element to replace what was a cherished building. 
The scheme would create a modern new market, and the housing 
elements replicated the terraces on West Green Road and Seven 
Sisters Road.  
 
Mr Dorfman addressed the issue of whether the regeneration 
benefits warranted the demolition of the heritage features, notably 
the Wards Store building which was a small but notable part of 
the site. The scheme would provide for a mix of independent and 
national retailers, a new market, public realm and homes and 
would increase access to public transport, as well as creating a 
striking corner feature. The public art and marketing of the market 
would create a real opportunity to reflect the diversity of the local 
community. With regards to the retention of local business, Mr 
Dorfman advised that the s106 arrangements ensured that the 
existing market would not close until a temporary site was offered, 
and that this was intended to ensure business continuity and to 
offer traders the opportunity to carry out their business. 
Compensation was also available in the form of money and 
business advice. On the issue of diversity, it was reported that the 
scheme offered more homes, more retail space, including 
independent retailers, and was aimed at increasing footfall which 
would support independent traders.  
 
Mr Dorfman addressed the issues of community engagement and 
affordable housing, and stated that it was officers’ view that there 

Page 30



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING SUB COMMITTEE 

WEDNESDAY, 20 JULY 2011 
 

had been many opportunities for local people to have their say on 
the scheme, and that the s106 specifically addressed those 
people who would be affected on the site. The Cabinet Member 
for Housing had confirmed that social housing was planned for 
this area, and that the viability appraisal had demonstrated that 
social housing was not viable as part of this development.  
 
Mr Ledden reminded the Committee that the previous decision 
that had been quashed on appeal had no bearing on their 
decision this evening and that Members must come to the 
application with an open mind. Members had to satisfy 
themselves that they had had due regard to their duties under the 
Equalities Act. Mr Ledden also reminded Members of some key 
points under the Members’ Code of Conduct for Planning 
Committee, in that all planning applications must be determined in 
accordance with the statutory development plan, that Members 
are elected to represent the interests of the whole community in 
planning matters, that all views must be taken into accounts but 
that local opposition or support for a proposal is not in itself a 
ground for refusing or granting permission unless founded upon 
valid planning reasons, and that the planning system does not 
exist to protect the interests of one person against the activities of 
another and the basic question is whether the proposal would 
unacceptably affect amenities and the existing use of land and 
buildings which ought to be protected in the public interest.  
 
The Chair moved the recommendations of the report and on a 
vote of 4 in favour and 5 against, the motion was lost.  
 
The Committee discussed the grounds on which the motion had 
been rejected and after discussion, it was felt that the grounds for 
refusal should be: 
 

1) That the impact of the development on the conservation 
area was unacceptable, particularly in respect of bulk, 
massing and design 

2) The case for regeneration benefits had not been made 
sufficiently to compensate for the demolition of heritage 
assets.  

 
The Chair moved these grounds for refusal and on a vote of 6 in 
favour and 3 against, it was: 
 
RESOLVED 

 

That application HGY/2008/0303 be refused on the grounds that  
 
1. the proposed development by virtue of its bulk, massing and 
design neither preserves nor enhances the historic character and 
appearance of the Tottenham High Road Corridor/Seven 
Sisters/Page Green Conservation Area. Consequently the 
proposal is contrary to the aims and objectives of National 

Page 31



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING SUB COMMITTEE 

WEDNESDAY, 20 JULY 2011 
 

Planning Policy Statement (PPS) 1: Creating Sustainable 
Communities (2005); PPS 5, Policies UD3 & UD4 and CSV1 of 
the Haringey UDP; and 
 2. The proposed development would involve the loss of 
designated heritage assets as defined in Annex 2 of PPS 5 and 
would constitute "substantial harm". The applicant has failed to 
demonstrate that the substantial harm is necessary in order to 
deliver substantial public benefits that outweigh that harm. 
 
The meeting closed at 23:30hrs 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
COUNCILLOR REG RICE 
 
In the Chair 

 
 
 

Page 32



Agenda Item 6Page 33



Page 34

This page is intentionally left blank



Planning Sub-Committee Report

Planning Sub-Committee 12 September 2011     Item No. 
 
REPORT FOR CONSIDERATION AT PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

Reference No: HGY/2011/0612  
 
Date received: 01/04/2011                          

Ward: Noel Park 
 

 
Address:  Coronation Sidings, North of Turnpike Lane, Hornsey, and Hornsey Depot, 
South of Turnpike Lane N8 
 
Proposal: Construction of rolling stock maintenance depot and associated works 
including main depot building, office and storage space; track and sidings; underframe 
cleaning facility and plant room; two train washers and plant rooms; waste compactors; 
partial rebuilding of Hornsey Station footbridge; two shunters cabins; bridge widenings 
over the New River and Turnpike Lane; associated works including engineering, 
signalling, electrification and other operational works and equipment for the railway; hard 
surfacing and new internal site access road; landscaping; fences; car, motorcycle and 
bicycle parking; construction of retaining walls; temporary construction haul bridge and 
use of land as a temporary construction compound. 
 
Existing Use: Operational Railway Land                                 
 
Proposed Use: Operational Railway Land 
 
Applicant/Owner:  Network Rail 

DOCUMENTS

Title Document Reference  

Planning Statement REP-PL-HOR-001A

Design and Access Statement REP-PL-HOR-002A

Environmental Statement Appendix 5.1 – 
Transport Assessment

REP-PL-HOR-003A

Travel Plan REP-PL-HOR-004A

Environmental Statement Vol 1:Main Report REP-PL-HOR-005A

Environmental Statement Vol 3: Technical 
Appendices Part 2 – Flood Risk Assessment

REP-PL-HOR-006A

External Lighting Strategy REP-PL-HOR-007A

Energy Statement REP-PL-HOR-008A

Environmental State. Vol 4: Non Tech Sum REP-PL-HOR-009A

Environmental Statement Vol 2: Technical 
Appendices

REP-PL-HOR-010A

Sustainability Statement REP-PL-HOR-011A

Assessment of Visual Effects on Views from 
One Additional Viewpoint (Reissue Aug 11)

REP-PL-HOR-012A

Additional Lighting Details (Reissue Aug 11) REP-PL-HOR-013A

Environmental Statement Volume 3: 
Appendices Part 2- Appendix 13.1 FRA 

REP/143/10_A1; REP/143/1/0_A3May 2011 
 

Agenda Item 7Page 35



Planning Sub-Committee Report

PLANS 

Plan Number  Rev. Plan Title  

HOR-GX-200  04 Hornsey Location Plan 

HOR-GX-201  07 Hornsey Site Plan 

HOR-GX-202  05 Hornsey Revised Scheme Principal Changes 

HOR-CB-001  05 Hornsey Depot Retaining Walls General Arrangements 

HOR-CB-101  05 Hornsey Station Footbridge Existing Layout 

HOR-CB-102  05 Hornsey Station Footbridge Proposed Layout 

HOR-CB-201   04 New River Under Bridge Proposed Widening 

HOR-CB-301  05 Turnpike Lane Under Bridge Proposed Widening 

HOR-PL-004  03 Hornsey Main Depot Building Ground Level Plan 

HOR-PL-005 03 Hornsey Main Depot Building First Level Plan 

HOR-PL-012 00 Hornsey UFC Facility: Plan, Elevations & Sections 

HOR-PL-013  00 Hornsey Train Wash Facility: Plan, Elevations & Sections 

HOR-SE-007  03 Hornsey Sections BB, CC 

HOR-SE-008 03 Hornsey Roof Plan, Section AA, Elevation E 

HOR-SE-009 03 Hornsey Elevations N, S, E 

HOR-CH-210 05 Hornsey Fire Tender: Track Runs Around Main Depot 

HOR-CH-211 05 Hornsey Max Legal Articulated Vehicle: Track Runs 

HOR-CH-212 05 Hornsey Skip & Large Refuse Vehicle: Track Runs Main Depot 

HOR-CH-216 01 Max Articulated Lorry Track Runs for Existing Road 

HOR-CX-001 05 Hornsey Demolition/Diversion Requirements 

HOR-CX-200 05 Hornsey Proposed Fencing 

HOR-LA-001 02 Hornsey Landscape Plan 1/3 

HOR-LA-002 02  Hornsey Landscape Plan 2/3 

HOR-LA-003 01 Hornsey Landscape Plan 3/3 

HOR-CU-210 04 Hornsey Depot External Lighting Strategy 

HOR-CR-210   03 Standard Details Sheet 1 of 2 

HOR-CR-211 01  Standard Details Sheet 2 of 2 

HOR-CE-001 06  Hornsey Detailed Cross Sections: Sections A-A, B-A, C-C 

HOR-CE-002 06  Hornsey Detailed Cross Sections: Sections D-D, E-E and F-F 

HOR-CE-003 05  Hornsey Detailed Cross Sections: Sections G-G, H-H and I-I 

HOR-CE-004 06 Hornsey Detailed Cross Section Location Plan 

HOR-GX-003 04  Photo Survey – Structures 

HOR-GX-004 04  Photo Survey – Utilities/Drainage 

HOR-GX-005 04 Photo Survey – Rail 
HOR-GX-006 04 Photo Survey – Geo-Technics 
HOR-GX-007 04 Photo Survey - Transport 
CB-HOR-SK-001 01 Temporary Vehicle Access Bridge to Contractor Compound 
HOR-E-001 – 008 01 External Lighting/Layout Drawings 

HOR-E-101 - 108 01 Lux Level Plans 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 36



Planning Sub-Committee Report

Case Officer Contact:  
Michelle Bradshaw 
P: 0208 489 5280 
E: michelle.bradshaw@haringey.gov.uk 
 

PLANNING DESIGNATIONS: 
 
Areas of Change – Haringey Heartlands Framework  
Site Specific Proposal 
Ecological Corridor 
Blue Ribbon Network 
Thameslink 2000 
Area of Archaeological Importance 
Defined Employment Area (Land adjacent to the east and north east) 
Strategic Employment Location (Land adjacent to the east and north east) 
Cultural Quarter (Land adjacent to the north east) 
Metropolitan Open Land (Land adjacent to the west and north west) 
Ecologically Valuable Site – Borough Grade I (Land adjacent to the west and north west) 
Historic Park (Land adjacent to the west and north west) 
Green Chain – Proposed (Land to the north-east, west and south-east) 
Conservation Area (Land adjacent to the north-east, west and south-west) 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
GRANT PERMISSION subject to conditions and subject to sec. 106 Legal Agreement  

 
SUMMARY OF REPORT: 
 
The reports summary and conclusions are set out at Section 7.0 of this report. 
 
That the Planning Committee be minded to grant planning permission for application 
HGY/2011/0612 subject to conditions and the signing of a combined legal agreement 
pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country planning Act 1990 and Sections 72 and 
278 of the Highways Act 1980 and all other appropriate legal powers (together with an 
appropriate form of guarantee for both the S278 highways works and S106 contributions, 
as set out in section 10 of this report) and in the event that the said legal agreement is not 
signed and competed by 12th December 2011 the application shall be deemed refused 
and the Assistant Director of Planning & Regeneration shall issue the appropriate notice of 
refusal of planning permission. 
 
In determining this application, officers have had regard to the Council’s obligations under 
the Equality Act 2010.  
 
On balance it is considered that the scheme is largely consistent with planning policy and 
the harm caused by proposed development is considered to be outweighed by the public 
benefits delivered by the scheme. Therefore, subject to appropriate conditions and s106 
contributions the application is considered acceptable and on this basis, it is 
recommended that the application be granted planning permission.  
 

Page 37



Planning Sub-Committee Report

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
1.0  SITE AND SURROUNDINGS 
2.0  PLANNING HISTORY 
3.0  PROPOSAL DESCRIPTION 
4.0  RELEVANT PLANNING POLICY 
5.0  CONSULTATION 
6.0  ANALYSIS/ASSESSMENT OF THE APPLICATION 
 

6.1 Principle of Development and Site Selection 
6.2 Design, Mass, Bulk and Scale  
6.3 Environmental Impact Assessment 
6.4 Transport, Traffic and Parking  
6.5 Air Quality  
6.6 Cultural Heritage  
6.7 Contaminated Land  
6.8 Ecology 
6.9 Landscape and Visual Effects 
6.10 Noise 
6.11 Socio-Economic Assessment 
6.12 Water Resources  
6.13 Sunlight, Daylight and Shadow 
6.14 Lighting 
6.15 Waste Management  
6.16 Construction 
6.17 Energy and Sustainability  
6.18 Equalities Impact Assessment 
6.19 Planning Obligations - Section 106 and Heads of Terms  

 
7.0 SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION   
8.0 HUMAN RIGHTS 
9.0 RECOMMENDATION 1 
10.0 RECOMMENDATION 2 INCLUDING CONDITIONS 
11.0 REASONS FOR APPROVAL 
12.0 APPENDICES 
 

12.1 Appendix 1: Consultation Responses  
12.2 Appendix 2: Planning Policies  
12.3 Appendix 3: Development Management Forum Minutes 
12.4 Appendix 4: Design Panel Minutes  

 12.5 Appendix 5: Heads of Terms for s106 Legal Agreement 

Page 38



Planning Sub-Committee Report

1.0 SITE AND SURROUNDINGS 
 
1.1 The application site is located on Network Rail’s operational land between 

Alexandra Palace and Harringay railway stations. The site covers an area of 
approximately 11 hectares. The southern most boundary of the site is 
approximately 1.9km south of Hornsey Station and extends to the area of railway 
land adjacent to Pemberton Road and Cranford Way. The northern most boundary 
of the site is just south of Alexandra Palace Station, extending northward to the 
area of railway land adjacent to the new Heartlands High School and Station Road. 
The site can be divided into two separate, but connected, locations; the existing 
First Capital Connect (FCC) Depot area to the south of Turnpike Lane and 
Coronation Sidings to the north. 

 
1.2 The site is level with the surrounding ground at its southern end, rising on an 

embankment to between 7m and 9m above the surrounding ground level at the 
northern end. Moving from south to north the site is crossed by a pedestrian 
footbridge providing access to Hornsey Station and platforms, a bridge over the 
New River culvert, a bridge over Turnpike Lane and a bridge adjacent to Coburg 
Road. A pedestrian subway, known as the Penstock footpath, under the 
embankment provides access from east to west and vice versa.  

 
1.3 The site is located to the east of the Great Eastern main railway line from King’s 

Cross Station. The site contains a number of existing operational and disused 
sidings and a number of rail related buildings and structures, including a train wash, 
wheel lathe, plant rooms and tanks, overhead lines, and disused lighting columns.  

 
1.4 The site of the proposed maintenance depot is to an area of railway sidings known 

as Coronation Sidings which are located to the north of Turnpike Lane adjacent to 
the existing Gas Holder site, Coburg Road, Western Road and the new Mary 
Neuner Road all to the east and adjacent to the Water Treatment Works and 
Chadwell Lane to the west. Currently, access to the site is from Hampden Road, 
which connects to Wightman Road and provides access to the existing First Capital 
Connect (FCC) Depot.  

 
1.5 The site is located within the Haringey Heartlands Regeneration Area boundary, and 

is adjacent to the site of the proposed Clarendon Square residential and mixed use 
development. The new residential development of New River Village lies to the 
west, and there are large tracts of Victorian terraced housing to the south of the 
site.   

 
2.0 PLANNING HISTORY 
 
2.1 The site has extensive history as an operational railway use. The first twenty mile 

section of the Great Northern Railway running from King’s Cross through the site 
area was constructed between 1846 and 1849, including the construction of 
Hornsey station, which opened in 1850. By 1864 the site area had come to 
resemble its present day appearance following the construction of the railway line 
and straightening of the New River.  

 

Page 39



Planning Sub-Committee Report

2.2 Recent Planning History: The most recent and relevant planning history is detailed 
in sections 2.3 to 2.6 below.  

 
2.3. August 2009 – A submission for the Thameslink train maintenance facility at 

Coronation Sidings was made to LB Haringey by Arup on behalf of Network Rail on 
21st August 2009.  The submission was made under Part 11 Class A and Part 17 of 
the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995 (as 
amended) (the ‘GPDO’). (Application Reference Number: HGY/2009/1450 – the 
“previous application”).  

2.4 August 2009 - An Article 4 Direction was made by the LB Haringey to the Secretary 
of State (SoS) in August 2009 seeking to remove Network Rail’s Permitted 
Development Rights under Parts 11 and 17 of the GPDO for various specified 
works including those of the railway depot in question.   

2.5. November 2009 - The Article 4 Direction was confirmed by the Secretary of State 
on 25th November 2009. Network Rail submitted a challenge to the Article 4 
Direction and the Government Office for the West Midlands after considering both 
parties’ correspondence upheld the Article 4 Direction (with modifications to the 
redline site boundary).  

2.6 April 2011 – Submission of Full Planning application of revised depot scheme. Full 
details of the key differences between the previous application and this current 
application are provided in section 3.0 below. 

3.0  PROPOSAL DESCRIPTION  
 
3.1 The development proposed in this planning application forms part of the Network 

Rail Thameslink Programme, sponsored by the Department for Transport (Dft), 
which aims to develop and improve the London and regional commuter network. It 
includes a £6 billion programme of works for railway infrastructure improvements 
including train maintenance depots and a new fleet of Thameslink trains to be 
introduced from 2015.  

 
3.2 The purpose of the Thameslink program is to improve capacity on the network and 

remove constraints. Currently there is a maximum train length of 160m and a 
number of junction bottlenecks across the railway network. The programme will 
introduce longer trains up to 12-car units and increase train frequency, providing up 
to 24 trains per hour through the Core Area (St Pancras International to Blackfriars).  

 
3.3 The proposed development consists of a number of separate elements and 

structures and includes the following:  
 
3.4 Maintenance Depot and Offices/Warehousing 
 
3.4.1 The proposed maintenance depot building would 278m long and 21.6m wide 

housing three tracks (roads). It would have an internal height of 9m and an external 
height of up to 11.3m. The proposed internal floor area would be 6,524 sqm.   
 

Page 40



Planning Sub-Committee Report

3.4.2 The building would be closed at the northern end with trains entering via the access 
tracks to the south. The three roads would service rolling stock as follows: one road 
would be used for planned heavy maintenance, requiring synchronised lifting 
equipment and overhead cranes to enable the removal and refitting of major 
components; the other two roads would be used for planned routine maintenance, 
including examination of underframes, gears, renewing brake pads and discs, 
checking oil levels, door systems and passenger emergency alarms.  
 

3.4.3 Ancillary warehousing and offices would be located along part of the eastern side of 
the main depot building (182m long x 12m wide) and have an internal floor area of 
3,404sqm over two storeys. The offices and staff facilities would consist of a 
reception area, control room, mess room, meeting room, bathroom and shower 
facilities and personal equipment storage.  
 

3.4.4 Staff and visitor access would be via a dedicated entrance hall and reception to the 
eastern elevation. Deliveries would be at the southern end of the building.  

 
3.5 Train Washers 
 
3.5.1 Two train wash buildings are proposed. One would be located within the existing 

FCC depot sidings and one located adjacent to the north-western elevation of the 
proposed maintenance depot building on Coronation Sidings. The southern train 
wash would be used by trains approaching from the south and would be shared 
with the existing FCC depot, replacing the existing train washer. The northern train 
wash would be used by Thameslink trains and current FCC fleet arriving from the 
north.  

 
3.5.2 Both of the proposed train wash buildings would be 7m high, 50m long and 6.5m 

wide. In addition, washer plant room would be 4m high, 12m long and 4m wide. 
Train washing water would be recycled requiring above ground water tanks (4m 
high, 3m x 2m) which would be located adjacent to the washer plant rooms.   

 
3.6 UFC Facility 
 
3.6.1 An underframe cleaning (UFC) facility would be located on the southern part of the 

site to the western elevation of the existing FCC depot. The building would be 6m 
high, 260m long and 7m wide. The UFC facility is used to remove debris from the 
underside of the trains and allows for the fast removal of any surface material 
including graffiti.  

 
3.7 Ancillary Plant, Equipment and Facilities 
 
3.7.1 Controlled Emissions Toilet (CET) transfer facilities would be provided within the 

stabling sidings and would comprise pumps located between the stabling roads 
with pipe work leading to a discharge point located within a plant room. The CET 
plant room to be located adjacent to the existing wheel lathe would be 4m high, 4m 
x 14m.  

 

Page 41



Planning Sub-Committee Report

3.7.2 Two shunters cabins would be provided; one located to the north of the Hornsey 
station footbridge and one to the south end of the stabling area. The cabins would 
be 3m high and 3m x 5.5m, providing accommodation for staff awaiting the arrival 
of trains into the stabling areas.   

 
3.7.3 A utilities building would be located on the vehicle access route off Hampden Road 

and would be 3m high and 4m x 5m. An electricity switch room 3m high and 10m x 
5m would be located to the south of the maintenance depot building, close to the 
access road.  

 
3.7.4 A waste storage/waste compactor area, in a compound 16m x 25m is proposed at 

the southern end of the site, west of the existing wheel lathe. The facility is required 
to deal with waste from trains in the stabling sidings areas. Waste compaction 
would occur on a daily basis and waste collection twice weekly.  

 
3.8 Stabling Sidings 
 
3.8.1 Train stabling would be provided to the west of the existing FCC depot. Servicing 

activities undertaken on the stabling sidings would include internal cleaning, refilling 
of sand hoppers and replenishing screen wash and toilet water tanks. Access for 
internal cleaning would be provided via platforms extending the entire length of the 
12-car stabling roads.  

 
3.9 Wheel Lathe 
 
3.9.1 There are no additional wheel lathes proposed as part of this development. 

However the existing recently constructed wheel lathe and track north of the 
existing FCC depot would be retained for shared use by the new Thameslink Depot 
and existing FCC Depot. To the north of this facility is the original wheel lathe, 
which is to be decommissioned and demolished.  

 
3.10 Temporary Construction Compound and Access Bridge 
 
3.10.1 A temporary construction compound and access bridge is proposed at the northern 

edge of the site, measuring 100m x 35m. The compound would be accessed via a 
temporary vehicle bridge spanning approximately 24m x 3.7m. Once these facilities 
are no longer required the land would be returned to its original use.    

 
3.11 Car Parking 
 
3.11.1 Car parking is proposed adjacent to the depot access road to the east with some 

additional visitor and blue badge spaces located nearer to the depot entrance to 
the north. A total of 43 spaces are proposed.  

 
3.12 Bridge and Embankment Works 
 
3.12.1 Bridge works are required to widen the railway above Turnpike Lane and the New 

River culvert on the eastern side of the site in order to accommodate the proposed 
access road. The railway on both bridges would be widened by approximately 2m. 

Page 42



Planning Sub-Committee Report

Minor retaining wall structures are proposed along part of the existing railway 
embankment to the north of the New River in the vicinity of the main depot building, 
in order to accommodate the access road.  

 
3.13 Footbridge 
 
3.13.1 The footbridge connecting Tottenham Lane to Hampden road would be rebuilt and 

the works would include replacement of existing bridge, bridge deck, parapets and 
piers.   

 

Page 43



Planning Sub-Committee Report

4.0 RELEVANT PLANNING POLICY  

4.1 The planning application is assessed against relevant National, Regional and Local 
planning policy, including relevant:  

 

National Planning Policy Guidance 
 

National Planning Policy Statements 
 

The London Plan 2011 (Published 22 July 2011) 
 

Following consultation in 2008, the Mayor decided to create a replacement 
Plan rather than amend the previous London Plan. Public consultation on the 
Draft London Plan took place until January 2010 and its Examination in 
Public closed on 8 December 2010. The panel report was published by the 
Mayor on 3rd May 2011. The final report was published on 22nd July 2011. 
The London Plan (July 2011) is now the adopted regional plan.  

 

Haringey Unitary Development Plan (Adopted 2006)  
 

Haringey Supplementary Planning Guidance and Documents  
 

Haringey Local Development Framework – Core Strategy and Proposals Map  
(Published for Consultation May 2010; Submitted for Examination March 
2011)  

 
Haringey’s draft Core Strategy submitted to the Secretary of State in March 
for Examination in Public (EiP). This EiP commenced on 28th June and 
concluded on 7th July with the binding Inspector’s report expected in 
October/November 2011. As a matter of law, some weight should be 
attached to the Core Strategy policies which have been submitted for EiP 
however they cannot in themselves override Haringey’s Unitary Development 
Plan (2006) unless material considerations indicate otherwise.  
 

Haringey Draft Development Management Policies (Published for  
Consultation May 2010) 

 
The consultation draft of the Development Management DPD (DM DPD) was 
issued in May 2010 following the responses received. The proposed 
submission draft will be published in summer 2011. The DM DPD is at an 
earlier stage than the Core Strategy and therefore can only be accorded 
limited weight at this point in time.  
 

4.2 A full list of relevant planning policy can be found in Appendix 2. 

 

Page 44



Planning Sub-Committee Report

5.0 CONSULTATION 
 
5.1 The Council has undertaken wide consultation including Statutory Consultees and 

Internal Consultees, Ward Councillors, Residents Groups and Local Residents. A 
list of Consultees is provided below. 

 
5.1.1 Statutory Consultees 
 

The Greater London Authority (GLA) 

London Development Agency 

The Government Officer for London (GOL) 

Transport for London (TfL) 

Natural England 

Environment Agency 

Thames Water 

British Waterways 

National Grid Property 

London Fire and Emergency Planning Authority 

London Fire Brigade (Water Division) 

The Metropolitan Police – Crime Prevention 

Alexandra Palace Manager 

Alexandra Palace and Park Statutory Advisory Committee 

Alexandra Park and Palace Charitable Trust 
 
5.1.2 Internal Consultees 
 

Haringey Building Control 

Haringey Design and Conservation 

Haringey Transportation 

Haringey Environmental Health – Noise 

Haringey Environmental Health – Pollution 

Haringey Waste Management  

Haringey Nature Conservation 

Haringey Parks – Tree Service  
 

5.1.3 External Consultees – Ward Councillors, Residents Groups and other Stakeholders 
 

Ward Councillors – Noel Park 

Ward Councillors – Hornsey  

Ward Councillors – Harringay 

Ward Councillors – Alexandra 
 

New River Village Residents Association 

Mildura Court Residents Association  

Hornsey CAAC 

Fairfax Road Residents Association 

Noel Park Residents Association  

Avenue Gardens Residents Association 

Page 45



Planning Sub-Committee Report

Parkside and Malvern Residents Association 

Burghley Road Residents Association 

Harringay Ladder Community Safety Partnership 

Warham Road Neighbourhood Watch 

Alexandra Palace and Park CAAC 

Great North Rail Branch 
 
5.1.4 Local Residents 
 

4750 local residents were consulted  
 
5.2 This application was publicised by a press notice and site notices. The site notices 

were put up on Tuesday 5th April at relevant points around the proposal site, 
including the following locations:   1. Outside New River Village - Traffic Lights at 
the junction of Hornsey High Street and New River Avenue; 2. Eastern side of 
Turnpike Lane Bridge; 3. Junction of Clarendon Road and Hornsey Park Road; 4. 
Clarendon Road - Outside industrial Unit before vacant Gas Holder land; 5. 
Penstock Footpath – Lamp Post to entrance of footpath adjacent to Western Road; 
6. Junction of Western Road and Station Road and 7. Junction of Western Road 
and Mayes Road 

 
5.3 The application was put out to consultation by the London Borough of Haringey in 

April 2011 following the validation of the application. This first consultation 
generated 160 objections (of which 63 were in the form of a standard letter) and 3 
expressions of support from local residents. A petition supporting the application 
was received from local employees and members of RMT, TSSA and UNITE unions 
and contained 156 signatures. In addition, 1 ward councillor and 1 MP and 8 local 
resident’s associations/community groups wrote letters of objection. 

 
5.4 A further round of consultation was undertaken by London Borough of Haringey in 

early August 2011, following the submission of additional supporting information. A 
subsequent round of consultation was undertaken by the London Borough of 
Haringey mid August 2011 following the reissue of the additional supporting 
information due to an error in the submission. The consultation included notification 
to Ward Councillors, Residents Associations and all parties who had previously 
commented on the scheme. This subsequent consultation generated 31 letters of 
objection (of which 7 were in the form of a standard letter) and 5 letters of support.  

 
5.5 While the statutory consultation period is 21 days from the receipt of the 

consultation letter, the planning service has a policy of accepting comments right 
up until the Planning Sub-Committee meeting and in view of this the number of 
letters received is likely to rise further after the officer report is finalised but before 
the planning application is determined. These additional comments will be reported 
verbally to the planning sub-committed.  

 
5.6 The scheme was presented to the Haringey Design Panel in January 2011 and the 

feedback received from the panel was broadly positive. The minutes of the meeting 
are attached as Appendix 4 of this report. 

 

Page 46



Planning Sub-Committee Report

5.7 A Development management Forum was held on the 9th May 2011 at the 
Heartlands High School. Approximately 60 residents attended the forum. The 
minutes are attached as Appendix 3 of this report. 

 
5.8 A summary of all Statutory Consultees and Residents/Stakeholders comments and 

objections can be found in Appendix 1. The issues raised in the consultation 
responses raise the following broad issues: 

 
 Noise 

Lighting 
Negligible Benefit to the Community 
Ecology 
Inadequate Mitigation 
Inadequate s106  
Design and Visual Amenity 
Property Values 
Inappropriate Location near Residential Properties 
Site Selection Process 
Pollution 
Traffic 
Impact on Regeneration Areas 
Consultation over Holiday Periods 
Privacy 
Security/Anti-Social Behaviour 
Flood Danger 
Alternative Location at Hornsey 
Breach of Human Rights 

 
5.8 Planning Officers have considered all consultation responses and have commented 

on these both in Appendix 1 and within the relevant sections of the assessment 
provide in part 6 of this report.  

 
5.9 The agents/applicant have undertaken separate community consultation which has 

included two public meetings held on the 3rd August and 31st August 2011 at the 
Heartlands High School, to specifically address residents concerns regarding noise. 

 

Page 47



Planning Sub-Committee Report

6.0 ANALYSIS / ASSESSMENT OF THE APPLICATION 
 
The main issues in respect of this application are considered to be: 
 
6.1 Principle of Development and Site Selection 
6.2 Design, Mass, Bulk and Scale  
6.3 Environmental Impact Assessment 
6.4 Transport, Traffic and Parking  
6.5 Air Quality  
6.6 Cultural Heritage  
6.7 Contaminated Land  
6.8 Ecology 
6.9 Landscape and Visual Effects 
6.10 Noise 
6.11 Socio-Economic Assessment 
6.12 Water Resources  
6.13 Sunlight, Daylight and Shadow 
6.14 Lighting 
6.15 Waste Management  
6.16 Construction 
6.17 Sustainability and Energy  
6.18 Equalities Impact Assessment 
6.19 Planning Obligations - Section 106 and Heads of Terms  
 

Page 48



Planning Sub-Committee Report

6.1 Principle of Development and Site Selection  
 
6.1.1 An initial site selection process was undertaken by the applicant prior to the 

submission of the previous application (Prior Approval Application Reference: 
HGY/2009/1450). A two depot strategy was proposed. The first depot was to be a 
6-road maintenance building located at Coronation Sidings and the second depot a 
3-road maintenance building located at Three Bridges. Following the 
implementation of an Article 4 direction on the Coronation Sidings site (further 
details provided in section 2 “Planning History) and changes to the overall 
Thameslink Programme, the scheme was revised and a decision taken to develop 
plans for a 5-road depot at Three Bridges and 3-road depot at Coronation Sidings. 
Both of these schemes are now the subject of full planning applications. The 
Planning Statement (section 2.3 and Appendix H) contains details of the site 
selection process.  

 
6.1.2 A short list of potential sites, based on the previous site selection process was 

drawn up but also included additional sites. The18 sites shortlisted included: 
 
1. Hornsey – Coronation Sidings 
2. Hornsey – Adjacent to Existing Depot 
3. Hornsey – Utilisation of Existing Depot 
4. Bounds Green  
5. Ferme Park 
6. Cricklewood 
7. Bedford – Cauldwell Walk (Including adjacent Industrial Estate) 
8. Bedford – Cauldwell Walk (Excluding adjacent Industrial Estate) 
9. Bedford – Carriage Sidings 
10. Bedford – Engineers Sidings 
11. Bedford – Forders Sidings (Marston Vale) 
12. Wellingborough – Neilson’s Sidings 
13. Wellingborough – Down Good Loop Yard 
14. Wellingborough – Land south of Neilson’s Sidings 
15. Cambridge – Up Sidings to the east of the station 
16. Cambridge – Chesterton 
17. Peterborough – New England Sidings 
18. Hitchin 

 
6.1.3 The applicant’s assessment of shortlisted sites confirmed the outcome of the 

previous site selection work, by confirming that the scheme at Coronation Sidings 
remained the most appropriate and viable site option for delivery of the 
maintenance depot facilities to meet the Thameslink Programme requirements.   

 
6.1.4 The planning department enlisted the services of a consultant, The Railway 

Consultancy Ltd, to undertake an independent assessment of the site selection 
process. The consultant’s report concluded that the information contained in the 
planning statement does not demonstrate that the Coronation Sidings site is the 
only viable option for a depot to support the increased train maintenance needs of 
the Thameslink project. The consultants’ consider that the site at Bedford Cauldwell 
Walk could be “the optimum operational solution”, however concede that this 

Page 49



Planning Sub-Committee Report

option looked costly from a capital investment perspective and also carried a risk of 
the need to acquire land and carry out major infrastructure work. The consultants 
also considered it would be practical to locate the proposed maintenance depot at 
the existing train depot at Hornsey however again conclude that this option would 
probably be at greater expense. The report states “since the Thameslink 
Programme has publicly announced that it is seeking savings, it might be difficult to 
justify additional costs for depot construction amounting to tens (if not hundreds) of 
millions of pounds”. Since major infrastructure projects require, not unreasonably, a 
high degree of certainty about deliverability of key components, the consultants 
believe that Coronation Sidings was ultimately chosen as being the most 
deliverable option.   

 
6.1.5 The proposed development is on previously developed operational rail land in a 

sustainable location and in general there is policy support for the re-use of this land. 
National and Regional policy including PPG13 “Transport”, London Plan (2011) 
policy 6.4 Enhancing London’s transport connectivity and the Mayors Transport 
Strategy (May 2010) emphasise the importance of meeting increasing demand for 
travel and the importance of the railways in providing a sustainable mode of 
transport. The importance of new and/or improved transport infrastructure is also 
acknowledged in local planning policy. Unitary Development Plan (2006) policy G6 
“Strategic Transport Links” aims to improve existing public transport provision and 
promote strategic public transport links such as Thameslink 2000, Crossrail 2, and 
Orbirail” while M11 “Rail and Waterborne Transport” seeks to support the provision 
of additional rail infrastructure, provided they do not give rise to undue local 
environmental disturbances. The proposal therefore delivers this strategic priority 
and is acceptable in principle however any development should also comply with 
other relevant national, regional and local planning policies, where relevant. This last 
point is covered in the assessment provided in the following sections of this report.  

 
6.2 Design, Mass, Bulk and Scale  
 
6.2.1 Policies UD3 ‘General Principles’, UD4 ‘Quality Design’ and SPG1a ‘Design 

Guidance” set out the Councils general design principles for new development in 
the Borough. The applicants have submitted a detailed Design and Access 
Statement as part of their application submission. The design statement documents 
the process of determining the current design up to submission and deals with the 
way in which the physical and structural constraints have affected the outcome of 
the design. 

6.2.2 The application was originally submitted to the Council as permitted development 
under Part 11 as detailed in the planning history above (Ref: HGY/2009/1450). As a 
result of a successful bid for an Article 4 Direction which removed permitted 
development rights from the land, changes to the overall Thameslink Programme 
depot strategy and in response consultation with the local planning authority, a 
number of amendments to the scheme were undertaken prior to the submission of 
this full planning application.  

 
6.2.3 The principle change to the scheme include the reduction in the size of the 

maintenance depot building from a 6-road facility to a 3-road facility, which has 

Page 50



Planning Sub-Committee Report

resulted in a reduction in the width of the building by 16.5m and a reduction in the 
height of the building by 2.1m. The key scheme differences are summaries in the 
table below.   

 
Table 1 Key Scheme Differences 

 

 Prior Approval 
Application (Original 

Scheme) (2009) 

Full Planning Application 
(Revised Scheme) (2011)

   

Depot Building 6 road track 3 road track 

Depot Dimensions   

Length 280m 
 

278m 

Maximum Width 
 

50.1m 33.6m 

Maximum Height 13.4m 11.3m 

   

Depot - Floor Area 11,200 sqm 6524 sqm 

Warehouse/Office Floor 
Area 

2808 sqm 3404 sqm 

Eastern Boundary Widening of eastern 
embankment including 
500m long 7 – 9m high 

retaining wall. A series of 
small retaining structures 
to support new vehicle 

access road 

No embankment widening 
proposed due to the 

reduced size of the depot 
building. A series of small 

retaining structures to 
support new access road 

Staff 270   126 

Car Parking Spaces 49 43 

Car Park Location East of Coronation 
Sidings adjacent to 

proposed Clarendon 
Square site 

East of Coronation 
Sidings further south than 
previous scheme, further 

away from proposed 
residential uses. 

6.2.4 The applicants have undertaken a series of meetings with interested bodies 
including the Haringey Council’s Design Panel, prior to the submission of this full 
planning application. The Design Panel expressed overall support for the concept of 
the scheme in plan and considered the overall form of the proposal as a clean, 
continuous linear tube as being potentially elegant.  The panel members stated 
however, that noise and light mitigation through design would be particularly 
important and also sought to have the roofing fenestration patterned rationalised. In 
response to these particular concerns the roof design was amended and various 
design solutions, in terms of noise and light attenuation among other factors, were 
investigated by the design team, prior to submission.

 
6.2.5 The design of the buildings are functional and solid in appearance and with the 

exception of those buildings where there is office /staff accommodation would 

Page 51



Planning Sub-Committee Report

comprise continuous cladded elevations which would extend along the length of 
the buildings. The proposed buildings would be of a steel frame construction with 
vertically profiled aluminium ‘Kalzip’ cladding powder coated in a neutral colour (not 
yet specified and to be determined via condition). Where trains enter and depart 
from the buildings and on sections of the maintenance depot building a translucent 
‘Kalwall’ fenestration composite panel is proposed to provide natural daylight to the 
buildings. The buildings would be insulated to facilitate efficient sound absorption. 
The main depot building would have a gently sloping mono-pitched roof. The UFC, 
train washers and wheel lathe have no openings other than the train entrance/exit 
and are designed to minimise noise outbreak which would occur with the 
introduction of any windows / openings.  

 
6.2.6 Kalzip was selected as the principle cladding material because it is light-weight, 

durable, adaptable and enables a high speed construction, in addition to excellent 
thermal performance. Other materials investigated at the request of planning 
officers, included brick construction, which was suggested could result in a more 
traditional “Victorian” style railway shed. However the use of brick was rejected as it 
was demonstrated that it would add further bulk to the building, both vertically and 
horizontally, increasing the visual impact and reducing energy efficiency. The use of 
slate or corrugated iron for the roof construction was also considered. However, the 
roof slope required for either finish would result in a much higher roof line, again 
increasing the visual impact.  

 
6.2.7 The use of Kalwall in the roof and walls has been selected for its light diffusing 

properties which would allow natural daylight into the building, minimising energy 
use, while reducing artificial light emanating from the building at night.  

6.2.8 It is considered that the applicants have amended the proposed development to 
meet the concerns of planning officers, the Design Panel and local stakeholders 
where possible. The scheme has been redesigned since the original submission to 
reduce the overall bulk and scale, retain the vegetated embankment to the east, 
relocate the car parking area and provide a consistent chequer board skylight and 
wall pattern to the main depot building. These changes are considered to reduce 
the visual impact of the proposal from both the adjacent residential areas and long 
views from higher vantage points such as Alexandra Palace.  

6.2.9 Overall, the proposed design of the maintenance depot building and associated 
structures is considered acceptable for the urban context of an operational railway 
site. It is considered the design balances the operational and safety requirements of 
the scheme against the amenity of sensitive receptors adjacent to the site, in 
compliance with relevant planning policy.  

 
6.3 Environmental Impact Assessment 
 
6.3.1 The Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) (England and 

Wales) Regulations 1999 require (in accordance with EU Directives) that certain 
development be assessed by the local authority as to whether it is likely to have 
significant environmental effects. If it is determined that there are likely to be 
significant environmental effects, the development must undertake an 
environmental impact assessment (“EIA”). 

Page 52



Planning Sub-Committee Report

 
6.3.2 The proposed development, by reason of its size, means that it is above the 

statutory threshold of 0.5 hectares for “urban development” as set out in Schedule 
2, Category 10 (b) of the Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) Regulations and is 
therefore, likely to have significant environmental effects due to its scale, nature and 
location. The EIA procedure requires that the applicant submit a detailed 
Environmental Statement (ES) with its planning application which describes all likely 
significant effects and sets out proposed mitigation measures. The planning 
application is accompanied by an Environmental Statement (Document Ref: REP-
PL-HOR-005A). A non-technical summary has also been submitted (Document Ref: 
REP-PL-HOR-009A) which presents in non-technical language a summary of the 
purpose, scope and main findings of each of the topic assessments contained 
within the ES.  

 
6.3.3 A Scoping Report was submitted to the London Borough of Haringey in September 

2010, in support of a request for a formal Scoping Opinion in accordance with the 
EIA Regulations 1999 (as amended). The Scoping Report (provided in appendix 2.1 
of the Environmental Statement) identified the likely significant environmental 
effects arising form the proposed scheme.  

 
6.3.4 The Environmental Statement covers the following issues: 
 

Transport 

Air Quality 

Cultural Heritage 

Contaminated Land 

Ecology 

Landscape and Visual Effects 

Noise 

Socio-Economic Assessment 

Water Resources 

Sunlight, Daylight and Shadow 
 
6.3.5 A summary of each of these issues will be discussed in the following sections of 

this report. 
 
6.4 Transport, Traffic and Parking 
 
6.4.1 The Environmental Statement (Section 5) (Document Ref: REP-PL-HOR-005A) 

along with Appendix 5.1 Travel Assessment (Document Ref: REP-PL-HOR-003A) 
and a Framework Travel Plan (Document Ref: REP-PL-HOR-004A) have been 
submitted in support of the application. The Transport Assessment considers the 
effects that the proposed scheme would have on the surrounding road network.  

 
Public Transport 

 
6.4.2 The site is served by a number of modes of public transport. Turnpike Lane and 

Wood Green underground stations are within walking distance of the proposed 
scheme, providing Piccadilly line services linking Heathrow, Uxbridge and 

Page 53



Planning Sub-Committee Report

Cockfosters as well as interchange within the underground and overland network at 
Finsbury Park and Kings Cross St Pancras.  

 
6.4.3 Train services from Hornsey Station provide connections to Central London (Kings 

Cross and Moorgate), Welwyn Garden City, Letchworth Garden City, Hertford and 
Stevenage.  

 
6.4.4 A number of local bus services provide connections from the immediate road 

including Turnpike Lane and Station Road adjacent to Alexandra Palace Railway as 
well as Hornsey High Road and Wood Green High Road. Turnpike Lane specifically 
is served by the 41 and 144 bus routes, which provide frequent links to and from 
Turnpike Lane underground station and bus interchange. 

 
Vehicle Access and Parking Provision 

 
6.4.5 The major road in the vicinity of the proposed scheme is Turnpike Lane (A504) 

which runs west to east beneath the railway bridge at the centre of the site. A major 
junction exists at the intersection of Turnpike Lane, Wightman Road and Hornsey 
Park Road. The main vehicle access to the site is currently from Hampden Road, 
via Wightman Road. It is proposed that vehicular access to the proposed 
development would be taken from this existing access point. From that point a new 
road would be constructed within the site, which would require the widening of the 
two bridges over the New River and Turnpike Lane respectively.     

 
6.4.6 The main staff car parking area would be located south of the depot building while 

the blue badge and visitor parking spaces would be located to the north east of the 
depot building adjoining the reception area. The location of the main car parking 
area has been amended since the previous application, now distancing it from the 
boundary to the east of the site of the proposed Clarendon Square development.  

 

6.4.7 The majority of the site falls within the Wood Green Outer controlled parking zone, 
which operates Monday to Saturday between 8:00am – 6:30pm. Although the 
section of Hampden Road west of Wightman Road is privately owned, there are 
privately enforced parking restrictions in place. 

 
6.4.8 The development proposes a total of 43 car parking spaces comprising 37 staff car 

spaces, 2 blue badge car spaces and 4 visitor car spaces. Of the spaces allocated 
5 will be equipped with electric car charging points.  

 
6.4.9 The transport assessment calculates the parking requirement using the ‘access to 

services’ dataset for the year 2001 census, which, taking into account the shift 
patterns and based on a modal share of 49% calculates that the maximum demand 
for parking spaces will not exceed 37.  

 
6.4.10 In addition to census data, Arup have commissioned a separate travel survey 

indicating the mode share for staff travelling to work at the existing Hornsey Depot. 
It has been identified that the transport modes for individuals arriving for the night 
shifts give more cause for concern due to the increased likelihood of staff using 

Page 54



Planning Sub-Committee Report

private vehicles to travel work and the lack of on-street parking controls (CPZ) 
during these shifts.  

 
6.4.11 The staff survey has revealed that 59% of staff arriving for the nightshift drive to 

work. When applying this percentage to the current proposal, the car parking 
demand would peak at 39 spaces between 5-6am when staff from two of the three 
shift patterns are on site for a change over. This is a slight increase from the 
predicted requirement set out in the transport assessment, with an increase of two 
parking spaces. However, the application makes provision for 43 parking spaces 
including 2 disabled spaces. It will therefore be possible to accommodate on-site 
parking demand generated by the development. On this basis, the parking 
provision proposed is deemed to be acceptable. 

 
Pedestrian and Cycle Access 

 
6.4.12 Pedestrian footways are provided within the immediate roads. There is a pedestrian 

footbridge providing access to Hampden Road from Hornsey station on Tottenham 
Lane. 

 
6.4.13 Cycle route number 83 is located on Green Lanes, east of the site and route 78 

located on Ferme Park Road and Cross Lane linking to the Penstock footpath, west 
of the site. These routes are connected to the wider cycle network.  

 
6.4.14 Pedestrian and cycle access to the site will be via the main access point at 

Hampden Road or via the existing/refurbished ramped access adjacent to the 
Turnpike Lane Bridge. Both accesses would have secure gates to prevent the 
public from gaining access. A total of 14 cycle spaces will be located adjacent to 
the maintenance depot building and offices as shown on Drawing No. HOR-GX-
201/07.  

 
6.4.15 In order to emphasise the 20mph speed limit on Wightman Road to drivers leaving 

the western section of Hampden Road and to improve pedestrian safety, the 
installation of a raised table at the junction of Hampden Road and Wightman Road 
will be required. This improvement will necessitate the dedication of a 6 metre 
section of carriageway on Hampden Road as public highway. As it is intended that 
the Hampden Road access be utilised during unsocial hours, footway surfacing and 
lighting improvements will be necessary along the privately owned section of this 
road, and will form part of the s106 legal agreement.  

 
Construction Traffic 

 
6.4.16 The Transport Assessment has also considered traffic that would be generated at 

the construction phase of the development. Additional road traffic would be 
generated as a result of construction staff commuting to the site, deliveries of 
construction materials and removal of materials during earthworks. 

 
6.4.17 The Transport Assessment indicates that there will be three construction phases. 

Construction phases 1 and 2 are expected to run for 24 months. Estimated 
construction traffic figures indicate that during the construction phase 1, there is a 

Page 55



Planning Sub-Committee Report

six month period where it is expected that there will be 48 HGV movements a day 
(months 4-9 of the construction phase). In order to minimise the impact during the 
am and pm peaks it may be necessary to prevent HGV traffic movements during 
these times. Although phase 2 will last for 15 months, there is expected to be 
considerably less HGV traffic movements, with movements decreasing to between 
22 and 20 movements per day. The length of phase 3 is not specified, however, it is 
anticipated that the vast majority of vehicular movement will be generated from light 
or medium goods vehicles, with approximately 10 vehicles a day.  

 
6.4.18 A Construction Logistics Plan will be required as a condition of consent and shall 

include measures that minimise disruption of pedestrian access to the Hornsey 
Station footbridge. In addition to the CLP the applicant will need to provide a 
Delivery and Servicing Plan. As part of the CLP we would be seeking to minimise 
the volume of construction traffic during peak periods. 

 
Site Operation  

 
6.4.19 The site will be operated 24 hours a day in order toe meet the new fleet’s scheduled 

maintenance regime. This is likely to occur with a combination of normal working 
day staff (9:00am – 5:00pm) and shift working staff. The Thameslink manufacturer 
and maintenance (TMM) staff would work three shifts per day (6:00am – 2:00pm, 
2:00pm – 10:00pm and 10:00pm – 6:00am). The train operating company (TOC) 
staff would also work a three shift pattern, which would be slightly offset from TMM 
staff (7:00am – 3:00pm, 3:00pm – 11:00pm and 11:00pm – 7:00am). The Transport 
Assessment has identified that there will be 126 members of staff, out of this total 
117 will be working on a shift pattern. The scheduling of these shifts would 
minimise arrivals/departures during peak periods.  

 
6.4.20 The Transport Assessment indicates that during the morning peak hour, the 

Maintenance Depot and associated facilities of the Hornsey scheme are expected 
to generate 4 inbound and no outbound vehicle trips. In the evening peak there 
would be 4 outgoing vehicle trips and no incoming vehicle trips. Traffic modelling 
has been carried out for the Hampden Road/ Wightman Road junction. The traffic 
modelling shows that the impact of the expected additional traffic is negligible.  

 
6.4.21 The trip generation data also shows that the development would increase vehicle 

movements at the Wightman Road/Turnpike Lane junction by 3 vehicles in the 
morning peak and 2 vehicles in the evening peak. Based on expected changes in 
traffic flows up to 2021, it is considered the generated car trips would also have a 
negligible impact on the capacity of this junction.  

 
Travel Plan  

6.4.22 The travel plan submitted as part of this application outlines measures to encourage 
staff to travel to and from the site using sustainable modes of transport. Although it 
is acknowledged that the travel plan has been produced in accordance with 
SPG7b, the travel plan will additionally be required to comply with current Transport 
for London guidance, which reflects the use of the iTRACE and ATTrBuTE project 
and data management tools. 

Conclusion 

Page 56



Planning Sub-Committee Report

 
6.4.23 The proposal, in terms of transport, traffic, parking and access is deemed to be 

acceptable and in line with the relevant planning policies subject to the imposition 
of a number of s106 terms and planning conditions as outlined in sections 6.19 and 
11.0 respectively, of this report.   

   
6.5 Air Quality 

6.5.1  Planning Policy Statement 23 “Planning and Pollution Control” along with The 
London Plan (2011), The Mayor’s Air Quality Strategy: Cleaning London’s Air (2002) 
and Local Unitary Development Plan (2006) policy ENV 7 “Air Water and Light 
Pollution”, set the planning policy context for air quality.

 
6.5.2 The Environmental Statement (ES) assesses the construction and operational 

impacts of the proposed development on local air quality through the identification 
of direct and indirect emission sources.   

 
Operation  

 
6.5.3 The ES states that the main sources of air quality impacts are likely to be emissions 

from vehicles travelling to and from the site during the operation of the depot 
facility. The proposed scheme would generate a small amount of commuter traffic 
to the site and the increase in traffic would be less than 1% on all roads except for 
the site access road.  

 
6.5.4 A Framework Travel Plan (Ref: REL-PL-HOR-004A) has been submitted as part of 

the planning application and outlines measures to encourage staff to travel to and 
from the site using sustainable modes of transport, aiming to reduce traffic 
generated by the scheme, which would intern reduce impacts on air quality.  

 
6.5.5 The proposed development includes the provision of one biomass boiler and four 

natural gas boilers which would be housed in the north-west corner of the proposed 
maintenance depot building. The biomass boiler would have an independent stack 
while the four natural gas boilers would share a stack between them. Both stacks 
would extend 3m above the roof of the depot thus creating a ground clearance of 
14.5m.  

 
6.5.6 The results of the assessment indicate that increases in the two pollutants from 

both vehicles and the biomass boiler would be insignificant.  
 
6.5.7 Notwithstanding these results, Haringey Environmental Health Officers have 

undertaken an assessment of the Environmental Statement with regards to air 
quality and propose a condition/s106 measure to ensure emissions from the 
biomass boiler are controlled.  

 
6.5.8 It should be noted that train emissions were not included in the assessment as the 

Great Northern and Thameslink trains associated with scheme will be electric trains, 
powered by overhead electrical lines and therefore will not emit any pollutants to 
the air locally. On occasion the depot may be obliged to provide services to other 

Page 57



Planning Sub-Committee Report

service providers on the network who operate diesel trains. However this is 
expected to form a very small proportion of the total trains serviced and stabled at 
the facility.  

 
6.5.9 An existing diesel powered shunter is in operation at the existing Hornsey Depot for 

an estimated 2 – 3 hours per day. Shunting at the existing depot would be reduced 
in proportion to the reduction in Great Northern rolling stock stabled at the depot. 
Therefore, a small amount of the existing air pollution consisting of diesel emissions 
associated with the existing shunter would be reduced as a result of the proposed 
development.   

 
Construction  

 
6.5.10 The construction activities associated with building the depot facilities and 

infrastructure have the potential to generate dust which, if not mitigated, could 
cause a nuisance to nearby residents.    

 
6.5.11 The GLA Best Practice Guidance recommendations include such measures as the 

use of site hoardings, construction vehicle wheel washing, dust suppressions 
measures, and coving of stockpiles to avoid dust blow.  

 
6.5.12 The ES (page 101 – 103) sets out a range of construction mitigation measures 

including those specified above. In addition, a condition of consent would require 
the submission of a Construction Environmental Management Plan (including 
appropriate mitigation measures to minimise dust and emissions based on the 
Mayor’s Best Practice Guidance (The control of dust and emissions from 
construction and demolition), an inventory and timetable of dust generating activities, 
emission control methods and where appropriate air quality monitoring) to the Local 
Planning Authority for approval and the development implemented in accordance 
with the approved details. Additionally the site or Contractor Company must be 
registered with the Considerate Constructors Scheme.  

 
6.6 Cultural Heritage 
 
6.6.1 The Environmental Statement assesses the effects of construction and operation of 

the proposed development on the archaeological, built heritage and historic 
landscape resources (collectively referred to as Cultural Heritage).  The assessment 
has considered the effect of construction and permanent works on potential below 
ground archaeological deposits and built heritage receptors, both on the site and 
within the immediate vicinity.  

 
6.6.2 As stated in the Es, given the level of industrial development on the site it is 

considered there is a very low potential of encountering archaeological deposits 
and remains.  

 
6.6.3 However, not withstanding the assessment contained within the ES a condition of 

consent will require the applicant to implement an archaeological watching brief 
and programme for the recording of built heritage structures, in accordance with a 

Page 58



Planning Sub-Committee Report

written scheme of investigation which is to be submitted and approved by the 
Council. This will provide a reasonable opportunity to record the history of the site.  

 
6.6.4 There are a number of built heritage assets within the general areas surrounding 

and include 13 listed buildings within 500m of the site and/or with visibility to or 
from the site. The main heritage assets include the Church Tower of St Mary’s 
Parish Church (Grade II* Listed) approximately 250m away, Alexandra Palace 
(Grade II Listed) approximately 750m away and Alexandra Park and Garden (Grade 
II Registered). The remaining built heritage assets within 500m of the site are not 
visible from and do not have visibility towards the site area, due to differences in 
elevation and screening.    

 
6.6.5 Due to the prominent and elevation location of Alexandra Palace there are extensive 

panoramic views possible especially from the upper viewing terraces. The Palace 
sits within a corridor of designated views and protected vistas toward the inner city 
of London and St. Paul’s Cathedral. While the proposed railway development would 
be visible from the Alexandra Park and Palace, it would not be located within the 
London panorama from the terrace of Alexandra Palace towards central London or 
the statutorily protected vista to St. Pauls. The views to the maintenance depot 
would be in the context of the existing operational railway land and surrounding 
development, including the existing gas holders, Hornsey Water Treatment Works, 
Wood Green Shopping City and the New River Village Development. In this context 
the depot building is not considered to have a significant adverse impact on the 
character of the listed palace and registered park. 

 
6.6.6 There is a potential for the proposed development during construction to impact on 

the setting of the built heritage and historic landscape assets in close proximity to 
the site area. During the construction phase the likely impacts would stem from 
increased visual impacts from scaffolding, cranes, lorries and equipment. However, 
any impact in this respect would be temporary and limited to the construction 
phase only.  

 
6.6.7 A number of mitigation measures are proposed at both the construction stage and 

operational stage of the development. Details are contained within section 7.9, 
10.10.4, 10.10.5 and 10.10.6 of the ES. The implementation of mitigation measures 
will occur through both conditions of consent and the s106 legal agreement. 

 
6.7 Contaminated Land 

6.7.1 PPS 23 “Planning and Pollution Control” advises that the planning system plays a 
key role in determining the location of development which may give rise to pollution 
either directly or indirectly and in ensuring that other uses are not, as far as 
possible, affected by existing potential sources of pollution. Any consideration of 
the quality of land, air or water and potential impacts on health is capable of being a 
material planning consideration in so far as it arises or may arise from or may affect 
any land use. 

6.7.2 The Environmental Statement assesses the likely environmental impacts of the 
development on ground conditions. 

Page 59



Planning Sub-Committee Report

6.7.3 A review of the history of the site and surrounding area indicate a range of historical 
industrial uses from the late 19th Century, which have the potential to result in 
contamination. Particularly the historic use as railway land and the nearby industrial 
uses such as the gasworks facility to the east of the site indicate the potential for 
contamination from heavy metals, fuels, oils and solvents.  

6.7.4 A soil contamination assessment indicated that many contaminants were at very 
low concentrations that would not pose a risk to human health. However, some 
elevated concentrations of metals and hydrocarbons indicate small localised areas 
of contamination. 

6.7.5 The Environment Agency and Haringey Environmental Health Officers have 
undertaken an assessment of the ES information relating to contaminated land and 
propose a number of conditions of consent to ensure the development can be 
implemented and occupied with adequate regard for the environmental and public 
safety.  

6.8 Ecology, Biodiversity and Landscaping  
 
6.8.1 The application site is located within a designated Green Corridor (as identified on 

the Haringey Unitary Development Plan (2006) – Proposals Map). 
 
6.8.2 There are no statutory designated sites for ecology present on the site. There is one 

non-statutory designated site within the area directly affected by the proposed 
works, being the New River Site of Importance for Nature Conservation (SINC). In 
the surrounding area there are three statutory sites within two kilometres and 
fourteen non-statutory SINC’s within one kilometre of the site.  

 
6.8.3 The site contains areas of vegetated railway track ballast, woodland scrub and 

trees of varying ages and quality along the railway embankments.  
 
6.8.4 The approach of the landscaping scheme is to retain as much existing vegetation 

as possible and to provide suitable replacement vegetation where vegetation loss is 
unavoidable. The landscape enhancements focus on the railway embankments to 
the east and west of the proposed maintenance depot to enhance visual screening 
of the scheme and to strengthen the ecological corridor and enhance biodiversity.  

 
6.8.5 Construction works will require the removal of vegetated railway ballast in the area 

around Coronation Sidings. These works would impact upon local invertebrate 
populations. Works to extend the bridge width over the New River and removal of 
the probably air raid shelters north of Coronation Sidings could impact upon bat 
activity in the area. Lighting at night could also potentially affect bat foraging areas.  

 
6.8.6 There will be some limited vegetation clearance on the top of the embankment on 

the eastern side of the site to allow for the installation of buried services and a 
number of retaining structures to support the proposed access road. In addition 
some vegetation clearance is proposed at the north of the site to accommodate a 
temporary construction compound and access bridge. Any vegetation clearance 
would reduce bird nesting habitat and could also affect bat populations.  

Page 60



Planning Sub-Committee Report

 
6.8.7 A large number of mitigation measures are proposed within the Environmental 

Statement. A condition of consent will require the preparation and approval of an 
Ecological Management Plan that would set out a series of measures that would 
ensure that effects on local wildlife are minimised as far as possible. Such 
measures would include for example undertaking works outside of breeding bird 
season, where possible. The mitigation measures will be delivered under the 
supervision of an Ecological Clerk of Works in line with a Construction 
Environmental Management Plan to be prepared and approved prior to 
construction.   

 
6.8.8 In addition, a number of enhancement measures are proposed as shown on the 

submitted landscape plans. A number of conditions of consent in conjunction with 
the s106 agreement will ensure the enhancement measures, which include both on 
site and off site landscaping schemes, are undertaken. Some of the enhancements 
proposed include: Removal of Japanese Knotweed from the site, bat and bird 
boxes to mature trees, log piles will be placed within the open glades to provide 
habitat for invertebrate species. The full list of measures are described in section 
9.10 of the Environmental Statement (Ref: REP-PL-HOR-005A) and Landscaping 
Plans (Ref: HOR-LA-001, HOR-LA-002 and HOR-LA-003).  

 
6.8.9 Natural England has been consulted and raised no objection to the application.  
 
6.8.10 Following the implementation of the proposed mitigation and enhancement 

measures it is considered that the overall quality of habitat provided would be 
improved. While there would be a net loss of existing habitat, largely the result of a 
loss of vegetated railway ballast, the works proposed to the eastern embankment in 
particular would provide higher value habitat over a smaller area for a range of 
wildlife species and therefore result in a net increase in the number of botanical 
species present on the site post-construction. 

 
6.9    Landscape and Visual Effects     
 
6.9.1 The site of the proposed development is located within an operational railway 

corridor. The adjacent land uses include commercial/light industrial and residential 
to the east, residential and commercial to the west and the Hornsey Water Works 
and Alexandra Palace and Park to the west and north-west.  

 
6.9.2 The railway land is raised on an embankment of up to nine metres in height falling 

from west to east resulting in the land to the east being at a significantly lower level 
and separated from the site by a strip of woodland along a sloping embankment.  

 
6.9.3 The railway corridor and stabling are generally screened by mature vegetation 

which in places is dense enough to create a strong visual buffer between the site 
and adjacent land uses. In other locations, the corridor is more visible. This is 
particularly the case from elevated vantage points, such as the upper slope and 
terrace of Alexandra Park and Palace. 

 

Page 61



Planning Sub-Committee Report

6.9.4 The Environmental Statement includes an assessment of the significance of the 
potential landscape and visual effects of the proposed development on the existing 
landscape character and visual amenity. Nine representative viewpoints were 
included in the initial ES assessment and photomontages produce to show the 
existing conditions and predicted views post-construction. The key viewpoint 
locations were identified to represent typical views from sensitive receptors affected 
by the proposed scheme. Details are contained within Appendix 10 of the ES. The 
three most significant view points are considered to be the adjacent residential 
areas of New River Village and the proposed Clarendon Square development as 
well as Alexandra Palace and Park. The visual impacts of the proposed 
development on these three locations are discussed in greater detail below.  

 
6.9.5 Following the initial consultation, local residents requested an additional 

photomontage to be taken from an elevated position within the New River Village 
development. Arup subsequently submitted an “Assessment of visual effects on 
views from one additional viewpoint” (Ref: REP-PL-HOR-012A). The additional 
viewpoint is representative of the potential view of the main depot building from 
upper storey residential properties. The images produced indicate possible day 
time and night time effects. Following the submission of the additional information 
Arup reviewed the details contained within the assessment and found that an error 
had occurred in the production of the images. An amended document, rectifying 
the errors was subsequently submitted. The Planning Department undertook 
additional community consultation following both submissions.      

 
New River Village  

 
6.9.6 The proposed maintenance depot would be visible from both lower and upper floor 

residential buildings with east facing windows within the New River Village 
development however would be largely screened by existing embankment 
vegetation with glimpsed views through the trees. Winter views would result in 
greater visibility due to a lack of foliage from the existing vegetation.  
 

6.9.7 The night-time photomontage indicates that, based on the indicative lighting 
strategy, impacts due to the proposed on-site lighting requirements, including light 
from the depot itself would be negligible.  

 
6.9.8 Conditions of consent will require planting and ecological enhancements to the 

western boundary adjacent to the New River Village site, within Network Rail land. 
As set out in the submitted Environmental Statement and landscape plans (HOR-
LA-001, HOR-LA-002 and HOR-LA-003) the planting proposed within the planning 
application site is to be mature stock. In addition, the s106 legal agreement will 
require, within 6 months of the start of development, Network Rail to submit to the 
Council for approval a mixed deciduous and evergreen of semi-mature planting and 
landscaping scheme for third party land on the west side of the rail lines in the 
vicinity of New River Village (along a length of approximately 540m) to provide some 
visual screening of the development.  Subject to agreement with the third party 
landowners (which will be pursued with reasonable endeavours by Network Rail), 
Network Rail are to implement the agreed planting scheme in the first planting 

Page 62



Planning Sub-Committee Report

season following approval by the Council and agreement by the third party 
landowners. 

 
The Proposed Clarendon Square Development 

 
6.9.9 A planning application for the proposed Clarendon Square scheme (Application 

Reference: HGY/2009/0503) for a mixed-use development has been submitted to 
the Council and is currently under assessment.  The Clarendon Square site is 
located to the east, directly adjacent to the proposed maintenance depot. 

 
6.9.10 The effects of the proposed development on the potential future residential 

development of Clarendon Square have been considered as part of the visual 
impact assessment.  

 
6.9.11 The proposed maintenance depot building would be within close proximity to the 

western most residential and commercial blocks within the proposed Clarendon 
Square scheme. This will impact outlook from these western facing units. However, 
the vegetated embankment is to be retained and the car parking area located 
further to the south than originally proposed which will minimise the visual impact, 
compared to the original (prior approval) proposal.  

 
6.9.12 The potential impacts of night time lighting on the Clarendon Square development 

could have a significant adverse impact on future residents due to the close 
proximity of the site. Via conditions of consent, measures to limit impacts from 
external lighting would form a fundamental aspect of the detailed lighting design.   

  
6.9.13 The s106 legal agreement and conditions of consent will require planting and 

ecological enhancements to the eastern boundary adjacent to the Clarendon 
Square site and will require Network Rail to ensure that the landscaping/ecological 
enhancement works on the east side of the site are completed no later than the first 
planting season following first occupation of the depot building. In addition, a 
management agreement/arrangement of the land that forms the eastern 
embankment will be offered to National Grid or a relevant successor for a minimum 
period of 25 years to allow greater control over planting and maintenance to the 
satisfaction of the future developer of the Clarendon Square site. The amendments 
to the scheme in conjunction with conditions of consent and section 106 
obligations are considered to be appropriate mitigation measures.   

 
Alexandra Palace and Park 

 
6.9.14 Alexandra Palace and Park are located directly to the north-west of the proposed 

development. They are designated as Metropolitan Open Land and located within a 
designated conservation area. The park is registered as Grade II on the English 
Heritage Register of Parks and Gardens of Special Historic Interest. The vista from 
the palace and park towards St. Paul’s Cathedral is statutorily protected. The 
proposed development falls outside the designated viewing corridor and the listing 
of the park itself does not provide statutory protection. Having said that, the historic 
interest of the park and garden and its location within a conservation area is a 
material planning consideration.  

Page 63



Planning Sub-Committee Report

 
6.9.15 The proposed maintenance depot would form an additional built element clearly 

visible beyond the Hornsey Treatment works in views from the upper slopes and 
terrace of Alexandra Park and Palace. Whilst the proposed maintenance depot 
would sit within the context of other larger scale buildings, it would constitute a 
substantial built form with a different appearance to the surrounding residential and 
industrial buildings.   

 
6.9.16  The scope for direct mitigation is limited by operational and spatial constraints. 

Screen planting would have to be located close to the depot building to be effective 
however rail safety, operational requirements, as well as limited space, make such 
screen planting unfeasible. As such, the greatest opportunity for mitigation will be 
achieved through design and materials. Careful consideration of colour and material 
can make a significant contribution to visual impact. An example of this is the New 
River Village Development which largely due to its solid white coloured blocks are 
highly visible from Alexandra Palace and Park. As such, conditions of consent will 
enable the local planning authority to retain control over the final design details, 
materials and colours to assist in minimising the visual impact from this location.  

 
6.9.17 Cumulatively, the impact of the proposed maintenance depot when considered in 

conjunction with the proposed Clarendon Square Development would be less 
significant. The proposed buildings on the western side of the Clarendon Square 
scheme would be significantly higher at 22 – 32m than the proposed maintenance 
depot at 11m. Even considering the raised height of the embankment the 
Clarendon Square development would rise above the maintenance depot and 
therefore be visible beyond the depot building on the skyline as seen from the 
western side of the railway corridor, including Alexandra Palace and Park.  

 
6.9.18 In terms of night time impact the site lighting of the proposed development would 

be visible but it is considered that due to the distance of the depot being 
approximately 1km from the park the impact would not be significant as its 
appearance at night would merge with the wider context of surrounding urban night 
lighting.  

 
Other visual Impacts and Improvements  

 
6.9.19 The visual impacts on other vantage points around the site would predominantly 

have an adverse effect during the construction phase, rather than following the 
completion of the development. While any visual impact is not ideal, those arising 
solely from construction would be temporary and conditions of consent will be 
imposed to reduce those impacts as far as possible.  

 
6.9.20 In addition to the above, the s106 will require Network Rail to procure the removal, 

within 6 months of the start of the development, of all of the advertisement 
hoardings it owns as erected on its land adjacent to the rail bridge over Turnpike 
Lane (Network Rail owns 9 of the 12 hoardings). This would result in visual amenity 
improvements within the immediate locality.    

 
 

Page 64



Planning Sub-Committee Report

6.10 Noise 
 
6.10.1 PPG24 “Planning and Noise” sets out the considerations to be taken into account 

in determining planning applications for activities which generate noise and 
recommends appropriate noise exposure levels for different sources of noise and 
provides guidance which deals specifically with noise from railways. Haringey 
Unitary Development Plan policy ENV6 “Noise Pollution” states that “potentially 
noisy developments should only be located in areas where ambient noise levels are 
already high and where measures are proposed to mitigate its impact”.  

 
6.10.2 As part of the EIA, an assessment of the noise impact of the proposed scheme was 

undertaken. The assessment included: 
 

Construction noise and vibration 

Construction traffic 

Noise from train movements  

Nose from road vehicles 

Noise from stationary sources such as wheel lathe and plant and related 
to maintenance activities taking place on the site 

 
Operational Noise 

 
6.10.3 During the consultation process, the issue of noise pollution, particularly operational 

noise, was of the greatest concern to residents. The existing operational railway 
land is an existing source of noise pollution from a variety of sources, including 
engine noise, braking, wheel squeal, horn testing and the operation of wheel lathes 
or train cleaning, which impact on the amenity of residents. The proposed depot 
and its associated facilities are intended to be operational 24 hours a day and 
therefore it is the concern of residents that a more intensive use of the site would 
increase the level of noise and consequently result in a greater impact on amenity. 
However, the Environmental Statement predicts that there would not be any noise 
impacts from the proposed development. It concludes that the rating level would 
not exceed the background noise level at any of the receptors used in the 
assessment.  

 
6.10.4 Haringey Environmental Health Department, in conjunction with an independent 

consultant, have reviewed the noise assessment within the Environmental 
Statement (ES) and confirm that the methodology used in the ES is appropriate and 
in accordance with the relevant British Standards. The noise assessment team raise 
no objection to the proposed development subject to the imposition of a number of 
planning conditions.  

 
6.10.5 The first condition requires the design and installation of new items of fixed plant to 

be such that when operating the cumulative noise level LAeq Tr arising from the 
proposed plant, measured or predicted at 1m from the facade of the nearest noise 
sensitive premises, shall be a rating level of at least 5dB(A) below the background 
noise level LAF90 Tbg and a noise report produced to demonstrate compliance 
with the above.   

 

Page 65



Planning Sub-Committee Report

6.10.6 A further condition requires a report to be submitted and approved by the Council 
that demonstrates that the operational noise from all moving sources on the depot 
shall not exceed the levels in the table below at specific receptors around the site. 

 

Receptor Daytime  
dBLAeq, 0600-0000 

Night-time  
dBLAeq, 0000-0600 

   

1 to 25 Fyfe, 
Chadwell Lane 

56 54 

120 Turnpike Lane 64 56 

165 Wightman Road 55 48 

329 Wightman Road 55 48 

Westpoint 
Apartments 

58 50 

Western Boundary  
Edge of Blocks 1, 2, 
and 7 of the proposed 
Clarendon Square 
Development  
(HGY/2009/0503) 

56 54 

 
 
6.10.7 Of particular concern to residents is the issue of noise from train horns. The testing 

of horns is required for railway safety reasons prior to any train entering service. As 
trains will be required to enter service during all hours of operation it is not possible 
to prohibit the testing of horns between certain hours, as suggested by residents. 
However, strict depot procedures will be put in place to minimise the use of train 
horns as far as safety procedures allow. The design of the train horn in the new 
rolling stock proposed for the site is being developed and the incorporation of 
high/low sounding tones is being investigated as part of the train design. In addition 
a ‘shunting tone’ with a lower noise emission is being investigated for normal 
operational use within the open stabling areas. Overall, the best possible 
combinations of industry best practice will be incorporated into the design of the 
depot and operating systems to assist in minimising noise impacts. 

 
6.10.8 The issue of noise “bounce” was also raised as a concern by local stakeholders. 

Noise reflected from the new depot building has been considered as part of the 
noise assessment. It is considered that reflected sound would not contribute an 
appreciable increase in noise levels compared to the sound arriving directly from a 
passing train. Any sound from the side of the train closest to New River Village 
would have to travel at least 60m to reach residential premises. This is the existing 
situation and would not change as a result of the propose development. Any sound 
from the side of the train closest to the proposed depot building would have to 
travel approximately 70m to the depot building, the sound would then be reflected, 
(however the depot fabric is not a perfect reflector and therefore some sound would 
be absorbed) The reflected sound would then travel approximately 130m back 
across the railway to the New River Village development. The combination of the 
additional distance the noise would have to travel as well as the small amount of 

Page 66



Planning Sub-Committee Report

absorption from the depot building fabric would mean that the noise from trains 
would be increased by less than 0.5dB. 

 
6.10.9 A New River Village ambient noise level, which is used as the basis of the 

assessment at residential properties, is determined by noise from a large number of 
sources. Whilst one contributing source may be increased by a small amount, less 
than 0.5dB due to the introduction of the depot building, noise from road traffic, 
industrial sources and general background noise would not be altered and therefore 
the overall ambient noise level would not increase due to the reflections or 
“bounce” from the depot building. 

 
6.10.10The s106 legal agreement will require the submission of a Site Management Plan 

which makes provisions for the control of noise during the operation of the facility. 
The noise control measures would include:  
 

Enforcing a 10mph on-site vehicle speed limit,  

Ensuring no deliveries of materials or supplies to the site outside the hours of 
6am – 10pm except in exceptional circumstances 

Controlling the use of outside areas by staff at night  

Employment of a named liaison officer to provide information to local residents 
and landowners and to be a point of contact to resolve issues/complaints.  

 
6.10.11With the implementation of these noise control measures, no significant adverse 

impacts are predicted as a result of the operation of the proposed development.   
 

Construction Noise  
 
6.10.12In terms of construction noise, best practice measures for the reduction of noise 

would be implemented through the operation of a Construction Environmental 
Management Plan (CEMP). Network Rail as a matter of course notify local 
residents, as required, in advance of scheduled noisy construction works. This 
covers both works under railway possession and during normal working hours (i.e. 
unrelated to railway possessions). These activities would be strictly controlled by an 
application under Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act 1974 (CoPA) and the 
Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP), both of which are required 
to be approved by Haringey Council prior to any works taking place on site.  

 
6.10.13The s106 agreement will commit Network Rail to require all on-site contractors to 

comply with the Considerate Constructors Scheme.  
 
6.11 Socio-Economic Assessment /Employment  
 
6.11.1 The socio-economic impacts of the proposed development, both in terms of the 

construction and operation have been assessed. The assessment includes the 
effects on economics, employment and incomes and the effects on local 
community facilities.  

 
6.11.2 There would be an estimated 126 staff based at the proposed facility, including 

office staff (managers and technical and admin support), skilled and semi-skilled 

Page 67



Planning Sub-Committee Report

depot staff, and train servicing staff. Employment opportunities would also include 
entry level jobs, potentially helping to tackle unemployment in the area. The s106 
heads of terms include provision of a monetary contribution towards the funding of 
a programme of employment skills training targeted to local people in addition to 
apprenticeship opportunities for local people during construction and operation.   

 
6.11.3 There would be a knock on effect to the immediate locality, as economic activity 

would increase through employee spend at local businesses in areas such as 
Turnpike Lane, particularly retail outlets and cafes and restaurants.  

 
6.11.4 Overall, the impact of the proposed scheme is considered to have a beneficial, 

impact in terms of employment and contribution to the immediate local economy, 
albeit minor. 

 
6.12 Water Resources 

612.1 PPS25 “Development and Flood Risk” seeks to ensure that flood risk is taken into 
account at all stages of the planning process to avoid inappropriate development in 
areas at risk of flooding. Where new development is necessary in such areas the 
policy aims to make it safe without increasing flood risk elsewhere and where 
possible reducing flood risk overall. 

6.12.2 The Environmental Statement makes an assessment of the proposed scheme on 
the water environment during both construction and operation, including water 
quality, water usage and flooding. There are two watercourses within close 
proximity of the site, the Moselle Brook which is culverted beneath the railway and 
the New River which is an entirely artificial watercourse. 

6.12.3 Environment Agency flood maps indicate the site is within an area of low probability 
of flooding. Notwithstanding this a full Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) is provided in 
Appendix 13.1 of the Environment Statement.  

6.12.4 During construction there would be a risk to water quality resulting from the 
potential spillage or run-off of contaminants, the most significant sources being silt, 
contaminated silt, hydrocarbons or cement and concrete wash water, into local 
watercourses. Construction activities will be managed and controlled through the 
operation of a Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP). 

6.12.5 Operationally, the most significant water consumption activity is the train wash 
facility. However, modern wash facilities are capable of capturing and recycling 60 – 
70% of the water they use. Furthermore, the location of the train wash adjacent to 
the proposed main depot building, which consists of a large roof area, is ideal for 
the capture of rain water to be used in the train wash facility. Low water use 
appliances fitted within the depot building would minimise water consumption in 
staff facilities 

6.12.6 Mitigation for water quality and flood risk would be provided though the provision of 
a suitable new drainage system, including sustainable drainage techniques where 
appropriate. The Environmental Agency initially objected to the proposed 
development however on the submission of an amended Flood Risk Assessment 

Page 68



Planning Sub-Committee Report

the Agency is now satisfied with the submission details and has no objection 
subject to the imposition of a number of conditions of consent. 

 
6.13 Sunlight, Daylight and Shadow 
 
6.13.1 An assessment of the impact of the proposed development on sunlight and daylight 

availability to properties surrounding the site has been undertaken. The assessment 
included consideration of potential impacts on the proposed Clarendon Square 
development to the east which is subject to a current outline planning application.  

 
6.13.2 The general orientation of the proposed railway development is North – South. The 

tallest building is the maintenance depot which would have a height of 11m above 
ground level. The surrounding properties and amenity areas (existing and proposed) 
are located at a minimum distance of 25m from the nearest proposed building.  

 
6.13.3 The assessment within the Environmental Statement uses sunlight and daylight 

calculations based on Building Research Establishment (BRE) standards, guidance 
and methodology. The Vertical Sky Component results show that there would be no 
significant adverse effects on day lighting to surrounding properties. Furthermore, 
there are no significant adverse impacts on sunlight identified when measuring 
sunlight effects in accordance with the BRE guidance.  

 
6.13.4 The projected shadows of the proposed scheme for the summer and winter 

solstices and autumn equinox are shown in appendix 14.1 of the ES. The 
sequences of images highlight that the effect on the proposed scheme on 
surrounding development is not significant. Projected shadows of the proposed 
scheme do not extend to the surrounding areas until late evening when substantial 
shadowing is caused by buildings in the vicinity, as would be expected for this time 
of day. Given that there are no significant adverse effects identified as a result of 
the proposed scheme, no mitigation measures are proposed.   

 
6.14 Lighting  
 
6.14.1 As set out in the Haringey Unitary Development Plan policy ENV7 “Air, Water and 

Light Pollution”, it is acknowledged that inappropriate lighting can cause light 
pollution to habitable rooms nearby and/or can contribute to light pollution of the 
night sky. Additional guidance is also set out in Haringey’s Supplementary planning 
guidance and documents, including the Draft Sustainable Design and Construction 
SPD  

 
6.14.2 The EIA has identified areas adjacent to the site that are particularly sensitive to the 

effects of light spillage and include nearby existing and proposed residential 
properties and areas that may contain bat and bird habitat. In addition, the sky and 
the operational railway land itself were also considered.  

 
6.14.3 Lighting during the day and night would be required within all buildings, stabling 

sidings and circulation areas. Four types of lighting requirements have been 
identified within the site and are described below.  

 

Page 69



Planning Sub-Committee Report

1. Roads, Parking and External Areas around buildings 
 
6.14.4 Generally external lighting around the perimeter of the maintenance depot and 

ancillary buildings would comprise a combination of wall mounted high intensity 
discharge luminaries. Standard column mounted luminaries would be installed on 
vehicle access road and car parking areas and metal halide floodlights would be 
located above all exit doors. 

 
2. Sidings and Track 

 
6.14.5 A combination of high masts and standard lighting columns would be installed. 

Luminaries would include full cut-off/asymmetric reflectors to prevent light spillage 
to adjacent areas, dwellings and the main line. Column heights have been specified 
to be as low as possible and have a height of 4m only, wherever possible. However 
in certain locations it may be necessary to for the columns to be 8 or 12m in height.  
The two tall lighting columns currently present on the Coronation Sidings site will be 
removed.  

 
3. Footpaths 

 
6.14.6 Low level bollard lights would be installed to all dedicated external footpaths.  
 

4. Maintenance Depot 
 
6.14.7 The proposed building material includes “Kalwall” panels. The panels diffuse light, 

thereby reducing light pollution from the building and eliminating direct night time 
illumination when compared to normal glazing. The Kalwall panels also maximise 
day light to the internal spaces during the day, thus reducing energy demand the 
consequently CO2 emissions. A system of internally automatically controlled 
louvers and blinds are proposed to reduce night time light pollution from the 
building. A condition requiring details of the shading system and its retention and 
operation are proposed.  

6.14.8 External to the main entrance of the maintenance depot, recessed architectural 
ground mounted LED up-lighters would be installed to illuminate the underside of 
any roof overhang. Anti-glare baffles would be used to reduce glare.  

6.14.9 The External Lighting Strategy (Ref: REP-PL-HOR-007A) submitted in support of 
the application provides details of lighting control. The external lighting will 
generally be controlled in various zones relating to the activity taking place: Zone 1: 
Stabling including UFC / CET / Tanking Water / Cleaning; Zone 2: Authorised 
Walkways; and Zone 3: Depot site, car parking, access roads and general footpaths 

6.14.11Each external lighting zone will be controlled from a number of external feeder 
pillars (final location to be agreed). Time switches will be of the 7-day multi-
programmable digital type allowing a minimum of three ‘On’ and three ‘Off’ 
positions. Lighting within the CET / Tanking Water / Cleaning zones will be provided 
with localised manual switching facilities to illuminate the specific cleaning positions 
relative to the rolling stock cleaning / maintenance locations. Once the cleaning

Page 70



Planning Sub-Committee Report

operation has been completed the lighting to CET /Tanking Water /Cleaning zones 
will be extinguished, however authorised walkways would remain illuminated.

 
6.14.12The Environmental Statement, Planning Statement and Drawings and an External 

Lighting Strategy (REP-PL-HOR-007A) provide details of lighting. However, the 
supporting information, including the External Lighting Strategy, provides only a 
broad strategy for the lighting of the site and associated facilities. The level of detail 
submitted was not considered to be sufficient to either undertake a comprehensive 
assessment of the potential lighting impacts on adjacent sites or to address the 
objections of residents who raised the issue of light pollution as one of their 
greatest concerns. The Council therefore requested that additional information be 
provided. The applicant has subsequently submitted “Additional Lighting Details” 
(Ref: REP-PL-HOR-013A) which sets out an indicative detailed lighting scheme. The 
document provides details of the type and appearance of lighting units, the likely 
location of the lighting units and predicted lux levels (light spillage diagrams).  

 
6.14.13The lux level drawings show the amount of light falling outside the boundary and 

on residential land is very limited (predominantly to the south end of the site) and 
never more than 10 lux. The large majority of light falling outside the site would be 
no more than 5 lux and in many cases below 1 lux. The 10 lux spill is limited to the 
end of residential gardens. The drawings indicate that no light would fall on any 
properties to the west of the application site.    

 
6.14.14It should be noted that the “Additional Lighting Details” are an indicative scheme 

only as the final design will be informed by the appointed depot contractor. As 
such, a detailed lighting planning condition is proposed providing the Council with 
control over the final detailed lighting design.  

 
6.14.15Overall it is considered that the supporting documents indicate that the lighting 

scheme will be designed to balance the need for operational activities to be 
undertaken in a safe and efficient manner whilst having regard for the need to 
prevent unacceptable light pollution to adjoining sites and control over the final 
detailed lighting plans will be provided to the local planning authority through the 
impositions of a planning condition.    

 
6.15 Waste Management  
 

Demolition and Construction Waste  
 
6.15.1 The proposed development would generate demolition and construction. The 

project aims to achieve Good Practice with regards to waste recovery, as set out by 
Waste and Resources Action Programme (WRAP). In order to achieve this, a 
number of measures are proposed (as described in section 4.19/7 to 4.19.20) and 
would include Site Waste Management Plan (SWMP).     

 
Operational Waste 

 
6.15.2 The operational waste streams would be similar in nature to the current operational 

waste streams on the site, as the proposed uses of the facilities would be similar. 

Page 71



Planning Sub-Committee Report

These are likely to comprise paper and plastics from packaging materials, food 
waste, glass, cardboard, wood and hazardous materials in the form of crushed 
lamps, aerosols cans and empty oil containers.  

 
6.15.3 Two waste storage/waste compactor areas are proposed as part of the 

development. The facility to the north of the proposed maintenance depot would be 
approximately 81sqm and would store and compact waste from trains and waste 
generated from maintenance works. The second facility, to be located to the west 
of the existing wheel lathe, would be approximately 48sqm and would deal with 
waste from trains in the stabling sidings area. Waste compaction would occur on a 
daily basis and removal of waste from these two facilities would occur once per 
week. The storage areas would drain to foul water drains. In cases where potentially 
polluting materials are to be stored, they would be effectively contained, for 
example within a bunded area. A secured area would be constructed for the 
storage of all hazardous waste.   

 
6.15.4 A planning condition requiring details of the arrangements for storage and 

collection of refuse, including location, design, screening, operation and the 
provision of facilities for the storage of recyclable materials, will ensure compliance 
with the relevant standards. A further condition would specifically relate to the 
storage of oils, fuels and chemicals.    

 
6.16 Construction 
 
6.16.1 The planned introduction of the new Thameslink trains on the network from 2015 

will require the construction of the depot facility to be completed by the end of 2013 
to enable a period of testing and commissioning of the new fleet prior to the trains 
entering service. The depot construction programme is therefore planned to 
commence in late 2011, subject to planning permission, and last for a period of 
approximately 24 months.  

 
6.16.2 The final construction methodology has not been confirmed however it is envisaged 

that he construction would be undertaken in three phases.  
 

1. Ground works, including any necessary levelling of the site and  
reinforcement or reconstruction of existing retaining walls.  

2. Construction of the building frame and cladding the frame. 
3. Building fit out. 

 
6.16.3 The construction works will generally be undertaken within normal working hours 

i.e. 08:00 to 18:00 Monday to Friday (excluding public holidays) and 08:00 to 13:00 
Saturday. However some construction activities may be required to be undertaken 
outside of these hours for safety and operational reasons. Works affecting the 
mainline would entail temporary railway closures known as railway possessions and 
would be carried out during night time and/or weekend hours. These works would 
include: 

 

Works to the pedestrian footbridge at Hornsey Station; 

Widening of the New River and Turnpike Lane Bridges; 

Page 72



Planning Sub-Committee Report

Main line connections; and 

Construction activities where plant must be located close to the railway e.g.  
piling 

 
6.16.4 In addition, the following activities may be undertaken within a period of one hour 

before and after the defined normal working hours: 
 

Arrival and departure of workforce on site 

Deliveries and unloading 

Check and examination of plant and machinery (including test running) and  
the essential maintenance/repairs  

Site inspections and safety checks 

Site clean-up 
 
6.16.4 Management of the demolition and construction activities would be the 

responsibility of the appointed contractor. However, the Sustainability Statement 
sets out the processes in place to ensure sustainable site management is carried 
out. A set of planning conditions, including the provision of a Construction 
Environmental Management Plans (CEMP), Construction Phase Traffic 
Management Plan and registration under the Considerate Constructors Scheme 
among other requirements, would ensure compliance with the prescribed 
processes, practices and mitigation measures identified in the Environmental 
Statement.   

 
6.17 Sustainability and Energy  
 
6.17.1 PPS1 Delivering Sustainable Development confirms sustainable development as the 

core principle underpinning planning and sets out the Government’s principles for 
delivering sustainable development by way of the planning system. PPS1 advises 
that planning should promote sustainable development and inclusive patterns of 
development by:  

 

Making land available for development  

Contributing to sustainable economic development  

Protecting and enhancing the natural and historic environment  

Ensuring high quality development through good and inclusive design  

Ensuring that development supports existing communities 
 
6.17.2 The planning application is submitted with an accompanying Sustainability 

Statement (Document Ref: REP-PL-HOR-011A) and Energy Statement (Document 
Ref: REP-PL-HOR-008A) which sets out to demonstrate how the proposed 
development will achieve high standards of sustainable design and environmental 
efficiency and how the proposed design, construction and operation will meet the 
relevant national, regional and local planning policies.  

 
6.17.3 As outlined in the sustainability statement, the key sustainability objectives of the 

Thameslink Programme are to: 
 
 

Page 73



Planning Sub-Committee Report

Restrict carbon emissions 

Use sustainable materials in a sustainable way 

Minimise waste production 

Conserve water supplies 

Protect land and minimise pollution 

Protect and enhance biodiversity 

Protect and enhance cultural heritage 

Support health and amenity 

Support sustainable transport 
 

Planning of the Site 
 
6.17.4 The assessment criteria for the site selection process included planning and 

environmental constraints, among other criteria. The site being an existing railway 
land, accords with governmental planning policy by reuse rather than procuring 
brown or green field land. Following selection of the Hornsey site, the layout of the 
scheme was considered in response to the site constraints (further details provided 
within the Design and Access Statement).  

 
Environmental Assessment Method 

6.17.5  In addition to the Sustainability Statement, an energy and carbon emissions 
assessment has been provided within the Energy Statement (Document Ref: REP-
PL-HOR-008A). The BRE Environmental Assessment Method (BREEAM) is the 
leading and most widely used environmental assessment method for buildings and 
sets the standard for best practice in sustainable design. The proposed 
development seeks to achieve a BREEAM rating of “Very Good” and a pre-
assessment (Sustainability Statement – Appendix A) has been completed by a 
licensed BREEAM Assessor demonstrating how the target rating could be achieved. 
Conditions of consent and s106 obligations will require the development to achieve 
BREEAM Very Good in accordance with the 2008 BREEAM scheme for which the 
Development is registered. 

Materials  
 
6.17.6 The main depot building is to be constructed of Kalzip and Kalwall. Kalzip is made 

from aluminium and is to be the principle cladding material. The material has 
excellent thermal performance and is lightweight. While production of aluminium is 
energy intensive, the recycling of Kalzip required 95% less energy than primary 
production with no loss of quality or volume.  

 
6.17.7 Kalwall is a translucent fenestration material with a number of sustainability 

credentials including low solar gain preventing overheating, daylight to spaces 
reducing requirement for artificial lighting, lightweight requiring no mechanical lifting 
equipment, panels contain 22% recycled content and are 100% recyclable and 
diffuse light thus reducing light pollution.  

 
6.17.8 In addition, where possible, reclaimed goods and materials (e.g. Steel, crushed 

aggregate etc) will be used. For example stabling sidings and new track will be 

Page 74



Planning Sub-Committee Report

largely from recycled or re-used rail (Network rail track is currently 98% from 
recycled materials and 2% is re-used).   

 
6.17.9 A number of other issues are covered by the Sustainability Assessment, including 

Water and Flood Risk, Ecology and Biodiversity, Transport, Operation and 
Demolition and Construction. However, these issues are covered in detail in other 
sections of this report and therefore are not repeated here.  

 
6.18 Equalities Impact Assessment  
 
6.18.1 In determining this planning application the Council is required to have regard to its 

obligations under equalities legislation including the obligations under section 71 of 
the Race Relations Act 1976. An Equalities Impact Assessment is undertaken to 
evaluate the effects of the proposed scheme on people depending on their 
ethnicity, gender, age, disability, religion and belief or sexual orientation.  

 
6.18.2 In carrying out the Council’s functions due regard must be had, firstly to the need to 

eliminate unlawful discrimination, and secondly to the need to promote equality of 
opportunity and good relations between persons of different equalities groups. 
Members must have regard to these obligations in taking a decision on this 
application.  

 
6.18.3 Some policies, projects, functions, major developments or planning applications 

may have a greater impact on equality and diversity than others. The Council has 
developed a screening tool to help identify whether a full Equalities Impact 
Assessment (EqIA) should be undertaken. An EqIA screening has been undertaken 
(Planning Statement section 4.3 and Appendix I) and found that there are no 
adverse or unequal impacts identified across each of the equality strand and that a 
full EqIA is not considered necessary for this particular application.  

 
6.19 Planning Obligations – Section 106 Legal Agreement and Heads of Terms  
 
6.19.1 Section 106 agreements, or planning obligations, are legally binding commitments 

by the applicant/developer and any others that may have an interest in the land to 
mitigate the impacts of new development upon existing communities and/or to 
provide new infrastructure for residents in new developments. Guidance is set out 
in Circular 05/2005 “Planning Obligations” and the Councils Development Plan 
policies and supplementary planning guidance, specifically SPG10a “Negotiation, 
Management and Monitoring of Planning Obligations” (Adopted 2006). 

 
6.19.2 The policy tests which planning obligations must meet in order to be lawful were 

recently enshrined in statute by the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 
2010. The Regulations provide the framework for the transition from the current 
planning obligation system to the new tariff-style charge – the community 
infrastructure levy (CIL). Planning obligations must be: 1) necessary to make the 
development acceptable in planning terms, 2) directly related to the development, 
and 3) fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development. 

 

Page 75



Planning Sub-Committee Report

6.19.3 The Development has various implications that need to be addressed in a s106 
agreement: 

 

the creation of a new pedestrian access to the proposed depot on Turnpike  
Lane requiring safety, lighting and environmental improvements in the 
vicinity; 

 

higher vehicle flows along roads to an existing site access with a consequent  
need for improvements for pedestrians and cyclists in the vicinity; 

 

securing, as far as is possible, continued public use of the footbridge over  
the rail lines linking to Hornsey Station to maximise pedestrian links; 

 

improvements to Hornsey Station to promote greater use including by   
employees working on the site; 

 

improving lighting for pedestrians using the ‘Penstock Path’ tunnel (that is to  
be widened during construction of the proposed depot passing under the rail 
lines linking from Mary Neuner Way) and measures to prevent/reduce water 
penetration through the roof of the tunnel; 

 

enhanced visual screening of the proposed depot by new planting especially  
along the western side of the existing rail lines on third party land (subject to 
the landowners’ agreement);  

 

measures to promote greater use of local labour, including apprenticeships  
targeted to local people, during construction and use of the new depot; 

 

specifying site management arrangements when the depot is completed to  
minimise disturbance to existing and potential new residents in the vicinity of 
the site; 

 

ensuring the achievement and maintenance of air quality standards; and 
 

as part of the regeneration area of Haringey Heartlands, enabling the  
development to contribute to planning the next phase of regeneration.       

 
6.19.4 The draft heads of terms for the s106 agreement is attached at Appendix 5 to this 

report and is structured to address these implications as follows: 
 

Sustainability 
Transport and access improvements 
Environmental improvements 
Employment skills training, local labour and apprenticeships 
Reinstatement and maintenance of landscaping and open space 
Site management 
Area planning and improvements. 

 

Page 76



Planning Sub-Committee Report

6.19.5 The applicant/landowner (Network Rail) has agreed the attached draft s106 heads 
of terms.  Total funding to be paid to the Council to address the implications is 
£735,000.  Network Rail will also invest up to an additional £994,000 (approx.) in 
implementing the specified measures to be undertaken either on its land or on 3rd. 
party land (subject to those owners’ agreement).  The total s106 therefore 
represents investment of approx. £1,729,000 to address the implications of the 
scheme and reduce its impact on local residents.  The total estimated cost of the 
proposed Depot is approximately £200m. 

 
6.19.6 These measures represent a comprehensive package to deal with the key 

implications of the development and are considered appropriate to the scale of the 
development.    

 
7. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION 
 
7.1 The detailed assessments outlined in this report demonstrate that there is strong 

planning policy support for these proposals embodied in the Local Development 
Plan and backed by Regional and National Planning Guidance. 

 
7.2 The current scheme represents an amendment to the previous scheme 

(HGY/2009/145) in response to concerns raised at that time and comprises a 
reduction in the maximum height and width of the maintenance depot building of 
2.1m and 16.5m respectively. The result is an overall smaller facility to a house 
three road scheme rather than the initially proposed six road scheme. The 
amendments also reduce the impact on the designated green chain corridor and 
allow the existing embankment to be retained and enhanced for both visual 
screening and habitat creation.  

7.3 National and Regional policy emphasise the importance of meeting increasing 
demand for travel and the importance of the railways in providing a sustainable 
mode of transport. The importance of new and/or improved transport infrastructure 
is also acknowledged in planning policy. Haringey Unitary Development Plan and 
Core Strategy also support improvements to local transport infrastructure to 
support growth of communities and the economy.  

 
7.4 The proposed Thameslink maintenance depot is considered to be an appropriate 

re-use of operational rail land, would deliver an identified strategic infrastructure 
project and contribute to the improvements in the operation of the rail network in 
line with national policy which encourages sustainable development and public 
transport use. 

7.5 The design of the buildings, site layout and landscaping is considered appropriate 
in scale within its setting and surroundings and it is accepted the location of the 
facilities is largely determined by technical, operational and physical constraints of 
the site.  

7.6 The application, including Environmental Statement and other supporting 
documentation is considered to have addressed all the likely environmental impacts 
(in particular those relating to ecology, flooding/drainage, construction, noise, 
lighting and visual impact) of the development and appropriate measures to 
mitigate such impacts.  

Page 77



Planning Sub-Committee Report

 
7.7 The impact on neighbouring properties has been carefully assessed and it is 

considered impacts from the proposed development could be adequately mitigated 
through the imposition of conditions and s106 legal obligations.  

 
7.8 On balance, it is considered that the proposed development is largely consistent 

with the intent of relevant National, Regional and Local Planning policies and that 
subject to appropriate conditions and s106 contributions the application should be 
approved. 

 
8.0 HUMAN RIGHTS  
 
8.1 All applications are considered against a background of the Human Rights Act 1998 

and in accordance with Article 22(1) of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Development Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2003 where there is a 
requirement to give reasons for the grant of planning permission. Reasons for 
refusal are always given and are set out on the decision notice. Unless any report 
specifically indicates otherwise all decision of this Committee will accord with the 
requirements of the above Act and Order.  

 
9.0 RECOMMENDATION 1 
 
That planning permission be granted in accordance with planning application reference 
HGY/2011/0612 subject to a pre-condition that the applicant shall first have entered into 
an agreement or agreements with the London Borough of Haringey (under Section 106 of 
the Town and Country Planning Act (as amended) 1990) in order to secure the Heads of 
Terms in Appendix 5, covering the following general items: 

Sustainability 

Transport and access improvements 

Environmental improvements 

Employment skills training, local labour and apprenticeships 

Reinstatement and maintenance of landscaping and open space 

Site management 

Area planning and improvements 

Monitoring  
 
To ensure that the s106 obligations are honoured in a full and timely manner, 
implementation of the s106 obligations will be subject to regular monitoring and target 
dates will be set where appropriate.  
 

Page 78



Planning Sub-Committee Report

10.0 RECOMMENDATION 2 
 
GRANT PERMISSION subject to conditions and subject to section 106 Legal Agreement in 
accordance with the approved plans and documentation as follows: 

 

DOCUMENTS

Title Document Reference  

Planning Statement REP-PL-HOR-001A

Design and Access Statement REP-PL-HOR-002A

Environmental Statement Appendix 5.1 – 
Transport Assessment

REP-PL-HOR-003A

Travel Plan REP-PL-HOR-004A

Environmental Statement Vol 1: Main 
Report

REP-PL-HOR-005A

Environmental Statement Vol 3: Technical 
Appendices Part 2 – Flood Risk Assessment

REP-PL-HOR-006A

External Lighting Strategy REP-PL-HOR-007A

Energy Statement REP-PL-HOR-008A

Environmental Statement Vol 4: Non 
Technical Summary

REP-PL-HOR-009A

Environmental Statement Vol 2: Technical 
Appendices

REP-PL-HOR-010A

Sustainability Statement REP-PL-HOR-011A

Assessment of Visual Effects on Views from 
One Additional Viewpoint (Reissue Aug 11)

REP-PL-HOR-012A

Additional Lighting Details (Reissue Aug 11) REP-PL-HOR-013A

Environmental Statement Volume 3: 
Appendices Part 2- Appendix 13.1 FRA 

REP/143/10_A1; REP/143/1/0_A3May 2011 
 

PLANS 

Plan Number  Rev. Plan Title  

HOR-GX-200  04 Hornsey Location Plan 

HOR-GX-201  07 Hornsey Site Plan 

HOR-GX-202  05 Hornsey Revised Scheme Principal Changes 

HOR-CB-001  05 Hornsey Depot Retaining Walls General Arrangements 

HOR-CB-101  05 Hornsey Station Footbridge Existing Layout 

HOR-CB-102  05 Hornsey Station Footbridge Proposed Layout 

HOR-CB-201   04 New River Under Bridge Proposed Widening 

HOR-CB-301  05 Turnpike Lane Under Bridge Proposed Widening 

HOR-PL-004  03 Hornsey Main Depot Building Ground Level Plan 

HOR-PL-005 03 Hornsey Main Depot Building First Level Plan 

HOR-PL-012 00 Hornsey UFC Facility: Plan, Elevations & Sections 

HOR-PL-013  00 Hornsey Train Wash Facility: Plan, Elevations & Sections 

HOR-SE-007  03 Hornsey Sections BB, CC 

HOR-SE-008 03 Hornsey Roof Plan, Section AA, Elevation E 

HOR-SE-009 03 Hornsey Elevations N, S, E 

HOR-CH-210 05 Hornsey Fire Tender: Track Runs Around Main Depot 

HOR-CH-211 05 Hornsey Max Legal Articulated Vehicle: Track Runs 

Page 79



Planning Sub-Committee Report

HOR-CH-212 05 Hornsey Skip & Large Refuse Vehicle: Track Runs Main Depot 

HOR-CH-216 01 Max Articulated Lorry Track Runs for Existing Road 

HOR-CX-001 05 Hornsey Demolition/Diversion Requirements 

HOR-CX-200 05 Hornsey Proposed Fencing 

HOR-LA-001 02 Hornsey Landscape Plan 1/3 

HOR-LA-002 02  Hornsey Landscape Plan 2/3 

HOR-LA-003 01 Hornsey Landscape Plan 3/3 

HOR-CU-210 04 Hornsey Depot External Lighting Strategy 

HOR-CR-210   03 Standard Details Sheet 1 of 2 

HOR-CR-211 01  Standard Details Sheet 2 of 2 

HOR-CE-001 06  Hornsey Detailed Cross Sections: Sections A-A, B-A, C-C 

HOR-CE-002 06  Hornsey Detailed Cross Sections: Sections D-D, E-E and F-F 

HOR-CE-003 05  Hornsey Detailed Cross Sections: Sections G-G, H-H and I-I 

HOR-CE-004 06 Hornsey Detailed Cross Section Location Plan 

HOR-GX-003 04  Photo Survey – Structures 

HOR-GX-004 04  Photo Survey – Utilities/Drainage 

HOR-GX-005 04 Photo Survey – Rail 
HOR-GX-006 04 Photo Survey – Geo-Technics 
HOR-GX-007 04 Photo Survey - Transport 
CB-HOR-SK-001 01 Temporary Vehicle Access Bridge to Contractor Compound 
HOR-E-001 – 008 01 External Lighting/Layout Drawings 

HOR-E-101 – 108 01 Lux Level Plans 

 
Subject to the following conditions:  
 
COMMENCEMENT OF DEVELOPMENT 

1.  The development to which this permission relates must be commenced not later 
than the expiration of 3 years from the date of this permission, failing which the 
permission shall be of no effect. 

Reason: This condition is imposed by virtue of Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 and the provisions of the Planning & Compulsory Purchase Act 
2004 and to prevent the accumulation of unimplemented planning permissions. 

DEVELOPMENT IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPROVED PLANS 

2. The development hereby authorised shall be carried out in complete accordance 
with the plans and specifications submitted to, and approved in writing by, the 
Local Planning Authority. 

Reason: In order to ensure the development is carried out in accordance with the 
approved details.  

DETAILS OF MATERIALS  

3.  Notwithstanding the description of the materials in the application, no construction 
shall be commenced until precise details and samples of the facing materials and 
roofing materials to be used for the external construction of the development 

Page 80



Planning Sub-Committee Report

hereby approved have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  

Reason: In order for the Local Planning Authority to retain control over the exact 
materials to be used for the proposed development and to assess the suitability of 
the samples submitted in the interests of visual amenity. 

CONTROL OF EXTERNAL NOISE 

4. The design and installation of new items of fixed plant shall be such that, when in 
operation, the cumulative noise level LAeq Tr arising from the proposed plant, 
measured or predicted at 1m from the facade of the nearest noise sensitive 
premises (as well as the western building boundary of Blocks 1, 2 and 7 as detailed 
within the Clarendon Square Planning Application Ref: HGY/2009/0503), shall be a 
rating level of at least 5dB(A) below the background noise level LAF90 Tbg.  The 
measurement and/or prediction of the noise should be carried out in accordance 
with the methodology contained within BS 4142: 1997. A noise report shall be 
produced by a competent person(s) to demonstrate compliance with the above 
criteria, and shall be submitted to and approved by the local planning authority.  

Reason: In order to protect the amenity of nearby residential occupiers. 

NOISE CONTROL 

5. The development shall not be brought into use until a report has been submitted to 
and approved by the Council that demonstrates that the operational noise from all 
moving sources on the depot shall not exceed the levels in the table below at 
specific receptors around the site. 

 

Receptor Daytime  
dBLAeq, 0600-0000

Night-time  
dBLAeq, 0000-0600

   

1 to 25 Fyfe,  
Chadwell Lane 

56 54 

120 Turnpike Lane 64 56 

165 Wightman 
Road 

55 48 

329 Wightman 
Road 

55 48 

Westpoint 
Apartments 

58 50 

Western Boundary  
Edge of Blocks 1, 2, 
and 7 of the 
proposed 
Clarendon Square 
Development  
(HGY/2009/0503) 

56 54 

Page 81



Planning Sub-Committee Report

Reason: To ensure that the development does not prejudice the enjoyment of 
neighbouring occupiers of their properties. 

LIGHTING PLAN 

6. Notwithstanding the details of lighting referred to in the submitted External Lighting 
Strategy (Document Ref: REP-PL-HOR-007A) and Additional Lighting Details 
(Document Ref: REP-PL-HOR-013A), a detailed Lighting Plan, including light scatter 
diagrams and full details of measures to minimise light pollution to adjoining 
residential properties, will be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority before the development is brought into use. The external lighting 
shall be installed in accordance with the approved details and thereby retained as 
such unless a variation is subsequently submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The Lighting Plan shall be produced by a competent 
person(s) and specify: a) the lamps, luminaries and columns; b) design, height and 
angle/positioning of lamps; c) screening, vegetation to contain light spill d) future 
maintenance and post-installation checks to ensure compliance; e) modelling of the 
light levels and light spill upon nearby receptors.  

Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the occupiers of adjoining properties. 

DEPOT SHADING SYSTEM 

7. The development shall not be brought into use until details of the internal shading 
system proposed to control external light glare from the maintenance depot 
building have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The shading control system shall be installed in accordance with the 
approved details and thereby operated and maintained as such unless a variation is 
subsequently submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  

Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the occupiers of adjoining properties. 

LANDSCAPING – LANDSCAPING SCHEME 

8. Notwithstanding the details of landscaping referred to in the application and shown 
on drawings HOR-LA-001, HOR-LA-002 and HOR-LA-003, the development shall 
not be brought into use until there has been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority a scheme for landscaping, which shall include a) 
those existing trees to be retained; b) those existing trees to be removed; c) those 
new trees and shrubs to be planted together with a schedule of species d) hard 
surfacing, means of enclosure and any acoustic fencing required. 

Reason: To enhance the appearance of the development and in the interest of 
safeguarding the amenities of residents in the area. 

LANDSCAPING – IMPLEMENTATION/MAINTENANCE  

9. All landscaping and ecological enhancement works, including planting, seeding or 
turfing comprised in the approved scheme of landscaping shall be completed no 

Page 82



Planning Sub-Committee Report

later than the first planting and seeding seasons following the occupation of the 
building or the completion of the development, whichever is the sooner. Any trees 
or plants which within a period of FIVE years from the completion of the 
development die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be 
replaced in the next planting season with others of similar size and species. The 
landscaping scheme, once implemented, is to be maintained and retained 
thereafter to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority. All hard landscaping 
and means of enclosure shall be completed before the development is occupied. 

Reason: To enhance the appearance of the development in the interest of the visual 
amenities of the area. 

LANDSCAPING – PROTECTION OF EXISTING TREES  

10. No development shall commence until an Arboricultural method statement, 
including a tree protection plan, has been prepared in accordance with 
BS5837:2005 Trees in Relation to Construction”, and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority. A pre-commencement site meeting must be specified and 
attended by all interested parties, (Site manager, Consultant Arboriculturalist, 
Council Arboriculturalist and Contractors) to confirm all the protection measures to 
be installed for trees. Robust protective fencing / ground protection must be 
installed prior to commencement of construction activities on site and retained until 
completion. It must be designed and installed as recommended in the method 
statement. The protective fencing must be inspected by the Council 
Arboriculturalist, prior to any works commencing on site and remain in place until 
works are complete.  

Reason: To protect the trees which are to be retained and in the interest of the 
visual amenities of the area.  

JAPANESE KNOTWEED 
 
11. Prior to the commencement of development, a detailed method statement for the 

removal or long-term management/eradication of Japanese knotweed on the site 
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The 
method statement shall include proposed measures to prevent the spread of 
Japanese knotweed during any operations such as mowing, trimming or soil 
movement. It shall also contain measures to ensure that any soils brought to the site 
are free of the seeds / root / stem of any invasive plant covered under the Wildlife and 
Countryside Act 1981. Development shall proceed in accordance with the approved 
method statement. Please note that if any of the Japanese knotweed plants are close 
to water, including watercourses, ditches or standing water, then Environment 
Agency consent is required if it is to be treated with a herbicide.  

 
Reason: In order to ensure the eradication of Japanese Knotweed which is an 
invasive plant and the spread of which is prohibited under the Wildlife and 
Countryside Act 1981.  

 

Page 83



Planning Sub-Committee Report

 

BOUNDARY TREATMENT 

12. Notwithstanding the details contained within the plans hereby approved, full details 
of boundary treatments, including fencing and gates, to the entire site shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the 
commencement of the development. 

Reason: In order to safeguard the visual amenity of the area and to ensure 
adequate means of enclosure for the proposed development. 

RETAINING STRUCTURES 

13. Before any construction work commences, details of the retaining structures shown 
on drawing HOR-CB-001, including materials to be used, shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The works shall then be carried 
out in accordance with the approved details. 

Reason: To ensure the external appearance of the retaining structures is not 
detrimental to the character of the locality. 

ECOLOGICAL MANAGEMENT  

14. Prior to the commencement of the demolition and construction an updated bat 
survey and invertebrate survey shall be undertaken and submitted to and approved 
in writing by the local planning authority. The development hereby approved shall 
not commence until full details of a site wide Ecology Management Strategy has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

Reason: In order to ensure that the proposed development maximises the 
ecological potential of the site 

POLLUTION PREVENTION 

15.  The development hereby approved shall not commence until full details of a site 
wide Pollution Prevention Strategy has been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. 

Reason: In order to ensure that the proposed development prevents pollution of the 
environment.  

CONTAMINATED LAND – REMEDIATION STRATEGY 

16. The development hereby permitted shall not be commenced until there has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority: 

(a)  A desk top study documenting all the previous and existing land uses of the site 
and adjacent land, potential contaminants that might be expected, given those 

Page 84



Planning Sub-Committee Report

uses, and other relevant information in accordance with national guidance as set 
out in Contaminated Land Research Report Nos. 2 and 3 and BS10175:2001 - 
Investigation of Potentially Contaminated Sites - Code of Practice. Using this 
information, a diagrammatical representation (Conceptual Model) for the site of all 
potential contaminant sources, pathways and receptors shall be produced.  The 
desktop study and Conceptual Model shall be submitted to and approved by the 
Local Planning Authority.  

   (b)  A site investigation report documenting the ground conditions of the site and 
incorporating chemical and gas analysis identified as appropriate by the desk top 
study and conceptual model, in accordance with BS10175:2001; and, unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, 

   (c)  A detailed scheme for undertaking the remedial works and measures to be 
undertaken to avoid risk from contaminants and/or gases when the site is 
developed and proposals for future maintenance and monitoring.  Such scheme 
shall include the nomination of a competent person to oversee the implementation 
of the works and a process for monitoring the works and reporting any variations 
from the agreed scheme. 

 
Reason: To ensure the development can be implemented and occupied with 
adequate regard for environmental and public safety. 

CONTAMINATED LAND – VERIFICATION REPORT 

17. The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied or brought into use until 
there has been submitted to the Local Planning Authority verification by a 
competent person. Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority such verification shall comprise: (a) as built drawings of the implemented 
scheme; (b) photographs of the remediation works in progress; and (c) certificates 
demonstrating that imported and/or material left in situ is free from contamination. 
Thereafter the scheme shall be monitored and maintained in accordance with the 
scheme approved under Condition 16. 

Reason: To safeguard the health of future residents or occupiers of the site. 

USE OF CLEAN UNCONTAMINATED MATERIAL 

18. No soils or infill materials shall be imported onto the site until it has been 
satisfactorily demonstrated that they present no risk to human health, planning and 
the environment.  Documentary evidence to confirm the origin of all imported soils 
and infill materials, supported by appropriate chemical analysis, test results, shall 
be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to that import.   
The import on site of material classified as ‘waste; is only acceptable with the prior 
written approval of the Local Planning Authority. 

Reason: To ensure that no contaminated land is brought on site. 

 

Page 85



Planning Sub-Committee Report

 

METHOD OF PILING 
 
19. The development hereby approved shall not commence until the method of piling 

foundations for the development has been submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority prior to any development commencing. Piling or any 
other foundation designs using penetrative methods shall not be permitted except 
for those parts of the site where it has been demonstrated that there is no resultant 
unacceptable risk to groundwater. The development shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved details. 

Reason: To prevent the contamination of the underlying aquifer. 

ARCHAEOLOGICAL WATCHING BRIEF 

20. No development shall take place within the application site until the applicant has 
secured the implementation of an archaeological watching brief and a programme 
for the recording of built heritage structures, in accordance with a written scheme of 
investigation which has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  

Reason: To ensure that archaeological remains on the site shall be adequately 
investigated and recorded during the course of the development and the findings of 
such investigation and recording reported  

WASTE MANAGMENT 

21. A detailed scheme for the provision of refuse, waste storage and recycling within 
the site, including location, design, screening, and operation, shall be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement 
of the works. Such a scheme shall be carried out in strict accordance with the 
approved details. 

Reason: To ensure good design, to safeguard the amenity of the area and ensure 
that the development is sustainable and has adequate facilities. 

STORAGE OF OILS, FUELS AND CHEMICALS 

22. Any facilities above ground for the storage of oils, fuels or chemicals shall be sited 
on an impervious base and surrounded by impervious walls. The volume of the 
bunded compound shall be at least equivalent to the capacity of the tank plus 10%. 
All filling points, vents, gauges and sight glasses must be located within the bund. 
The drainage system of the bund shall be sealed with no discharge to any 
watercourse, land or underground strata. Associated pipe work must be located 
above ground and protected from accidental damage. All filling points and tank 
overflow pipe outlets must be detailed to discharge into the bund. All works and 
facilities as referred to above shall be constructed and completed in accordance 
with plans submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  

Page 86



Planning Sub-Committee Report

Reason: To prevent pollution of the water environment. 
HOARDINGS 
 
23. Prior to the commencement of development full details of a scheme for the 

provision of hoardings to be erected around the site from the commencement of 
works and to be retained during the construction period including details of design, 
height, materials and lighting shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority  The development shall be carried out only in accordance 
with the scheme as approved unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local 
planning authority.  

Reason: In order to have regard to the visual amenity of the locality and the amenity 
of local residents, businesses and visitors during construction works. 

CONSTRUCTION ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT PLAN 
 
24. The development hereby approved shall not commence until a Construction 

Environmental Management Plan, including Site Waste Management Plan and a Site 
Management Plan, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The Construction Management Plan shall include but not be 
limited to the following: a) Public Safety, Amenity and Site Security; b) Operating 
Hours, Noise and Vibration Controls; c) Air and Dust Management; d) Storm water 
and Sediment Control and e) Waste and Materials Re-use. The Site Waste 
Management Plan will demonstrate compliance with an appropriate Demolition 
Protocol. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
details. 
 
Reason: In order to have regard to the amenities of local residents, businesses, 
visitors and construction sites in the area during construction works. 

CONSTRUCTION DUST MITIGATION  

25. No development shall commence until the appropriate mitigation measures to 
minimise dust and emissions are incorporated into the site specific Construction 
Management Plan based on the Mayor’s Best Practice Guidance (The control of 
dust and emissions from construction and demolition).  This should include an 
inventory and timetable of dust generating activities, emission control methods and 
where appropriate air quality monitoring).  This must be submitted to and approved 
in writing by the LPA prior to any works being carried out on the site.  Additionally 
the site or Contractor Company must be registered with the Considerate 
Constructors Scheme.  Proof of registration must be sent to the LPA prior to any 
works being carried out on the site.   

Reason: To protect the environment and amenities of the locality.  

CONSTRUCTION PHASE TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT PLAN 

26. The development hereby permitted shall not be commenced until a Construction 
Phase Traffic Management Plan (incorporating Travel Plan), including a construction 

Page 87



Planning Sub-Committee Report

logistics plan and a construction vehicle routing plan, have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  Thereafter the approved 
details shall be implemented at all times during the construction of the 
development, to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority.  

Reason: In the interest of residential amenity and highway safety and to promote 
sustainable transport. 

CONSTRUCTION HOURS 

27. Operations in relation to construction for which noise is greater than 50dBLAeq, 
1hour at the nearest residential boundary shall be restricted to the hours of 0800 
and 1800 on Mondays to Fridays and between 0800 and 1300 on Saturdays and at 
no time on Sundays or Statutory holidays without the prior written approval of the 
Local Planning Authority under Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act 1974. 

The following enabling activities may be required to take place within a period one 
hour before and one hour after normal working hours: 

Arrival and departure of workforce on site; 

Deliveries and unloading; 

Check and examinations of plant and machinery (including test running) and 
the carrying out of essential repairs / maintenance to plant and machinery; 

Site inspections and safety checks; and 

Site clean-up 

Reason: To ensure that the development does not prejudice the enjoyment of 
neighbouring occupiers of their properties. 

 
CONSTRUCTION – ON-SITE CONTACT  
 
28. At  the time of the commencement of works, an on site contact shall be provided on 

a 24hour per day basis for residents to report any disturbances or issues arising 
from the construction of the site 

  
Reason: To ensure that any disruption to neighbouring residents can be reported 
immediately. 

 
CONSTRUCTION BRIDGE  
 
29. The proposed temporary vehicle access bridge, as shown on approved drawing 

CB-HOR-SK-001, shall be removed prior to the completion of the development. 
The access bridge shall only be used in connection with the construction and 
commissioning of the development.  

 
Reason: To ensure the long term planning of the locality is not prejudiced. 

 
 
 

Page 88



Planning Sub-Committee Report

 
TEMPORARY PEDESTRIAN ACCESS  
 
30. Details of the temporary measures to provide pedestrian access between Hampden 

Road, Tottenham Lane, and Hornsey Rail Station shall be submitted to and agreed 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the closure of the existing 
pedestrian footbridge for construction purposes. These temporary measures shall 
remain in place until the extended pedestrian footbridge is made available for public 
use.  

 
Reason: To ensure pedestrian safety and access. 

 
CCTV AND SECURITY LIGHTING 
 
31.  Prior to occupation of the development a scheme showing full details for the 

following shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.   

 
a) CCTV;   
b) Security lighting  

 
Reason: In order to ensure that the proposed development achieves the safer 
places attributes as detailed by Planning Policy Statement 1: Safer Places: The 
Planning System & Crime Prevention and to prevent crime and create safer, 
sustainable communities and in order to ensure the location of CCTV protects the 
privacy of neighbouring residential properties. 
 

SIGNAGE 
 
32. Prior to occupation of the development, precise details of any signage proposed as 

part of the development shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local 
planning authority.  

 
Reason: to achieve good design throughout the development and to protect the 
visual amenity of the locality.  
 

 
BREEAM – DESIGN STAGE ASSESSMENT 
 
33. The development hereby permitted shall be built to a minimum standard of “Very 

Good” under the Building Research Establishment Environmental Assessment 
Method (BREEAM) 2008 Scheme. Notwithstanding the BREEAM pre-assessment 
referred to in the submitted Sustainability Statement (Document Ref: REP-PL-HOR-
011A), a BREEAM design stage assessment will be submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority prior to the commencement of construction. The BREEAM design stage 
assessment will be carried out by a licensed assessor.  

 
Reason: To ensure that development takes place in an environmentally sensitive 
way. 

Page 89



Planning Sub-Committee Report

 
BREEAM CERTIFICATE 
 
34. The development hereby permitted shall be built to a minimum standard of “Very 

Good” under the Building Research Establishment Environmental Assessment 
Method (BREEAM) 2008 Scheme. Within three months of the occupation of the 
completed development, a copy of the Post Construction Completion Certificate for 
the relevant building verifying that the “Very Good” BREEAM rating has been 
achieved shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority. The Certificate shall be 
completed by a licensed assessor.  

 
Reason: To ensure that development takes place in an environmentally sensitive 
way. 

 

TRANSPORTATION - ELECTRIC VEHICLE CHARGING POINTS  

35. Prior to occupation of the development, an electric vehicle charging point shall be 
provided within the car parking area. 

Reason: To encourage the use of sustainable modes of transport. 

 

TRANSPORTATION - DELIVERY AND SERVICING PLAN 

36. Prior to the commencement of the development a Delivery & Servicing Plan (DSP) 
should be submitted for the approval of the LPA.  It is also recommended that the 
DSP explore the use of rail as an option for minimising the use of HGV’s for 
servicing the site. 

Reason: In order to minimise and confine delivery and servicing traffic to permitted 
routes so as not to prejudice the free flow of traffic or pose any potential highway 
and safety hazards for all other road users. 

 

TRANSPORTATION - CONSTRUCTION LOGISTICS PLAN 

37. Prior to the commencement of the development a Construction Logistics Plan 
(CLP) should be submitted for the approval of the LPA.  It is also recommended that 
the transportation of construction materials by rail should be explored. This is to 
minimise the level of construction vehicle trips to/ from the site; hence reduce 
highway and traffic impact to the local highway network. 

Reason: In order to confine construction traffic to permitted routes so as not to 
prejudice the free flow of traffic or pose any potential highway and safety hazards 
for all other road users. 

 

TRAVEL PLAN 

38. Prior to occupation of the development, a Travel Plan in compliance with Transport 
for London Guidance shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority.   

Page 90



Planning Sub-Committee Report

Reason: In order to encourage the use of sustainable modes of transport for 
journeys to/from the site. 

ENVIRONMENT AGENCY – FLOOD RISK ASSESSMENT  
 
39. The development hereby approved shall only be carried out in accordance with the 

approved Flood Risk Assessment (FRA), REP 143-10_A1, REP-143-10_A3, May 
2011 and the following mitigation measures detailed within the FRA: 

 

limiting the surface water run-off generated by the 1 in 100 chance in any year 
critical storm event, taking the effects of climate change into account, to green field 
run-off rates to minimise the risk of flooding off-site; 

 

provision of on site storage to attenuate all storm events up to and including the 1 
in 100 chance in any year event, taking the effects of climate change into account; 

 
Reason: To prevent flooding by ensuring the satisfactory storage and disposal of 
surface water from the site. 

ENVIRONMENT AGENCY - SURFACE WATER DRAINAGE 
 
40. The development hereby approved shall not commence until a scheme for the 

provision of Surface Water Drainage works for the site, based on sustainable 
drainage principles, and an assessment of the hydrological and hydro geological 
context of the development, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
local planning authority. The scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the 
approved details. The drainage works shall be completed in accordance with an 
agreed timetable.  

Reason: To prevent increased risk of flooding & to prevent pollution of controlled 
waters by ensuring provision of satisfactory means of surface water disposal. 

 
ENVIRONMENT AGENCY – INFILTRATION OF SURFACE WATER DRAINAGE 
 
41. No infiltration of surface water drainage into the ground shall be permitted other 

than with the express written consent of the Local Planning Authority, which may be 
given for those parts of the site where it has been demonstrated that there is no 
resultant unacceptable risk to controlled waters. The development shall be carried 
out in accordance with the approval details. Permeable paving is proposed for part 
of the site. This would need to be a sealed system which passes through the 
appropriate interceptors prior to discharging through the drainage system. 

 
Reason: In order to prevent the infiltration of surface water to ground which could 
provide a potential pathway for contamination to migrate off-site.  

 
ENVIRONMENT AGENCY – SUSPENDED SOLIDS 
 
42. The development hereby permitted shall not be commenced until such time as a 

scheme to treat and remove suspended solids from surface water run-off during 

Page 91



Planning Sub-Committee Report

construction works has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local 
planning authority. The scheme shall be implemented as approved. 

 
Reason:  To prevent pollution to watercourse and improve water quality 

 
ENVIRONMENT AGENCY – DISPOSAL OF FOUL AND SURFACE WATER 
 
43. The development hereby permitted shall not be commenced until such time as a 

scheme to dispose of foul and surface water has been submitted to, and approved 
in writing by, the local planning authority. The scheme shall be implemented as 
approved. 

 
Reason:  To protect controlled waters. All cleaning and washing operations should 
be carried out in designated areas isolated from the surface water system and 
draining to the foul sewer (with the approval of the sewerage undertaker). 

 
THAMES WATER – IMPACT PILING 
 
44. No impact piling shall take place until a piling method statement (detailing the type 

of piling to be undertaken and the methodology by which such piling will be carried 
out, including measures to prevent and minimise the potential for damage to 
subsurface water or sewerage infrastructure, and the programme for the works) has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority in 
consultation with the relevant water or sewerage undertaker. Any piling must be 
undertaken in accordance with the terms of the approved piling method statement.  

 
Reason: The proposed works will be in close proximity to underground water and 
sewerage utility infrastructure. Piling has the potential to impact on local 
underground water and sewerage utility infrastructure. The applicant is advised to 
contact Thames Water Developer Services on 0845 850 2777 to discuss the details 
of the piling method statement. Thames Water would advise that with regard to 
sewerage infrastructure we would not have any objection to the above planning 
application.  

 
MOTOR CYCLE PARKING 
 
45. Prior to the commencement of the development a scheme for the provision of 

motorcycle parking to be submitted and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority prior to the occupation of the scheme 
 
Reason: To ensure a range of parking options are provided within the scheme. 

 
LONDON FIRE BRIGADE – FIRE HYDRANTS 
 
46. The applicant shall install 5 Private Fire Hydrants in the positions indicated by the 

red X’s on the plans enclosed in the LFB response. The hydrants should be number 
P43436, P39357, P44234, P39341 and P39785 respectively. 

 
 Reason: In order to comply with the London Fire Brigade requirements. 

Page 92



Planning Sub-Committee Report

 
 
 
INFORMATIVES:  
 
INFORMATIVE - ENVIRONMENT AGENCY – CONTAMINATED SOILS 
 
The treatment and disposal of contaminated soils and groundwater is regulated by waste 
legislation and requires an Environmental Permit. Excavated materials that are recovered 
via a treatment operation can be re-used on-site under the CL:AIRE Definition of Waste: 
Development Industry Code of Practice. This voluntary Code of Practice provides a 
framework for determining whether or not excavated material arising from site during 
remediation and/or land development works are waste. The applicant should ensure that 
all contaminated materials are adequately characterised both chemically and physically, 
and that the permitting status of any proposed on site operations are clear. If in doubt, the 
applicant should contact the Environment Agency for advice at an early stage. The 
Environment Agency recommends that the applicant refer to EA position statement on the 
Definition of Waste: Development Industry Code of Practice. Contaminated soil that is 
excavated, recovered or disposed of, is controlled waste.  
 
INFORMATIVE-ENVIRONMENT AGENCY-WATER RESOURCES ACT 1991 
 
Under the terms of the Water Resources Act 1991 Environment Agency prior written 
consent is required for any proposed works or structures, in, under, over or within 8 
metres of the top of the bank of the Moselle Brook, designated a ‘main river’. 
 
INFORMATIVE – PROTECTION OF SPECIES   
 
The protection afforded to species under UK and EU legislation is irrespective of the 
planning system and the applicant should ensure that any activity they undertake on the 
application site (regardless of the need for planning consent) must comply with appropriate 
wildlife legislation. Failure to do so may result in fines and potentially, a custodial sentence. 
 
INFORMATIVE – REMOVAL OR VARIATION OF CONDITIONS 
 
The applicant is advised that Section 73 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 
(Determination of applications to develop land without compliance with conditions 
previously attached) requires formal permission to be granted by the Local Planning 
Authority for the removal or variation of a condition following grant of planning permission. 
 
INFORMATIVE – THAMES WATER 
 
Thames Water requests that the Applicant should incorporate within their proposal, 
protection to the property by installing for example, a non-return valve or other suitable 
device to avoid the risk of backflow at a later date, on the assumption that the sewerage 
network may surcharge to ground level during storm conditions. 
 
Surface Water Drainage - With regard to surface water drainage it is the responsibility of a 
developer to make proper provision for drainage to ground, water courses or a suitable 

Page 93



Planning Sub-Committee Report

sewer. In respect of surface water it is recommended that the applicant should ensure that 
storm flows are attenuated or regulated into the receiving public network through on or off 
site storage. When it is proposed to connect to a combined public sewer, the site drainage 
should be separate and combined at the final manhole nearest the boundary. Connections 
are not permitted for the removal of Ground Water. Where the developer proposes to 
discharge to a public sewer, prior approval from Thames Water Developer Services will be 
required. They can be contacted on 0845 850 2777. Reason - to ensure that the surface 
water discharge from the site shall not be detrimental to the existing sewerage system. 
 
A Trade Effluent Consent will be required for any Effluent discharge other than a 'Domestic 
Discharge'. Any discharge without this consent is illegal and may result in prosecution. 
(Domestic usage for example includes - toilets, showers, washbasins, baths and 
canteens). Typical Trade Effluent processes include: - Laundrette/Laundry, PCB 
manufacture, photographic/printing, food preparation, abattoir, farm wastes, vehicle 
washing, metal plating/finishing, cattle market wash down, chemical manufacture, treated 
cooling water and any other process which produce s contaminated water. Pre-treatment, 
separate metering, sampling access etc, may be required before the Company can give its 
consent. Applications should be made to Waste Water Quality, Crossness STW, Belvedere 
Road, Abbeywood, London SE2 9AQ. Telephone: 020 8507 4321. 
 
Thames Water would recommend that petrol / oil interceptors be fitted in all car 
parking/washing/repair facilities. Failure to enforce the effective use of petrol / oil 
interceptors could result in oil-polluted discharge entering local watercourses. 
 
Water Comments 
 
Thames Water will aim to provide customers with a minimum pressure of 10m head 
(approx 1 bar) and a flow rate of 9 litres/minute at the point where it leaves Thames Waters 
pipes. The developer should take account of this minimum pressure in the design of the 
proposed development.  
 
Supplementary Comments 
 
The New River aqueduct is adjacent to this proposed development and special 
precautions will be required to avoid any damage or pollution that may occur as a result of 
the proposed development. Please contact Developer Services, Contact Centre on 
Telephone No: 0845 850 2777 for further information. 
 

Page 94



Planning Sub-Committee Report

11.0 REASONS FOR APPROVAL

The reasons for the grant of planning permission are as follows:  

 

a)  It is considered that the principle of this development is supported by National, 
Regional and Local Planning policies which seek to promote regionally important 
strategic transport infrastructure projects and economic growth.  

 
b) The Maintenance Depot and its associated facilities are considered to be suitably 

located in respect of the surroundings, impact on neighbouring properties and 
environmental site constraints. The Environmental Impact (accompanying 
Environmental Statements and related Documents and Addendums provided) of the 
proposed development have been assessed and it is considered there would be no 
significant adverse impacts or impacts which cannot be adequately mitigated. 

 
c) The Planning Application has been assessed against and is considered to be in 

general accordance with the intent of National, Regional and Local Planning 
Policies requirements including London Borough of Haringey Unitary Development 
Plan (UDP) 2006, policy G2 ‘Development and Urban Design’, G6 Strategic 
Transport Links, AC1 Heartlands/Wood Green, UD2 ‘Sustainable Design and 
Construction’, UD3 ‘General Principles’, UD4 ‘Quality Design’, UD7 Waste Storage, 
UD8 Planning Obligations, M2 ‘Public Transport Network’, M3 ‘New Development 
Location and Accessibility’, M10 ‘Parking for Development’, M11 Rail and 
Waterborne Transport  ENV2 ‘Surface Water Runoff’, ENV4 ‘Enhancing and 
Protecting the Water Environment’ ENV5 ‘Works Affecting Watercourses’, ENV6 
‘Noise Pollution’, ENV7 Air, Water and Light Pollution’, ENV11 ‘Contaminated Land’, 
ENV13 ‘Sustainable Waste Management’ OS5 Development Adjacent to Open 
Spaces, OS6 Ecologically Valuable Sites and Their Corridors, OS2 Metropolitan 
Open Land, OS7 Historic Parks, Gardens and Landscapes, OS12 Biodiversity, 
OS16 Green Chains and CSV8 Archaeology.   

 
 

Page 95



Planning Sub-Committee Report

12.0 APPENDICES: 
 
12.1 Appendix 1: Consultation Responses  
12.2 Appendix 2: Planning Policies  
12.3 Appendix 3: Development Management Forum Minutes 
12.4 Appendix 4: Design Panel Minutes  
12.5 Appendix 5: Heads of Terms for s106 Legal Agreement  
 

 

Page 96



Planning Sub-Committee Report

APPENDIX 1 
Consultation Responses 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 97



P
la

n
n

in
g

 S
u

b
-C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 R

e
p

o
rt

 N
o

. 
S

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
Q

u
e

s
ti

o
n

/C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 

 
S

T
A

T
U

T
O

R
Y

 
 

 

1
 

T
h
e
 G

re
a
te

r 
L
o

n
d

o
n
 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 (
G

L
A

) 
 

N
o

t 
R

e
fe

ra
b

le
 t

o
 t

h
e
 G

L
A

 
N

/A
 

2
 

L
o

n
d

o
n
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

A
g

e
n
c
y
 

 
 

N
o

 C
o

m
m

e
n
ts

 R
e
c
e
iv

e
d

  
N

/A
 

3
 

T
h
e
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

fo
r 

L
o

n
d

o
n
 (
G

O
L
) 

 

N
o

 C
o

m
m

e
n
ts

 R
e
c
e
iv

e
d

  
N

/A
 

4
 

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
L
o

n
d

o
n
 (
T

fL
) 

 

1
. 
  

 T
h
e
 
a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 
s
it
e
 
is

 
n
o

t 
s
it
u
a
te

d
 

o
n

 o
r 

in
 c

lo
s
e
 p

ro
x
im

it
y
 t

o
 t

h
e
 T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 
fo

r 
L

o
n

d
o

n
 R

o
a
d

 N
e
tw

o
rk

 (
T

L
R

N
) 

o
r 

th
e
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 R
o

a
d

 N
e
tw

o
rk

 (
S

R
N

).
  

  
 2
. 

  
 I
t 

is
 

n
o

te
d

 
th

a
t 

a
 

to
ta

l 
o

f 
4
3
 

c
a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g

 
s
p

a
c
e
s
 

w
ill

 
b

e
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

; 
it
 

is
 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n
d

e
d

 
th

a
t 

n
o

 
le

s
s
 

th
a
n
 

tw
o

 
d

is
a
b

le
d

 
p

a
rk

in
g

 
s
p

a
c
e
s
, 

d
e
s
ig

n
e
d

 
in

 
a
c
c
o

rd
a
n
c
e
 

w
it
h
 

th
e
 

D
fT

 
‘I
n
c
lu

s
iv

e
 

M
o

b
ili

ty
’ 

g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

. 
  

 
 3
. 

  
 I
t 

is
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n
d

e
d

 s
m

a
ll 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

m
o

to
rc

y
c
le

 s
p

a
c
e
s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

. 
  

 4
. 

  
 T

h
e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a
l 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 1

3
 s

e
c
u
re

d
 

c
y
c
le

 
p

a
rk

in
g

 
s
p

a
c
e
s
 

a
n
d

 
s
h
o

w
e
r/

 
c
h
a
n
g

in
g

 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 i
s
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e
d

 b
y
 T

fL
. 

  
 

N
o

te
d

 
    A

 
to

ta
l 

o
f 

4
3
 

c
a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g

 
s
p

a
c
e
s
 

w
o

u
ld

 
b

e
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

. 
T

h
is

 
in

c
lu

d
e
s
 2

 B
lu

e
 B

a
d

g
e
 p

a
rk

in
g

 s
p

a
c
e
s
. 

     A
 c

o
n
d

it
io

n
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
e
n
t 

w
ill

 r
e
q

u
ir
e
 t

h
e
 s

u
b

m
is

s
io

n
 o

f 
a
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 

fo
r 

m
o

to
rc

y
c
le

 p
a
rk

in
g

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 s

it
e
. 

 
 N

o
te

d
 

  

Page 98



P
la

n
n

in
g

 S
u

b
-C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 R

e
p

o
rt

N
o

. 
S

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
Q

u
e

s
ti

o
n

/C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 

 5
. 

  
 I
t 

is
 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n
d

e
d

 
th

a
t 

e
le

c
tr

ic
 

v
e
h
ic

le
 

c
h
a
rg

in
g

 
p

o
in

ts
 

s
h
o

u
ld

 
b

e
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 
a
t 

th
e
 

c
a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g

 
a
re

a
; 

a
 

m
in

im
u

m
 

c
o

v
e
ra

g
e
 

o
f 

2
0

%
 

is
 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
e
d

. 
  

 
 6
. 

  
 T

h
e
 

p
ro

d
u
c
ti
o

n
 

o
f 

T
ra

v
e
l 

P
la

n
 

is
 

w
e
lc

o
m

e
d

 
b

y
 

T
fL

; 
th

e
 

fi
n

a
lis

e
d

 
p

la
n

 
s
h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

 f
u
lly

 i
n
 a

c
c
o

rd
a
n
c
e
 

w
it
h
 
re

le
v
a
n
t 

D
fT

 
a
n
d

 
T

fL
 
g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 
fo

r 
T

ra
v
e
l 

P
la

n
n
in

g
; 

a
n
d

 t
h
e
 P

la
n

 s
h

o
u
ld

 b
e
 

s
u
b

je
c
t 

S
1
0
6
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 o

b
lig

a
ti
o

n
. 

  
 

 7
. 

  
 A

s
 

p
e
r 

th
e
 

v
e
h

ic
u

la
r 

tr
ip

 
ra

te
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t,
 T

fL
 a

g
re

e
s
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a
l 

w
o

u
ld

 b
e
 u

n
lik

e
ly

 t
o

 g
e
n
e
ra

te
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 

le
v
e
l 
o

f 
v
e
h

ic
u
la

r 
tr

a
ff

ic
 d

u
ri
n
g

 t
h
e
 n

o
rm

a
l 

A
M

 a
n

d
 P

M
 p

e
a
k
 h

o
u

rs
. 

  
 

 8
. 

  
 A

 
D

e
liv

e
ry

 
&

 
S

e
rv

ic
in

g
 

P
la

n
 

(D
S

P
) 

s
h
o

u
ld

 
b

e
 

p
ro

d
u
c
e
d

 
fo

r 
th

e
 

p
ro

p
o

s
a
l,
 

a
n
d

 
b

e
 
s
u
b

m
it
te

d
 
to

 
th

e
 
lo

c
a
l 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 
fo

r 
a
p

p
ro

v
a
l 

p
ri
o

r 
to

 
th

e
 
o

c
c
u

p
a
ti
o

n
 
o

f 
th

e
 

s
it
e
. 

 I
t 

is
 

a
ls

o
 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n
d

e
d

 
th

a
t 

m
e
a
s
u
re

 s
h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 t
o

 m
in

im
is

e
 

th
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
H

G
V

 f
o

r 
s
e
rv

ic
in

g
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
 a

n
d

 
th

e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
ra

il 
o

p
ti
o

n
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 e

x
p

lo
re

d
 

w
h
e
re

 i
t 

is
 p

ra
c
ti
c
a
l 

to
 d

o
 s

o
 t

o
 m

in
im

is
e
 

h
ig

h
w

a
y
 a

n
d

 t
ra

ff
ic

 i
m

p
a
c
t.

  
  

  9
. 

  
 I
t 

is
 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n
d

e
d

 
th

a
t 

a
 

 A
 c

o
n
d

it
io

n
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
e
n
t 

w
ill

 r
e
q

u
ir

e
 a

n
 e

le
c
tr

ic
 v

e
h
ic

le
 c

h
a
rg

in
g

 
p

o
in

t 
to

 b
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g

 a
re

a
. 

    A
 c

o
n
d

it
io

n
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
e
n
t 

w
ill

 r
e
q

u
ir
e
 p

ri
o

r 
to

 t
h
e
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

u
s
e
, 

a
 

T
ra

v
e
l 

P
la

n
, 

in
 

c
o

m
p

lia
n
c
e
 

w
it
h
 

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 
fo

r 
L
o

n
d

o
n
 G

u
id

a
n
c
e
, 

b
e
 s

u
b

m
it
te

d
 t

o
 a

n
d

 a
p

p
ro

v
e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

. 
  

   N
o

te
d

 
     A

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
e
n
t 

w
ill

 r
e
q

u
ir
e
 p

ri
o

r 
to

 t
h
e
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
 

D
e
liv

e
ry

 
&

 
S

e
rv

ic
in

g
 

P
la

n
 

(D
S

P
) 

b
e
 

s
u
b

m
it
te

d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 a

p
p

ro
v
a
l 
o

f 
th

e
 L

P
A

. 
 I

t 
is

 a
ls

o
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n
d

e
d

, 
v
ia

 
th

is
 
c
o

n
d

it
io

n
, 

th
a
t 

th
e
 
D

S
P

 
e
x
p

lo
re

 
th

e
 
u
s
e
 
o

f 
ra

il 
a
s
 
a
n
 

o
p

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

m
in

im
is

in
g

 t
h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
H

G
V

’s
 f

o
r 

s
e
rv

ic
in

g
 t

h
e
 s

it
e
. 

       A
 c

o
n
d

it
io

n
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
e
n
t 

w
ill

 r
e
q

u
ir
e
 p

ri
o

r 
to

 t
h
e
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
m

e
n
t 

Page 99



P
la

n
n

in
g

 S
u

b
-C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 R

e
p

o
rt

N
o

. 
S

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
Q

u
e

s
ti

o
n

/C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 

C
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 

(C
M

P
) 

a
n
d

 
C

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 

L
o

g
is

ti
c
s
 

P
la

n
 

(C
L
P

) 
s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 p

ro
d

u
c
e
d

 a
n

d
 a

p
p

ro
v
e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e
 

lo
c
a
l 

a
u
th

o
ri

ty
 p

ri
o

r 
to

 c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 w

o
rk

 
c
o

m
m

e
n
c
e
s
 

o
n
 

s
it
e
. 

 I
t 

is
 

a
ls

o
 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n
d

e
d

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 t

ra
n
s
p

o
rt

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 
m

a
te

ri
a
ls

 
b

y
 
ra

il 
s
h
o

u
ld

 
b

e
 

e
x
p

lo
re

d
, 

th
is

 i
s
 t

o
 m

in
im

is
e
 t

h
e
 l

e
v
e
l 

o
f 

c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 

v
e
h
ic

le
 

tr
ip

s
 

to
/ 

fr
o

m
 

th
e
 

s
it
e
; 

h
e
n

c
e
 

re
d

u
c
e
 

h
ig

h
w

a
y
 

a
n

d
 

tr
a
ff

ic
 

im
p

a
c
t 

to
 t

h
e
 l
o

c
a
l 
h
ig

h
w

a
y
 n

e
tw

o
rk

. 
  

 
 1

0
. 

It
 

is
 

re
q

u
e
s
te

d
 

th
a
t 

fo
r 

d
u

ri
n

g
 

th
e
 

c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a
l;
 d

is
ru

p
ti
o

n
s
 

to
 

w
a
lk

in
g

 
ro

u
te

 
b

y
 

g
e
n
e
ra

l 
p

u
b

lic
 

to
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 

ra
il 

s
ta

ti
o

n
 

fa
c
ili

ti
e
s
 

s
h

o
u
ld

 
b

e
 

k
e
p

t 
to

 a
 m

in
im

u
m

 w
h
e
re

 p
o

s
s
ib

le
; 

th
is

 i
s
 

to
 

e
n
s
u
re

 
th

a
t 

th
e
 

p
u
b

lic
 

tr
a
n
s
p

o
rt

 
a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 
w

o
u
ld

 
b

e
 

m
a
in

ta
in

e
d

 
th

ro
u

g
h

o
u

t.
 
It

 
is

 
re

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
e
d

 
th

a
t 

th
e
 

lo
c
a
l 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 
s
h
o

u
ld

 
a
p

p
ro

v
e
 

a
n
y
 

p
e
d

e
s
tr

ia
n

 
a
n
d

 
tr

a
ff

ic
 

d
iv

e
rs

io
n
 

ro
u
te

 
p

ri
o

r 
to

 w
o

rk
 c

o
m

m
e
n

c
e
 o

n
 s

it
e
. 

  
 

    S
u
b

je
c
t 

to
 t

h
e
 a

b
o

v
e
, 

T
fL

 i
s
 n

o
t 

m
in

d
e
d

 
to

 o
b

je
c
t 

th
e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.

  
     

o
f 

th
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
 

C
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 

L
o

g
is

ti
c
s
 

P
la

n
 

(C
L
P

) 
b

e
 

s
u
b

m
it
te

d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 a

p
p

ro
v
a
l 
o

f 
th

e
 L

P
A

. 
 I

t 
is

 a
ls

o
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n
d

e
d

, 
v
ia

 
th

is
 

c
o

n
d

it
io

n
, 

th
a
t 

th
e
 

tr
a
n
s
p

o
rt

a
ti
o

n
 

o
f 

c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 

m
a
te

ri
a
ls

 b
y
 r

a
il 

s
h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 e

x
p

lo
re

d
. 

T
h
is

 i
s
 t

o
 m

in
im

is
e
 t

h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 

o
f 

c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 
v
e
h
ic

le
 
tr

ip
s
 
to

/ 
fr

o
m

 
th

e
 
s
it
e
; 

h
e
n

c
e
 
re

d
u

c
e
 

h
ig

h
w

a
y
 a

n
d

 t
ra

ff
ic

 i
m

p
a
c
t 

to
 t

h
e
 l
o

c
a
l 
h

ig
h
w

a
y
 n

e
tw

o
rk

. 
      T

h
e
 

s
1
0
6

 
w

ill
 

re
q

u
ir
e
 

N
e
tw

o
rk

 
R

a
il 

to
 

u
s
e
 

a
ll 

re
a
s
o

n
a
b

le
 

e
n
d

e
a
v
o

u
rs

 
to

 
k
e
e
p

 
o

p
e
n
 

fo
r 

p
u
b

lic
 

u
s
e
 

th
e
 

p
e
d

e
s
tr

ia
n
 

fo
o

tb
ri
d

g
e
 

fr
o

m
 

H
a
m

p
d

e
n
 

R
o

a
d

 
to

 
T

o
tt

e
n
h
a
m

 
L
a
n
e
/H

o
rn

s
e
y
 

S
ta

ti
o

n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 t
h
a
t 

th
is

 o
b

lig
a
ti
o

n
 s

h
a
ll 

n
o

t 
in

 a
n
y
 w

a
y
 r

e
s
tr

ic
t 

o
r 

p
re

v
e
n
t 

N
R

 
fr

o
m

 
c
lo

s
in

g
 

(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

te
m

p
o

ra
ri
ly

) 
a
n
d

/o
r 

re
m

o
v
in

g
 

th
e
 

fo
o

tb
ri
d

g
e
 

fo
r 

a
n
y
 

re
a
s
o

n
 

w
h
e
re

 
s
u

c
h
 

re
a
s
o

n
 

re
la

te
s
 

to
 

(i
) 

th
e
 

s
a
fe

ty
, 

re
p

a
ir
, 

m
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
, 

im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n
t,

 
re

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
r 

re
c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 f

o
o

tb
ri
d

g
e
 o

r 
a
n

y
 o

th
e
r 

ra
il 

fa
c
ili

ti
e
s
; 

o
r 

(i
i)
 t

h
e
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 

re
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
r 

p
u
rp

o
s
e
s
 o

f 
N

R
, 

th
e
 u

s
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 r

a
ilw

a
y
, 

o
r 

th
e
 r

a
il 

re
g

u
la

to
rs

 a
n
d

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 t
h
a
t 

s
u
c
h
 r

o
u
te

 s
h
a
ll 

n
o

t 
c
o

n
s
ti
tu

te
 a

 p
u
b

lic
 r

ig
h
t 

o
f 

w
a
y
 a

n
d

 N
R

 s
h
a
ll 

b
e
 e

n
ti
tl
e
d

 t
o

 t
a
k
e
 a

n
y
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 i

t 
c
o

n
s
id

e
rs

 
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 t
o

 p
re

v
e
n
t 

a
n
y
 s

u
c
h
 r

ig
h
t 

o
c
c
u
rr

in
g

. 
  N

o
te

d
 

 
    

Page 100



P
la

n
n

in
g

 S
u

b
-C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 R

e
p

o
rt

N
o

. 
S

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
Q

u
e

s
ti

o
n

/C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 

5
 

N
a
tu

ra
l 
E

n
g

la
n
d

 
 

N
o

 c
o

m
m

e
n
ts

 o
r 

o
b

je
c
ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 m

a
k
e
 o

n
 

th
is

 p
ro

p
o

s
a
l.
 H

o
w

e
v
e
r 

N
E

 w
o

u
ld

 e
x
p

e
c
t 

th
e
 

L
o

c
a
l 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

 
to

 
a
s
s
e
s
s
 

a
n
d

 
c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

th
e
 

p
o

s
s
ib

le
 

im
p

a
c
ts

 
re

s
u
lt
in

g
 

fr
o

m
 

th
is

 
p

ro
p

o
s
a
l 

o
n
 

th
e
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 

w
h
e
n

 
d

e
te

rm
in

in
g

 
th

is
 

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
: 

 
 

L
o

c
a
l 
W

ild
lif

e
 S

it
e
s
 

If
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a
l 

s
it
e
 i

s
 o

n
 o

r 
a
d

ja
c
e
n
t 

to
 

lo
c
a
l 

w
ild

lif
e
 

s
it
e
s
 

e
.g

. 
S

it
e
 

o
f 

N
a
tu

re
 

C
o

n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 
Im

p
o

rt
a
n
c
e
 
(S

N
C

I)
, 

in
 
th

is
 

in
s
ta

n
c
e
 

th
e
 

N
e
w

 
R

iv
e
r 

S
N

C
I 

o
r 

L
o

c
a
l 

N
a
tu

re
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
 

(L
N

R
) 

th
e
 

c
o

u
n

tr
y
 

e
c
o

lo
g

is
t 

a
n
d

/o
r 

lo
c
a
l 
w

ild
lif

e
 t

ru
s
t 

s
h
o

u
ld

 
b

e
 c

o
n
ta

c
te

d
. 

 
 

P
ro

te
c
te

d
 S

p
e
c
ie

s
 

If
 

re
p

re
s
e
n
ta

ti
o

n
s
 

fr
o

m
 

o
th

e
r 

p
a
rt

ie
s
 

h
ig

h
lig

h
t 

th
e
 

p
o

s
s
ib

le
 

p
re

s
e
n
c
e
 

o
r 

th
e
 

C
o

u
n
c
il 

is
 

a
w

a
re

 
o

f 
a
 

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 

B
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n
 (

B
A

P
) 

s
p

e
c
ie

s
 o

n
 

th
e
 

s
it
e
, 

th
e
 

C
o

u
n
c
il 

s
h
o

u
ld

 
re

q
u
e
s
t 

s
u
rv

e
y
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 

fr
o

m
 

th
e
 

a
p

p
lic

a
n
t 

b
e
fo

re
 d

e
te

rm
in

in
g

 t
h
e
 a

p
p

lic
a
ti
o

n
. 

 

B
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 E

n
h
a
n
c
e
m

e
n
ts

 
T

h
is

 
a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 

m
a
y
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 

o
p

p
o

rt
u
n
it
ie

s
 t

o
 i

n
c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 f
e
a
tu

re
s
 i

n
to

 
th

e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 b

e
n
e
fi
c
ia

l 
to

 w
ild

lif
e
, 

s
u
c
h
 

a
s
 

th
e
 

in
c
o

rp
o

ra
ti
o

n
 

o
f 

ro
o

s
ti
n
g

 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 
fo

r 
b

a
ts

 
o

r 
th

e
 
in

s
ta

lla
ti
o

n
 

o
f 

b
ir
d

 n
e
s
ti
n
g

 b
o

x
e
s
. 
T

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
h
o

u
ld

 

        C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
 

o
f 

c
o

n
s
e
n
t 

w
ill

 
re

q
u
ir
e
 

a
 

s
it
e
 

w
id

e
 

E
c
o

lo
g

y
 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 b

e
 s

u
b

m
it
te

d
 t

o
 a

n
d

 a
p

p
ro

v
e
d

 i
n

 w
ri

ti
n

g
 

b
y
 t

h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
P

la
n
n
in

g
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 p
ro

v
id

e
 t

h
e
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n
it
y
 

fo
r 

th
e
 L

P
A

 t
o

 s
e
c
u
re

 m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 t

o
 e

n
h
a
n

c
e
 t

h
e
 b

io
d

iv
e
rs

it
y
 o

f 
th

e
 

s
it
e
, 

a
s
 

o
u
tl
in

e
d

 
in

 
th

e
 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 
S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 

a
n

d
 

E
n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
S

ta
te

m
e
n
t.

 
A

 
fu

rt
h
e
r 

c
o

n
d

it
io

n
 

o
f 

c
o

n
s
e
n
t 

w
ill

 
re

q
u
ir
e
 a

 s
it
e
 w

id
e
 e

c
o

lo
g

ic
a
l 

s
u

rv
e
y
 b

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
p

ri
o

r 
to

 t
h

e
 

c
o

m
m

e
n

c
e
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
w

o
rk

s
. 

 
                 

Page 101



P
la

n
n

in
g

 S
u

b
-C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 R

e
p

o
rt

N
o

. 
S

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
Q

u
e

s
ti

o
n

/C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 

c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

s
e
c
u
ri
n
g

 m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 t

o
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
 

th
e
 

b
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 

o
f 

th
e
 

s
it
e
 

fr
o

m
 

th
e
 

a
p

p
lic

a
n
ts

, 
if
 

it
 

is
 

m
in

d
e
d

 
to

 
g

ra
n
t 

p
e
rm

is
s
io

n
 f

o
r 

th
is

 a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
. 

 
 T

h
e
 b

io
d

iv
e
rs

it
y
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
fo

r 
th

e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
, 

a
s
 r

e
fe

re
n
c
e
d

 i
n
 t

h
e
 P

la
n
n

in
g

 S
ta

te
m

e
n
t,

 
S

e
c
ti
o

n
 

4
.2

.1
2
 

to
g

e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 

th
e
 

E
n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 

–
 

C
h
a
p

te
r 

9
: 

E
c
o

lo
g

y
 

is
 

to
 

b
e
 

w
e
lc

o
m

e
d

 
a
n
d

 
e
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e
d

. 
 

 

     N
o

te
d

 

6
 

E
n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

A
g

e
n
c
y
 

 

T
h
e
 

E
n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

A
g

e
n
c
y
 

in
it
ia

lly
 

o
b

je
c
te

d
 
(l
e
tt

e
r 

d
a
te

d
 
2
4
/5

/2
0
1
1
) 

to
 
th

e
 

p
ro

p
o

s
a
l.
 F

o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e
 s

u
b

m
is

s
io

n
 o

f 
a
n
 

a
m

e
n
d

e
d

 
F

lo
o

d
 
R

is
k
 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

(F
R

A
) 

th
e
 

E
n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

A
g

e
n
c
y
 

re
m

o
v
e
d

 
th

e
ir

 
o

b
je

c
ti
o

n
 

a
n
d

 
n
o

w
 

fi
n
d

 
th

e
 

p
ro

p
o

s
a
l 

a
c
c
e
p

ta
b

le
 

(l
e
tt

e
r 

d
a
te

d
 

2
1
/6

/2
0
1
1
) 

s
u
b

je
c
t 

to
 t

h
e
 i

m
p

o
s
it
io

n
 o

f 
a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
e
n
t.

 
  

T
h
e
 

E
n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

A
g

e
n
c
y
 

c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
 

a
n
d

 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
v
e
s
 

w
h
ic

h
 

re
la

te
 

to
 

F
lo

o
d

 
R

is
k
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t,

 
S

u
rf

a
c
e
 

W
a
te

r 
D

ra
in

a
g

e
, 

In
fi
lt
ra

ti
o

n
 

o
f 

S
u
rf

a
c
e
 

W
a
te

r 
D

ra
in

a
g

e
, 

S
u
s
p

e
n
d

e
d

 
S

o
ils

, 
a
n
d

 
D

is
p

o
s
a
l 
o

f 
F

o
u
l 
a
n
d

 S
u
rf

a
c
e
 W

a
te

r,
 a

re
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d

  

 

7
 

T
h
a
m

e
s
 W

a
te

r 
 

N
o

 o
b

je
c
ti
o

n
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 c

o
n
d

it
io

n
s
 a

n
d

 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
v
e
s
 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
 a

n
d

 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
v
e
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e
d

 

8
 

B
ri
ti
s
h
 

W
a
te

rw
a
y
s
 

 

N
o

 C
o

m
m

e
n
ts

 R
e
c
e
iv

e
d

  
   

N
/A

 

9
 

N
a
ti
o

n
a
l 
G

ri
d

 
P

ro
p

e
rt

y
 

 

N
o

 C
o

m
m

e
n
ts

 R
e
c
e
iv

e
d

 
    

N
/A

 

1
0

 
L
o

n
d

o
n
 F

ir
e
 a

n
d

 
T

h
e
 

B
ri
g

a
d

e
 

is
 

s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d

 
w

it
h
 

th
e
 

N
o

te
d

 

Page 102



P
la

n
n

in
g

 S
u

b
-C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 R

e
p

o
rt

N
o

. 
S

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
Q

u
e

s
ti

o
n

/C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 

E
m

e
rg

e
n
c
y
 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

 
 

p
ro

p
o

s
a
l.
 

 S
it
e
 
p

la
n

s
 
s
h

o
u

ld
 
b

e
 
fo

rw
a
rd

e
d

 
to

 
L
F

B
 

W
a
te

r 
O

ff
ic

e
 f

o
r 

fi
re

 h
y
d

ra
n
t 

re
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 

  S
it
e
 p

la
n
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 f

o
rw

a
rd

e
d

 t
o

 L
F

B
 W

a
te

r 
O

ff
ic

e
. 

R
e
fe

r 
to

 
c
o

m
m

e
n
t 

1
1
 b

e
lo

w
. 

1
1

 
L
o

n
d

o
n
 F

ir
e
 

B
ri
g

a
d

e
 (
W

a
te

r 
D

iv
is

io
n
) 

 

T
h
e
 i

s
s
u
e
 o

f 
w

a
te

r 
s
u
p

p
ly

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 s

it
e
 

h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n

 
c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 

a
n
d

 
in

 
o

rd
e
r 

to
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 a

n
 a

d
e
q

u
a
te

 s
u
p

p
ly

 o
f 

w
a
te

r 
fo

r 
fi
re

 
fi
g

h
ti
n

g
, 

w
e
 
a
re

 
re

c
o

m
m

e
n
d

in
g

 
th

e
 

in
s
ta

lla
ti
o

n
 o

f 
5
 P

ri
v
a
te

 F
ir
e
 H

y
d

ra
n
ts

 i
n
 

th
e
 p

o
s
it
io

n
s
 i

n
d

ic
a
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 r

e
d

 X
’s

 o
n

 
th

e
 
e
n
c
lo

s
e
d

 
p

la
n
. 

T
h
e
 
h
y
d

ra
n
ts

 
s
h
o

u
ld

 
b

e
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

P
4
3
4
3
6
, 

P
3
9
3
5
7
, 

P
4
4
2
3
4
, 

P
3
9
3
4
1
 a

n
d

 P
3
9
7
8
5
 r

e
s
p

e
c
ti
v
e
ly

. 
 

A
 c

o
n
d

it
io

n
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
e
n
t 

in
c
lu

d
e
d

 

1
2

 
T

h
e
 M

e
tr

o
p

o
lit

a
n
 

P
o

lic
e
 –

 C
ri

m
e
 

P
re

v
e
n
ti
o

n
 

N
o

 o
b

je
c
ti
o

n
 

N
o

te
d

 

1
3

 
A

le
x
a
n
d

ra
 

P
a
la

c
e
 M

a
n
a
g

e
r 

 

N
o

 c
o

m
m

e
n
ts

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d

  
N

/A
 

1
4

 
A

le
x
a
n
d

ra
 

P
a
la

c
e
 a

n
d

 P
a
rk

 
S

ta
tu

to
ry

 
A

d
v
is

o
ry

 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

N
o

 c
o

m
m

e
n
ts

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d

 
      

N
/A

 

1
5

 
A

le
x
a
n
d

ra
 

P
a
rk

 
a
n
d

 
P

a
la

c
e
 

C
h
a
ri
ta

b
le

 T
ru

s
t 

T
h
e
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 
fe

e
lin

g
 o

f 
th

e
 B

o
a
rd

 i
s
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 v

ie
w

s
 f

o
rm

 t
h
e
 P

a
rk

 a
n
d

 P
a
la

c
e
 a

re
 

a
n
 i

m
p

o
rt

a
n
t 

a
s
s
e
t 

th
a
t 

a
ll 

v
is

it
o

rs
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

s
it
e
 c

a
n
 e

n
jo

y
. 

 If
 

th
e
 

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 

is
 

a
p

p
ro

v
e
d

 
o

u
r 

N
o

te
d

 
     

Page 103



P
la

n
n

in
g

 S
u

b
-C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 R

e
p

o
rt

N
o

. 
S

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
Q

u
e

s
ti

o
n

/C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 

c
o

m
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

: 
1
.T

h
a
t 

th
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
r 

b
e
 

re
q

u
e
s
te

d
 

to
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 

tr
e
e
s
, 

s
h
ru

b
s
 

a
n
d

/o
r 

o
th

e
r 

c
lim

b
in

g
 
p

la
n
ts

 
o

n
 
th

e
ir
 
la

n
d

 
to

 
s
c
re

e
n
 

th
e
 b

u
ild

in
g

. 
  

2
.T

h
a
t 

th
e
 

p
e
rm

it
te

d
 

c
o

lo
u
r 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 

b
le

n
d

s
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 l
a
n
d

s
c
a
p

e
. 

 
3
.T

h
a
t 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

b
e
a
rs

 i
n
 m

in
d

 i
ts

 o
w

n
 

p
o

lic
ie

s
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g

 v
ie

w
s
. 

 4
.T

h
a
t 

th
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
r’

s
 

fu
n
d

in
g

 
c
o

n
tr

ib
u
ti
o

n
 u

n
d

e
r 

s
1

0
6
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 

fo
r 

s
c
re

e
n
in

g
 

tr
e
e
s
 

to
 

b
e
 

p
la

n
te

d
 

in
 

A
le

x
a
n
d

ra
 P

a
rk

 t
o

 m
it
ig

a
te

 t
h

e
 i

m
p

a
c
t 

o
n
 

th
e
 v

ie
w

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 p

a
la

c
e
. 

 T
h
e
 
s
c
o

p
e
 
fo

r 
d

ir
e
c
t 

m
it
ig

a
ti
o

n
 
is

 
lim

it
e
d

 
b

y
 
o

p
e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 

a
n
d

 
s
p

a
ti
a
l 

c
o

n
s
tr

a
in

ts
. 

S
c
re

e
n
 
p

la
n

ti
n
g

 
w

o
u
ld

 
h
a
v
e
 
to

 
b

e
 
lo

c
a
te

d
 

c
lo

s
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 d

e
p

o
t 

b
u
ild

in
g

 t
o

 b
e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

ra
il 

s
a
fe

ty
, 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 

re
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

, 
a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 l

im
it
e
d

 s
p

a
c
e
, 

m
a
k
e
 s

u
c
h

 
s
c
re

e
n
 p

la
n
ti
n
g

 u
n
fe

a
s
ib

le
. 

 T
h
e
 c

o
lo

u
r 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
n
tr

o
lle

d
 v

ia
 a

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
e
n
t 

to
 e

n
s
u
re

 i
t 

b
le

n
d

s
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 l
a
n
d

s
c
a
p

e
 a

s
 f

a
r 

a
s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
. 

 
 D

u
e
 r

e
g

a
rd

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 g

iv
e
n
 t

o
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 i

n
 t

h
e
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

is
 a

p
p

lic
a
ti
o

n
. 

 
 A

 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

s
1
0
6
 

o
b

lig
a
ti
o

n
s
 

a
re

 
s
o

u
g

h
t 

w
h
e
re

 
s
p

e
c
if
ic

 
m

it
ig

a
ti
o

n
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 a

re
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

a
n
d

 f
e
a
s
ib

le
. 

In
 t

h
is

 
c
a
s
e
, 

th
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
s
c
re

e
n

in
g

 t
re

e
s
 w

it
h
in

 A
le

x
a
n
d

ra
 P

a
rk

 i
s
 

n
o

t 
c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a
te

. 
 

 
IN

T
E

R
N

A
L

 
 

 

1
 

H
a
ri
n
g

e
y
 

B
u
ild

in
g

 C
o

n
tr

o
l 

 

T
h

e
 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 
F

ir
e
 

a
n

d
 

E
m

e
rg

e
n

c
y
 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

 
(L

F
E

P
A

) 
s
h
o

u
ld

 
b

e
 

c
o

n
s
u
lt
e
d

 
fo

rm
a
lly

 
re

g
a
rd

in
g

 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 
fo

r 
fi
re

 f
ig

h
ti
n
g

 p
u
rp

o
s
e
s
. 

T
h
e
 
L
F

E
P

A
 
h
a
v
e
 
b

e
e
n
 
fo

rm
a
lly

 
c
o

n
s
u
lt
e
d

. 
R

e
fe

r 
to

 
S

ta
tu

to
ry

 
C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o

n
 N

o
. 

1
0
. 

 

2
 

H
a
ri
n
g

e
y
 
D

e
s
ig

n
 

a
n

d
 

C
o

n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 

 

H
a
ri
n
g

e
y
 D

e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d

 C
o

n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 T

e
a
m

 
h
a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n

 
in

v
o

lv
e
d

 
in

 
p

re
-a

p
p

lic
a
ti
o

n
 

a
n
d

 
p

o
s
t 

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 

d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 

a
n
d

 
n
e
g

o
ti
a
ti
o

n
s
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

re
fe

rr
a
l 

to
 

th
e
 

d
e
s
ig

n
 p

a
n
e
l.
  

 

T
h
e
 

is
s
u
e
s
 

re
la

ti
n
g

 
to

 
d

e
s
ig

n
 

a
n

d
 

c
o

n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 

a
re

 
c
o

v
e
re

d
 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 o

ff
ic

e
r’

s
 r

e
p

o
rt

. 
 

3
 

H
a
ri
n
g

e
y
 

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

a
ti
o

n
 

N
o

 
o

b
je

c
ti
o

n
 
s
u
b

je
c
t 

to
 
c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
 
a
n
d

 
s
1
0
6
 l
e
g

a
l 
a
g

re
e
m

e
n
t.

  
T

h
e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
 a

n
d

 s
1
0
6
 o

b
lig

a
ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 i

n
c
lu

d
e
d

 a
s
 

d
e
ta

ile
d

 
in

 
s
e
c
ti
o

n
 

1
0
 

a
n
d

 
A

p
p

e
n
d

ix
 

5
, 

re
s
p

e
c
ti
v
e
ly

, 
o

f 
th

is
 

re
p

o
rt

 

4
 

H
a
ri
n
g

e
y
 

E
n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
H

a
ri
n
g

e
y
 
E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 
T

e
a
m

 
in

 
c
o

n
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 

w
it
h
 

a
n
 

in
d

e
p

e
n
d

e
n
t 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
e
n
t 

in
c
lu

d
e
d

  

Page 104



P
la

n
n

in
g

 S
u

b
-C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 R

e
p

o
rt

N
o

. 
S

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
Q

u
e

s
ti

o
n

/C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 

H
e
a
lt
h
 –

 N
o

is
e
 

c
o

n
s
u
lt
a
n
t 

h
a
v
e
 

c
o

n
fi
rm

e
d

 
th

a
t 

th
e
 

m
e
th

o
d

o
lo

g
y
 
u
s
e
d

 
in

 
th

e
 
E

n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 

is
 

in
 

lin
e
 

w
it
h
 

th
e
 

re
le

v
a
n
t 

B
ri
ti
s
h
 
S

ta
n
d

a
rd

s
. 

In
 
a
d

d
it
io

n
 
a
 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
e
n
t 

a
re

 p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

. 

5
 

H
a
ri
n
g

e
y
 

E
n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h

 
–
 

P
o

llu
ti
o

n
 

 

H
a
ri
n
g

e
y
 E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 (

P
o

llu
ti
o

n
) 

T
e
a
m

 
h
a
v
e
 

re
q

u
e
s
te

d
 

a
 

c
o

n
d

it
io

n
 

o
f 

c
o

n
s
e
n
t/

s
1
0
6
 

o
b

lig
a
ti
o

n
 

re
g

a
rd

in
g

 
e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 b

io
m

a
s
s
 b

o
ile

r.
 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
 a

n
d

 s
1
0
6
 o

b
lig

a
ti
o

n
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d

 

6
 

H
a
ri
n
g

e
y
 

W
a
s
te

 
M

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

 
 

T
h
is

 
p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 
d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

re
q

u
ir
e
s
 

s
to

ra
g

e
 

fo
r 

w
a
s
te

 
&

 
re

c
y
c
lin

g
 

e
it
h
e
r 

in
te

rn
a
lly

 o
r 

e
x
te

rn
a
lly

, 
a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o

r 
s
c
h
e
d

u
le

d
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o

n
s
 w

it
h
 a

 C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 

W
a
s
te

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
to

r 
w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d

. 
 

 

A
 c

o
n
d

it
io

n
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
e
n
t 

w
ill

 r
e
q

u
ir
e
 t

h
e
 s

u
b

m
is

s
io

n
 a

n
d

 a
p

p
ro

v
a
l 

o
f 

a
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 s
c
h
e
m

e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
re

fu
s
e
, 

w
a
s
te

 s
to

ra
g

e
 

a
n
d

 
re

c
y
c
lin

g
 

w
it
h
in

 
th

e
 

s
it
e
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

lo
c
a
ti
o

n
, 

d
e
s
ig

n
, 

s
c
re

e
n
in

g
, 

a
n
d

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
. 

 

7
 

H
a
ri
n
g

e
y
 

N
a
tu

re
 

C
o

n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 

 

H
a
ri
n
g

e
y
 

C
o

n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 

T
e
a
m

 
c
o

n
s
id

e
rs

 
fu

rt
h
e
r 

m
it
ig

a
ti
o

n
 

m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 

c
o

u
ld

 
b

e
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 
a
n

d
 

h
a
s
 

re
q

u
e
s
te

d
 

th
a
t 

a
n

 
u
p

d
a
te

d
 

b
a
t 

s
u
rv

e
y
 

a
n
d

 
in

v
e
rt

e
b

ra
te

 
s
u
rv

e
y
 b

e
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n

. 
 

T
h
e
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

c
o

n
c
lu

d
e
s
 

th
a
t 

a
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

m
it
ig

a
ti
o

n
 

m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 a

re
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 a
n
d

 w
ill

 b
e
 e

n
fo

rc
e
d

 v
ia

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
e
n
t 

a
n
d

 
1
0
6
 

o
b

lig
a
ti
o

n
s
. 

T
h
e
s
e
 

m
e
a
s
u

re
s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

th
e
 

re
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 

to
 p

ro
d

u
c
e
 a

n
 E

c
o

lo
g

ic
a
l 
M

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

th
e
 
s
it
e
 
w

ill
 
a
llo

w
 
a
 
ra

n
g

e
 
o

f 
e
c
o

lo
g

ic
a
l 

e
n
h
a
n
c
e
m

e
n
ts

 
to

 
b

e
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

. 
A

 
c
o

n
d

it
io

n
 
o

f 
c
o

n
s
e
n

t 
w

ill
 
re

q
u
ir
e
 
a
n
 
u
p

d
a
te

d
 
b

a
t 

s
u
rv

e
y
 a

n
d

 i
n
v
e
rt

e
b

ra
te

 s
u
rv

e
y
 t

o
 b

e
 s

u
b

m
it
te

d
 t

o
 a

n
d

 a
p

p
ro

v
e
d

 
b

y
 t

h
e
 l
o

c
a
l 
p

la
n
n
in

g
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

. 

8
 

H
a
ri
n
g

e
y
 P

a
rk

s
 –

 
T

re
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
  

 

N
o

 c
o

m
m

e
n
ts

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d

  
N

/A
 

 
E

X
T

E
R

N
A

L
 

 
 

1
 

M
P

s
/W

a
rd

 
C

o
u
n
c
ill

o
rs

  
 L
y
n
n
e
 

F
e
a
th

e
rs

to
n
e
 

 1
. 

  
  
 L

o
c
a
ti
o

n
. 

T
h
is

 i
s
 t

h
e
 w

ro
n
g

 l
o

c
a
ti
o

n
 

fo
r 

th
is

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 f
a
c
ili

ty
. 

   T
h
e
 i

s
s
u
e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ri
n
c
ip

le
 o

f 
th

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d

 s
it
e
 s

e
le

c
ti
o

n
 

a
re

 c
o

v
e
re

d
 i
n
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
 6

.1
 o

f 
th

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

. 

Page 105



P
la

n
n

in
g

 S
u

b
-C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 R

e
p

o
rt

N
o

. 
S

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
Q

u
e

s
ti

o
n

/C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 

                    C
llr

 
R

o
b

e
rt

 
G

o
rr

ie
 

 

 2
. 

  
  
 

M
it
ig

a
ti
o

n
. 

T
h
e
 

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 

a
s
 

p
re

s
e
n
te

d
 

d
o

e
s
 

n
o

t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 

s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

m
it
ig

a
ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 s

u
b

s
ta

n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 

it
 w

ill
 

h
a
v
e
 o

n
 t

h
e
 s

u
rr

o
u
n
d

in
g

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 

a
n
d

 
le

is
u
re

 s
p

a
c
e
s
 a

n
d

 u
s
e
rs

. 
 3
. 
  
  
 

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 

C
o

n
tr

o
l.
 

G
iv

e
n
 

th
e
 

p
o

te
n
ti
a
l 

im
p

a
c
t 

is
 

a
s
 

m
u
c
h
 

a
b

o
u
t 

th
e
 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 s

it
e
 a

s
 i

t 
is

 t
h
e
 s

it
e
 i

ts
e
lf
 

th
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 c

la
ri
ty

 o
n
 h

o
w

 t
h
a
t 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
 

w
ill

 b
e
 c

o
n
tr

o
lle

d
 t

o
 m

in
im

iz
e
 d

is
ru

p
ti
o

n
. 

 I 
a
ls

o
 s

h
a
re

 t
h
e
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 s

e
t 

o
u
t 

b
y
 T

h
e
 

N
e
w

 
R

iv
e
r 

V
ill

a
g

e
, 

M
ild

u
ra

 
C

o
u

rt
, 

P
a
rk

s
id

e
 

M
a
lv

e
rn

 
&

 
B

u
rg

h
le

y
 

R
o

a
d

 
A

s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
s
, 

e
s
p

e
c
ia

lly
 
w

it
h
 
re

g
a
rd

s
 
to

 
th

e
 l
a
c
k
 o

f 
m

it
ig

a
ti
o

n
. 

  R
a
is

e
 t

h
re

e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
: 

1
.

S
it
e
 l
o

c
a
ti
o

n
 

2
.

M
it
ig

a
ti
o

n
 

3
.

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 
C

o
n
tr

o
l 

 A
 r

a
n
g

e
 o

f 
m

it
ig

a
ti
o

n
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 a

re
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

, 
w

h
e
re

 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

, 
a
n
d

 w
ill

 b
e
 e

n
fo

rc
e
d

 v
ia

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
e
n
t 

a
n
d

 s
1
0
6
 l

e
g

a
l 

o
b

lig
a
ti
o

n
s
. 

 
   T

h
e
 
s
1
0
6
 
le

g
a
l 

a
g

re
e
m

e
n
t 

w
ill

 
re

q
u
ir
e
, 

th
a
t 

n
o

 
la

te
r 

th
a
n
 
1
8

 
m

o
n
th

s
 

fr
o

m
 

th
e
 

s
ta

rt
 

o
f 

c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 

o
f 

th
e
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t,

 
N

e
tw

o
rk

 R
a
il 

w
ill

 p
re

p
a
re

 a
n
d

 s
u

b
m

it
 t

o
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

fo
r 

a
p

p
ro

v
a
l 

a
 
S

it
e
 
M

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
. 

F
u
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
ta

ils
 
p

ro
v
id

e
d

 
in

 
s
e
c
ti
o

n
 

2
.2

1
 o

f 
A

p
p

e
n
d

ix
 5

 o
f 

th
is

 r
e
p

o
rt

. 
 

 N
o

te
d

. 
R

e
fe

r 
to

 
re

s
p

o
n
s
e
 
to

 
th

e
 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 
a
s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
s
 
in

 
th

e
 

s
e
c
ti
o

n
 b

e
lo

w
. 

     R
e
fe

r 
to

 r
e
s
p

o
n
s
e
s
 t

o
 L

y
n
n
e
 F

e
a
th

e
rs

to
n
e
 a

b
o

v
e
. 

 

2
 

D
ri
v
e
rs

 
J
o

n
a
s
 

D
e
lo

it
te

 
 

W
e
 

a
re

 
p

le
a
s
e
d

 
to

 
s
e
e
 

th
a
t 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

a
m

e
n
d

m
e
n
ts

 
h
a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 

m
a
d

e
 

to
 

th
e
 

p
ro

p
o

s
a
ls

 w
h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
s
p

o
n
d

e
d

 t
o

 t
h
e
 

p
re

v
io

u
s
 

c
o

n
c
e
rn

s
 

ra
is

e
d

 
b

y
 

lo
c
a
l 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

, 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

o
ff

ic
e
rs

 
a
n
d

 
o

th
e
r 

s
ta

k
e
h
o

ld
e
rs

. 
W

e
 a

re
 a

ls
o

 p
le

a
s
e
d

 t
o

 s
e
e
 

th
e
 

u
s
e
 

o
f 

a
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

m
it
ig

a
ti
o

n
 

m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 t

h
e
 “

m
a
tu

re
 l
a
n
d

s
c
a
p

e
 

b
u
ff

e
r”

 
a
s
 

w
e
ll 

a
s
 

th
e
 

re
lo

c
a
ti
o

n
 

a
n
d

 

N
o

te
d

 
        

Page 106



P
la

n
n

in
g

 S
u

b
-C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 R

e
p

o
rt

N
o

. 
S

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
Q

u
e

s
ti

o
n

/C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 

re
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 s

iz
e
 o

f 
th

e
 d

e
p

o
t.

 
 Is

s
u
e
s
 r

a
is

e
d

: 
 

1
.

H
o

u
rs

 o
f 

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
 –

 R
e
q

u
e
s
t 

th
a
t 

th
e
 

a
p

p
lic

a
n
ts

 
p

ro
v
id

e
 

a
 

m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

p
la

n
 

fo
r 

th
e
 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 d

e
p

o
t.

 
 2
.

N
o

is
e
 

D
is

tu
rb

a
n
c
e
 

–
 

R
e
q

u
e
s
t 

a
m

e
n
d

m
e
n
ts

 t
o

 t
h
e
 t

w
o

 p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 
n
o

is
e
 

c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
 

re
q

u
ir
in

g
 

re
fe

re
n
c
e
 

to
 

th
e
 

w
e
s
te

rn
 

b
lo

c
k
s
 

w
it
h
in

 
th

e
 

p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 
C

la
re

n
d

o
n
 

S
q

u
a
re

 
d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

(H
G

Y
/2

0
0
9
/0

5
0
3
).
 

 
3
.

L
ig

h
t 

P
o

llu
ti
o

n
 –

 O
b

je
c
t 

to
 t

h
e
 8

m
 

a
n

d
 1

2
m

 c
o

lu
m

n
s
 a

n
d

 r
e
q

u
e
s
t 

to
 

b
e
 

c
o

n
s
u
lt
e
d

 
u
p

o
n
 

th
e
 

d
e
ta

ile
d

 
a
s
p

e
c
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 l
ig

h
ti
n
g

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

      
4
.

D
e
s
ig

n
 –

 C
o

n
c
e
rn

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
K

a
lw

a
ll 

w
ill

 
re

s
u
lt
 
in

 
lig

h
t 

s
p

ill
a
g

e
 

a
t 

n
ig

h
t.

 
R

e
q

u
e
s
t 

th
e
 

c
o

u
n
c
il 

a
tt

a
c
h
 a

n
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a
te

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
. 

 
  

    T
h
e
 

s
1
0
6

 
a
g

re
e
m

e
n
t 

re
q

u
ir
e
s
 

th
e
 

s
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 

o
f 

a
 

S
it
e
 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 w

it
h
in

 1
8
 m

o
n
th

s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 

c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
. 

   T
h
e
 

tw
o

 
p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 
n
o

is
e
 

c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
 

h
a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 

a
m

e
n
d

e
d

 
a
c
c
o

rd
in

g
ly

. 
 

      A
t 

th
e
 r

e
q

u
e
s
t 

o
f 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

th
e
 a

p
p

lic
a
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 s

u
b

m
it
te

d
 a

n
 

In
d

ic
a
ti
v
e
 L

ig
h
ti
n
g

 S
c
h
e
m

e
. 

W
h
ile

 i
t 

c
a
n
n
o

t 
b

e
 c

o
n
fi
rm

e
d

 i
f 

8
m

 
a
n

d
 1

2
m

 l
ig

h
ti
n

g
 c

o
lu

m
n

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d

 a
t 

th
is

 s
ta

g
e
, 

a
s
 i

t 
is

 
d

e
p

e
n
d

e
n
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

rs
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 d
e
s
ig

n
, 

th
e
 i

n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 

s
u
b

m
it
te

d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 a

p
p

lic
a
ti
o

n
 a

lo
n
g

 w
it
h
 c

o
n
d

it
io

n
s
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
e
n
t 

re
q

u
ir
in

g
 

fu
ll 

d
e
ta

ils
 

o
f 

lig
h
ti
n

g
 

a
re

 
c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 

s
u

ff
ic

ie
n
t 

to
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 
c
o

n
tr

o
l 

o
v
e
r 

th
e
 
d

e
ta

ile
d

 
d

e
s
ig

n
, 

im
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 
a
n
d

 
o

p
e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 d

e
p

o
t 

lig
h
ti
n
g

 s
c
h
e
m

e
. 

 
  T

h
e
 a

p
p

lic
a
ti
o

n
 c

o
n
fi
rm

s
 t

h
a
t 

a
 s

y
s
te

m
 o

f 
in

te
rn

a
l 
lo

u
v
re

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 

fi
tt

e
d

 
to

 
e
n
s
u
re

 
lig

h
t 

s
p

ill
a
g

e
 

re
m

a
in

s
 

m
in

im
a
l 

a
t 

n
ig

h
t.

 
F

u
rt

h
e
rm

o
re

, 
a
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 c

o
n
d

it
io

n
 w

ill
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
 t

h
e
 a

p
p

lic
a
n
t 

to
 

s
u
b

m
it
 

d
e
ta

ils
 

o
f 

th
e
 

in
te

rn
a
l 

s
h
a
d

in
g

 
s
y
s
te

m
 

a
n
d

 
th

a
t 

th
e
 

s
h

a
d

in
g

 
s
y
s
te

m
 

b
e
 

in
s
ta

lle
d

 
p

ri
o

r 
to

 
th

e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

b
e
in

g
 

b
ro

u
g

h
t 

in
to

 u
s
e
. 

 

Page 107



P
la

n
n

in
g

 S
u

b
-C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 R

e
p

o
rt

N
o

. 
S

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
Q

u
e

s
ti

o
n

/C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 

  
5
.

C
a
r 

P
a
rk

in
g

 
–
 
C

o
n
c
e
rn

 
re

g
a
rd

in
g

 
th

e
 
o

v
e
r 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 
o

f 
c
a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g

 
s
p

a
c
e
s
 a

n
d

 n
o

 c
y
c
le

 s
p

a
c
e
s
. 

   
6
.

A
c
c
e
s
s
 –

 R
e
q

u
e
s
t 

th
e
 s

p
e
e
d

 l
im

it
 

o
n
 
th

e
 
p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 
ro

a
d

 
b

e
 

lim
it
e
d

 
to

 
1
0
m

p
h
 

a
n
d

 
m

a
n
a
g

e
d

 
th

ro
u
g

h
 a

n
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a
te

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 

m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

p
la

n
. 

 
7
.

L
a
n
d

s
c
a
p

e
 

B
u
ff

e
r 

–
 

S
u
p

p
o

rt
 

th
e
 

d
ra

ft
 

c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
 

re
la

ti
n
g

 
to

 
la

n
d

s
c
a
p

in
g

. 
W

o
u
ld

 l
ik

e
 t

o
 s

e
e
 t

h
e
 

ta
lle

r 
tr

e
e
s
 

re
ta

in
e
d

 
th

ro
u
g

h
 

a
 

c
o

n
d

it
io

n
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
e
n
t.

  
 

8
.

T
ra

n
s
fe

r 
o

f 
L
a
n
d

s
c
a
p

e
 

B
u
ff

e
r 

–
 

S
e
e
k
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 

s
1
0
6
 

to
 

h
a
v
e
 

th
e
 

m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

la
n
d

s
c
a
p

e
 

b
u
ff

e
r 

to
 

th
e
 

e
a
s
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

d
e
p

o
t 

b
u
ild

in
g

 
tr

a
n
s
fe

rr
e
d

 
to

 
th

e
 

C
la

re
n
d

o
n
 S

q
u
a
re

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
r.

 
 

9
.

S
it
e
 M

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

–
 r

e
q

u
e
s
t 

a
 s

it
e
 

m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

p
la

n
 

fo
r 

th
e
 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 d

e
p

o
t.

 

  T
h
e
 
a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 
p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 
4
3
 
s
p

a
c
e
s
. 

H
a
ri
n
g

e
y
 
T

ra
n
s
p

o
rt

a
ti
o

n
 

T
e
a
m

 h
a
s
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d

 t
h
e
 t

ra
n
s
p

o
rt

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
fi
rm

 t
h

a
t 

th
is

 i
s
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a
te

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
 t

o
 a

llo
w

 f
o

r 
th

e
 o

v
e
rl
a
p

 o
f 

s
h
if
ts

. 
T

h
e
 a

p
p

lic
a
ti
o

n
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
s
 1

4
 c

y
c
le

 s
p

a
c
e
s
. 

  T
h
e
 s

1
0
6
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

w
ill

 r
e
q

u
ir
e
 t

h
e
 s

u
b

m
is

s
io

n
 a

n
d

 a
p

p
ro

v
a
l 
o

f 
a
 

S
it
e
 

m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

p
la

n
. 

W
it
h
in

 
th

a
t 

p
la

n
 

w
ill

 
re

q
u
ir
e
 

th
e
 

e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

a
 1

0
m

p
h
 m

o
to

r 
v
e
h
ic

le
 s

p
e
e
d

 l
im

it
. 

  
   N

o
te

d
. 

T
h
e
 L

a
n
d

s
c
a
p

in
g

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
 w

ill
 e

n
s
u
re

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 
o

v
e
r 

tr
e
e
 

to
 b

e
 r

e
ta

in
e
d

. 
    T

h
e
 s

1
0
6
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

in
c
lu

d
e
s
 a

 c
la

u
s
e
 f

o
r 

N
e
tw

o
rk

 R
a
il 

to
 u

s
e
 

re
a
s
o

n
a
b

le
 

e
n
d

e
a
v
o

u
rs

 
to

 
o

ff
e
r 

to
 

g
ra

n
t 

N
a
ti
o

n
a
l 

G
ri
d

 
o

r 
it
s
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
o

r 
in

 t
it
le

, 
a
 m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

a
g

re
e
m

e
n
t/

a
g

re
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

la
n
d

 f
o

r 
n
o

 l
e
s
s
 t

h
a
n
 2

5
 y

e
a
rs

 t
o

 a
llo

w
 t

h
e
 l

a
n
d

s
c
a
p

e
d

 b
u
ff

e
r 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 t

w
o

 s
c
h
e
m

e
s
 t

o
 b

e
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d

. 
 

  T
h
e
 s

1
0
6
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

w
ill

 r
e
q

u
ir
e
 t

h
e
 s

u
b

m
is

s
io

n
 a

n
d

 a
p

p
ro

v
a
l 
o

f 
a
 S

it
e
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

w
h
ic

h
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

 a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

a
s
p

e
c
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 

d
e
p

o
ts

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
 i

n
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 m

a
tt

e
rs

 r
e
fe

rr
e
d

 t
o

 b
y
 

D
ri
v
e
rs

 J
o

n
a
s
 D

e
lo

it
te

. 
 

 
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

 
A

S
S

O
C

IA
T

IO
N

S
 

 
 

Page 108



P
la

n
n

in
g

 S
u

b
-C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 R

e
p

o
rt

N
o

. 
S

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
Q

u
e

s
ti

o
n

/C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 

A
N

D
 C

A
A

C
’s

 
A

N
D

 O
T

H
E

R
 

G
R

O
U

P
S

 

1
 

J
o

in
t 

R
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 
A

s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
s
 -

  
(N

e
w

 R
iv

e
r 

V
ill

a
g

e
 

R
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 
A

s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
, 

P
a
rk

 M
a
lv

e
rn

 
R

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 
A

s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
, 

M
ild

u
ra

 C
o

u
rt

 
R

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 
A

s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 
B

u
rg

h
le

y
 R

o
a
d

 
R

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 
A

s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
) 

T
h
e
 j

o
in

t 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 a
s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
 r

a
is

e
 t

h
e
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
: 

 

V
is

u
a
l 
Im

p
a
c
t 

 

N
o

is
e
 I
m

p
a
c
t 

 

L
ig

h
t 

S
p

ill
a
g

e
 I
m

p
a
c
t 

 

E
c
o

lo
g

ic
a
l 
Im

p
a
c
t 

 
 

R
is

k
 t

o
 F

u
tu

re
 G

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
s
, 

 
  

  
  

  
  

 R
e
d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 O

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 

 
        

L
a
c
k
 o

f 
B

e
n
e
fi
t 

to
 H

a
ri

n
g

e
y
 

    

In
a
d

e
q

u
a
te

 s
1
0
6
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 

  

   V
is

u
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 

a
d

d
re

s
s
e
d

 i
n
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
 6

.9
 o

f 
th

e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

 N
o

is
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

a
d

d
re

s
s
e
d

 i
n
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
 6

.1
0
 o

f 
th

e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

 L
ig

h
t 

im
p

a
c
t 

a
d

d
re

s
s
e
d

 i
n
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
 6

.1
4
 o

f 
th

e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

 
 E

c
o

lo
g

ic
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 

a
d

d
re

s
s
e
d

 i
n
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
 6

.8
 o

f 
th

e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

 T
h
e
 i

m
p

a
c
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 C
la

re
n
d

o
n
 S

q
u
a
re

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

is
 

a
d

d
re

s
s
e
d

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t.

 T
h
e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 m
a
in

te
n
a
n

c
e
 

d
e
p

o
t 

is
 n

o
t 

c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 r

e
s
u
lt
 i
n

 a
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 

a
d

v
e
rs

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

th
a
t 

w
o

u
ld

 
je

o
p

a
rd

is
e
 

th
e
 

v
ia

b
ili

ty
 

o
f 

th
e
 

C
la

re
n
d

o
n
 

S
q

u
a
re

 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.

 T
h
e
 a

g
e
n
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 C

la
re

n
d

o
n
 S

q
u
a
re

 a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
, 

D
ri
v
e
rs

 J
o

n
a
s
 D

e
lo

it
te

, 
h
a
v
e
 w

ri
tt

e
n
 i

n
 a

 l
e
tt

e
r 

d
a
te

d
 1

0
th
 M

a
y
 

2
0
1
1
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
t 

ra
is

e
d

 a
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 o
b

je
c
ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a
l 

b
u
t 

re
q

u
e
s
te

d
 

im
p

a
c
ts

 
b

e
 

m
in

im
is

e
d

 
th

ro
u
g

h
 

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

 
p

la
n
n
in

g
 

c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 
s
u
c
h
 

a
s
 

c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
 

o
f 

c
o

n
s
e
n
t 

a
n
d

 
s
1
0
6
 

le
g

a
l 

o
b

lig
a
ti
o

n
s
. 

  
 T

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

w
ill

 h
a
v
e
 s

o
m

e
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 

to
 t

h
e
 l
o

c
a
l 
c
o

m
m

u
n
it
y
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

o
p

p
o

rt
u
n
it
ie

s
. 

T
h
e
 

s
1
0
6
 

le
g

a
l 

o
b

lig
a
ti
o

n
 

w
ill

 
re

q
u
ir
e
 

a
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
s
 

fo
r 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d

 
a
p

p
re

n
ti
c
e
s
h
ip

s
. 

 A
 r

a
n
g

e
 o

f 
s
1
0
6
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 a

re
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

, 
a
s
 s

ta
te

d
 i

n
 A

p
p

e
n
d

ix
 

5
. 

T
h
e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 m
e
a
s
u
re

 a
re

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

to
 t

h
e
 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 a

n
d

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

d
e
q

u
a
te

 m
it
ig

a
ti
o

n
, 

w
h
e
re

 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

. 
 

Page 109



P
la

n
n

in
g

 S
u

b
-C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 R

e
p

o
rt

N
o

. 
S

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
Q

u
e

s
ti

o
n

/C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 

  

S
it
e
 

w
it
h

in
 

th
e
 

H
a
ri
n

g
e
y
 

H
e
a
rt

la
n
d

s
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 A
re

a
 

      

D
e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d

 V
is

u
a
l 
A

p
p

e
a
ra

n
c
e
 

 

P
ri
v
a
c
y
 

a
n

d
 

L
o

s
s
 

o
f 

R
e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 

A
m

e
n
it
y
 

 
    

N
o

is
e
 a

n
d

 V
ib

ra
ti
o

n
 

 

A
ir
 Q

u
a
lit

y
 

 

L
ig

h
t 

P
o

llu
ti
o

n
 

 

A
d

d
it
io

n
a
l 
R

o
a
d

 V
e
h
ic

le
 

M
o

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 

  T
h
e
 

s
it
e
 

is
 

w
it
h
in

 
th

e
 

d
e
s
ig

n
a
te

d
 

H
a
ri
n
g

e
y
 

H
e
a
rt

la
n
d

s
 

F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 
A

re
a
. 

H
a
ri
n
g

e
y
 

U
n
it
a
ry

 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 

(2
0
0
6
) 

p
o

lic
y
 

A
C

1
 

–
 

T
h
e
 

H
e
a
rt

la
n

d
s
/W

o
o

d
 

G
re

e
n
 

s
ta

te
s
 

th
a
t 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

s
h
o

u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 r

e
g

a
rd

 t
o

 t
h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

 
fo

r 
th

e
 

a
re

a
 

w
h
ic

h
 

s
e
e
k
s
 

to
 

e
n
s
u
re

 
c
o

m
p

re
h
e
n
s
iv

e
 

a
n

d
 

c
o

o
rd

in
a
te

d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

w
h
ic

h
: 

(k
) 

e
n
s
u
re

s
 t

h
a
t 

a
n
y
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 

ra
il-

re
la

te
d

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 s

it
e
 a

re
 n

o
t 

p
re

ju
d

ic
e
d

. 
 

  D
e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d

 V
is

u
a
l 
A

p
p

e
a
ra

n
c
e
 a

re
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e
d

 i
n
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
 6

.2
 

 T
h
e
 
s
it
e
 
is

 
w

it
h
in

 
a
n

 
e
x
is

ti
n
g

 
ra

ilw
a
y
 
c
o

rr
id

o
r.

 
T

h
e
 
p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 
d

e
p

o
t 

b
u
ild

in
g

 
is

 
c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

b
le

 
d

is
ta

n
c
e
 

fr
o

m
 

re
s
id

e
n

ti
a
l 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
, 

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 t

o
 t

h
e
 w

e
s
t 

a
n
d

 i
t 

is
 n

o
t 

c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 t

h
e
re

 
w

o
u
ld

 
b

e
 

a
n
y
 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a
l 

lo
s
s
 

o
f 

p
ri
v
a
c
y
 

a
s
 

a
 

re
s
u
lt
 

o
f 

th
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
b

o
v
e
 a

n
d

 b
e
y
o

n
d

 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

s
it
u
a
ti
o

n
. 

   N
o

is
e
 a

n
d

 V
ib

ra
ti
o

n
 I
m

p
a
c
ts

 a
re

 a
d

d
re

s
s
e
d

 i
n
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
 6

.1
0
 

 A
ir
 Q

u
a
lit

y
 I
m

p
a
c
ts

 a
re

 a
d

d
re

s
s
e
d

 i
n
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
 6

.5
 

 L
ig

h
t 

Im
p

a
c
ts

 a
re

 a
d

d
re

s
s
e
d

 i
n
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
 6

.1
4

 
 T

ra
ff

ic
 I
m

p
a
c
ts

 a
re

 a
d

d
re

s
s
e
d

 i
n
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
 6

.4
 

    

2
 

N
e
w

 
R

iv
e
r 

V
ill

a
g

e
 

R
a
is

e
 

c
o

n
c
e
rn

 
re

g
a
rd

in
g

 
a
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

in
a
d

e
q

u
a
c
ie

s
 

w
it
h
in

 
th

e
 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 

  

Page 110



P
la

n
n

in
g

 S
u

b
-C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 R

e
p

o
rt

N
o

. 
S

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
Q

u
e

s
ti

o
n

/C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 

R
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 
A

s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
 

 

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
: 

 
1
.

R
e
p

re
s
e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 
in

 
p

h
o

to
m

o
n
ta

g
e
s
 

in
a
d

e
q

u
a
te

 
    2
.

T
h
e
 l
ig

h
ti
n

g
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 i
s
 u

n
d

e
fi
n
e
d

 
    

3
.

T
h
e
 n

o
is

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

 i
s
 b

a
s
e
d

 o
n
ly

 o
n
 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 c

a
lc

u
la

ti
o

n
s
 

   
4
.

C
la

ri
ty

 
in

 
th

e
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

tr
a
in

 
m

o
v
e
m

e
n
ts

 
d

u
ri
n
g

 
th

e
 

d
a
y
 

a
n
d

 
e
v
e
n
in

g
 

 

  S
in

c
e
 t

h
is

 t
im

e
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

p
h
o

to
m

o
n
ta

g
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 p

ro
d

u
c
e
d

 a
n

d
 

fo
rm

a
lly

 
s
u
b

m
it
te

d
 
a
s
 
a
d

d
it
io

n
a
l 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
. 

T
h
is

 
p

ro
v
id

e
s
 
a
 

v
ie

w
 

fr
o

m
 

a
n
 

u
p

p
e
r 

fl
o

o
r 

fl
a
t 

w
it
h
in

 
th

e
 

N
e
w

 
R

iv
e
r 

V
ill

a
g

e
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d

 
in

c
lu

d
e
s
 

b
o

th
 

d
a
y
 

ti
m

e
 

a
n
d

 
n
ig

h
t 

ti
m

e
 

v
is

u
a
lis

a
ti
o

n
s
. 

 S
in

c
e
 t

h
is

 t
im

e
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 s

o
u
g

h
t 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 
th

e
 

a
p

p
lic

a
n
ts

 
s
u
b

m
it
te

d
 

a
n

 
In

d
ic

a
ti
v
e
 

lig
h
ti
n
g

 
s
c
h
e
m

e
. 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
e
n

t 
w

ill
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
 
fu

ll 
d

e
ta

ils
 
o

f 
th

e
 
p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 
lig

h
ti
n
g

 s
c
h

e
m

e
 t

o
 b

e
 s

u
b

m
it
te

d
 a

n
d

 a
p

p
ro

v
e
d

. 
 H

a
ri
n
g

e
y
 

E
n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 

T
e
a
m

, 
a
lo

n
g

 
w

it
h
 

a
n

 
in

d
e
p

e
n
d

e
n
t 

c
o

n
s
u
lt
a
n
t,

 c
o

n
fi
rm

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 m

e
th

o
d

o
lo

g
y
 u

s
e
d

 b
y
 

th
e
 a

p
p

lic
a
n
ts

 i
s
 i

n
lin

e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

B
ri
ti
s
h
 a

n
d

 E
u
ro

p
e
a
n

 
S

ta
n
d

a
rd

s
. 

 
 T

h
e
 

a
p

p
lic

a
n
ts

 
h
a
v
e
 

u
n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n
 

tw
o

 
p

u
b

lic
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

s
 

to
 

s
p

e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 a
d

d
re

s
s
 n

o
is

e
. 

A
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 p

re
s
e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 t

h
is

 i
s
s
u

e
 

w
a
s
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e
d

. 
 

 

3
 

M
ild

u
ra

 
C

o
u

rt
 

R
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 
A

s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
  

 

N
o

 
s
e
p

a
ra

te
 

le
tt

e
r 

re
c
e
iv

e
d

. 
R

e
fe

r 
to

 
J
o

in
t 

R
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 A
s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
. 

 
N

/A
 

4
 

H
o

rn
s
e
y
 C

A
A

C
 

 
N

o
 r

e
s
p

o
n
s
e
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d

 
N

/A
 

5
 

F
a
ir
fa

x
 R

o
a
d

 
R

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 
A

s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
 

 

N
o

 r
e
s
p

o
n
s
e
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d

 
N

/A
 

6
 

N
o

e
l 

P
a
rk

 
N

o
 r

e
s
p

o
n
s
e
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d

 
N

/A
 

Page 111



P
la

n
n

in
g

 S
u

b
-C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 R

e
p

o
rt

N
o

. 
S

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
Q

u
e

s
ti

o
n

/C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 

R
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 
A

s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
  

 

7
 

A
v
e
n
u
e
 G

a
rd

e
n
s
 

R
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 
A

s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
 

 

1
.

P
la

n
n
in

g
 

D
e
ta

il 
–
 

T
h
e
re

 
is

 
in

s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

d
e
ta

il 
p

ro
v
id

e
d

 
to

 
e
n
a
b

le
 

th
e
 

d
e
s
ig

n
, 

a
p

p
e
a
ra

n
c
e
, 

re
la

ti
o

n
s
h
ip

 
to

 
e
x
is

ti
n
g

 
fe

a
tu

re
s
, 

c
o

lo
u
r 

a
n
d

 
m

a
te

ri
a
ls

 
to

 
b

e
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d

. 
 2
.

N
o

is
e
 

N
u

is
a
n
c
e
 

–
 

T
h
e
 

d
e
p

o
t 

b
u
ild

in
g

 
o

p
p

o
s
it
io

n
 

N
e
w

 
R

iv
e
r 

V
ill

a
g

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

 s
o

u
n
d

 m
ir
ro

r.
 N

o
 

m
it
ig

a
ti
o

n
 

is
 

s
h
o

w
n
. 

T
h
e
re

 
is

 
n
o

 
p

re
d

ic
ti
v
e
 

s
tu

d
y
 

o
f 

th
e
 

n
o

is
e
 

e
n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

ta
k
in

g
 
th

e
 
w

a
lls

 
in

to
 

a
c
c
o

u
n
t.

  
 

3
.

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 
N

e
w

 
F

o
o

tb
ri
d

g
e
 
–
 
T

h
e
 

d
e
s
ig

n
 i
s
 n

o
t 

a
c
c
e
p

ta
b

le
 

 
4
.

R
a
ilw

a
y
 B

ri
d

g
e
 a

t 
T

u
rn

p
ik

e
 L

a
n
e
 –

 
T

h
e
 

ra
ilw

a
y
 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

c
re

a
te

s
 

a
 

v
e
ry

 p
o

o
r 

p
e
d

e
s
tr

ia
n
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t.

 
F

o
llo

w
in

g
 

th
e
 

w
o

rk
 

m
a
jo

r 
e
n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 
s
h
o

u
ld

 
b

e
 

m
a
d

e
 

fo
r 

p
e
d

e
s
tr

ia
n
s
. 

T
h
e
re

 
is

 
n
o

th
in

g
 

in
 

th
e
 

p
ro

p
o

s
a
l 

w
it
h

 r
e
g

a
rd

 t
o

 t
h

is
. 

T
h

is
 s

h
o

u
ld

 n
o

t 
b

e
 
s
1
0
6
 
a
s
 
th

e
 
p

ro
p

o
s
a
l 

it
s
e
lf
 
is

 
fo

r 
m

a
jo

r 
a
lt
e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g

 
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
. 

 
 

It
 i

s
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 a

p
p

lic
a
ti
o

n
 i

s
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e
d

 b
y
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

d
e
ta

il 
to

 
a
s
s
e
s
s
 
th

e
 
a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 
a
s
 
a
 
fu

ll 
p

la
n
n
in

g
 
a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
. 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 

o
f 

c
o

n
s
e
n

t 
w

ill
 

re
q

u
ir
e
 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 

to
 

b
e
 

s
u
b

m
it
te

d
 a

n
d

 a
p

p
ro

v
e
d

 w
h
e
re

 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

. 
 

   T
h
e
 
n
o

is
e
 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

ta
k
e
s
 
in

to
 
a
c
c
o

u
n
t 

n
o

is
e
 
“b

o
u
n
c
e
” 

o
r 

re
fl
e
c
ti
o

n
. 

T
h
e
 i
s
s
u

e
 o

f 
n
o

is
e
 i
s
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e
d

 i
n
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
 6

.1
0
 o

f 
th

is
 

re
p

o
rt

. 
     T

h
e
 

p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 
d

e
s
ig

n
 

o
f 

th
e
 

fo
o

tb
ri
d

g
e
 

is
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 

to
 

b
e
 

a
c
c
e
p

ta
b

le
. 

 
 T

h
e
 

s
1
0
6

 
le

g
a
l 

a
g

re
e
m

e
n
t 

c
o

n
ta

in
s
 

a
 

c
la

u
s
e
 

re
q

u
ir
in

g
 

im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n
ts

 
to

 
th

e
 

tu
rn

p
ik

e
 

la
n

e
 

b
ri
d

g
e
 

p
e
d

e
s
tr

ia
n

 
e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t.
 R

e
fe

r 
to

 A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 5
. 

  
         

Page 112



P
la

n
n

in
g

 S
u

b
-C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 R

e
p

o
rt

N
o

. 
S

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
Q

u
e

s
ti

o
n

/C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 

5
.

A
c
c
e
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 
–
 

T
h
e
 

p
ro

je
c
t 

w
it
h
 

re
s
p

e
c
t 

to
 

H
o

rn
s
e
y
 

s
ta

ti
o

n
 

d
o

e
s
 

n
o

t 
s
a
ti
s
fy

 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 

re
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

. 
T

h
e
 

s
c
h

e
m

e
 

re
q

u
ir
e
s
 

m
a
jo

r 
a
lt
e
ra

ti
o

n
s
 

a
n
d

 
re

b
u
ild

in
g

 
o

f 
th

e
 

fo
o

tb
ri
d

g
e
 

th
e
re

fo
re

 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 

s
h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 f
o

r 
a
ll 

a
s
 p

a
rt

 
o

f 
th

e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
. 

 
6
.

A
le

x
a
n
d

ra
 

P
a
la

c
e
 

C
o

n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 

A
re

a
 
- 

T
h
e
 
a
s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

th
e
 
s
it
e
 
is

 
v
e
ry

 
p

ro
m

in
e
n
t 

fr
o

m
 

A
le

x
a
n
d

ra
 

P
a
la

c
e
 

P
a
rk

 
a
n

d
 

te
rr

a
c
e
. 

M
o

c
k
 

u
p

s
 

o
f 

th
e
 

p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 
m

a
te

ri
a
ls

 
s
h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d

 a
s
 a

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
 

fo
r 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t.

  
 

7
.

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

F
o

ru
m

 
–
 

It
 

is
 

th
e
 

a
p

p
lic

a
n
t’

s
 

d
u
ty

 
to

 
c
o

m
p

ly
 

w
it
h
 

le
g

is
la

ti
o

n
 

a
n
d

 
th

e
 

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
 p

o
lic

ie
s
. 

 
8
.

L
ig

h
ti
n
g

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 –

 A
G

R
A

 w
a
rm

ly
 

w
e
lc

o
m

e
s
 

th
e
 

a
p

p
lic

a
n
t’

s
 

c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n
t 

to
 

m
in

im
is

in
g

 
lig

h
t 

p
o

llu
ti
o

n
 

a
n

d
 

p
re

s
e
rv

in
g

 
d

a
rk

 
s
k
ie

s
. 

T
h
e
 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 
a
u
th

o
ri

ty
 

s
h
o

u
ld

 
p

re
s
s
 

th
e
 

a
p

p
lic

a
n
t 

fo
r 

m
o

re
 
d

e
ta

ils
 
a
n
d

 
e
n
s
u
re

 
th

ro
u
g

h
 

c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
 

o
f 

c
o

n
s
e
n
t 

th
a
t 

th
e
 

lig
h
ti
n
g

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

re
 m

e
t.

 
 

T
h
e
 f

o
o

tb
ri
d

g
e
 f

o
rm

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
is

 a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
. 

T
h
e
 s

1
0

6
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 

a
 s

u
m

 o
f 

m
o

n
e
y
 f

o
r 

im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o

 H
o

rn
s
e
y
 S

ta
ti
o

n
. 

 W
it
h

in
 

1
2
 
m

o
n
th

s
 
o

f 
th

e
 
s
ta

rt
 
o

f 
d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t,

 
N

R
 
to

 
s
u
b

m
it
 
to

 
th

e
 

C
o

u
n
c
il 

fo
r 

a
g

re
e
m

e
n
t 

a
 p

la
n
, 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d

 e
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 c

o
s
t 

o
f 

im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n
t 

w
o

rk
s
 

to
 

H
o

rn
s
e
y
 

S
ta

ti
o

n
 

to
 

e
n

h
a
n

c
e
 

ra
il 

p
a
s
s
e
n
g

e
r 

c
o

n
v
e
n
ie

n
c
e
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
fo

rt
. 

 T
h
e
s
e
 w

o
rk

s
 m

a
y
 i
n

c
lu

d
e
 

w
o

rk
s
 

to
 

th
e
 

S
ta

ti
o

n
 

e
n

tr
a
n

c
e
, 

b
o

o
k
in

g
 

h
a
ll,

 
s
ta

ir
s
 

a
n
d

 
p

la
tf

o
rm

s
. 

R
e
fe

r 
to

 A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 5
. 

 
 A

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
e
n
t 

w
ill

 r
e
q

u
ir
e
 t

h
e
 s

u
b

m
is

s
io

n
 o

f 
m

a
te

ri
a
ls

 
fo

r 
a
p

p
ro

v
a
l.
 

      T
h
e
 

a
p

p
lic

a
n
t,

 
in

 
th

e
 

s
u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 

d
o

c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o

n
, 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 

th
e
y
 

h
a
v
e
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 

th
e
 

re
le

v
a
n
t 

le
g

is
la

ti
o

n
 

a
n
d

 
p

la
n
n
in

g
 p

o
lic

ie
s
. 

 
  N

o
te

d
. 

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 i

n
d

ic
a
ti
v
e
 l

ig
h
ti
n

g
 s

c
h
e
m

e
, 

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 
s
u
b

m
it
te

d
, 

c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
 

o
f 

c
o

n
s
e
n
t 

in
c
lu

d
e
d

 
w

h
ic

h
 

re
q

u
ir
e
 

th
e
 

s
u
b

m
is

s
io

n
 a

n
d

 a
p

p
ro

v
a
l 
o

f 
a
 f

u
ll 

lig
h
ti
n
g

 s
c
h

e
m

e
. 

  

8
 

P
a
rk

s
id

e
 a

n
d

 
N

o
 

s
e
p

a
ra

te
 

le
tt

e
r 

re
c
e
iv

e
d

. 
R

e
fe

r 
to

 
N

/A
 

Page 113



P
la

n
n

in
g

 S
u

b
-C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 R

e
p

o
rt

N
o

. 
S

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
Q

u
e

s
ti

o
n

/C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 

M
a
lv

e
rn

 
R

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 
A

s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
 

 

J
o

in
t 

R
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 A
s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
. 

 

9
 

B
u
rg

h
le

y
 R

o
a
d

 
R

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 
A

s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
 

 

N
o

 
s
e
p

a
ra

te
 

le
tt

e
r 

re
c
e
iv

e
d

. 
R

e
fe

r 
to

 
J
o

in
t 

R
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 A
s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
. 

 
N

/A
 

1
0

 
H

a
rr

in
g

a
y
 

L
a
d

d
e
r 

C
o

m
m

u
n
it
y
 

S
a
fe

ty
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
 

N
o

 r
e
s
p

o
n
s
e
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d

 
N

/A
 

1
1

 
W

a
rh

a
m

 R
d

 
N

e
ig

h
b

o
u
rh

o
o

d
 

W
a
tc

h
 

 

N
o

 r
e
s
p

o
n
s
e
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d

 
N

/A
 

1
2

 
A

le
x
a
n
d

ra
 

P
a
la

c
e
 a

n
d

 P
a
rk

 
C

A
A

C
 

 

A
P

P
C

A
A

C
 

o
b

je
c
t 

fo
r 

th
e
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 

re
a
s
o

n
s
: 

 
1
.

T
h
e
 

p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

is
 

v
e
ry

 
la

rg
e
 

a
n
d

 
w

o
u
ld

 
b

e
 

v
is

u
a
lly

 
in

tr
u
s
iv

e
 

fr
o

m
 

th
e
 

te
rr

a
c
e
 

o
f 

A
le

x
a
n
d

ra
 

P
a
la

c
e
, 

w
h
ic

h
 

is
 

a
 

v
ie

w
p

o
in

t 
w

it
h
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 
v
ie

w
s
 o

f 
L

o
n

d
o

n
. 

 
 2
.

T
h
e
 

c
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 

v
is

u
a
l 

im
p

a
c
t 

o
f 

th
is

 
s
c
h

e
m

e
, 

w
h
e
n
 

s
e
e
n

 
in

 
th

e
 

c
o

n
te

x
t 

o
f 

o
th

e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

ts
 

n
a
m

e
ly

 t
h

e
 w

a
te

r 
tr

e
a
tm

e
n

t 
p

la
n

t,
 

N
e
w

 
R

iv
e
r 

V
ill

a
g

e
, 

H
e
a
rt

la
n

d
s
 

   V
is

u
a
l 
im

p
a
c
ts

 a
re

 a
d

d
re

s
s
e
d

 i
n
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
 6

.9
 o

f 
th

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

 
      C

u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 v

is
u
a
l 

im
p

a
c
ts

 a
re

 a
d

d
re

s
s
e
d

 i
n
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
 6

.9
 o

f 
th

is
 

re
p

o
rt

. 
 

   

Page 114



P
la

n
n

in
g

 S
u

b
-C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 R

e
p

o
rt

N
o

. 
S

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
Q

u
e

s
ti

o
n

/C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 

S
c
h
o

o
l 

a
n
d

 
th

e
 

p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 
H

e
a
rt

la
n
d

s
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

it
s
e
lf
 

w
o

u
ld

 b
e
 s

e
ri
o

u
s
ly

 d
a
m

a
g

in
g

. 
 

3
.

T
h
e
 

w
h
o

le
 

o
f 

A
le

x
a
n
d

ra
 

P
a
rk

 
c
o

m
p

ri
s
e
s
 

a
 

d
e
s
ig

n
a
te

d
 

c
o

n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 

a
re

a
 

a
n
d

 
is

 
c
a
te

g
o

ri
s
e
d

 a
s
 M

e
tr

o
p

o
lit

a
n
 O

p
e
n
 

L
a
n
d

 
(M

O
L
).
 

T
h
e
 

e
re

c
ti
o

n
 

o
f 

th
e
 

p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

o
n
 

th
e
 

b
o

u
n
d

a
ry

 
o

f 
th

e
 

p
a
rk

 
w

o
u
ld

 
b

e
 

d
e
tr

im
e
n

ta
l 

a
n

d
 

w
o

u
ld

 
d

e
g

ra
d

e
 

th
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 a

re
a
. 

 
4
.

T
h
e
 

p
ro

p
o

s
a
l 

is
 

c
o

n
tr

a
ry

 
to

 
H

a
ri
n
g

e
y
 

C
o

u
n
c
il 

U
D

P
 

p
o

lic
ie

s
 

O
S

2
, 

O
S

4
, 

O
S

5
 a

n
d

 O
S

6
. 

 
5
.

It
 

is
 

a
ls

o
 

c
o

n
tr

a
ry

 
to

 
H

a
ri
n
g

e
y
’s

 
n
e
w

 
L
o

c
a
l 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

, 
w

h
ic

h
 s

tr
e
n
g

th
e
n
s
 t

h
e
 

d
e
g

re
e
 

o
f 

p
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 

g
iv

e
n
 

to
 

c
o

n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 a

re
a
s
 a

n
d

 v
ie

w
s
. 

 
 

6
.

D
e
s
ig

n
 

–
 

n
o

 
a
tt

e
m

p
t 

m
a
d

e
 

to
 

s
o

ft
e
n
 

th
e
 

v
is

u
a
l 

im
p

a
c
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

b
u
ild

in
g

, 
e
it
h
e
r 

b
y
 

c
la

d
d

in
g

 
o

r 
s
c
re

e
n
in

g
. 

 
 

7
.

T
h
e
 

s
it
e
 

is
 

a
d

ja
c
e
n
t 

to
 

a
n
 

e
c
o

lo
g

ic
a
l 

c
o

rr
id

o
r 

a
 

u
n
iq

u
e
 

a
n
d

 
v
a
lu

a
b

le
 

e
n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

n
o

te
d

 
fo

r 
re

a
r 

s
p

e
c
ie

s
 

o
f 

m
ig

ra
to

ry
 

b
ir
d

s
, 

    Im
p

a
c
t 

o
n
 A

le
x
a
n
d

ra
 P

a
rk

 a
s
 M

O
L
 a

n
d

 a
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 a

re
a
 a

re
 

a
d

d
re

s
s
e
d

 i
n
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
s
 6

.9
 a

n
d

 a
n
d

 6
.6

 o
f 

th
is

 r
e
p

o
rt

. 
 

        T
h
e
 a

p
p

lic
a
ti
o

n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

a
n
d

 f
o

u
n
d

 t
o

 c
o

m
p

ly
 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

n
a
ti
o

n
a
l,
 r

e
g

io
n
a
l 
a
n
d

 l
o

c
a
l 
p

la
n
n
in

g
 p

o
lic

ie
s
. 

  T
h
e
 a

p
p

lic
a
ti
o

n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

a
n
d

 f
o

u
n
d

 t
o

 c
o

m
p

ly
 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

n
a
ti
o

n
a
l,
 r

e
g

io
n
a
l 
a
n
d

 l
o

c
a
l 
p

la
n
n
in

g
 p

o
lic

ie
s
. 

    S
c
re

e
n
in

g
 

is
 

p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 
w

h
e
re

 
fe

a
s
ib

le
 

–
 

v
ia

 
c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
 

o
f 

c
o

n
s
e
n
t.

 A
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

c
o

n
d

it
io

n
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
e
n
t 

w
ill

 r
e
ta

in
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 

o
v
e
r 

m
a
te

ri
a
ls

. 
 

  T
h
e
s
e
 i

s
s
u

e
s
 a

re
 c

o
v
e
re

d
 i

n
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
s
 6

.5
, 

6
.8

, 
6
.1

0
 a

n
d

 6
.1

4
 o

f 
th

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

. 
  

Page 115



P
la

n
n

in
g

 S
u

b
-C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 R

e
p

o
rt

N
o

. 
S

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
Q

u
e

s
ti

o
n

/C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 

b
a
ts

 
a
n
d

 
ra

re
 

b
e
e
tl
e
s
, 

w
h
ic

h
 

w
o

u
ld

 
b

e
 

je
o

p
a
rd

is
e
d

 
b

y
 

th
e
 

lig
h
ti
n
g

, 
n

o
is

e
 

a
n
d

 
d

ir
t 

p
o

llu
ti
o

n
 

a
s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t.
  

 
8
.

T
h
e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a
l 

is
 d

e
fi
c
ie

n
t 

in
 t

h
a
t 

it
 

fa
ils

 t
o

 s
h
o

w
 d

u
e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

o
th

e
r 

le
s
s
 s

e
n
s
it
iv

e
 l
o

c
a
ti
o

n
s
. 

 

     S
it
e
 s

e
le

c
ti
o

n
 i
s
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e
d

 i
n
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
 6

.1
 o

f 
th

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

. 
 

1
3

 
T

re
e
 

T
ru

s
t 

fo
r 

H
a
ri
n
g

e
y
 

R
o

u
n
d

 
th

e
 

c
lo

c
k
 

n
o

is
in

g
 

w
o

rk
in

g
 

w
ill

 
d

is
tu

rb
 

th
e
 

b
a
t 

p
o

p
u
la

ti
o

n
 

a
n
d

 
o

th
e
r 

w
ild

lif
e
, 

e
s
p

e
c
ia

lly
 t

h
e
 b

ri
g

h
t 

lig
h
ti
n
g

 t
h
a
t 

w
ill

 p
re

s
u
m

a
b

ly
 b

e
 d

e
e
m

e
d

 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

. 
 

      W
e
 a

re
 n

o
t 

to
ld

 w
h
ic

h
 m

a
tu

re
 t

re
e
s
 w

ill
 

b
e
 p

ru
n

e
d

 a
n

d
 f

e
lle

d
. 

  T
h
e
 

w
h
o

le
 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 

s
h
o

u
ld

 
b

e
 

s
m

a
lle

r 
s
c
a
le

d
 a

n
d

 n
o

t 
2
4
 h

o
u
r 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
. 

 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
 

o
f 

c
o

n
s
e
n
t 

a
n
d

 
s
1
0
6
 

o
b

lig
a
ti
o

n
s
 

w
ill

 
re

q
u
ir
e
 

th
e
 

s
u
b

m
is

s
io

n
 o

f 
C

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
M

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
s
, 

E
c
o

lo
g

ic
a
l 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
s
 

a
n
d

 
c
o

m
p

lia
n
c
e
 

w
it
h

 
th

e
 

C
o

n
s
id

e
ra

te
 
C

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r’
s
 
s
c
h
e
m

e
. 

F
u
rt

h
e
rm

o
re

 
a
 
c
o

n
d

it
io

n
 
o

f 
c
o

n
s
e
n
t 

w
ill

 r
e
q

u
ir
e
 t

h
e
 s

u
b

m
is

s
io

n
 a

n
d

 a
p

p
ro

v
a
l 

o
f 

a
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 
L
ig

h
ti
n
g

 P
la

n
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 l

ig
h
t 

s
c
a
tt

e
r 

d
ia

g
ra

m
s
 a

n
d

 f
u
ll 

d
e
ta

ils
 o

f 
m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 t

o
 m

in
im

is
e
 l

ig
h
t 

p
o

llu
ti
o

n
. 

A
ll 

o
f 

th
e
s
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 w

ill
 

m
in

im
is

e
 

th
e
 

im
p

a
c
t 

o
n
 

w
ild

lif
e
 

d
u
ri
n
g

 
c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 

a
n

d
 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
. 
 

 A
 c

o
n
d

it
io

n
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
e
n
t 

w
ill

 r
e
q

u
ir
e
 t

h
e
 s

u
b

m
is

s
io

n
 o

f 
d

e
ta

ile
d

 
la

n
d

s
c
a
p

in
g

 p
la

n
s
 a

n
d

 e
c
o

lo
g

ic
a
l 
m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

p
la

n
s
. 

  T
h
e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 m
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 d

e
p

o
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 r
e
d

u
c
e
 i

n
 

s
iz

e
 a

n
d

 s
c
a
le

 s
in

c
e
 t

h
e
 o

ri
g

in
a
l 

(p
ri
o

r 
a
p

p
ro

v
a
l)
 s

u
b

m
is

s
io

n
. 

It
 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
d

u
c
e
d

 f
ro

m
 a

 6
 t

ra
c
k
 b

u
ild

in
g

 t
o

 a
 3

 t
ra

c
k
 b

u
ild

in
g

. 
F

u
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
ta

ils
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 i
n
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
 6

.2
 o

f 
th

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

. 
T

h
e
 d

e
p

o
t,

 
fo

r 
o

p
e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 
re

a
s
o

n
s
, 

m
u
s
t 

o
p

e
ra

te
 o

n
 a

 2
4
 h

o
u
r 

b
a
s
is

. 
 

1
4

 
F

ri
e
n
d

s
 

o
f 

A
le

x
a
n
d

ra
 

P
a
la

c
e
 T

h
e
a
tr

e
 

W
e
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 m

o
s
t 

g
ra

te
fu

l 
if
 t

h
e
 L

o
n
d

o
n
 

B
o

ro
u
g

h
 

o
f 

H
a
ri
n
g

e
y
 

ta
k
e
s
 

in
to

 
c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 

th
e
 

im
p

o
rt

a
n
c
e
 

o
f 

p
ro

te
c
ti
n
g

 t
h
e
 v

ie
w

 a
t 

A
le

x
a
n
d

ra
 P

a
la

c
e
 

a
n
d

 P
a
rk

. 
 

T
h
e
 
im

p
a
c
ts

 
o

n
 
v
ie

w
s
 
fr

o
m

 
A

le
x
a
n
d

ra
 
P

a
la

c
e
 
a
n
d

 
P

a
rk

 
h
a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 

ta
k
e
n
 

in
to

 
c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 

in
 

th
e
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
is

 
a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
. 

T
h
e
 i

s
s
u
e
 o

f 
V

is
u
a
l 

E
ff

e
c
ts

 i
s
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e
d

 i
n
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
 

6
.9

 o
f 

th
is

 r
e
p

o
rt

. 

Page 116



P
la

n
n

in
g

 S
u

b
-C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 R

e
p

o
rt

N
o

. 
S

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
Q

u
e

s
ti

o
n

/C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 

1
5

 
C

a
m

p
a
ig

n
 

fo
r 

B
e
tt

e
r 

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 
C

a
m

p
a
ig

n
 

fo
r 

B
e
tt

e
r 

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 
T

h
a
m

e
s
lin

k
 
a
s
 
a
n

 
im

p
o

rt
a
n
t 

p
a
rt

 
o

f 
th

e
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f

o
r 

im
p

ro
v
e
d

 p
u

b
lic

 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 
in

fr
a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 
in

 
L
o

n
d

o
n
 
a
n
d

 
th

e
 
S

o
u
th

 
E

a
s
t.

 
W

e
 

a
ls

o
 

s
u
p

p
o

rt
 

th
e
 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
. 

W
e
 

u
n

d
e
rs

ta
n
d

 
th

a
t 

th
e
 

a
p

p
lic

a
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 l

is
te

n
e
d

 t
o

 t
h
e
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

o
f 

th
e
 

c
o

u
n
c
il,

 
lo

c
a
l 

p
e
o

p
le

, 
a
n
d

 
la

n
d

o
w

n
e
rs

 a
n
d

 t
h
a
t 

s
u
b

s
ta

n
ti
a
l 

c
h
a
n
g

e
s
 

h
a
v
e
 
b

e
e
n
 
m

a
d

e
 
to

 
th

e
 
H

o
rn

s
e
y
 
d

e
p

o
t 

p
ro

p
o

s
a
ls

 
s
in

c
e
 
a
n
 
a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 
w

a
s
 
fi
rs

t 
s
u
b

m
it
te

d
 

in
 

A
u
g

u
s
t 

2
0
0
9
. 

T
h
e
s
e
 

c
h
a
n
g

e
s
 h

a
v
e
 a

lm
o

s
t 

h
a
lv

e
d

 t
h

e
 s

iz
e
 o

f 
th

e
 

s
c
h

e
m

e
 

a
n

d
 

re
d

u
c
e
d

 
th

e
 

e
n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
im

p
a
c
t.

  
 T

h
e
 
T

h
a
m

e
s
lin

k
 
p

ro
je

c
t 

is
 
in

 
th

e
 
b

ro
a
d

 
p

u
b

lic
 i
n
te

re
s
t.

 
 O

u
r 

v
ie

w
 i

s
 t

h
a
t 

w
h
e
n

 t
h
e
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l,
 

s
o

c
ia

l 
a
n
d

 
e
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 
c
a
s
e
 

h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 

m
a
d

e
 

fo
r 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 
in

fr
a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

p
ro

p
o

s
a
ls

, 
a
s
 t

h
e
y
 h

a
v
e
 i

n
 t

h
is

 c
a
s
e
, 

a
n
d

 
lo

c
a
l 

im
p

a
c
ts

 
h
a
v
e
 
b

e
e
n
 
m

in
im

is
e
d

, 
th

e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

s
h
o

u
ld

 
g

o
 

a
h
e
a
d

. 
T

h
e
 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 
o

f 
H

o
rn

s
e
y
 
w

ill
, 

o
f 

c
o

u
rs

e
, 

b
e
 

a
m

o
n
g

 t
h
o

s
e
 w

h
o

 w
ill

 b
e
n
e
fi
t 

d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 b

y
 

th
e
 i

n
c
re

a
s
e
d

 c
a
p

a
c
it
y
 a

n
d

 f
re

q
u
e
n
c
y
 o

f 
tr

a
in

s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 T

h
a
m

e
s
lin

k
 r

o
u
te

s
. 

 It
 
d

o
e
s
 
a
p

p
e
a
r 

th
a
t 

th
is

 
p

ro
p

o
s
a
l 

c
o

u
ld

 
b

e
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

im
p

ro
v
e
d

 i
n
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 

o
n
e
 d

e
ta

il.
 

T
h
e
 
L
.B

 
o

f 
H

a
ri
n
g

e
y
 
s
h
o

u
ld

 
in

s
is

t 
o

n
 
a
 

N
o

te
d

 
               N

o
te

d
 

  N
o

te
d

 
          T

h
e
 a

p
p

lic
a
ti
o

n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d

 b
y
 H

a
ri
n
g

e
y
 T

ra
n
s
p

o
rt

a
ti
o

n
 

T
e
a
m

 a
n
d

 T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
L
o

n
d

o
n
 a

n
d

 t
h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o

f 
v
e
h
ic

le
 p

a
rk

in
g

 
p

ro
v
is

io
n

 
a
n

d
 

c
y
c
le

 
p

a
rk

in
g

 
p

ro
v
is

io
n
 

is
 

d
e
e
m

e
d

 
to

 
b

e
 

Page 117



P
la

n
n

in
g

 S
u

b
-C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 R

e
p

o
rt

N
o

. 
S

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
Q

u
e

s
ti

o
n

/C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 

la
rg

e
 

re
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 

in
 

c
a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g

 
a
n
d

 
a
n
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 p

a
rk

in
g

 f
o

r 
b

ic
y
c
le

s
. 

  
a
c
c
e
p

ta
b

le
. 

T
h
e
 i

s
s
u
e
 o

f 
p

a
rk

in
g

 i
s
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e
d

 i
n
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
 6

.4
 o

f 
th

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

. 
 

 
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
 

 
 

 
T

h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

c
o

n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o

n
 

(A
p

ri
l 
2
0
1
1
) 

g
e
n
e
ra

te
d

 1
6
5
 

re
s
p

o
n
s
e
 l
e
tt

e
rs

. 
 T

h
e
 s

e
c
o

n
d

 a
n
d

 
th

ir
d

 r
o

u
n
d

s
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o

n
 

(A
u
g

u
s
t 

2
0
1
1
) 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 

s
u
b

m
is

s
io

n
 o

f 
a
d

d
it
io

n
a
l 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 

re
s
u
lt
e
d

 i
n
 3

6
 

re
s
p

o
n
s
e
s
: 

 A
 t

o
ta

l 
o

f 
2
0
1
 

re
s
p

o
n
s
e
s
 

re
c
e
iv

e
d

 t
o

 d
a
te

. 
 7
0
 S

ta
n
d

a
rd

 
le

tt
e
rs

 o
f 

o
b

je
c
ti
o

n
 

      

                     T
h
e
 
s
ta

n
d

a
rd

 
le

tt
e
r 

ra
is

e
d

 
th

e
 
fo

llo
w

in
g

 
o

b
je

c
ti
o

n
s
: 

 
1
.

U
n
a
c
c
e
p

ta
b

le
 L

ig
h
t 

P
o

llu
ti
o

n
 

  2
.

U
n
a
c
c
e
p

ta
b

le
 N

o
is

e
 N

u
is

a
n
c
e
 

 
 

                        L
ig

h
ti
n
g

 i
s
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e
d

 i
n
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
 6

.1
4
 o

f 
th

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

 
  N

o
is

e
 i
s
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e
d

 i
n
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
 6

.1
0
 o

f 
th

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

 
  

Page 118



P
la

n
n

in
g

 S
u

b
-C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 R

e
p

o
rt

N
o

. 
S

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
Q

u
e

s
ti

o
n

/C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 

                            1
2
1
 N

o
n
-

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

 l
e
tt

e
rs

 
o

f 
o

b
je

c
ti
o

n
 

  

3
.

U
n
a
c
c
e
p

ta
b

le
 

R
is

k
 

to
 

th
e
 

E
c
o

lo
g

ic
a
l 
C

o
rr

id
o

r 
 4
.

In
a
d

e
q

u
a
te

 
M

it
ig

a
ti
o

n
 

fo
r 

L
ig

h
t 

a
n
d

 N
o

is
e
 P

o
llu

ti
o

n
  

         5
.

N
e
g

lig
ib

le
 

B
e
n
e
fi
t 

to
 

th
e
 

lo
c
a
l 

c
o

m
m

u
n
it
y
 

 
     6
.

In
a
d

e
q

u
a
te

 
s
1
0
6
 

m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 

to
 

b
e
n
e
fi
t 

th
e
 l
o

c
a
l 
c
o

m
m

u
n
it
y
. 

 
    T

h
e
 

n
o

n
-s

ta
n
d

a
rd

 
le

tt
e
rs

 
ra

is
e
d

 
th

e
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
: 

 
1
.

N
o

is
e
 

2
.

L
ig

h
t 

E
c
o

lo
g

y
 i
s
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e
d

 i
n
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
 6

.8
 o

f 
th

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

 
  C

o
n
d

it
io

n
s
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
e
n

t 
w

ill
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
 t

h
e
 s

u
b

m
is

s
io

n
 a

n
d

 a
p

p
ro

v
a
l 

o
f 

a
 

d
e
ta

ile
d

 
lig

h
ti
n
g

 
s
c
h
e
m

e
 

w
h
ic

h
 

w
ill

 
a
llo

w
 

th
e
 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 
to

 
re

ta
in

 
c
o

n
tr

o
l 

o
f 

th
e
 

fi
n
a
l 

lig
h
ti
n
g

 
d

e
s
ig

n
, 

im
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 
a
n
d

 
o

p
e
ra

ti
o

n
. 

T
h
e
 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

in
d

ic
a
te

s
 
th

a
t 

th
e
re

 w
o

u
ld

 b
e
 n

o
 n

o
is

e
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 a
s
 a

 r
e
s
u

lt
 o

f 
th

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d

 
th

e
re

fo
re

 
n
o

 
s
p

e
c
if
ic

 
m

it
ig

a
ti
o

n
 
m

e
a
s
u

re
s
 
a
re

 
p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

. 
N

o
tw

it
h
s
ta

n
d

in
g

 t
h
is

, 
th

e
re

 a
re

 a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
 a

n
d

 s
1

0
6

 
o

b
lig

a
ti
o

n
s
 

w
h
ic

h
 

w
ill

 
e
n
s
u
re

 
n
o

is
e
 

is
 

m
in

im
is

e
d

 
d

u
ri
n
g

 
c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
. 

 
  T

h
e
re

 w
ill

 b
e
 s

o
m

e
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

, 
a
lb

e
it
 m

in
o

r,
 t

o
 t

h
e
 i
m

m
e
d

ia
te

 l
o

c
a
l 

c
o

m
m

u
n
it
y
 

in
 

re
la

ti
o

n
 

to
 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 

a
m

e
n
it
y
 

im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n
ts

 
th

ro
u
g

h
 

th
e
 

re
m

o
v
a
l 

o
f 

h
o

a
rd

in
g

s
 

s
e
c
u
re

d
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e
 s

1
0
6

 a
g

re
e
m

e
n
t.

 I
n

 a
d

d
it
io

n
, 

th
e
re

 w
o

u
ld

 b
e
 w

id
e
r 

c
o

m
m

u
n
it
y
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 i

n
c
re

a
s
e
d

 r
a
il 

c
a
p

a
c
it
y
 a

n
d

 g
e
n
e
ra

l 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o

 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 l
in

k
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 L

o
n
d

o
n
 a

n
d

 t
h
e
 U

K
. 

 
  A

 r
a
n
g

e
 o

f 
s
1
0
6
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 a

re
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

, 
a
s
 s

ta
te

d
 i

n
 A

p
p

e
n
d

ix
 

5
. 

T
h
e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 m
e
a
s
u
re

 a
re

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

to
 t

h
e
 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 a

n
d

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

d
e
q

u
a
te

 m
it
ig

a
ti
o

n
, 

w
h
e
re

 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

. 
 

        

Page 119



P
la

n
n

in
g

 S
u

b
-C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 R

e
p

o
rt

N
o

. 
S

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
Q

u
e

s
ti

o
n

/C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 

                                 

3
.

N
e
g

lig
ib

le
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 

to
 t

h
e
 

c
o

m
m

u
n
it
y
 

4
.

E
c
o

lo
g

y
 

5
.

In
a
d

e
q

u
a
te

 M
it
ig

a
ti
o

n
 

6
.

In
a
d

e
q

u
a
te

 s
1
0
6
 

 7
.

D
e
s
ig

n
/V

is
u
a
l 
Im

p
a
c
t 

 
8
.

Im
p

a
c
t 

o
n
 P

ro
p

e
rt

y
 V

a
lu

e
s
 

  9
.

In
a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 i
n
 a

 R
e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
A

re
a
 

 
 1
0
.S

it
e
 

S
e
le

c
ti
o

n
 

a
n
d

 
A

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 

L
o

c
a
ti
o

n
s
 

 1
1
.E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
Is

s
u
e
s
 

a
n
d

 
P

o
llu

ti
o

n
 

1
2
.T

ra
ff

ic
 

1
3
.I

m
p

a
c
t 

o
n
 R

e
g

e
n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 

           1
4
.C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o

n
 

o
v
e
r 

th
e
 

h
o

lid
a
y
 

P
o

in
ts

 1
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 6

 a
re

 a
d

d
re

s
s
e
d

 a
b

o
v
e
. 

     
7
.

D
e
s
ig

n
 
a
n

d
 
V

is
u
a
l 

Im
p

a
c
t 

is
 
a
d

d
re

s
s
e
d

 
in

 
s
e
c
ti
o

n
s
 
6
.2

 
a
n
d

 6
.9

 r
e
s
p

e
c
ti
v
e
ly

. 
8
.

Im
p

a
c
t 

o
n
 

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
 

V
a
lu

e
s
 

is
 

n
o

t 
a
 

m
a
te

ri
a
l 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 
c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 c
a
n
n

o
t 

b
e
 t

a
k
e
n
 i
n
to

 a
c
c
o

u
n
t 

a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
is

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

p
p

lic
a
ti
o

n
. 

9
.

In
a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 
in

 
R

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 

A
re

a
 

–
 

T
h
e
 

s
it
e
 

is
 

w
it
h
in

 
e
x
is

ti
n
g

 
o

p
e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 

ra
ilw

a
y
 

la
n
d

. 
T

h
e
 

p
ri
n
c
ip

le
 

o
f 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

is
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e
d

 i
n
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
 6

.1
 o

f 
th

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

. 
1
0
.S

it
e
 s

e
le

c
ti
o

n
 i
s
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e
d

 i
n
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
 6

.1
 o

f 
th

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

. 
  1
1
.E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
Is

s
u
e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 p

o
llu

ti
o

n
 a

re
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e
d

 i
n

 
s
e
c
ti
o

n
s
 6

.5
, 

6
.1

2
 a

n
d

 6
.1

4
 o

f 
th

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

. 
1
2
.T

ra
ff

ic
 i
s
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e
d

 i
n
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
 6

.4
 o

f 
th

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

. 
1
3
.I

m
p

a
c
t 

o
n

 R
e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 -

 T
h
e
 i

m
p

a
c
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 
C

la
re

n
d

o
n
 S

q
u
a
re

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

is
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e
d

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t.
 

T
h
e
 

p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 
m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 

d
e
p

o
t 

is
 

n
o

t 
c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 r

e
s
u
lt
 i

n
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

a
d

v
e
rs

e
 i

m
p

a
c
t 

th
a
t 

w
o

u
ld

 
je

o
p

a
rd

is
e
 
th

e
 
v
ia

b
ili

ty
 
o

f 
th

e
 
C

la
re

n
d

o
n
 
S

q
u
a
re

 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.

 
T

h
e
 

a
g

e
n
ts

 
o

f 
th

e
 

C
la

re
n
d

o
n
 

S
q

u
a
re

 
a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
, 

D
ri
v
e
rs

 J
o

n
a
s
 D

e
lo

it
te

, 
h
a
v
e
 w

ri
tt

e
n
 i
n
 a

 l
e
tt

e
r 

d
a
te

d
 1

0
th
 M

a
y
 2

0
1
1
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
t 

ra
is

e
d

 a
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 o
b

je
c
ti
o

n
 

to
 

th
e
 

p
ro

p
o

s
a
l 

b
u
t 

re
q

u
e
s
te

d
 

im
p

a
c
ts

 
b

e
 

m
in

im
is

e
d

 
th

ro
u
g

h
 s

ta
n
d

a
rd

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

 s
u
c
h
 a

s
 c

o
n
d

it
io

n
s
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
e
n
t 

a
n
d

 s
1
0
6
 l
e
g

a
l 
o

b
lig

a
ti
o

n
s
. 

  
 1
4
.C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o

n
 

o
v
e
r 

th
e
 

h
o

lid
a
y
 

p
e
ri
o

d
 

–
 

T
h
e
 

in
it
ia

l 

Page 120



P
la

n
n

in
g

 S
u

b
-C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 R

e
p

o
rt

N
o

. 
S

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
Q

u
e

s
ti

o
n

/C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 

                       2
 L

e
tt

e
rs

 n
e
it
h
e
r 

o
b

je
c
t 

n
o

r 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

  
 8
 L

e
tt

e
rs

 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 
 1
 P

e
ti
ti
o

n
 o

f 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
ro

m
 

lo
c
a
l 
e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
 

p
e
ri
o

d
 

      1
5
.P

ri
v
a
c
y
 

     
1
6
.S

e
c
u
ri
ty

 a
n
d

 A
n
ti
-S

o
c
ia

l 
b

e
h
a
v
io

u
r

   1
7
.F

lo
o

d
 D

a
n
g

e
r 

  
 

1
8
.D

e
s
ir
e
 t

o
 r

e
lo

c
a
te

 H
o

rn
s
e
y
 S

ta
ti
o

n
 

 1
9
.B

re
a
c
h
 o

f 
H

u
m

a
n
 R

ig
h
ts

  
    T

h
e
 l

e
tt

e
rs

 s
ta

te
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

th
e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 

o
n
 

a
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

g
ro

u
n
d

s
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t,

 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 
to

 
tr

a
n
s
p

o
rt

 
in

fr
a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 a

n
d

 c
a
p

a
c
it
y
 a

n
d

 a
 m

o
d

e
rn

 
e
n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

lly
 

fr
ie

n
d

ly
 

d
e
p

o
t 

b
u
ild

in
g

. 

c
o

n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o

n
 

p
e
ri
o

d
 

c
o

m
m

e
n
c
e
d

 
in

 
A

p
ri
l 

2
0
1
1
 

w
h
ic

h
 

c
o

in
c
id

e
d

 
w

it
h
 

a
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

b
a
n
k
 

h
o

lid
a
y
s
/e

a
s
te

r.
 

H
o

w
e
v
e
r 

th
e
 

c
o

u
n

c
il 

h
a
s
 

a
 

p
o

lic
y
 

o
f 

a
c
c
e
p

ti
n
g

 
c
o

n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o

n
 r

e
s
p

o
n
s
e
s
 u

p
 u

n
ti
l 

th
e
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

 a
n

d
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 t
h
e
 t

im
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n

s
u
lt
a
ti
o

n
 h

a
s
 

n
o

t 
h
a
d

 
a
n
y
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

im
p

a
c
t 

o
n
 

th
e
 

c
o

n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o

n
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
. 

1
5
.P

ri
v
a
c
y
 -

 T
h
e
 s

it
e
 i

s
 w

it
h
in

 a
n
 e

x
is

ti
n
g

 r
a
ilw

a
y
 c

o
rr

id
o

r.
 

T
h
e
 

p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 
d

e
p

o
t 

b
u
ild

in
g

 
is

 
c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

b
le

 
d

is
ta

n
c
e
 

fr
o

m
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a
l 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
, 

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 t

o
 t

h
e
 w

e
s
t 

a
n

d
 i

t 
is

 n
o

t 
c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 t

h
e
re

 w
o

u
ld

 b
e
 a

n
y
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a
l 

lo
s
s
 o

f 
p

ri
v
a
c
y
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
b

o
v
e
 a

n
d

 b
e
y
o

n
d

 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

s
it
u
a
ti
o

n
. 

1
6
.S

e
c
u
ri
ty

 a
n
d

 A
n
ti
-S

o
c
ia

l 
B

e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

–
 t

h
e
 a

p
p

lic
a
ti
o

n
 h

a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 
re

fe
rr

e
d

 
to

 
th

e
 
M

e
tr

o
p

o
lit

a
n
 
p

o
lic

e
 
fo

r 
c
o

m
m

e
n
ts

 
a
n
d

 t
h
e
y
 a

d
v
is

e
d

 t
h
e
y
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
 o

b
je

c
ti
o

n
. 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
e
n
t 

re
la

te
 t

o
 C

C
T

V
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 s

it
e
. 

1
7
.F

lo
o

d
 

D
a
n
g

e
r 

–
 

T
h
e
 

E
n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

A
g

e
n
c
y
 

h
a
v
e
 

n
o

 
o

b
je

c
ti
o

n
 
to

 
th

e
 
F

lo
o

d
 
R

is
k
 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

s
u
b

m
it
te

d
 
(a

s
 

a
m

e
n
d

e
d

) 
s
u
b

je
c
t 

to
 

a
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
 

a
n
d

 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
v
e
s
. 

1
8
.I

t 
is

 n
o

t 
p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
is

 a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 t

o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

re
lo

c
a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 H

o
rn

s
e
y
 S

ta
ti
o

n
 

1
9
.T

h
e
 

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 

is
 

n
o

t 
c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 

to
 

b
e
 

a
 

b
re

a
c
h

 
o

f 
H

u
m

a
n
 R

ig
h
ts

 –
 r

e
fe

r 
to

 s
e
c
ti
o

n
 8

.0
 o

f 
th

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

. 
 

 N
o

te
d

 
 N

o
te

d
 

    

Page 121



P
la

n
n

in
g

 S
u

b
-C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 R

e
p

o
rt

N
o

. 
S

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
Q

u
e

s
ti

o
n

/C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 

a
n
d
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

R
M

T
, 

T
S

S
A

 a
n
d
 

U
N

IT
E

 u
n
io

n
s
 

c
o

n
ta

in
in

g
 1

5
6
 

s
ig

n
a
tu

re
s
  

R
a
ilw

a
y
 

la
n
d

 
b

e
in

g
 

u
s
e
d

 
fo

r 
ra

ilw
a
y
 

u
s
a
g

e
. 

R
a
ilw

a
y
 e

x
is

te
d

 f
o

r 
a
 l

o
n

g
e
r 

ti
m

e
 

p
e
ri
o

d
 t

h
a
n
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 

fl
a
ts

. 
S

m
a
lle

r 
th

a
n
 o

ri
g

in
a
l 
s
c
h
e
m

e
. 

N
o

 a
d

d
it
io

n
 n

o
is

e
. 

 

P
e
ti
ti
o

n
 N

o
te

d
 

Page 122



Planning Sub-Committee Report

APPENDIX 2 
PLANNING POLICIES 

 

Page 123



Planning Sub-Committee Report

RELEVANT PLANNING POLICY  
 
NATIONAL POLICY 
 
National Planning Policy Statements and Guidance 
 

Planning Policy Statement 1: Delivering Sustainable Development 

Planning Policy Statement: Planning and Climate Change - Supplement to PPS 1 

Planning Policy Statement 4: Planning for Sustainable Economic Growth 

Planning Policy Statement 5: Planning for the Historic Environment 

Planning Policy Statement 9: Biodiversity and Geological Conservation 

Planning Policy Guidance 13: Transport 

Planning Policy Statement 22: Renewable Energy 

Planning Policy Statement 23: Planning and Pollution Control 

Planning Policy Guidance 24: Planning and Noise 

Planning Policy Statement 25: Development and Flood Risk 

Draft Planning Policy Statement: Planning for a Natural and Healthy Environment 
 
REGIONAL PLANNING POLICY  
 
London Plan 2011 
 

Policy 6.4 Enhancing London’s transport connectivity  

Policy 2.14 Areas for Regeneration  

Policy 5.2 Minimising carbon dioxide emissions 

Policy 5.3 Sustainable design and construction 

Policy 5.5 Decentralised energy networks 

Policy 5.11 Green roofs and development site environs 

Policy 6.1 Integrating transport & development 

Policy 6.3 Assessing transport capacity 

Policy 6.13 Parking 

Policy 7.2 Creating an inclusive environment 

Policy 7.3 Secured by design 

Policy 7.4 Local character 

Policy 7.5 Public realm 

Policy 7.8 Heritage Assets and Archaeology 
 
The Mayors Transport Strategy (May 2010)  
The Mayor’s Land for Transport Functions SPG (March 2007) 
The Mayor’s Sustainable Design & Construction SPG (2006) 
The Mayor’s Culture Strategy: Realising the potential of a world class city (2004) 
The Mayor’s Ambient Noise Strategy (2004) 
The Mayor’s Energy Strategy (2004) 
The Mayor’s Draft Industrial Capacity SPG (2003) 
The Mayor’s Air Quality Strategy: Cleaning London’s Air (2002) 
The Mayor’s Biodiversity Strategy: Connecting with London’s Nature (2002) 
The Mayor’s Planning for Equality & Diversity in Meeting the Spatial Needs of London’s 
Diverse Communities SPG 

Page 124



Planning Sub-Committee Report

The Mayor’s Accessible London: Achieving an Inclusive Environment SPG 
The Mayor and London Councils’ Best Practice Guide on the Control of Dust & Emissions 
during Construction 
 
LOCAL PLANNING POLICY  
 
Haringey Unitary Development Plan (Adopted July 2006; Saved July 2009) 
 

G1 Environment  

G2 Development and Urban Design 

G4 Employment 

G6 Strategic Transport Links 

G7  Green Belt, Met. Open Land, Significant Local Open Land & Green Chains  

G9 Community Well Being 

G10 Conservation  

G12 Priority Areas 

AC1 Heartlands/Wood Green 

UD1 Planning Statements 

UD2 Sustainable Design and Construction  

UD3 General Principles 

UD4 Quality Design  

UD7 Waste Storage 

UD8 Planning Obligations  

ENV1 Flood Protection: Protection of Floodplain, Urban Washlands 

ENV2 Surface Water Runoff 

ENV4 Enhancing and Protecting the Water Environment 

ENV5 Works Affecting Water Courses 

ENV6 Noise Pollution 

ENV7 Air, Water and Light Pollution 

ENV11 Contaminated Land 

ENV13 Sustainable Waste Management  

EMP1 Defined Employment Areas – Regeneration Areas 

M2 Public Transport Network 

M3 New Development Location and Accessibility 

M5 Protection, Improvement and Creation of Pedestrian and Cycle Routes 

M8 Access Roads 

M10 Parking for Development  

M11  Rail and Waterborne Transport 

OS2 Metropolitan Open Land 

OS5 Development Adjacent to Open Spaces 

OS6 Ecologically Valuable Sites and Their Corridors 

OS7 Historic Parks, Gardens and Landscapes 

OS12 Biodiversity 

OS16 Green Chains 

CSV1 Development in Conservation Areas  

CSV8 Archaeology  
 

Page 125



Planning Sub-Committee Report

Haringey Supplementary Planning Guidance (October 2006) 
 

SPG1a Design Guidance (Adopted 2006)  

SPG2   Conservation and Archaeology (Draft 2006) 

SPG4  Access for All (Mobility Standards) (Draft 2006) 

SPG5  Safety By Design (Draft 2006) 

SPG7a Vehicle and Pedestrian Movements (Draft 2006) 

SPG7b Travel Plans (Draft 2006) 

SPG7c Transport Assessment (Draft 2006) 

SPG8a Waste and Recycling (Adopted 2006) 

SPG8b Materials (Draft 2006) 

SPG8c Environmental Performance (Draft 2006) 

SPG8d Biodiversity, Landscaping & Trees (Draft 2006) 

SPG8e Light Pollution (Draft 2006) 

SPG8f  Land Contamination (Draft 2006) 

SPG 8g  Ecological Impact Assessment (Draft 2006) 

SPG 8h  Environmental Impact Assessment (Draft 2006) 

SPG 8i  Air Quality (Draft 2006) 

SPG9  Sustainability Statement Guidance Notes and Checklist (Draft 2006) 

SPG10a Negotiation, Mgt & Monitoring of Planning Obligations (Adopted 2006) 

SPG10d Planning Obligations and Open Space (Draft 2006) 

SPG10e Improvements Public Transport Infrastructure & Services (Draft 2006) 

SPD   Housing 
 
Haringey Heartlands Development Framework (Adopted April 2005) 
 
Planning Obligation Code of Practice No 1: Employment and Training (Adopted 2006) 
 
Local Development Framework Core Strategy and Proposals Map (Published for 
Consultation May 2010; Submitted for Examination March 2011. EiP July 2011) 
 

SP1 Managing Growth 

SP2 Housing 

SP4 Working towards a Low Carbon Haringey 

SP5 Water Management and Flooding 

SP6 Waste and Recycling 

SP7 Transport 

SP8 Employment 

SP9 Imp Skills/Training to Support Access to Jobs/CommunityCohesion/Inclusion 

SP10 Town Centres 

SP11 Design 

SP12 Conservation 

SP13 Open Space and Biodiversity 

SP14 Health and Well-Being 

SP15 Culture and Leisure 

SP16 Community Infrastructure 
 

Page 126



Planning Sub-Committee Report

Draft Development Management Policies (Published for Consultation May 2010) 
 

DMP9  New Development Location and Accessibility 

DMP10  Access Roads  

DMP13  Sustainable Design and Construction  

DMP14  Flood Risk, Water Courses and Water Management  

DMP15  Environmental Protection 

DMP16  Development Within and Outside of Town & Local Shopping Centres 

DMP19  Employment Land & Premises 

DMP20  General Principles  

DMP21  Quality Design  

DMP22  Waste Storage 

DMP25  Haringey’s Heritage  

DMP26  Alexandra Palace  

DMP27  Significant Local Open Land & Development Adjacent to Open Spaces  

DMP28  Ecologically Valuable Sites their Corridors and Tree protection  
 

Draft Sustainable Design and Construction SPD (October 2010)  
Haringey’s 2nd Local Implementation Plan (Transport Strategy) 2011 – 2031 
 
OTHER DOCUMENTS 
 
CABE Design and Access Statements 
Diversity and Equality in Planning: A Good Practice Guide (ODPM) 
Planning and Access for disabled people: A Good Practice Guide (ODPM) 
Demolition Protocol Developed by London Remade 
Secured by Design 

Page 127



Planning Sub-Committee Report

Appendix 3: Development Management Forum 
Minutes

Page 128



Planning Sub-Committee Report

PLANNING & REGENERATION

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT TEAM

MINUTES

Meeting : Development Management Forum Coronation Sidings –HGY/2011/0612

Date : 9
th
May 2011

Place : Heartlands High School

Present : Paul Smith (Chair); Applicants, Representatives, Cllr Whyte, Mallett,

Gorrie, Waters, Approx 50 local residents

Minutes by : Tay Makoon

Page 129



Planning Sub-Committee Report

1.

2.

3.

Paul Smith welcomed everyone to the meeting, introduced officers, members

and the applicant’s representatives. He explained the purpose of the meeting

that it was not a decision making meeting, the house keeping rules, he

explained the agenda and that the meeting will be minuted and attached to

the officers report for the Planning Committee.

Proposal

Construction of rolling stock maintenance depot and associated works

including main depot building, office and storage space; track and sidings;

under frame cleaning facility and plant room; two train washers and plant

rooms; waste compactors; partial rebuilding of Hornsey Station footbridge; two

shunter cabins; bridge widening over the New River and Turnpike Lane;

associated works including engineering, signalling, electrification and other

operational works and equipment for the railway; hard surfacing and new

internal site access road; landscaping; fences; car, motorcycle and bicycle

parking; construction of retaining walls; temporary construction haul bridge

and use of land as a temporary construction compound.

Presentation by Architects

We put in a planning application for a railway depot and associated works

which is connected to the Thames Link programme. This is a railway project to

create a significant increase in capacity for the railway network, with an

increase of 1200 extra carriages coming on service in 2015. There will be a

significant increase in trains running through Central London section 24 trains

per hour. This is the second application we have submitted, with an

application in August 2009 under permitted development rights and the result

of the comment we had from the local community and the Council and with

the legal mechanism that the Government had intervened with we have re

assessed the proposals completely from first stage and worked out whether we

needed to come back to the site or whether we could go to another site and if

we came back here what format would the depot be. The application before

you is the amended application and it is for a smaller scheme. We have

undertaken an extensive consultation information sessions with members of

the public, Council and we submitted the application at the end of March.

Orientation plans were shown, plans of site and surrounds. The application

proposes various works moving north to south. The application proposes

relatively small structures, portacabins. Track reconfiguration. Slide showing

tall long building houses one track, it is 12 cars long and it is known as under

framed cleaning building. This is where you put the train in and it is enclosed

and the train is cleaned with jet washers. Slide showing train wash and plant

room, the main access of the site is through the existing access to the railway

site, thorough Hamden Road. At present you come into Hampden Road and

come into the depot and in future there will be an electric vehicular gate and

access will be gained that way. The proposal involves the rebuilding in a

modern equivalent form of the existing footbridge that goes from the east side

across the station building, the station entrance that is because the current

Action

Page 130



Planning Sub-Committee Report

track interferes with the current bridge structure arrangements underneath.

Creation of access in the road which goes into the site from the North. There

are two narrow bridges widening the railway above Turnpike Lane and the new

river get slightly wider, the rail is getting 2 metres wider and not the river.

Existing pedestrian access that is being refurbished from street level. You enter

the depot building, car parking and circulation areas widen out for delivering

lorries. Sled showing another train wash, at the northern part of the site, the

permanent site boundary ends that will be the depot boundary area in future

with a track. For the construction period we are putting a temporary bridge

over Penstock Path to using a lay of land to the south of the school as a

temporary construction area. There are various other works, planting,

vegetation and ecological works being proposed for the ecological piece of land

and additional planting also being proposed. There is fencing, various bits of

railway works, overhead lines signalling equipment, electrification equipment

in connection with all the tracks. We did look at whether we could do this on

another site and the analysis showed that this was the best site and we had

reduced the height from 13.4 to 11.3metres, width, it was 6 rows and now

3(rows being the number of tracks). We have pulled it away from the

boundary; we have preserved the existing vegetation boundary that was going

to be lost under the previous scheme. We are now going to have additional

planting and additional ecological work proposed. We have relocated the car

parking, so that it is slightly to the south. We had a number of design

principles that we looked at and bringing this forward. We have gone for a

high quality design and with appropriate mitigation; we have addressed the

bulk, size and massing according to the concerns raised in August 2009. We

have lowered it into the sides, reduced the height of the building by pushing it

away from the boundary and we have softened its visual impact. A key issue is

sustainable design. There is rain water recycling, urban drainage, low energy

lighting, we are going to achieve a good rating through BREAM. Slides showing

views west across the site showing building, location and scale. We are very

aware of noise, due to its urban setting, the operational side has been in

operation fro 150 years but we are incorporating a new use within it and we

have designed the building to minimise the noise impact. The environmental

assessment contains all this information not operational noise or vibrational

noise impacts are predicted. Construction noise will be managed by the CPM

which is the construction environmental management plan. Landscaping and

ecology, we are proposing landscaping around the site including the Clarendon

square side to reinforce the ecological benefit that the area has. We are also

proposing planting along the western boundary to provide additional screening

and this is part of the S106. We have designed the lighting to be of minimal

disruption and low as possible. The two tall lighting columns will be removed

and low lighting in its place, we are using louvers to spot light spillage.

Transport and access due to the low level of workers on site there will be no

significant impact on the local roads network. There are 43 car parking spaces

Proposed on site, includes visiting spaces and blue badges users. And 14 cycle

spaces. Travel plan to encourage staff to use other modes of travel other than

the car. Jobs, 126 will be provided in the depot across a full range of skills. We

Page 131



Planning Sub-Committee Report

4.

will work with the Council and s106 to have a local employment working

mechanism. We are keen to find out more about the Haringey Guarantee. The

s106 would deal with the impact of our application which largely outside the

application site. Some of things the s106 will go towards, Penstock Path,

Turnpike Lane, Hampden Road, station improvement to Hornsey Station.

Questions from the floor

Q1: You say you are reducing the visual impact, what colour is it?

Ans: The colour is an issue and we are proposing to discuss this will the Council

The visualization shows a bright yellow colour. This is not the colour that will

be chosen. We are proposing a planning condition that if we get permission

we will come forward with the colour of the depot for approval. The Council

has full control over it.

Q2: You say you looked at alternative site – what was wrong with the

alternative sites?

Ans: We looked at about 15 other sites and they extend from welling borough,

Bedford, Cricklewood, Cambridge, Peterborough, Hitchin, in the north of the

River Thames. We looked at a number of criteria and those are detailed as

part of this application. They all failed on the requirement for the route is that

trains are fixed 12 cars long and they can’t be split and we need a building to

accommodate a 12 car train to main it and the other sites largely failed as they

did not have a building large enough to accommodate a 12 car train.

Q3: Were the alternative sites that you looked at in areas of less

development?

Ans: No, not all of them, Bedford had a lot of sites that had developments that

were significantly closer.

Q4: This development is effectively on top of New River Village and you can’t

get much closer?

Ans: It is 85 – to 90 metres away from New River Village.

Q5: You said you are trying to reduce the impact, but the biggest problem we

have are the trains waiting to go in the depot, with the wait for the trains to go

in there is an increased number of trains waiting is that still likely to occur?

Ans: No, there is a lot of detail set out in the Environmental Impact

Assessment but we have assessed the trains movements both the number of

trains and time of day they are moving and around the washer building and we

have assessed all that and the impact will be no more than the current impact

generated by the existing pattern. There will be more trains, some of the

existing fleet is maintained in the current First Capital connect depot and will

no longer be maintained there and there will be some substitution services

there. There will more trains, modern fleet of trains and we have assessed

those trains.

Page 132



Planning Sub-Committee Report

Q6: If there are more trains then there will be more noise?

Ans: No, noise is not accumulative. We have assessed the new volume of new

trains and their noise generation pattern and overlaid it against the existing

ambient noise level and the assessment where it is all set out shows will not

have an increased level of noise above what you currently hear.

Q7: Sylvester from Burley Road: noise pollution, is there a way we can actually

measure the noise pollution, as there might be work done overnight rather

than stop all 11pm.

If your lighting is dimmed and that is sufficient but later you want to change it,

how do we know that you are going to keep to your word?

Ans: Noise, how you measure noise is a science, we have worked with the

Councils environmental Health officer and he has told us how the noise is

measured in line with this application. We have agreed with them that we

have taken noise measurement from around the site; we have used those to

project noise pattern. We have agreed with the Council how we assessed the

noise level. That is the rule. The Council gives the rule and now have told us to

go away and prove how the noise level meets the Councils noise policy.

Ans – Lighting some of the lighting is low, bollard level and some are street

level and that is 5 – 8 metres higher. We have proposed an outline lighting

strategy where we said how we are going to deal with lighting and these are

the impact we are going to reduce or eliminate. We have set out the game

plan and the Council will condition the lighting to make sure we fulfil

everything set out in detail. As part of the condition the Council can insist that

we do not vary on any detail from the lighting set on in the plan.

Q8: Can a local residents or chair of a local amenity group be present when the

noise level is being taken?

Ans: No, sorry the noise levels have already been taken some months ago. If

there are concerns about noise, a ring to the Councils noise dept and a Council

officer will come out and do a noise reading to see if the noise level is

acceptable without the applicant being there.

Q9: Why there are no calculations of maximum noise level to be generated by

the development? The calculations you have used, uses an averaging system so

that where you have ambient noise in the night, you can have a number of very

loud noises of a short duration, when average out over a duration over night

will pass the criteria that it doesn’t affect ambient noise level. It is

unacceptable as local resident live so close to the site. The calculations cannot

take noise such as train squeak, no effective measure for slow moving trains

under 20 km per hr but all those trains will be moving at 5 to 8 miles per hour.

Your calculation doesn’t take any of this into account. With regards to lighting

you talked about removing the very large light towers, they are irrelevant as

they have not been used since New River Village was developed. The lighting

Page 133



Planning Sub-Committee Report

strategy has not yet been defined but the entire boundary of New River Village

is included in lighting strategy which talks about 13metre high white lights. The

boundary of New River Village has no night lighting at present and the

mitigation that you have proposed for both noise and light pollution is

inadequate. Four residents association met you and Network Rail to ask for

evergreen planting along the entire length and various different measures to

mitigate against it, none of which have been included in the planning

application. You have disregarded what the local residents have asked of you

and would like to know why this has been done and why you refuse to offer

any guarantees on this proposal such as expanding it in the future, opening the

doors and windows overnight when noisy work is going on. In the application it

says the windows will be open during warm whether to provide extra

ventilation, when you are doing under carriage washing and train horn testing

overnight. How can you say all of those things not going to contribute to

adverse affects on the local population? You say this scheme will bring benefit

to the local community, in your report it say there will be a wider impact zone

that includes, Enfield, Islington, Haringey, Hornsey, and Stevenage and your

report suggest that only 30% of the 126 jobs will go within the five boroughs,

everything else will go outside that zone and if average that out it looks like we

will get as little as 6 jobs in Hornsey from this depot and all the affects of the

local community.

Ans: Noise I am not a noise expert but we will get the information from the

noise expert and write back to you. There is a British standard on how you

calculate noise and the impacts of development and we follow that. We

discussed it with the Council before submitting the application and we have

come up with a methodology that satisfy that, we have noise measurement at

the appropriate location that the Council has decided on. Rail noise is

extremely well known mechanism and the assessment around it has been

going on for many years. With regards to depot noise, we were trying to

achieve with this application a balance of impact on the local community as

well as the energy use of the building, trying to make it sustainable, one

method of doing that is to try and use natural ventilation where ever possible

not use air conditioning for a large building. We have assessed the noise level

with the louvers open and all this will all be incorporated into the noise

assessment, the application is with the Council and they have yet to determine

the application and if the noise report we have put in are not acceptable they

will tell us. Lighting – The application site is to the east of the east coast

mainline and the great carriage wash to the West side of the track. We are not

proposing any lighting to the West only to the East. The lightning proposed has

an impact as set out in the application, there is a lighting contour plan and that

sets out the lighting levels to be achieved and we consider that to be

acceptable and it’s in the application and the Council will be the one to make

the decision. With regards to the two tall lighting columns, I was only trying to

make it clear that they are going, never to be used or turned into something

else. With regards to employment we set out very clearly in the application,

126 jobs estimated to be created coming from this proposal and set out an

Page 134



Planning Sub-Committee Report

expectation given the work we have done with First Capital Connect and

Network Rail about the types of jobs they will be, managerial jobs, engineering

jobs, etc. Your reference to the inner area and how the distribution of jobs is a

very difficult area and we don’t know where the jobs are coming from, they

haven’t been advertised, we don’t know what sort of people will be applying

and we can’t make any promises, we can’t say 100% will come from the local

community. We have taken the proposed staff number of 126 and have

applied the pattern of where people live in relation to the existing depot of the

existing First Capital Connect, this is where the proportion comes from. As part

of the s106 we are proposing to look at employment and training with the

Council with a view to generic providing employment training opportunities to

anyone with a view seeing how that can apply to the new development. Out

intention is to fill the jobs the best way we can and if that is within the local

community, then it would be how we would want to do this. However, we

cannot guarantee this as we don’t know how many candidates will come

forward for these jobs and whether they have the skills. It is a convention of

applying existing pattern of development, because of the Environmental

Impact Assessment is done it is not possible to do this in small parishes or

ward scale , it has to be done bigger administrative mapping units. This is why

you have the inner and bigger area and beyond. With regards to mitigation we

have taken into consideration a lot of what local residents and amenity groups

have said. We are proposing an urban realm improvements within the vicinity

such as Turnpike Lane, additional planting to railway operational land to the

West of the railway land. Off the railway land we are proposing to make a s106

contribution for evergreen planting. We do not own the land but in discussion

with them.

Q10: Can you tell us something about the length of the Construction

programme and whether it will be a 24hr site?

Ans: The construction programme is assumed to take 28 months and it will be

phased. The construction will at times be 24hr and you will get notification

when this will take place. In order to carry out work to the railway lines, the

electricity has to be turned off and this can only be done late at night and

weekends is when the big bits of work is phased. Network Rail has a policy of

notification to local residents of any works. Some of the site will need to be

done outside normal working hours but much of it wouldn’t. We would like to

ask the contractor to submit a s61 application which is under the control of

pollution act. The act requires the contractor to publicise all its works times,

dates and control the level of noise and pollution.

Q11: Alex Horn local resident On the improvements to Hornsey railway

Station, my understanding that the works will happen anyway and they are

part of the same programme that is currently happening at Finsbury Park.

Ans: We think 126 jobs is a very significant number of jobs and we have not

played it up. I accept it is not in the thousands but nevertheless significant.

The station improvements are new an additional. The Finsbury Park is linked to

the Network Rail improvements and not with what is being proposed as part of

Page 135



Planning Sub-Committee Report

this application.

Q12: Can you tell us what sum of monies has been allocated for the s106 and

what the proportion is for the build.

Ans: I regret I cannot give you a sum as s106 is done through a formula set by

the Government and with regards to mitigation, the Council have yet to let us

know how much they require us to put in for the training, there is a fixed

budget for this project. We have to have discussions with Network Rail to talk

about what the Council wants and what we want to happen and whether it is

possible and that discussion is yet to take place.

Q13: Alexandra Park & Palace CAAC – Alexandra Park is a Conservation Area

and you are proposing to build an enormous white shed which will be highly

visible and will have a disastrous affect on the views from the Park. I’d like to

know about the alternative sites and whether it was really not suitable for you

to move there.

Ans: All the sites were viewed equally and we looked at the railway sites within

a geographical area and none of the sites could accommodate the space for the

Trains and washers. Bedford failed because it didn’t have enough land to

accommodate a 12 car train depot. All the sites had insufficient length of land

to accommodate the length of 12 car train. Insufficient land to accommodate

the quantum of development. It’s not just a building, but building with car

wash, sidings UFC that goes with it.

Q14: Cllr Gorrie – is this the right place? In the 74 pages of depot site

information during the appendix there is not one single costs figures to tell us

how much this site is going to cost or how much any of the alternative site

would have cost. Chesterton site has no red flag against it. This is not about

enough land, it’s just about money and as there are no figures in any of the

assessments there is no comparison evidence. Can we have a clear transparent

cost of how much this development will cost and how much the alternative

sites especially Chesterton would have cost. Can the Council tell me what

location assessment process would be part of the planning review this is a

critical part of the decision and we need to know.

Ans: The issue of the cost of the depot is commercially confidential, there is a

rolling stock procurement process underway at the moment and Network Rail

and Dept of Transport are not going to achieve best value for money if they

start publicising the cost of what they think the scheme would take to deliver.

That is why the data is not in the application detail. We feel we have put all the

required information in the public domain.

Q15: is this a detailed planning application? What about the new foot bridge?

The drawings are inadequate and in design terms it is a travesty. We want a

decent environment underneath the bridge; we need a detailed proposal for

that.

Ans: Yes it is a detailed planning application. There are issues that we are

proposing to be dealt with by conditions, there are no reserved matters. The

Page 136



Planning Sub-Committee Report

way the bridge is made up, it’s known as bridge degs, is to remove a section of

the bridge and put in a new one. We are moving 20feet of bridge deck and

putting back 2 meters more of bridge deck. The engineering work is slightly

bigger and goes back further in. Foot bridge we feel there is sufficient detailed

drawing in the application for it to be considered.

Statement: Noise nuisance, has demonstrated to be a major factor in ill health

and Council officer and Councillors should take note of that.

Q17: Alan Fox: Hornsey is already a very busy station; tell me why the

residents have to put up with the disruption and none of the direct benefits of

Thames Link.

Ans: There are some benefits that will go directly to Hornsey as a knock on

effect of the programme. Once the Thames Link is complete there will be

trains from Peterborough and Cambridge which currently at Kings Cross. We

would divert a section of the tunnel and would run through Central London and

out at the other side. There will be less pressure at Kings Cross and at

Moorgate on the tube network. This is a ring fence budget, it is public money

and not Network Rail money and the budget has to stretch to all the

programmed work and the budget cannot be stretched any further.

Q18: Renewable sources what are they?

Ans: We have done our renewable sources in line with the Councils

Supplementary guidance on sustainability, the GLA guidance and have analysed

the energy requirements on site and the number of mechanisms we can

provide it. We have decided that the most appropriate mechanism is a

biomass boiler at the northern end of the depot.

Q19: The noise assessment you have done is from within the shed and out, you

are building a 280metre acoustic mirror directed at my house. No assessment

has been done.

Ans: I have been told that it has been done; I am not a noise expert but will

take your details and let you have the information.

Q20: Jennifer Bell: What will the impact on Hampden Road be? What is plan

B?

Ans: Hamden Road is the main access into the existing depot which provides

the main vehicular access into the site.

In relation to Plan B, we have categorically stated that this is the site and we

have prepared the application with that regard. If the Council turns us down

we will go to appeal, it is what we have to do.

Q21: Burghley Road Association – You do not know the cost of this

development how can you then tell us two months ago that you cannot widen

the footpath under the bridge because you cannot afford it, how do you know?

Ans: We do know the expected cost of the depot; it is commercially

confidential that we are not able to tell you the cost. Urban Realm

Page 137



Planning Sub-Committee Report

improvements under Turnpike Lane footbridge. We have not done a detailed

scheme as it is not part of our application; it has to come forward as part of the

s106. We will talk to the Council about what is acceptable.

Q22: Why do you think it is appropriate to put the lighting east of the railway

line to the Heartlands that is meant to be built on for affordable housing. We

do not want all those lights.

Ans: We have put the lights to the east because that is where the

developments are as there is no reason to light the other parts. We are aware

of the potential impact on Clarendon Square and the existing local community.

The lighting is being designed in such a way as set out in the application and

the details will come forward for the Councils approval.

Q23: No windows and no doors how do you get in and out?

Ans: The train get in via the doors allocated on the drawings.

Q24: Gatekeepers Lodge resident: I have not received any notification of this

meeting and about the consultation; I have not had a chance to send in my

objection?

Ans: Paul Smith said that we will check our records, it may be we do not have

the addresses listed on the Gazetteer and we will link you with the people

dealing with the consultation and get something out to you as there is enough

time to send in your comments and learn more about the scheme.

Q25: Level of noise will not increase; can you clarify whether the frequency of

the noise will increase? I currently hear the trains sidling at midnight it is low

level. In winter it is okay but in the summer when my window is open it is a

concern. Is the noise going to continue throughout the entire night?

Ans: There is an existing pattern of noises, some relates to the Great Eastern

and Great Northern wash on the west side of the railway formation. Our

application doesn’t affect the trains, no substitution, no increase or decrease.

There will be more trains going to the depot at during the night. They will go

through the Turnpike Lane Road Bridge.

Q26: Bridge Build over Turnpike Lane, how long will it take? Will it affect local

traffic?

Ans: We don’t have the detailed construction programme; it will be a

significant piece of work and needs to be agreed with the Councils and

Highways Authority. It would require road closure for about 2 days.

Q27: What concerns me is that you say you have a plan A which is to stay here,

plan B to appeal and you don’t have a plan C? You have got to have another

option?

Ans: We have given you the facts; It is fact that the Thames Link programme is

funded by the public purse of 6 billion pounds to 2018. We are answering your

questions factually. This is a very pressurised very valuable nationally strategic

realm. We are not making excuses or assumptions about the planning process.

Page 138



Planning Sub-Committee Report

Please be assured we are here to answer your questions as truly and factually

as we can this evening.

Q28: Why does the depot need to be so much taller than a railway carriage?

Ans: The way that the modern depot operates, there are a number of

components, on the roof of the trains there will be air condition units,

electronic cases those are lifted off the trains using an overhead crane , so the

space above the buildings has a crane to operate above the overhead train.

Q29: Statement: I represent the staff at Hornsey Station – We have lost 120

jobs. It is important for us who have families to know what is happening; we

have 200 people on that site. I worked there for 40 years and we are stake

holders. A third comes from Tottenham area for jobs. This borough has the

third highest unemployment in the country. Even one job is important if it

goes to someone in Haringey. I hope the Council understands that I and the

other 200 people need a job.

Ans: The worst case scenario is a small number of jobs come to Haringey; the

best case scenario is that a significant number of jobs come to Haringey. We

are working very hard to make this the best case scenario for this community.

Q30: Simon Fedida: The site to the North to Penstock Path to be used as a car

park for construction, how long will that be used for that and what will the use

be afterwards?

Ans: The assumption is that it will be used for the full length of the

construction programme which may be 24 months or so. We will not be

removing any of the trees, and afterwards it will return to its current use of

railway operational use by Network Rail.

Q31: Simon Fedida: In your Environmental Assessment on light pollution

campaign for dark skies, you give the impression that they have been signed

off.

Ans: No, I said we have prepared it in accordance with their guidance.

Simon Fedida: Statement: So we do don’t know if you are compliant with what

the recommendation are.

Q32: Noise assessment : The noise floor is 10db below background, You have

chosen 5db, What are you going to tell people in Wightman road that several

properties doesn’t have any margin at all of noise beneath their floor.

Ans: We have assessed the noise levels, there are 21 noise sensors in each of

these rows, we have assessed the rating level projected at that sensor, some

on ground floor levels and first floor levels and we have identified the

background noise level is and all of them are substantially below. The noise

from stationary sources will not be any louder than the current levels.

Q33: At the consultation in January it was acknowledge by Arups staff that

noise was big issue and this evening we do not have any body to answer

specific questions about noise because the people here are not experts in noise

Page 139



Planning Sub-Committee Report

5.

and cannot answer our questions. What will Arup and Network Rail going to

do to address that?

Ans: We will respond in writing to your questions, it is the best thing we can

do. We have the Residents Association have set out a detail position in their

letter; we can respond to that, we can respond on the train frequency. I can

give you my email address and you can email your questions and I will be

happy to get answers to you from the experts.

Q34: Other sites, have you looked at buying more land next to the sites to give

you wants you are looking for?

Ans: We concentrated on railway land, the Government policy is to re use

existing railway land where possible and also timescale of the programme and

the decision was made that it was not possible to find a green field and a non

railway site into the railway estate.

Paul Smith reminded everyone to submit their comments to the Planning

Service if not already done so and further representations can be made at

Planning Committee. He thanked everyone for attending and contributing to

the meeting.

End of meeting

Page 140



Planning Sub-Committee Report

Appendix 4 
Design Panel Report 

 
 
 

Page 141



Planning Sub-Committee Report

 
 
 
 

 
 

 Haringey Design Panel no. 25 
Thursday 20th January 2011 

 
ATTENDANCE 
Panel  
Chris Mason  
Gordon Forbes 
Peter Sanders 
Stephen Davy  
Tim Hagyard  
Paul Simms 
 
Observers 
Richard Truscott (Facilitator) .......  Haringey Council 
Mortimer MacSweeney ...............  Haringey Council 
Stefan Krupski ............................  Haringey Council 
 

The following schemes were considered by the Panel: 
1) Presentation of proposals for Thameslink Depot at Hornsey 
 
James Lough ..............................  Planning Consultant, Arup 
Fred Deacon ...............................  Architect, Arup 
 
2) Presentation of proposals for Highgate Synagogue, North Road 
 
Teva Hesse .................................  Architect 
Harald Brekke .............................  Architect   
 
After discussion of the schemes - 
Draft Sustainable Design and Construction SPD: 

After the presentations and panel discussions on the two schemes, Haringey officers 
presented the draft Sustainable Design and Construction Supplementary Planning 
Document (SPD).  The public consultation was currently going on, but was due to finish 
just over a week after the panel.  However Haringey officers confirmed that responses 
received only a few days after the end of the official consultation would still be considered 
valid.  After a short discussion of the document and the design guidance contained, all the 
panel members took detailed response forms and agreed to provide comments and 
suggestions.   

Page 142



Planning Sub-Committee Report

 

1) Presentation of proposals for Thameslink Depot at Hornsey and questions 

James Lough of Arup presented the planning background of the proposal for a depot for 
Thameslink trains alongside the East Coast Main Line on railway operational land to the 
north and south of Hornsey Station.  This major infrastructure investment will transform the 
Thameslink and Great Northern routes by providing a modern fleet of more frequent and 
longer trains, requires two depots; the larger one is now proposed to be south of London, 
but the second needs to be north of central London and Hornsey has been identified by 
Network Rail as the only viable site.   

The proposal includes a large area of re-laid existing “stabling” sidings with train washing 
and other small structures between the main line and the existing depot south of Hornsey 
Station and, pertinently to the panel remit, an enclosed maintenance depot building on the 
currently unused “Coronation Sidings” north of both Hornsey Station and the bridge over 
Turnpike Lane. 

Fred Deacon of Arup then presented a detailed architectural description of the 
maintenance depot building.  The exacting technical requirements of the shed which will 
be a 24/7 working facility include 3 tracks with cranes above and maintenance pits 
beneath.  The depot building (which measures 280m long, 40m wide, and 11m high) has 
been engineered as tight as possible, has been reduced to the minimum volume possible 
and is smaller than the original size and form proposed. Kalzip standing seam aluminium 
cladding with a pattern of Kalwall translucent panels will wrap over both roof and walls 
with radiused bends.   

Other small scale free standing accommodation within the site will be similarly detailed 
(e.g. the train washers and the under frame cleaning facility).  Arup showed the location of 
the existing access road from Hampden Road at Hornsey Station and pedestrian access 
from Turnpike Lane and north of the site, leading to modest staff parking areas and a full 
height glazed main entrance emblazoned with 5m high branding lettering.  They also 
outlined their initial proposed Section 106 contributions for public realm and access 
improvements. 

Panel Observations 

Environment and Sustainability 

1. Noise control will be very important in this proposal as there are residential neighbours 
close by in the New River Estate to the west and could be even closer to the east on 
potential development land there.  During the questions Arup had stated that the 
existing depot had a good record at minimising working noise, which the Thameslink 
Depot Project intend to continue, and the depot building will enclose much noise and 
be acoustically insulated.  

2. Artificial Light Spillage from the building and site needs to be carefully investigated to 
minimise its effect on surrounding areas, and demonstrated.  During questions Arup 
explained that Kalwall is a diffusing material that while it lets in good daylight, aiding 
the building to minimise its energy use, does not let out much artificial light.  They also 
pointed out that the existing Coronation sidings had large floodlights, which had not 
been used for a few years but were still operational, but these would be replaced with 
much lower and less light spilling external lights. 

3. Although there would be some air movement within the building from the open ends 
when trains enter or leave, the sheer length means some cross ventilation would be 

Page 143



Planning Sub-Committee Report

needed and desirable.  However the elevations seem to make no provision for this or 
the noise suppression that would need to accompany it.   

4. The depot could potentially make significant contributions to low carbon heat and 
electricity generation from photo-voltaic panels on the roof and from ground source 
heat pumps under the extensive area of the site, but these were not shown in the 
proposal.   

Cladding and Fenestration 

5. The seemingly random pattern of areas of Kalwall translucent glazing on both the roof 
and walls was the main aspect of concern to most members of the panel.  There was 
concern that it was arbitrary rather than derived from real functional requirements, and 
the panel considered the clean elegant form, especially in long views including from 
Alexandra Palace on a hill above, would be best enhanced with simple continuous roof 
lights and windows, more reminiscent of the Sainsbury Centre, Norwich. 

6. Although the glazed entrance element was not a concern itself, there was considerable 
concern at the large “THAMESLINK” lettering proposed; both for its size per se, 
concern that it would have to be regularly changed as corporate branding was 
changed, and that it was inappropriate facing away from the railway, “inland” towards 
the area intended to be developed.   The panel agreed it would be completely 
unacceptable to have large, bright, garish or illuminated signage applied to any part of 
the building.   

Form and Massing 

7. The overall form of the proposal as a clean, continuous linear tube is potentially 
elegant.  However the relationship of the east side to potential adjoining residential 
developments could probably be improved by introducing more variation of building 
edge or angle of cladding, to reduce its apparent size when viewed from nearby.   

8. It was suggested that the east sloping mono-pitch be flipped to slope west.  This could 
slightly reduce light spillage to the east.  However the proposed roof pitch is only 2.5°, 
so the difference would be small.   

9. Another suggestion to improve it by reducing its impact was for the whole building to 
be lowered more into the embankment.  This might be only technically possible to a 
limited degree but should be tested.   

 

Consensus and Conclusions 

10.The panel welcomed the suggested public realm improvements being considered as 
potential section 106 contributions.  

11.The panel requested verified views from around the site, especially from the terrace in 
front of Alexandra Palace. 

12.Otherwise, and notwithstanding the detailed design concerns, especially the pattern of 
cladding, the panel broadly welcomed the proposal in principle, but stressed their 
desire it be kept simple and elegant.   

2)  Presentation of proposals for Highgate Synagogue, North Road and questions 

Confidential until used in Planning Committee.  

Page 144



Planning Sub-Committee Report

APPENDIX 5 
HEADS OF TERMS FORS106 LEGAL AGREEMENT

Page 145



Planning Sub-Committee Report

The Parties:
Network Rail (NR) 
Haringey Council (Council) 

 

The Site: Coronation Sidings, Wood Green/Hornsey 

 

Legal Effect: s106 Town & Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended)   

s278 Highways Act 1980   

 

1 Planning Permission 
 

This agreement is conditional upon the grant of planning permission under 
reference no. HGY/2011/0612 for: 
 

Construction of rolling stock maintenance depot and associated works including 
main depot building, office and storage space; track and sidings; underframe 
cleaning facility and plant room; two train washers and plant rooms; waste 
compactors; partial rebuilding of Hornsey Station footbridge; two shunters 
cabins; bridge widenings over the New River and Turnpike Lane; associated 
works including engineering, signalling, electrification and other operational 
works and equipment for the railway; hard surfacing and new internal site 
access road; landscaping; fences; car, motorcycle and bicycle parking; 
construction of retaining walls; temporary construction haul bridge and use of 
land as a temporary construction compound (‘the Development’). 

 
2 Heads of Terms 
 
2.1 The provisions set out below form the principal Heads of Terms of the proposed 

legal agreement under s106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 relating to 
the Development.  The principal obligations will cover: 

 
Sustainability: 
 

2.2 From the Occupation of the Development, NR agree to use and maintain the 
biomass boiler for the lifetime of the Development unless it is replaced by a future 
connection to a District Energy Hub or such other source of energy supply 
approved in writing by the Council. 
 

2.3 From the Occupation of the Development NR undertake to test the emissions from 
the biomass boiler at full load twice annually using a flue gas analyser (once during 
the heating season and again after the summer service is completed) and to send 
the results to the Council together with records of all fuels consumed and relevant 
compliance certificates.  If the emissions are above: 

 
NOx = 150mg/m3 (13% oxygen,273K, 0% water, 101.3 kPa) 
PM10 = 45 mg/m3 (13% oxygen, 273K, 0% water, 101.3 kPa) 

Page 146



Planning Sub-Committee Report

NR will take immediate and reasonably practicable steps to secure a reduction in 
emissions to at most those stated concentrations and emission rates.  NR to 
confirm to the Council the measures it has taken and re-submit new emissions test 
data to demonstrate the effectiveness of the measures. 
 
Transport and access improvements (s278 works in part): 
 

2.4 NR to pay £50,000 to the Council for street lighting improvements underneath and 
in the vicinity of the widened railway bridge at Turnpike Lane including a lower arm 
backlight to the lighting column outside the proposed pedestrian/cycle access off 
Turnpike Lane. Payment to be made on the start of development.  
 

2.5 NR to pay £255,000 to the Council for a comprehensive scheme to improve 
conditions for pedestrians/cyclists on Turnpike Lane underneath and close to the 
widened bridge and an amended layout to the Hornsey Lane/Turnpike Lane 
junction to enhance pedestrian safety and amenity.  Payment to be made on the 
start of development. 

 
2.6 With the development generating increased traffic flows in the area, NR will pay 

£90,000 to the Council for lighting and footway surfacing improvements extending 
30m. north and south of the Hampden Road/Wightman Road junction, for junction 
entry treatment improvements at that junction and/or for lighting, footway &/or 
carriageway improvements on the unadopted section of Hampden Road east of 
and including the bridge section over New River as may be agreed by the Council 
with third party owners.  Payment to be made on the start of development. 
 

2.7 With the development generating increased traffic flows in the area, prior to the 
start of development NR will design and submit to the Council for agreement an 
improvement scheme (which shall not be required to cost more than £100,000) that 
NR will implement for the lighting and footways along the unadopted highway of 
Hampden Road (west of the New River bridge as owned by NR) to promote 
pedestrian safety. NR will submit the scheme to the Council within 12 months of the 
start of construction of the Development and will undertake and complete the 
approved works prior to occupation of the Development. .  

 
2.8 NR to use all reasonable endeavours to keep open for public use the pedestrian 

footbridge from Hampden Road to Tottenham Lane/Hornsey Station provided that 
this obligation shall not in any way restrict or prevent NR from closing (including 
temporarily) and/or removing the footbridge for any reason where such reason 
relates to (i) the safety, repair, maintenance, improvement, redevelopment or 
reconstruction of the footbridge or any other rail facilities; or (ii) the operational 
requirements or purposes of NR, the users of the railway, or the rail regulators and 
further provided that such route shall not constitute a public right of way and NR 
shall be entitled to take any actions it considers necessary to prevent any such right 
occurring. 
 

2.9 To support the travel mode targets in the Transport Assessment, within 12 months 
of the start of development, NR to submit to the Council for agreement a plan, 
programme and estimated cost of improvement works to Hornsey Station to 

Page 147



Planning Sub-Committee Report

enhance rail passenger convenience and comfort.  These works may include works 
to the Station entrance, booking hall, stairs and platforms.  The cost of these works 
shall not be required to exceed £100,000.  The works shall be completed prior to 
occupation of the Development. 
 

2.10 Prior to the start of development, NR to pay £40,000 to the Council for lighting 
improvements along the Penstock Path including under the temporary bridge to be 
constructed as part of the development. 
 

Environmental improvements in the vicinity of the Development 

2.11 NR to procure the removal of all of the advertisement hoardings erected on its land 
adjacent to the rail bridge over Turnpike Lane (ie. NR owns 9 of the 12 hoardings in 
this vicinity as marked on a plan to be attached to the agreement) within 6 months 
of the start of development. 

  
2.12 Subject to para. 2.13, within 6 months of the start of development NR will submit to 

the Council for approval a mixed deciduous and evergreen planting and 
landscaping scheme (to an estimated cost (including any delivery, maintenance 
contributions and associated costs) that shall not be required to exceed £309,000) 
for third party land on the west side of the rail lines in the vicinity of New River 
Village (along a length of approximately 540m. as shown on a plan to be attached to 
the agreement) to provide some visual screening of the Development.   Subject to 
agreement with the third party landowners (which will be pursued with reasonable 
endeavours by NR), NR to implement the agreed planting scheme in the first 
planting season following approval by the Council and agreement by the third party 
landowners.   
 

2.13 In the event that one or more of the third party landowners do not agree to the 
planting scheme on their land, NR shall undertake the planting on the land for which 
agreement has been granted (if any) and will notify the Council of the proportionate 
cost of that work and pay the balance of any unspent funds up to £309,000 to the 
Council for it to undertake planting, landscaping &/or environmental improvement 
works in the general area surrounding the Development in accordance with a 
scheme to be agreed between NR and the Council.  If none of the third party 
landowners give consent for the planting on their land, NR will pay the full £309,000 
to the Council for it to undertake planting, landscaping &/or environmental 
improvement works in the general area surrounding the Development. 

 
2.14 NR to prepare a scheme (to an estimated cost that shall not be required to exceed 

£50,000) to improve the appearance of the wall surfaces along the full length of the 
Turnpike Lane tunnel (to be lengthened as part of the Development) for submission 
to the Council for approval within 12 months of the start of development.  These 
works may include painting of the walls, architectural lighting, wall art or any other 
measures as may be agreed (consistent with promoting highway & pedestrian 
safety).  Subject to Council approval, NR to implement and complete such 
improvements prior to the occupation of the Development. 
 

Employment skills training, local labour and apprenticeships:  

Page 148



Planning Sub-Committee Report

2.15 NR to pay £50,000 a year to the Council for 4 years starting at the commencement 
of construction of the development to fund a programme (which may be an 
extension of an existing programme(s)) of employment skills training targeted to 
local people.  
  

2.16 Prior to the occupation of the development NR to use reasonable endeavours to 
employ or procure the employment of 2 apprentices at any one time for work in the 
new depot (for the lifetime of the depot’s use) targeted to persons who for a period 
of at least 6 months immediately prior to the offer of an apprenticeship place have 
been resident in the London Borough of Haringey.  
 

2.17 NR to use reasonable endeavours to procure that construction and engineering 
contractors & sub-contractors engaged to build the development will employ 20% 
of the employees on site who are resident in north London (defined as the boroughs 
of Haringey, Enfield, Barnet, Camden, Islington, Hackney and Waltham Forest. 
 

2.18 NR will use reasonable endeavours to achieve via contractors and sub-contractors 
a target of 4 apprenticeships to be offered to Haringey residents in construction & 
related skills during the period of construction of the Development (with liaison with 
the College of Haringey Enfield and North-East London). 
 

Reinstatement & Maintenance of Landscaping and Open Space: 

2.19 NR to ensure that the landscaping/ecological enhancement works on the east side 
of the site are completed no later than the first planting season following first 
occupation of the depot building. 
 

2.20 Within 6 months of completion of the landscaping works on the land on the east 
side of the depot building (plan outlining this part of the site to be attached to the 
agreement), NR to use reasonable endeavours to offer to grant to National Grid 
Property or its successor in title (as the main landowner of the proposed Clarendon 
Square residential development scheme adjoining that land) a management 
agreement/arrangement of that land on the east side of the depot building for no 
less than 25 years.  The terms of that management agreement/arrangement, 
including management and maintenance standards, are to be agreed between the 
parties and National Grid Property but, for the avoidance of doubt, they will not 
include the requirement for any rental payment to NR and will provide, as 
necessary, for NR access to and use of that land for operational or safety 
requirements (as NR may reasonably require).   Network Rail to maintain full 
maintenance responsibility to a standard to be agreed with the Council if National 
Grid Property decides not to take up the offer of a management agreement. 
 

Site Management 

2.21 No later than 18 months from the start of construction of the Development, NR will 
prepare and submit to the Council for approval a Site Management Plan in respect 
of the Coronation Sidings site which will include provisions for: 

 
maintenance of landscaping and planting on site (west and east) 

Page 149



Planning Sub-Committee Report

measures to ensure the control of noise and light emissions from the 
maintenance shed to avoid disturbance to existing residents and new 
residents in the planned development at Clarendon Square  

 
measures to ensure the control of access to and use of site car parks at night 
to avoid disturbance to local residents (both existing residents and new 
residents in the planned development at Clarendon Square) 

 
enforcing a 10mph on-site vehicle speed limit 

 
ensuring no vehicle deliveries of materials or supplies are made to the site 
outside the hours of 6am – 10pm weekdays and Saturdays or outside the 
hours of 10am – 4pm on Sundays or Bank Holidays (save in exceptional 
circumstances for any deliveries that are required and necessary to enable 
the safe and efficient operation of the railway depot) 

 
ensuring safe pedestrian access to the Depot building during the day and at 
night 

 
controlling the use of outside areas by staff at night to avoid disturbance to 
existing residents and new residents of the planned development at 
Clarendon Square (save for any use of outside areas by operational staff that 
is reasonably required and necessary to enable the safe and efficient 
operation of the railway depot) 

 
measures to ensure the control and maintenance of site lighting to avoid 
disturbance to existing residents and new residents in the planned 
development at Clarendon Square  

 
Distribution of information leaflets, maintenance of information website and 
employment of named liaison officer to provide information to local residents 
and landowners and to be point of contact to resolve issues/complaints.  

 
2.22 Network Rail to commit to require all on-site construction contractors to comply 

with the Considerate Constructors Scheme. 
  

2.23 NR to install, operate and manage an on-site CCTV system in accordance with 
Drawing [     ]. 
  
Area Planning and Improvements: 

2.24 Within 12 months of the start of development, NR to supply to the Council a 
technical report providing a comprehensive structural investigation of the bridge 
over the Penstock Footpath including a full assessment of water penetration 
through the structure or adjoining land resulting in water flowing/dripping onto the 
Penstock Footpath.  Subject to obtaining all necessary consents, NR to undertake 
repair/remedial works (which shall not be required to exceed £100,000) to reduce 
the impact of water drips onto pedestrians/cyclists using the Penstock Footpath 
tunnel or reduce the causes any undue surface water on the foot/cycle path.  

 

Page 150



Planning Sub-Committee Report

2.25 Prior to occupation of the Development, NR to pay £80,000 to the Council to 
contribute to the next phase of master planning for the wider regeneration area of 
Haringey Heartlands and Wood Green. 
 

General 

2.26 All funding contributions to be index-linked to the All Items Retail Prices Index from 
the date of the agreement. 
  

2.27 At the start of development, NR to pay £20,000 to the Council to assist the 
monitoring of this s106 agreement. 
 

2.28 NR to pay the Council’s legal costs on completion of the agreement. 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 151



Page 152

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 153



Page 154

This page is intentionally left blank



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

Planning Sub-Committee 12 September 2011    Item No. 
 
REPORT FOR CONSIDERATION AT PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

Reference No: HGY/2011/1166 Ward:  Fortis Green 
 

Address: Eden Primary, 79 Creighton Avenue N10 1NR 
 
Proposal: Erection of three storey school building with associated external works 
including landscaping, access ways, disabled and cycle parking 
 
Existing Use: Vacant                                Proposed Use: Education                                      
 
Applicant: Mr Peter Kessler Eden Primary Trust 
 
Ownership: Private 
 

Date received: 20/06/2011 Last amended date: N / A  
 
Drawing number of plans: PL03 - PL10 incl. 
 

 
Case Officer Contact: Matthew Gunning 
 

 
PLANNING DESIGNATIONS:  Road Network: Classified  Road 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION: GRANT PERMISSION subject to conditions and subject to sec. 
106 Legal Agreement. 
 

 
SUMMARY OF REPORT: The proposal is for the erection of a three-storey building with 
associated external works including landscaping, access ways, disabled and cycle 
parking. The school building will consist of 7 classrooms, a school hall, kitchen, 
administration offices and associated support facilities.  The planned total capacity of the 
school will be 210 pupils. The school, to be known as Eden Primary, is to be one of the 
first 16 ‘free school’ identified and supported by the coalition government. The proposal 
will provide a high quality education facility which will increase the supply of school 
places in this part of the borough, with enhanced opportunities for teaching and learning 
and with wider benefits to the local community through opportunities for additional 
activity outside of normal school hours. It is considered that the layout, design and 
external appearance of the development will be in keeping with the setting of the site, in 
particular next to Metropolitan Open Land (MOL) and the surrounding area. The scheme 
has been designed sensitively in relationship to adjoining residential properties and the 
ecological designation of the site. On balance, the transport and access arrangements are 
considered satisfactory in light of the proposed travel initiatives and the catchments area 
for this school. 

 

Agenda Item 8Page 155



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

1. SITE AND SURROUNDINGS 
 
1.1 The subject site is a large rectangular shaped sited measuring 0.5sq.m in 

size located on the southern side of Creighton Avenue, immediately to the 
west and adjoining the large Fortismere Secondary School site. The site 
previously contained a large two-storey building with rooms within the 
roofspace which has now been demolished. To the back of the previous 
building on site is a substantial plot of land (projecting back almost 100m) 
that is densely overgrown with mature vegetation. The land rises significantly 
from street level towards the rear boundary, with a change in level of 
approximately 7 metres from front to rear. 

 
1.2 The site is bounded to the west by the rear gardens of houses fronting 

Ringwood Avenue, and to the south and east by the Fortismere School 
playing fields and school buildings respectively.  The rear two-thirds of the 
subject site (i.e. from just beyond the rear building line of the original 
dwelling) is designated as an area of Metropolitan Open Land (MOL). The 
entire application site is also designated as an Area of Ecological Importance 
(Local Importance). 

 
1.3 Creighton Avenue is a long residential road which falls within the boroughs of 

Haringey and Barnet and is characterised by two storey semi-detached and 
detached properties. The northern side of Creighton Avenue is predominantly 
residential, although it is punctuated in three sizeable locations by Coldfall 
Wood, which has frontages onto Creighton Avenue. Coldfall Wood is also 
designated as Metropolitan Open Land and a Borough Grade I Area of 
Ecological Importance.   

 
1.4 Creighton Avenue and its immediate surrounds can be characterised by the 

abundance of mature trees lining the streets, adding much to the visual 
amenity of the area. There are a number of protected trees on the site in 
question. The site is not within a Conservation Area. 

 
2. PROPOSAL 
 
2.1 The proposal is for the erection of a three-storey building with associated 

external works including landscaping, access ways, disabled and cycle 
parking  to be built at 79 Creighton Avenue, Muswell Hill. The school building 
will consist of 7 classrooms, a school hall, kitchen, administration offices and 
associated support facilities (equating to 1223 sqm). The planned total 
school capacity will be 210 pupils. The school (which is currently referred to 
as Haringey Jewish Primary School) is to be a ‘free school’ and is one of the 
first 16 schools identified and supported by the current coalition government. 
The school hopes to offer places in September 2011 and will initially occupy 
temporary accommodation on the adjoining school site.  

 
2.2 The school will be used predominantly from 9am until 3pm, weekdays during 

term time. However, the School plan to offer breakfast and after School clubs 
which are likely to be taken up by a minority of pupils, and run from 8am until 

Page 156



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

6pm. There will also be occasional use outside of these times for summer 
fairs and similar activities. The intention is also to maximise use of the 
building (i.e. the hall with ancillary kitchen facility) for third party lettings (i.e. 
community events/ activities, family parties/ celebrations, religious events). 
The building will not be open later than 10.30pm weekdays, occasionally later 
on Saturdays, and no later than 10pm on Sundays. 

 
3. PLANNING HISTORY 
 
3.1 Planning Application History 
 

HGY/2003/1315 - Change of use from Class D1 (educational) to Class C3 
(dwellinghouse). – Approved 10/09/2003 
 
HGY/2003/0303 - Erection of six, 16 metre floodlighting poles to all weather 
pitch. – Withdrawn 04/12/2003 
 
HGY/2004/2392 - Demolition of existing building and erection of 3 storey, 
plus basement to provide 94 bedrooms, care home building and parking for 
21 cars. – Withdrawn 17/12/2004 
 
HGY/2005/0864 - Demolition of exisitng building and redevelopment 
involving excavation and erection of a five storey building including basement 
providing 56 bed care home.  Provision of 11 car parking spaces and 
associated landscaping. – Refused 30/06/2005 
 
HGY/2005//1932 - Demolition of existing building and redevelopment to 
include erection of a three storey nursing home with associated parking and 
landscaping. –Approved 30/01/2006 

 
3.2 Planning Enforcement History 
 

None 
 
3. RELEVANT PLANNING POLICY  
 
3.1 National Planning Policy 
 

Planning Policy Statement 1: Delivering Sustainable Development 
Planning Policy Guidance 2: Green Belts 
 Planning Policy Guidance 9: Biodiversity and Geological Conservation 
Planning Policy Guidance 13: Transportation 
Planning Policy Guidance 17: Planning for Open Space: Sport and 
Recreation 
Planning Policy Statement 22: Renewable Energy 
Planning Policy Guidance 24: Planning and Noise 
 
Policy Statement – Planning for Schools Development (August 2011) – This 
document sets outs the Government’s firm committed to ensuring there is 

Page 157



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

sufficient provision to meet growing demand for state-funded school places, 
increasing choice and opportunity in state-funded education and raising 
educational standards. The policy statement  goes on to state that “creating 
free schools remains one of the Government’s flagship policies, enabling 
parents, teachers, charities and faith organisations to use their new freedoms 
to establish state-funded schools and make a real difference in their 
communities”. 

 
3.2 London Plan (July 2011) 
 

Policy 3.18 Education facilities  
Policy 5.1 Climate change mitigation  
Policy 5.11 Green roofs and development site environs  
Policy 5.1 Climate change mitigation  
Policy 5.2 Minimising carbon dioxide emissions  
Policy 5.3 Sustainable design and construction  
Policy 5.7 Renewable energy  
Policy 6.9 Cycling  
Policy 6.10 Walking  
Policy 7.1 Building London’s neighbourhoods and communities  
Policy 7.2 An inclusive environment 
Policy 7.3 Designing out crime  
Policy 7.6 Architecture  
Policy 7.15 Reducing noise and enhancing soundscapes  
Policy 7.17 Metropolitan Open Land  
Policy 7.18 Protecting local open space and addressing local deficiency  
Policy 7.19 Biodiversity and access to nature  
Policy 7.21 Trees and woodlands 

 
3.3 Unitary Development Plan 

 
Policy G1 Environment 
Policy G2: Development and Urban Design 
Policy G9 Community Wellbeing 
Policy UD2 Sustainable Design and Construction 
Policy UD3 General Principles 
Policy UD4 Quality Design 
Policy UD7 Waste Storage 
Policy ENV1 Flood Protection: Protection of Floodplain, Urban Washlands 
Policy ENV2 Surface Water Runoff 
Policy ENV3 Water Conservation 
Policy ENV6 Noise Pollution 
Policy ENV7 Air, Water and Light Pollution 
Policy ENV13 Sustainable Waste Management 
Policy M3 New Development Location and Accessibility 
Policy M4 Pedestrian and Cyclists 
Policy M5 Protection, Improvement and Creation of Pedestrian and Cycle 
Routes 
Policy M10 Parking for Development 

Page 158



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

Policy OS2 Metropolitan Open Land 
Policy OS3 Significant Local Open Land 
Policy OS5 Development Adjacent to Open Space 
Policy OS6 Ecological Valuable Sites and their Corridors 
Policy OS10 Other Open Space 
Policy OS11 Biodiversity 
Policy OS16 Green Chains 
Policy OS17 Tree Protection, Tree Masses and Spines 

 
3.4 Supplementary Planning Guidance / Documents 
 

SPG1a Design Guidance and Design Statements 
SPG5 Safety by Design 
SPG7a Vehicle and Pedestrian Movement 
SPG7b Travel Plan  
SPG7c Transport Assessment  
SPG8a Waste and Recycling 
SPG8b Materials 
SPG8c Environmental Performance 
SPG8d Biodiversity, Landscape & Trees 
SPG8e Light Pollution 
SPG8g Ecological Impact Assessment 
SPG8h Environmental Impact Assessment 
SPG9 Sustainability Statement Guidance 
SPG10a The Negotiation, Management and Monitoring of Planning 
Obligations 

 
3.4 Other  

 
Haringey ‘Draft Supplementary Planning Document on Sustainable Design 
and Construction’  
Haringey ‘Greenest Borough Strategy’ 
Haringey ‘Biodiversity Action Plan’ 2009 

 
 
4. CONSULTATION 
 

Statutory Internal External 

Environmental Agency
 
 
 
 

Ward Councillors 
Transportation 
Legal 
Environmental Health 
Building Control 
Transportation 
Arboricultural Officer 
Nature Conservation 
Officer 
Crime Prevention Officer 
Waste Management 

Barnet Council 
Crime Prevention Officer 
LFEPA 
 
Local Residents 
 
No’s 1-27 Annington 
Road; 1-44 Beech Drive; 
2- 13 Birchwood 
Avenue; 1-16 Burlington 
Road; 1-40 Church Vale, 

Page 159



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

 1-20 Clissold Close; 1-
19 Collingwood Avenue, 
1-16 Coppets Road; 1-
196 Creighton Avenue; 
37-60 Eastern Road; 1-
24 Eastwood Road; 1-9 
Chessing Court; 1-10 
Firemans Cottages 
Fortis Green; No’s. 01-
51 (consecutive) 
Ringwood Avenue, N10 
No’s. 01- 35 
(consecutive) Beech 
Drive, N10 
40 Church Lane, N10 
3, 18, 22, 34, 39 Church 
Vale, N10 
No’s. 1-86 Twyford 
Avenue, All residents 
along Fortis Green. 
 
Amenity Groups  
 
Muswell Hill & Fortis 
Green Residents 
Association 
Friends of Muswell Hill 
Playing Friends and 
Coldfall Woods 
 
 

  
 
 
5. RESPONSES 
 

Transportation 
 
5.1 The application site is located in an area that has a low PTAL level of 1 and is 

within reasonable walking distance of the 102, 234, 603 and 653 bus routes, 
which offer links to Highgate and Bounds Green underground stations and 
Muswell Hill bus interchange with a two-way frequency of approximately 28 
buses per hour. It has been acknowledged that there is a local demand for 
the school, with initial parent and guardian surveys indicating that all children 
will live within 1.5miles of the site. It has been confirmed that the schools 
enrolment policy, is based on the pupil’s proximity to the school.  

  
5.2 Modal share information taken from neighbouring Fortismere School travel 

plan indicates that 71% of the students walk to school and approximately 

Page 160



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

21% travel by sustainable modes. Therefore it is considered that the 
feasibility of integrating “walking” with the frequent bus services provides 
considerable sustainable travel alternatives for the pupils/staff/patrons, 
thereby suppressing reliance on car travel. 

 
5.3 The applicant’s consultant MLM Consulting Engineers have provided a 

transport assessment (TA) to support the proposed development and a 
School Travel Plan (STP) to mitigate any adverse impact of the proposed 
development. Based on London specific school sites within the TRICS 
databse the TA projects that for 2017 when the school will be at maximum 
capacity (210 pupils) there will be 33.6 two-way traffic movements during  the 
am school peak. However, when applying survey data from Eden School 
stating that 20% of pupils will be arriving by car, we project that there will be 
in the order of 42 movements in the am peak. However, although there is a 
significant difference in these projections, these movements will take place 
over the course of an hour and will therefore not have a significant impact 
upon the existing highway network. 

  
5.4  The travel plan submitted as part of this application outlines a number of 

measures to encourage parents and staff to travel to and from the site using 
sustainable modes of transport. The provision and management of the STP 
will need to be secured by means of a S.106 Agreement.  Although the 
school governors will have overall responsibility for the management and 
implementation of the travel plan, the school will appoint a dedicated travel 
plan co-ordinator to ensure targets are met and measures remain relevant. 
Parents and guardians of prospective pupils took part in an initial travel 
survey, which indicated that 53% would be walking to school and 20% 
would be using other sustainable modes such as taking the bus, cycling and 
car share. The modal split for the first phase indicating a high level of pupils 
travelling by sustainable modes is evidenced by modal share patterns at 
neighbouring Fortismere School, where 71% of pupils walk to school.  

 
5.5 The proposal includes just one on-site parking space, which will be 

designated for the use of Disabled Blue Badge holders. The site will have an 
“in” and “out” arrangement and will incorporate a drop off area for pupils 
arriving by private vehicles, which is to be supervised during school “pick-
up” and “drop-off” times. It is also proposed that this forecourt area be 
utilised by service and delivery vehicles, which will avoid pupil drop-off and 
pick-up times. Although the level of car parking provision is considerably less 
than that expected, we have considered that in this case restricted car 
parking provision together with extended parking restrictions outside the 
school would form a key element of the travel plan initiatives proposed by the 
applicant. Furthermore, the application site has not been identified by the 
Council’s adopted UDP as a location which suffers from high parking 
pressures.  

 
5.6 In order to accommodate for the resulting increase in pedestrian and cycle 

traffic and to further encourage journeys by foot and cycle, the applicant is 
required to contribute towards a scheme to improve highway safety outside 

Page 161



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

the school. A raised zebra crossing serving both Eden School and 
neighbouring Fortismere School will vastly improve conditions for students 
walking/cycling to school as well as encourage the uptake of these 
sustainable modes of transport. To further enhance highway safety within the 
immediate vicinity of the site, the scheme should also include raised entry 
treatments, raising the existing uncontrolled crossing to the west of the site, 
additional parking restrictions and improved signing and lighting.  

 
5.7 The proposal is only likely to result in an additional 42 movements during the 

am peak hour. As these temporary visits only take place during school drop-
off/pick-up times these traffic movements are unlikely to have a significant 
impact on the local road network. Therefore, the highway and transportation 
authority do not wish to object to this application subject to the imposition of 
the following conditions: 

  
1. The applicant is required to enter into a S.106 Agreement securing:  
 

(a) a £82,000 (eighty two thousand pound) contribution for a 
comprehensive highway safety scheme including: raised zebra and 
pedestrian crossings, raised entry treatments, additional parking 
restrictions and improvements to signing and lighting within the 
immediate vicinity of the site. 

  
Reason: To improve pedestrian/cycle conditions in the immediate 
vicinity of this development. 

  
(b) a School Travel Plan, which is to be put into place at least three 
months in advance of the occupation of the development and to 
additionally be assessed by the Transport   

  
Reason: To promote more trips by sustainable modes of transport to 
and from the site. 

  
2.  Submits a construction management strategy which would show the 

routeing of traffic around the immediate road network and ensure that 
freight and waste deliveries are timed  to avoid the peak traffic 
hours. 

  
 Reason: To minimise vehicular conflict at this location. 
  

Informative: The new development will require naming. The applicant 
should contact the Local Land Charges at least six weeks before the 
development is occupied (tel. 020 8489 5573) to arrange for the 
allocation of a suitable address. 

 
Building Control 

 
5.8 Fire Brigade access appears satisfactory. However, along with the means of 

escape in case of fire, the proposed new school will be subject to a full check 

Page 162



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

under the Building Regulations when the application is submitted to Building 
Control. 

 
Nature Conservation Officer 

 
5.9 Objects to the proposed development due to inaccuracies in the application 

and the omission of information of particular importance given the sites 
nature conservation value. The first point relates to the information provided 
in ‘Application Form 1’ where under point 13 ‘Biodiversity and Geological 
Conservation’ the applicant says that there are no protected or priority 
species either on site or on land adjacent to or near the proposed 
development. This is inaccurate as is the information provided by the 
applicant saying that there are no designated sites, important habitats or 
other biodiversity features on the development site or on land adjacent to or 
near the proposed development. 

 
5.10 The proposed site is in fact designated as a Local Site of Importance for 

Nature Conservation and is described as being mostly wooded and an 
important feeding site for bats. Bats are a protected species and like 
Woodland are identified in Haringey’s Biodiversity Action Plan having their 
own specific action plans. The proposed site is adjacent to Coldfall Wood a 
Borough Grade I Site of Importance for Nature Conservation also of 
importance to bats and other locally rare species. 

 
5.11 As the applicant should have said yes to questions in point 13 they should 

also therefore have supplied a supporting statement. Please see quotes 
below from Local Information Requirement Number 11. 

 
“ Biodiversity/Geological Conservation/Landscape & Natural Beauty  
(Ecological Impact Assessment) When is this required? 

 
Haringey Biodiversity Action Group has produced a Biodiversity Action Plan 
(2009) that sets out the aims of the borough in terms of preserving and 
enhancing the quality and quantity of flora and fauna within the borough. The 
Council will have regard to this Plan in making an assessment on any 
application where it is considered that there is likely to be an impact on 
ecology whether that ecology is on the development site itself, or on an 
adjacent site upon which there might be some impact. Haringey has a 
number of protected species and habitats and the protection of these will 
form part of the assessment of any application where there is likely to be an 
impact upon them. In making this assessment regard will be had to the 
provisions of the Biodiversity Action Plan…” 
 
“The Council will expect all planning applications affecting sites of existing or 
potential nature conservation value to be accompanied by a statement which 
clearly demonstrates the ecological impact that the proposed development 
would have. Where there is a risk of harm to a designated site, use of 
conditions of planning obligations will be considered.” 

 

Page 163



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

5.12 A failure to supply this information should lead to the application being 
declared invalid and unacceptable until the missing information is provided. 
The application provides no information on how the site was selected or if 
any alternative sites were looked at? Amongst the key principles of Planning 
Policy Statement 9: Biodiversity and Geological Conservation it is stated that; 

 
“The aim of planning decisions should be to prevent harm to biodiversity and 
geological conservation interests. Where granting planning permission would 
result in significant harm to those interests, local planning authorities will 
need to be satisfied that the development cannot reasonably be located on 
any alternative sites that would result in less or no harm.” 

 
5.13 The application does not provide any evidence that alternative sites would 

result in less or no harm to biodiversity. 
 
5.14 The attached documents submitted with the application do not include the 

Ecological Appraisal Report dated 17 January 2011 which was 
commissioned by the developer. The report raises several concerns about 
the potential impact of the development and makes a number of 
recommendations including the need for further bat surveys. This is 
especially significant as the site is noted for its importance for foraging bats 
which are a protected species. It should also be noted that the phase 1 
habitat survey was conducted at a sub-optimal time of year. 

 
5.15 Haringey’s Unitary Development Plan includes a number of policies to 

protect ecologically important sites and biodiversity e.g. 
 

“OS11: Biodiversity 
All applications and development should respect the biodiversity of the 
borough, and ensure that the biodiversity is not diminished in any form, and 
that every opportunity is taken to enhance it… The Council will resist 
development which would have a significant adverse impact on the 
population or conservation status of a protected species or species which 
have been identified as a priority in the UK, London or Draft Haringey 
Biodiversity Action Plan. Where development is permitted which may cause 
significant harm to biodiversity, the Council will first seek to avoid or minimise 
the impact, then seek mitigation and finally invoke compensatory measures 
for any residual impacts.” 

 
5.16 In my opinion the developer has not submitted enough ecological evidence 

with regard to the biodiversity on the designated site of importance for nature 
conservation and the potential impact that their proposal will have on this 
biodiversity. It has not been demonstrated how any impact will be mitigated 
or compensated for. It is important that should the proposal go ahead as 
submitted that mitigation and compensation are agreed prior to planning 
permission being granted. 

 
5.17 The BREEAM report added in support of the application states several times 

tthat credits are withheld or that no evidence is available, therefore 

Page 164



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

questioning whether a Very Good rating is in fact likely to be achieved as 
predicted. Considering the development site is designated for its ecology it is 
disappointing that the BREEAM scores for ecology are so low. ‘Land Use & 
Ecology’ (LE) section 4 of the BREEAM report anticipates a reduction in the 
sites ecological value again demonstrating the need for mitigation and or 
compensation which does not appear to be forthcoming. 
 
“It is anticipated that the change in the site’s ecological value as a result of 
the development maybe slightly negative. An ecologist will be employed to 
recommend how the ecological impact can be mitigated and how to enhance 
the sites ecological value.” 
 
It is also very disappointing that under section LE8 the BREEAM report states 
that; 
 
 “it was advised that a partnership will not be set up with a local wildlife 
group to provide support and advice to the school to help manage, maintain 
and develop the outdoor space.” 

 
5.18 The BREEAM report has identified sensitive receptors within an 800m radius 

of the site and therefore the need for a noise impact assessment and 
attenuation measures (Pollution 8 – Noise Attenuation). These measures need 
to be evidenced in the planning application in order to assess whether further 
mitigation or compensation is necessary with regard to wildlife sites. Again 
mitigation and compensation needs to be agreed before planning approval is 
granted. 

 
5.19 The planning application includes a renewable energy report where the 

provision of a wind turbine is explained. However despite the potential 
adverse affect that this could have upon bats which are known to use the site 
bats are not mentioned. It is important therefore that a bat activity survey is 
commissioned as recommended by the developer’s ecologists. Bats should 
also be considered with regard to lighting. 

 
5.20 It is noted that the landscaping section of the design and access statement is 

missing and that there is a considerable amount of hard landscaping and 
amenity grassland in the design drawings at the expensive of what is now 
woodland. Haringey has a Woodland Habitat Action Plan including a target to 
increase Woodland. 

 
5.21 Overall it would appear that biodiversity has not been adequately taken into 

consideration and opportunities for mitigation and or compensation have not 
been taken up even where suggested by the developers own ecologists e.g. 
the use of green roofs and walls, etc. It should be noted that under PPS9 
planning decisions should aim to maintain, and enhance, or restore or add to 
biodiversity. The proposal as it stands has not demonstrated how it will do 
any of these things hence the objection to the proposal.  

 
Arboricultural Officer 

Page 165



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

 
5.22  It is proposed to remove a total of 11 trees. They include 6 pine trees (TG 04) 

that are part of the group TPO at the front of the site and 1 Sycamore tree, 
also TPO’d (T25) which is on the boundary with Fortismere School. The pines 
are to be removed to install a wider access road which would involve 
excavating into existing ground levels and their root protection areas (RPA’s). 
There loss would reduce the amenity value of the group TPO, but the 
majority of the pines are being retained.   
 

5.23 The Sycamore tree appears to be in decline, when last inspected the trees 
canopy was sparse with smaller than usual leaves. This would indicate a very 
limited life expectancy of 1-3 years. I have no objection to this tree being 
removed. A replacement tree of a suitable size and species must be planted 
nearby, preferably visible to the public. The other trees specified for removal 
are of low quality and value. 

 
5.24 There will be significant impacts on 3 other trees (T07, T08 and T09) which 

are subject to TPO’s. Both T07 and 08 will require significant pruning to one 
side of their crowns to facilitate the new development. They also both have 
excursions into their RPA’s. T08 is over a third of the total area. 
Consideration should be given to revising the site layout, moving it away from 
these trees to minimise the impact on them. T09 also requires crown 
reduction work to facilitate the proposed development. It can be assumed 
that these 3 trees will require regular crown reduction works in the future as 
the development is so close to them, this will reduce their amenity value and 
expected lifespan. 
  

5.25 All tree protection measures must be installed and approved by council 
arboriculturist, prior to the commencement of any construction activities on 
site  
 
Waste Management 

 
5.26 The plan shows that the distance from the refuse collection vehicle to the bin 

storage area is in excess of 10 metres. The bin storage area needs to be 
within 10 metres of the collection point. The vehicle route inside the school 
grounds needs to be accessible from Creighton Avenue therefore parking 
restrictions by the entrance and exit to the site will be required on Creighton 
Avenue to allow the RCV to enter and exit the site. The site will need 
scheduled daily cleansing as there will be in excess of 200 pupils and staff 
using the site, litter bins would help control litter. 

 
Local Residents 

 
5.27 Letters of support have been received from residents of the following 

properties: 35 Langley Park; 7 Belvedere Court; 102 Queens Avenue, 
Finchley; 77 Fortis Gree;, 20 Garrick Street WC2; 14 Ringwood Avenue; 10 
Deansway N2; 6 Park Avenue N3; Flat 14 Priory Grange, Fortis Green; 70 
Muswell Avenue; 52 Woodland Gardens; 16 Priory Avenue, Crouch End; N8, 

Page 166



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

3 Twyford Avenue; 18 Dorchester Court Muswell Road; 82 Heath View N2; 56 
Brendon Grove N2; 16 Durham Road N2; 33 &  66 Tetherdown; 81 Middle 
Lane Crouch End; 8 Osier Crescent & 35 Page's Hill; who support the 
application on the following grounds: 

 

There is a need for more primary schools places in Haringey and 
the proposal will help ease the stretched situation with school 
places; 

The design of the building will suit its local surroundings; 

The proposed school building has been carefully designed to be as 
organic and naturally fitting into the proximate area as possible;  

The building can be used for community activities outside of 
school hours; 

It will be possible to send children to a school locally within easy 
walking distance without the need to drive or add to local traffic; 

The travel plan has been designed carefully to minimise impact on 
local residents. 

 
5.28 The resident(s) of 197 Creighton Avenue has indicated that they have no 

objection. The resident(s) of No 52 Creighton Avenue have indicated that 
they neither object nor support but raise the following concerns: 

 

The application does not seem to provide for adequate parking within 
the limits of the school property. 

This school will cause a lot more traffic activity particularly at school 
time bearing in mind Fortismere School is next door and children get 
dropped off at relative times. 

 
5.29 Letters of objection have been received from the residents of the following 

properties; No’s 42, 44, 46, 48 & 49 Ringwood Avenue; No’s 24, 62, 84, 96, 
118, 180  Creighton Avenue and No 11 Burlington Road, Muswell Hill. These 
residents object to the proposal on the following grounds: 

 
Bulk, Size & Design 
 

The previous manor house on this plot of land was not used as a main 
school building, it was only used as an ‘extension’ of the main 
Fortismere school for older students who made minimal noise; 

Proposed building is much taller than the adjoining school and 
significantly larger than the adjoining and surrounding residential 
properties; 

The proposed is too big for the site and will change the nature of this 
residential area; 

Creighton Avenue is a residential suburban road; the proposed 
building will have a dexterous effect on the character and appearance 
of the area; 

There are a number of serious concerns about the design of this highly 
individual building, especially in terms of its appearance/ from on 
Creighton Avenue; 

Page 167



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

 
Amenity Issues  
 

The building is positioned too close to the boundary with properties on 
Ringwood Avenue; 

Overlloking from window and the elevated walkway into gardens of 
residential properties on Ringwood Avenue; 

It should only be possible to enter and exit the building from ground 
level; 

Reduced privacy for houses that back onto the site; 

Noise and disturbance that may arise once the school is in use, in 
what is currently a quiet residential area; 

As the hall of the school is next to residential properties, this will mean 
ongoing noise pollution, day and night; 

Would like additional trees planted to block the view and noise of a 
school, between the end of the garden at number 44 and the school 
building; 

A 1.8m boundary fence is insufficient; 

Loss of light/sunshine; 

A different building design would have a less negative impact on the 
properties in Ringwood Avenue. A design similar to the new building of 
East Barnet school would keep the noise within the building; 

It is of concern that, as the application acknowledges, the proposed 
use of the site will create a security risk in an area which primarily 
residential; 

 
Traffic Generation & Parking 
 

The proposal will lead to a significant amount of additional vehicular 
drop-off and pick-up traffic; 

Creighton Avenue already has a very large school (Fortismere School) 
to cope with and there is a very busy Primary School on Pages Lane 
contributing to the volume of traffic in the area; 

The limited number of demarcated parking bays in the vicinity would 
inevitably be taken by teaching staff early in the morning, leaving none 
available throughout the day for parents delivering children to the 
school, let alone other visitors to the area, delivery vans and visitors to 
Coldfall Woods; 

The school run parking around the Pages Lane, Creighton Ave, 
Tetherdown, Burlington and Eastwood Rd junctions is already critical, 
and additional car journeys caused by a further 210 pupils will 
inevitably lead to problems parents of these particular pupils would be 
likely to rely more on public transport than those of other nearby 
schools;  

Parents of Fortismere School park their cars along Ringwood Avenue 
and Creighton Avenue when they are dropping off their children at 
school, or collecting them in the afternoon; 

The poor public transport provision at the site (PTAL 1b - poor level of 
public transport accessibility) increase the likelihood of car usage; 

Page 168



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

Proposals for new educational facilities should be guided to locations 
which have a high rating on the Public Transport Accessibility; 

Additional traffic will make the road dangerous; 

Vision of one parking space on site is wholly inadequate and will 
inevitably lead to increased parking on surrounding roads, to the 
detriment of the amenity of local residents; 

The parking provision should be increased to at least 25 to allow for 
teaching staff and support staff and parents dropping and collecting 
children; 

No allowances have been made for traffic calming;  

Scheme doesn't provide any parking facilities; 

Anticipate morning/afternoon traffic jams on Creighton Avenue and are 
a concern with additional risks to health & safety within the local 
community; 

 
Environmental Issues 
 

Impact on oak tree (labelled T 070 which is of important amenity value; 

A significant number of trees along the Creighton Avenue frontage 
(TG04 iv-xi, i.e. six category B trees) would be felled to allow for the 
construction of an access road; 

Ecological loss (connecting the Metropolitan Open Land with Coldfall 
Woods immediately opposite) should not be underestimated, and 
neither should the loss in terms of local amenity. 

 
Tottenham Police Station/ Crime Prevention  

 
5.31 Have been consulted on this scheme by the architects and have visited the 

site. They have no objection to the proposals and the architect has obviously 
considered crime prevention in the design. They can give further advice as 
necessary throughout the whole lifetime of the scheme. The Crime 
prevention department can be contacted on 02083452167.  

 
Muswell Hill and Fortis Green Association 

 
5.32 The Association realise that the area is short of Primary School places and 

the proposed school will help to alleviate the situation. However, the 
Association is concerned about the effects of the school on traffic and 
parking. The poor accessibility of the site by public transport will almost 
certainly lead to a high level of car usage by both staff and parents. Because 
of the lack of on-site parking (except for 1 disabled bay) the staff will park in 
the limited spaces nearby both during term time and whenever the school is 
used for evening, weekend or holiday activities, as is proposed  

. 
5.33 Use of cars for delivering and collecting children will add to the traffic in the 

already busy Creighton Avenue and will also involve temporary parking for 
parents nearby. Use of the drop-off point within the site may work while there 
are only 30 pupils but as numbers rise to 210 as planned this will become 

Page 169



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

inadequate and the crossovers into and out of the site will present a hazard 
to pedestrians. 

 
5.34 The association is also concerned about possible overlooking and 

disturbance of those properties in Ringwood Ave which back onto the site. It 
is important that effective measures are taken to provide visual barriers and 
also measures to minimize noise from outdoor activities. 

 
5.35 If the Council is minded to approve the Application the Association suggest 

that conditions should be attach 1) to restrict the hours of evening and 
weekend use of the school and 2) to require a revised and more practical 
traffic study and discussions with the Council's Highways Dept concerning 
parking and possible measures to avoid aggravating existing conditions in 
the proximity of the site 

 
London Fire & Emergency Planning Authority  

 
5.36 Insufficient information has been submitted to show compliance with Part B5 

of Building Regulations. 
 

 Development Control Forum  
 
5.37 A meeting was held on 25th July 2011 at Coldfall Primary School. The minutes 

from the Forum will be tabled separately at the Planning Committee Meeting..  
 
6. PRE-APPLICATION CONSULTATION 
 
6.1 Prior to the submission of the planning application a wide range of 

stakeholders meetings/ consultations events took place; namely: 
 

Engagements with User Group including Chair of Proposers and the 
Headteacher on a weekly basis; 

Localised poster and leaflet campaigns, an information pack, direct 
emails, attendance at synagogue groups and Summer Fairs and public 
events; 

A series of public meetings during April 2010, November 2010, & March 
2011; 

A regularly updated web site has been available since 18th June 2010; 

Those who register an interest have also been issued with an e-mail 
newsletter as and when new information becomes available; 

The Eden Primary trust has met with a number of local elected 
representatives including Haringey Councillors, and Officers of the 
Council including the Head of Children’s Services; 

On the 27th April 2011 a public consultation was held in the Raglan Hotel 
with the proposed design/s available; 

Meetings have also been held with Planning and Transport Officers as the 
design has developed; 

The public meetings have typically been attended by between 100 and 
250 individuals.  

Page 170



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

 
Design Panel Presentation 

 
6.2 The scheme was presented to the Design Panel on 14th April 2011 who were 

generally supportive of the design and conceptual approach adopted.  At the 
Design Panel two schemes for the site were presented. The scheme in 
question (referred to the as Scheme 2 in the minutes of the Design Panel 
meeting - attached as Appendix A) is of an organic form influenced by the  
response to nature, informality and the crucial idea of the arena, intrinsic to 
the Reggio Emilia approach to education. 

 
6. ANALYSIS / ASSESSMENT OF THE APPLICATION 
 
6.1 The main issues in respect of this application are considered to be: 
 

1. Principle of development; 
2. Design, Form & Layout; 
3. Impact on the Metropolitan Open Land; 
4. Ecological Impacts/ Impact on Trees; 
5. Impact on Residential Amenity/ Character of the Area; 
6. Traffic Generation, Parking and Access; 
7. Environmental & Sustainability Issues; 
8. Equalities & Diversity Issues. 

 
PRINCIPLE OF DEVELOPMENT 

 
6.2 Policy G9 ‘Community Well Being’ states that development should meet the 

boroughs needs for enhanced community facilities from population and 
household growth, with the objective of increasing the overall stock of good 
quality community facilities, especially in areas of shortage.  

 
6.3 The replacement London Plan 2011 is generally supportive of proposals for 

new schools and in particular, within its Context and Strategy section states, 
 

"A growing city with an increasing number of young people will need 
more educational facilities at all levels. At the same time, policy is 
likely to favour greater choice of school provision. Planning policies 
supporting the allocation of sufficient space for education and 
facilitating development of schools and colleges in appropriate places 
will be essential to London’s continued economic success, tackling 
exclusion and disadvantage and improving quality of life." 
 
"Access to a high quality school education is a fundamental 
determinant of the future opportunities and life chances of London’s 
children and young people. London’s population will continue to be 
younger than elsewhere in England and Wales and by 2031, its school 
age population is projected to increase by almost 17 per cent. At the 
same time, it is likely that national education policy will favour greater 

Page 171



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

diversity in the nature of supply, with an increasing range of specialist 
schools." 

 
6.4 The LPA recognises that demand for places in and around this part of the 

Borough is high, and that projections overall for Haringey show a continuing 
rise in primary numbers. Haringey’s School Place Planning Report 2010 show 
that there area is characterised by an overall high demand for school places 
with low surplus capacity (1.05%). The report states that Tetherdown and 
Coldfall schools have been recently extended to alleviate some of this 
pressure and that Rhodes Avenue Primary will admit an additional reception 
class from September 2011. 

 
6.5 The proposed primary school will be one of the first Government funded Free 

Schools in the country and follows the announcement made on 6th 
September 2010, by Michael Gove MP, Secretary of State for Education, that 
Haringey Jewish Primary School (now known as Eden Primary) is to be 
among the first 16 free schools nationally to be able to progress their 
application to open in September 2011. Free Schools are all-ability, state-
funded schools, set up in response to parental demand. They are publicly-
funded independent schools, free from local authority control. The school 
has been set up in response to the local demand. The schools admission 
policy is not restricted to Jewish children only, with 50% of the intake being 
on religious grounds with the remainder selected on a proximity basis. 

 
6.6 The LPA recognise that the building on site, a large manor house (known as 

Strathlene) with large garden, was previously used as a sixth form centre in 
connection with the Fortismere School, and in addition note that the site 
adjoins a large campus site used for educational purposes.  As such the last 
use for this site was for educational use, before the demolition of the house/ 
clearing of the site in 2006. 

 
6.7 Given however a large part of the sites designation falls within Metropolitan 

Open Land (MOL), this severely limits the use of part of the site and the 
opportunities for development. (pg 232) The London Plan states that land 
designated as MOL is the same as ‘Green Belt’ in terms of protection from 
development, and therefore the principles of control over ‘Green Belt’, set 
out in PPG2, also applies to MOL. Policy OS2 of adopted Local Plan states 
that “the character and quality of MOL will be safeguarded” and that “limited 
development” serving the needs of the visiting public may be permitted if 
clearly ancillary to the identified purposes of MOL. 

 
6.8 The principle of redeveloping this site was established by a previous 

application (ref: HGY/2005//1932) for the demolition of the existing building 
and the erection of a three storey nursing home with associated parking and 
landscaping. This previous proposal raised issues in respects of the sites 
designation (namely the MOL designation to part of the site and its 
designation as an Ecologically Valuable Site of Local importance) which were 
looked at and resolved. 

 

Page 172



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

6.9 The rear elevation of the nursing home building would essentially have 
formed the boundary with the MOL with the intention of landscaping a small 
portion of the MOL land directly beyond the building line, making it more 
accessible to the residents. It is also intended to introduce new indigenous 
species to encourage more habitable wildlife. In this regard it was considered 
that the proposal would not harm the objectives of the site’s MOL status. In 
support of this application a biodiversity survey was undertaken which 
concluded that there were no protected species under the Countryside and 
Wildlife Act 1981 on the site. The survey made a number of 
recommendations designed to enhance the range and variety of flora and 
fauna on the site in order to enhance its ecological value. 

  
6.10 The LPA recognises that education provision on site can bring qualitative and 

access improvements to the open space to the back of the site and as such 
a school building to the front is in principle acceptable for the site.  

 
6.11 This new primary school through its layout and physical design will provide a 

high quality environment which will help stimulate, excite and inspire those 
attending the school, with the additional benefit of providing a facility which 
can be used by the broader community. 

 
6.12 The development of the School will provide additional employment 

opportunities with regards to the School staff in addition to the longer term 
economic benefits of improving educational choice and attainment.  

 
DESIGN, BUILT FORM & LAYOUT 

 
Design & Built Form 

 
6.13 Policy G2 ‘Development and Urban Design’ and UD4 ‘Quality Design’ states 

that development should be of high quality design and contribute to the 
character of the local environment in order to enhance the overall quality, 
sustainability, attractiveness, and amenity of the built environment. The 
objectives of the policy are to promote high quality design which is 
sustainable in terms of form, function and impact, meeting the principles of 
inclusive design and supporting sustainable development.  

 
6.14 The LPA recognise that the topography and slope of the site in addition to 

the protected trees, planning designations and proximity of adjoining 
residential properties presented difficulties in the design and layout of a 
scheme for this site. The layout and design of the school building has been 
designed to address these constraints and a number of key concepts, 
including ecology, access to nature and a family style of learning (or Reggio 
Amelia). The siting of the building is largely dictated by the boundary of the 
metropolitan open, the footprint of the previous building and precedent of the 
2006 nursing home scheme. 

 
6.15 The scheme is for a three storey building, with lower ground floor built into 

the site slope. The total proposed gross internal floor area will be 1223sqm, 

Page 173



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

which accords with national guidance for a primary school of this size. The 
building will have a low pitch roof. The low roof pitch results in the overall 
building height being comparable with surrounding buildings. The finished 
building will sit within the thick foliage of the existing mature trees and 
therefore be partially obscured when viewed from Creighton Avenue. 

 
6.16 The design approach to the school building is of organic form; largely timber 

clad reflecting its immediate surroundings which is characterised by mature 
trees. The lower ground floor of the building will be cut into the slope and will 
largely accommodate non teaching spaces – kitchen and sanitary facilities, 
plant equipment etc. By cutting into the sloping topography the mass of the 
building when viewed from neighbouring properties and the adjoining MOL 
will be minimised. 

 
6.17 The lower ground floor can be zoned separately from the rest of the building 

for third party letting, with access to sanitary and kitchen facilities to 
maximise non School use. The plant and kitchen provision is placed beneath 
ground level as they do not require natural daylight and ventilation. 

 
6.18 The upper ground floor is arranged to have key stage one (or infant) 

accommodation, with key stage two (or junior) accommodation on the first 
floor. Each of the upper two floors is stacked to accommodate four key 
spaces (generally classrooms but in one instance the staff room) around an 
organic central space which can be used for a variety of learning activities. 
The layout will provide flexibility for learning, with small group space, formal 
classroom space and these large central areas. 

 
6.19 The design of the building is also strongly influenced by the external linkage. 

The building will have quick direct access to external spaces from the 
majority of the learning space, particularly by the introduction of a first floor 
play deck with an external staircase down to ground level. The wide variety 
of learning space, from traditional formal classrooms, through small group 
space and to the large open plan central space creates wide flexibility of use.  

 
6.20 The form, siting and design of the school building, while of a modern design, 

is considered acceptable for the site in question, given it’s position on 
Creighton Avenue in close proximity to other school buildings.  The building 
will have a clear public face with a welcoming presence/ positive relationship 
with Creighton Avenue. The boundary treatment to the site frontage is also 
appropriately positioned and designed. 

 
Materials 

 
6.21 The external appearance of the building will be largely timber clad reflecting 

its setting in a wooded area. As a natural product the timber will change and 
weather over time. Once built the building will have a strong orange/brown 
colour to the timber but will weather gradually to turn to a silvery grey. 

 

Page 174



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

6.22 The lower ground floor of the building, as viewed from the street, will be 
faced in rustic style brickwork. The street elevation of the scheme (hall roof) 
will have a timber shingle clad pitched roof that creates a feature at the main 
entrance. 

 
Access 

 
6.23 The proposed development is fully accessible and has been designed in 

accordance with the guide to the building regulations Part M for accessibility 
and designed to meet the needs of special needs education students. An 8 
person lift will be provided to ensure access to all levels of the building in 
accordance with building regulations part M.  

 
6.24 The ground floor will be zoned to allow out of hours use without 

compromising the security of the remainder of the building, with access to 
sanitary, food preparation facilities. 

  
Landscaping 

 
6.25 An indicative landscaping plan has been submitted with the application 

outlining the landscape/ planting proposal to the space around the school. 
Details of the intended landscape proposal for the piece of land to the back 
of the site, not currently within the ownership of the school, have also been 
submitted.  

 
6.26 The landscape masterplan includes a diverse series of spaces for active play, 

faith activities and ecological enhancement. Immediately to the back and 
partly to the side of the building will be a series of decked spaces that allow 
retention of tree species whilst offering outdoor spaces for the adjacent 
classrooms.  

 
6.27 There will be an open space for active play located centrally to the back of 

the school building, beyond which will be a terraced grass bank for more 
passive recreational use. The LPA welcome the fact that the piece of this 
land to the rear of the applications site, which Eden Primary are trying to 
acquire, is identified for meadow planting and a pond, with space identified 
for the future provision of a hazel coppice area and a trail through the site. 
There is also potential for a link through the grounds to gain access to the 
multi use games area within Fortismere School. 

 
6.28 Within the Design & Access Statement the issues of landscape maintenance 

and management are discussed. The applicant’s indicate that at a later stage 
detailed maintenance specifications will be proposed and they will 
encompass management of the following elements: 

 

Existing and Proposed Tree Planting 

Hedge Planting 

Ornamental Shrub Planting 

Ornamental Grass and Herbaceous Planting 

Page 175



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

Grassed Areas 

Hard Landscape 

Landscape Management Contractor / Company 
 
6.29 The drawings/ sketched submitted in respect of the landscaping put forward 

a clear and comprehensive proposal for the site, which promote an 
ecological, organic approach with a strong connections to the natural 
environment and the site’s designation as a site of Ecologically Valuable Site 
of Local importance. 

 
6.30 It is noted that the amount of hardsurfacing to the front of the site will be kept 

to a minimum and it will be required that such hardsurfacing be of a 
permeable material. The use of a green roof to the building has been 
discussed and encouraged at pre-application stage, as it could incorporate 
species of flora and fauna. The applicant’s have however indicated that this 
is not achievable due to financial constraints.  

 
6.31 Overall the landscaping proposal will not detract from the site’s open nature 

and character and the landscaping elements proposed can contribute to the 
setting, quality and ecological value of the site. 

 
Safety & Security 

 
6.32 Safety and security are essential to create a quality teaching and learning 

environment. The objective is to incorporate sensible security measures into 
the design and building of a new school in order to reduce the opportunity for 
crime and anti-social behaviour and reduce the fear of crime in schools. 
Appropriate design features such as a legible layout of buildings, paths and 
entrances, welcoming reception areas, natural surveillance, a good quality 
landscaping and lighting scheme, good quality signage, control of access to 
individual and common areas  help to instil a sense of ownership of the 
school.  

 
6.33 As a Jewish faith School particular attention has been paid to safety and 

security during the design phase. Specialist advice has been given by CST 
who advise the Jewish community internationally on security issues and in 
addition discussions have taken place with Haringey’s Police Crime 
Prevention Officers.  A number of features have been included following the 
advice given. 

 
6.34 A 1.8m weld mesh security fence will be erected along the perimeters of the 

site, except for the street frontage, where a more traditional railing, similar in 
style to the Fortismere School frontage onto Creighton Avenue. Such an 
approach was required by Officers and it will be more in keeping with the 
streetscape. Security gates designed as part of the railing frontage will also 
be erected. 

 
6.35 The scheme is designed with the reception/ school office located to the front 

with the staff room above to give views of the site entrance/ exit and overall 

Page 176



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

to provide passive surveillance. A day time security guard will be employed 
and located in the school office. This individual will be responsible for 
controlling site access.  

 
6.36 As outlined further on in this report the scheme has been laid out to provide 

an on-site drop-off/pick-up lane within the school site with widen vision 
angles etc for vehicles accessing and leaving the site, in addition to a 
separate pedestrian route to the building entrance. 

 
IMPACT ON METROPOLITIAN OPEN LAND  

 
6.37 The boundary of the MOL runs just beyond the rear building line of the former 

building on site. The back of the first floor deck to the rear of the building will 
essentially form the boundary with the MOL. 

 
6.38 Policy OS4 emphasises that development next to any open land must be 

carefully designed in order that the open character of the open land itself is 
not diminished.  As per the 2005 application for the nursing home building, it 
is accepted that the new building will have some impact on the MOL; as the 
new building will be set back further, bringing it closer to the boundary than 
the previous building on site.  

 
6.39 Notwithstanding this, the area of MOL in question at the moment is 

completely enclosed and is not accessibly/ useable by anybody, and 
historically there has never been public access to this site. The LPA 
recognises that education provision on site can bring qualitative and access 
improvements to the open space to the back of the previous manor house, 
and as such the siting of a school building to the front of the site, in a similar 
position to the previous building, is considered an acceptable use. 

 
6.40 As discussed above the proposal intends to introduce some hard 

landscaping to the portion of the MOL directly beyond the rear building line. 
As also indicated it is also the intention to introduce new indigenous species 
to the piece of land to the back of the site, not within the ownership of the 
applicant’s, to encourage biodiversity. 

 
6.41 Bearing in mind the history and circumstances associated with this site and 

the measures put forward in the application to limit the extent of 
development beyond the boundary line of the MOL, it is considered that the 
proposal would not harm the objectives of the site’s MOL designation.  

 
ECOLOGICAL IMPACTS/ IMPACT ON TREES 

 
Impact on Ecology 

 
6.42 PPS9 advice for proposals involving a re-use of a building/ site is that, ‘the 

re-use of previously developed land for new development makes a major 
contribution to sustainable development by reducing the amount of 
countryside and undeveloped land that needs to be used. However, where 

Page 177



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

such sites have significant biodiversity or geological interest of recognised 
local importance, local planning authorities, together with developers, should 
aim to retain this interest or incorporate it into any development of the site.’ 

 
6.43 The entire application site is designated as an Ecologically Valuable Site of 

Local importance. This is the lowest grade of listing in regard to ecological 
value. The site in question is known to be used by foraging bats. In pre-
application discussions with the applicant it was identified as being important 
to seek enhancements to the habitat and nature conservation value of the 
site. As outlined above a landscaping proposal has been submitted with the 
application.  

 
6.44 As outlined above the principle of redeveloping this site was established by 

way of a previous consent (HGY/2005//1932), for the demolition of the 
existing building and the erection of a three storey nursing home with 
associated parking and landscaping. In the Officer’s report accompanying 
this application, the impact of the proposal on the sites designation as a site 
of ecological value of local importance was considered.. 

 
6.45 The applicant’s for the previous application submitted an ‘Environmental and 

Ecological Survey’ commissioned by Planet Earth Ltd. As part of this brief the 
survey concluded that there were no protected species under the 
Countryside and Wildlife Act 1981 on the site. The survey made a number of 
recommendations designed to enhance the range and variety of flora and 
fauna on the site in order to enhance its ecological value. As a large part of 
the site was to be retained as private garden with the retention of existing 
mature trees and the planting of additional trees, appropriate within the 
context of Coldfall Woods, it was considered that “the ecological interests of 
the site should remain unaltered”. 

 
6.46 An Ecological Appraisal Report (dated 17 January 2011) was submitted to 

the LPA prior to the formal submission of the application. This report 
identifies the habitat types present/ likely to be present within the site, and 
the immediate surroundings, and assess the suitability for the site to support 
protected species. The survey identified that the large expanse of continuous 
scrub and saplings in the undisturbed broad-leaved woodland in the 
southern two thirds of the site could support hibernating reptiles and to a 
lesser extent, badgers (Meles meles) and hibernating dormice in the winter 
months. The remaining one third of the site comprises scrub around the 
perimeter which could support hibernating reptiles. In the case of the 
proposal the top third of the site will accommodate the new building, while 
the middle third will accommodate some hard and soft landscape elements, 
in addition to a grassed terrace and small woodland area. The other third, 
located furthest into the site, is not within the ownership of the applicant’s at 
present The Ecological Appraisal Report identified measures to be 
undertaken to clear the site of scrub and saplings: 

 
6.47 Many of the trees around the perimeter of the site will be largely maintained. 

The retention of the trees will maintain the commuting and foraging routes 

Page 178



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

through and beyond the site. The surrounding site, in particular Coldfall 
Woods and the trees in residential back gardens, provide good foraging 
habitat to bats. There is expected to be no permanent impact on the foraging 
potential of the area. 

 
6.48 Planning Officers accept that the vegetation clearance works to the site will 

cause some permanent loss of habitat. As outlined above Officers would 
reiterate the point that the ecological value of the site varies with the front 
section of the site where the previous house sat having lower ecological 
value. The front part of the site, with the exception of the mature trees along 
the frontage and side boundaries does not have established planting, other 
than scrub.  The fact that many of the mature trees to this part of the site will 
be retained means that their habitat value/ potential to support nesting birds 
or roosting bats will not be adversely affected. There will be minimal lighting 
in association with the proposal, therefore minimising any adverse impact on 
habitats and wildlife. For evening use of the building, background luminance 
of no more than 10 lux will be provided to the pedestrian route to the front of 
the building. 

 
6.49 The fact that the proposal, as per the previous site arrangement with the 

manor house and large garden, as well as the nursing home scheme, leaves 
much of the site at the back open, the ecological interests as a site of local 
important can be retained. It is accepted that the construction activity 
associated with the site will temporarily impact the ecology of the site, 
however the landscaping measures, in particular those proposed to the piece 
of land to the rear of the applications site (meadow planting and a pond, with 
space identified for the future provision of hazel coppice) will serve to protect 
the ecological value of the site. 

 
6.50 In terms of Policy OS6 it is also important to point out that the policy 

recognises the importance of a development proposal as a factor in formal 
determination, which can at times outweighs the nature conservation value of 
a site. The policy states that: “the Council will not permit development on or 
adjacent to Sites of Special Scientific Interest (SSSIs), statutory Local Nature 
Reserves, or other sites of importance for nature conservation value or 
ecological importance: a) unless there will be no adverse effect on the nature 
conservation value of the site; and b) unless the importance of the 
development outweighs the nature conservation value of the site”. 

 
6.51 In this particular case the provision of a primary school does amounts to 

special circumstances, therefore allowing for some flexibility in how policy 
OS6 is applied, while not rejecting the important ecological value of the site. 
As per a scheme for another new school in Muswell Hill (Tree House School 
on Woodside Avenue, approved in 2005), which involved the development 
on/ loss of part of a ‘Significant Local Open Land’ , the scheme was allowed  
in part because the applicant’s made a case for overriding educational need. 

 

Page 179



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

6.52 On balance is it considered that the proposal will not have a detrimental 
impact on the nature conservation/ ecological value of to the site, and as 
such the proposal is not considered to be contrary to policy OS6. 

 
Impact on Trees 

 
6.53 The site contains a significant amount of vegetation, much of which is 

protected by Tree Preservation Orders (TPO’s) and/or MOL status. The front 
portion of the proposal site (i.e. outside of the M.O.L) contains three 
individual TPO’s, plus a group TPO covering the row of mature pine trees 
along the front boundary. As noted in the comments above from the 
Council’s Arboricultural Officer the proposal will involve the removal of a total 
of 11 trees, which include 6 pine trees (TG 04) which form part of the group 
TPO at the front of the site, and 1 Sycamore tree (T25) located along the 
boundary with Fortismere School which is also subject to a TPO. 

 
6.54 The pines are to be removed to allow a wider access road which would 

involve excavating into existing ground levels and their root protection areas 
(RPA’s). It is acknowledged that there loss would reduce the amenity value of 
the group TPO, but it is also noted that the majority of the pines would be 
retained. 

 
6.55 The Sycamore tree identified for removal as noted by the Council’s 

Arboricultural Officer appears to be in decline, as when last inspected the 
trees canopy was sparse with smaller than usual leaves. This would indicate 
a very limited life expectancy of 1-3 years. The Council’s Arboricultural 
Officer has no objection to this tree being removed as long as a replacement 
tree of a suitable size and species is planted nearby, preferably visible to the 
public. The other trees specified for removal are of low quality and value. 

 
6.56 It is acknowledges that there will be significant impacts on 3 other trees (T07, 

T08 and T09) which are subject to TPO’s. Both T07 and 08 will require 
significant pruning to one side of their crowns to facilitate the new 
development. They also both have excursions into their RPA’s. T08 is over a 
third of the total area. As asked by the Council’s Arboricultural Officer 
consideration should be given to revising the site layout, moving it away from 
these trees to minimise the impact on them. Officers are currently discussing 
this with the applicant’s and any changes will be reported at the planning 
committee meeting. It is also noted that T09 will requires crown reduction 
work to facilitate the proposed development. As noted it is expected that 
these 3 trees will require regular crown reduction works in the future as the 
development is so close to them, this will reduce their amenity value and 
expected lifespan, however it is hoped that with a revision to the site layout 
this impact can be minimised. 

  
6.57 As requested by the Council’s Arboricultural Officer all tree protection 

measures must be installed and approved by Council Arboriculturist, prior to 
the commencement of any construction activities on site. The Officer has 
also stated that subject to the preparation of an approved Arboricultural 

Page 180



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

Method Statement prior to commencement of works, it is considered that the 
proposal can be accommodated without harming the trees on site. 

 
IMPACT ON RESIDENTIAL AMENITY  
 
Impact on Character of the Area 

 
6.58 As outlined above the scheme is for a three storey building that will sit into 

the slope of the site. The overall scale of the building is not too dissimilar in 
scale/ height to surrounding residential housing, namely two-storey with 
pitched roofs. The school buildings within the adjoining Fortismere School 
campus are of a similar height. The mature trees to the front of the 
application site will continue to be the dominant and defining feature as 
viewed from Creighton Avenue. Overall the proposed building will sit 
comfortably within the overall neighbourhood context. 

 
6.59 The issues of the use and impact on the local road network/ on parking are 

considered further on in this report. The sections below consider the impact 
of the building and its use on the residential amenity of the adjoining 
residents. 

 
Loss of Privacy/ Overlooking 

 
6.60 The residents most directly affected by the proposal are those to the west of 

the application site on Ringwood Avenue. The residents mainly affected  
would be the rear gardens and outlook from 6 houses which adjoin the site; 
namely  No’s. 36 – 46 Ringwood Avenue. These are detached properties with 
significant rear gardens of 30m in depth. The gardens of these houses rise up 
to meet the application site; the houses themselves are set down at a lower 
level. 

 
6.61 The proposed building would be pulled in from the boundary and overall the 

form/ shape of this side elevation of the building is broken down and 
articulated. This side elevation of the school building will have a raised 
platform which will allow access from the upper floor down to the external 
play spaces to the rear of the school. Concern has been expressed by 
residents of Ringwood Avenue over the increased levels of overlooking from 
the new building, in particular from the raised platform. Details of a Willow 
Hurdel screen to be attached to the side of the raised deck have been 
submitted, (as per drawing D1932 SK004) to mitigate against overlooking. 

 
6.62 Due to the sinking of the proposed building the eaves height of the building 

will not sit significantly above natural ground level. Given the distances 
between the side elevation of the building and these adjoining properties the 
proposal will have no adverse visual impact or impact on daylight/ sunlight 
receivable to these properties and their gardens. 

 
6.63 The incorporation of a willow hurdle screen will serve to reduce any potential 

overlooking from the raised platform and in addition the first floor facing 

Page 181



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

window on the side elevation will have obscure glazing up to eye level. These 
measure, coupled with the generous depth of the adjoining rear gardens and 
the mature vegetation along the shared boundary means that opportunities 
for overlooking or a reduction in privacy have been minimised. 

 
Noise 

 
6.64 In terms of noise to neighbouring residents the main impacts would be the 

noise associated with drop-off or pick-up by parents, noise generated from 
within the site (playground area) and any noise from any mechanical & 
ventilation equipment. These impacts however must be balanced against the 
noise and disturbance generated by the previous use of the site, background 
noise, in particular from traffic and the adjoining Fortismere School site, 
which already forms part of the character of the area. 

 
6.65 The potential for generation of noise from use of the playground is however 

the main concerns raised by local residents. The noise levels from children 
playing may be above the desirable limit of LAeqT 50 dB from BS:8223 for 
external areas. However, bearing in mind the distance between the identified 
play area and the backs of these nearby properties and the depth of the rear 
gardens in question, as well as the screening along the boundary and the 
fact that sound level drops off 6 dB from the source point for every doubling 
of distance, the noise from children playing while audible from within the 
gardens of neighbouring properties during break times, would not be 
seriously detrimental to the amenities of these adjoining residents. However, 
in order to further reduce this and any likely adverse impact on the amenities 
of the residents in question, a noise barrier in the form of an acoustic fence 
will be required to be installed along the rear garden boundaries of properties 
Nos. 36 – 46 Ringwood Avenue. 

 
6.66 Issues of noise and disturbance associated within activities within the school 

can also in part be controlled by way of appropriate management/ 
supervision of outdoor areas, so therefore to further minimise the impacts on 
adjoining residents. 

 
6.67 In terms of noise emanating from within the building (i.e. children playing/ 

music etc) this is not expected to be significant, given that a building of this 
nature, needs to be adequately insulated against any external noise, as well 
as from possible sources of noise from within the school itself, therefore the 
insulation will work in both ways.  PPG24 (Noise) and Building Bulletin 93 
(2003) gives recommendations for the maximum levels of external noise that 
should fall on a school building, outdoor teaching space or playground area 
within a school site, and ways of arranging buildings and noise barriers to 
reduce the impact of noise entering teaching areas from outside and from 
adjoining rooms. 

 
6.68 Consideration will need to be given to the siting of any potentially noisy plant 

or equipment on the site so as to not cause disturbance to occupiers of 

Page 182



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

nearby properties. A condition will be imposed asking for such details to be 
submitted. 

 
6.70 Overall it is considered subject to the measures outlined above and 

appropriate conditions the proposal will not adversely impact the residential 
amenities of nearby residents. 

 
TRAFFIC GENERATION, PARKING & ACCESS 

 
6.71 In accordance with the requirements of SPG7c, a Transport Assessment has 

been prepared by MLM Consulting Engineers, which provides an assessment 
of the likely traffic generation associated with the proposed development, an 
assessment of the impact of the development on the local road network and 
an assessment of the accessibility of the site.  

 
Accessibility 

 
6.72 The application site is located in an area that has a low PTAL level of 1 but is 

within reasonable walking distance of the 102, 234, 603 and 653 bus routes, 
which offer links to Highgate and Bounds Green underground stations and 
Muswell Hill bus interchange with a two-way frequency of approximately 28 
buses per hour. It has been acknowledged that there is a local demand for 
the school, with initial parent and guardian surveys indicating that all children 
will live within 1.5miles of the site. It has also been confirmed that the schools 
enrolment policy, is based on the pupil’s proximity to the school.  

 
Vehicular Access & Parking 

 
6.73 A drop-off/pick-up on site access road will be provided so parents can drop-

off pupils right outside the School entrance if required. This will operate as a 
one way system at the appropriate times of the day. Vehicle tracking has 
been reviewed along this route, leading to a realignment of the exit to 
improve safety, particularly the vision splays when exiting the site. For 
delivery access a reversing system is proposed to ensure minimum damage 
to the mature tree canopy along the street frontage. This would only take 
place once children are in the building and safe from any reversing vehicles. 
This also allows for refuse trucks to reverse close to the bin store. 

 
6.74 An accessible parking bay (Disabled Blue Badge holders) will be provided 

which is the maximum that can be accommodated on site in order protects 
the mature trees/ landscaping on site and to prevent encroachment into the 
MOL. While Officers accept that the level of car parking provision is 
considerably less than that expected, the Council considered that in this 
case the restricted car parking provision together with extended parking 
restrictions outside the school will help to support and form a key element of 
the travel plan initiatives proposed by the school. 

 
6.75 While it accepted that there may be some parking by staff on surrounding 

roads this will not have a significant impact on road network and the 

Page 183



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

availability of on-street car parking. The site is not identified by the Council’s 
adopted UDP as a location which suffers from high parking pressures and in 
fact the area has low levels of on-street car parking, given a lot of the 
residential properties in the immediate surroundings have off street parking. 

 
Access for Emergency Services 

 
6.76 The emergency services have access to the full frontage of the building with 

hard standing on the dropoff/ pick-up access road, and the appropriate 
vehicle tracking exercises have been completed for this. 

 
Pedestrian Access 

 
6.77 A separate pedestrian access will be provided to the north east corner of the 

site therefore keeping pedestrians and vehicles apart. This will take the form 
of a disabled accessible ramp with a walled barrier to the access road. 

 
6.78 As outlined above in order to accommodate the resulting increase in 

pedestrian and cycle traffic and to further encourage journeys by foot and 
cycle, the applicant will be required to contribute towards a scheme to 
improve highway safety outside the school.  

 
6.79 It is identified that a raised zebra crossing serving both Eden School and 

neighbouring Fortismere School will vastly improve conditions for students 
walking/cycling to school as well as encourage the uptake of these 
sustainable modes of transport. To further enhance highway safety within the 
immediate vicinity of the site, Officers require that the scheme should also 
include raised entry treatments, raising the existing uncontrolled crossing to 
the west of the site, additional parking restrictions and improved signing and 
lighting.  

 
Traffic Generation 

 
6.80 The school will accommodate 210 students in total when fully operational 

(start of the 2017-2018 year). When fully operational the school will employ 
up 20 staff, including teachers, teaching assistants and administration staff. 
Pupils will arrive at the school between 08.45 and 09.00 and will leave 
between 15.30 and 15.50, and may be staggered between key stage 1 and 2 
pupils. 

 
6.81 Looking at the modal share information taken from neighbouring Fortismere 

School travel plan, this indicates that 71% of the students walk to school and 
approximately 21% travel by sustainable modes. Based on this modal split is 
considered feasibility that by integrating “walking” with the bus services, 
sustainable travel can provide an alternatives for the pupils/staff/patrons, 
thereby suppressing reliance on car travel. 

 
6.82 Using the TRICS database and based on London specific school sites, the 

TA projects that from 2017 when the school will be at maximum capacity 

Page 184



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

there will be 33.6 two-way traffic movements during the am school peak. The 
Council’s Transportation Officers however project this to be higher in the 
order of 42 movements in the am peak. However, although there is difference 
in these projections, these movements will take place over the course of an 
hour and therefore will not have a significant impact upon the existing 
highway network. 

 
6.83 To support the sustainable transport measures to achieve modal shift from 

‘Car’ to other modes such as public transport, walking, cycling a School 
Travel Plan (STP) has been prepared and submitted with the application. The 
travel plan outlines a number of measures to encourage parents and staff to 
travel to and from the site using sustainable modes of transport. The 
provision and management of the STP will need to be secured by means of a 
condition. 

 
6.84 Parents and guardians of prospective pupils took part in an initial travel 

survey, which indicated that 53% would be walking to school and 20% 
would be using other sustainable modes such as taking the bus, cycling and 
car share. The modal split for the first phase indicating a high level of pupils 
travelling by sustainable modes is evidenced by modal share patterns at 
neighbouring Fortismere School, where 71% of pupils walk to school. The 
school governors will have overall responsibility for the management and 
implementation of the travel plan, however the school will appoint a 
dedicated travel plan co-ordinator to ensure targets are met and measures 
remain relevant.  

 
ENVIRONMENTAL & SUSTAINABILITY ISSUES 

 
6.85 Policy G1 “Environment”, states that development should contribute towards 

protecting and enhancing the local and global environment and make 
efficient use of available resources. The objective of the policy is to facilitate 
developments which protect and enhance the environment and operate in a 
sustainable and environmentally friendly manner. The Council will seek to 
ensure development schemes take into account, where feasible: 
environmentally friendly materials, water conservation and recycling, 
sustainable drainage systems, permeable hard surfacing and green areas, 
biodiversity potential, energy efficient boiler systems etc. 

 
Use of Renewable Energy 

 
6.86 In accordance with the requirements of the London Plan, an assessment of 

the potential contribution of renewable energy technologies for this 
development has been undertaken, to show how a target energy reduction of 
20% can be achieved, based on current Building Regulations minimum 
construction requirements. As shown below a number of potential renewable 
technologies were considered, namely: 

 

Photo-Voltaic cells– It is identified that photovoltaics could be used to 
provide the full target carbon emission reduction, however cost is 

Page 185



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

identified as being prohibitively high; although an array to offset the use of 
a gasfired boiler for domestic hot water and for educational purposes, 
especially with the new ‘feed in’ tariff is worth considering. 

 

Micro Wind – It is identified that micro-wind generation could be used to 
provide the full target carbon emission reduction however careful 
consideration would need to be given as to whether this is a desirable 
technology for a site of this type and location, but the life cycle costs 
demonstrate a good return should the ‘feed in’ tariff remain in place. It is 
suggested that a small turbine for educational purposes would be 
beneficial and could be located on the roof area, where the visual impact 
would be reduced. 

 

Air source heat pumps – Is to be the likely preferred option for a new build 
school of this nature. The heat pump option would meet the target and a 
suitable air source heat pump can be utilised. The applicant’s consultant 
recommends that a commercial quality air source heat pump system, 
linked to underfloor heating, be provided, as this would exceed the 
requirement for a 20% reduction in CO2. 

 
BREEAM Assessment 

 
6.87 A BREEAM pre-assessment has been submitted which shows that the 

development is anticipated to achieve a ‘very good’ rating. 
 

EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
6.88 The Equalities Act fully sets out the applicable legal framework for Public 

Authorities (Section 149 of the Act) to pay due regard to the need to eliminate 
discrimination and promote equality with regard to those with protected 
characteristics such as race, disability, and gender including gender 
reassignment, religion or belief, sex, pregnancy or maternity and foster good 
relations between different groups. Equality duties require Authorities to 
demonstrate that any decision it makes is done in a fair, transparent and 
accountable way, considering the needs and the rights of different members 
of the community.  

 
6.89 This proposal for a new one form entry primary school would help to meet an 

identified need for extra school places in this part of the borough. The 
proposal would provide a high quality teaching environment for the children 
attending the school. The school has confirmed its intention to offer 
community access and in addition the school’s admission policy is not 
restricted to Jewish Children only, with 50% of the intake being on religious 
grounds with the remainder selected on a proximity basis. 

 
6.90 The proposal is therefore considered to enhance educational provision for all 

of Haringey’s diverse communities. The proposal would introduce a new 
primary school in the borough and would be in line with wider corporate 
responsibilities and will assist with the local authority’s statutory obligation 

Page 186



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

towards education provision. This planning application has been submitted, 
following approval from the Department of Education for a ‘Free School’. 

 
7. CONCLUSION 
 
7.1 The proposal will provide a high quality education facility which will increase 

the supply of school places in this part of the borough, with enhanced 
opportunities for teaching and learning and with wider benefits to the local 
community through opportunities for additional activity outside of normal 
school hours. It is considered that the layout, design and external 
appearance of the development will be in keeping with the setting of the site, 
in particular next to Metropolitan Open Land (MOL) and the surrounding area. 
The scheme has been designed sensitively in relationship to adjoining 
residential properties and the ecological designation of the site. On balance, 
the transport and access arrangements are considered satisfactory in light of 
the proposed travel initiatives and the catchments area for this school. 

 
7.2 Having considered the proposal against the London Plan, the adopted 

Haringey Unitary Development Plan and adopted Supplementary Planning 
Guidance and taking into account other material considerations, Officers 
consider the proposed development to be acceptable and that planning 
permission should be granted subject to appropriate conditions and subject 
to a S106 Agreement. 

 
8. RECOMMENDATION 
 

RECOMMENDATION 1 
 
8.1 The Sub-Committee is recommended to RESOLVE as follows: (1) That 

planning permission be granted in accordance with planning application no. 
HGY/2011/1166, subject to a pre-condition that the owners of the application 
site shall first have entered into an Agreement or Agreements with the 
Council under Section 106 of the Town & Country Planning Act 1990 (As 
Amended) and Section 16 of the Greater London Council (General Powers) 
Act 1974 in order to secure:  

 
(1.1) The applicant to enter into a Section 106 Agreement securing a 

£82,0000.00 (eighty two thousand pound) for a comprehensive 
highway safety scheme including: raised zebra and pedestrian 
crossings, raised entry treatments, additional parking restrictions and 
improvements to signing and lighting within the immediate vicinity of 
the site. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 2 

 
8.2 That in the absence of the Agreement referred to in the resolution above 

being completed by 31st January 2012 planning application reference number 
HGY/2011/1166 be refused for the following reason: 

 

Page 187



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

In the absence of a formal undertaking to secure a Section 106 Agreement 
for appropriate contribution for highway safety measures arising from the 
development the  proposal is contrary to Policy UD8 'Planning Obligations' of 
the adopted Haringey Unitary Development (2006) and Supplementary 
Planning Guidance SPG10a 'The Negotiation, Management and Monitoring 
of Planning Obligations'. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 3 

 
8.3 In the event that the Planning Application is refused for the reason set out 

above, the Assistant Director (PEPP) (in consultation with the Chair of 
Planning Committee) is hereby authorised to approve any further application 
for planning permission which duplicates the Planning Application provided 
that:  

 
(i) there has not been any material change in circumstances in the relevant 
planning considerations, and  
(ii) the further application for planning permission is submitted to and 
approved by the Assistant Director (PEPP) within a period of not more than 
12 months from the date of the said refusal, and 
(iii) the relevant parties shall have previously entered into the agreement 
contemplated in resolution (1) above to secure the obligations specified 
therein. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 4 

 
8.4 That following completion of the Agreement referred to in (1) above, planning 

permission be GRANTED in accordance with planning application no 
HGY/2011/1166 and the Applicant’s drawing No’s PL03 - PL10 incl. and 
subject to the following conditions: 

 
IMPLEMENTATION 

 
1. The development hereby authorised must be begun not later than the 

expiration of 3 years from the date of this permission, failing which the 
permission shall be of no effect.  
 
Reason: This condition is imposed by virtue of the provisions of the Planning 
& Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and to prevent the accumulation of 
unimplemented planning permissions. 
 

2. The development hereby authorised shall be carried out in complete 
accordance with the plans and specifications submitted to, and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority  
Reason: In order to ensure the development is carried out in accordance with 
the approved details and in the interests of amenity. 

 
3. The proposed building and associated external play and teaching space shall 

not be occupied/ used until an Outdoor Area Management Plan has been 

Page 188



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

submitted and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The plan 
shall set out details of the times these areas will be used, numbers of 
children that will use specific areas at any one time and how the areas will be 
supervised. The approved outdoor management plan shall be complied with 
throughout the duration of the use.  

 
Reason: In the interests of amenity of noise sensitive receptors 

 
4. Before the building hereby permitted is occupied the windows on the side 

elevation of the building facing No’s 44 & 46 Ringwood Avenue (identified on 
Drawing PL07 Rev B “Frosted Glass High Level Window”) shall be glazed 
with obscure glass only and shall be non-opening unless the parts of the 
window which can be opened are more than 1.7 metres above the floor of 
the room in which the window is installed.  

 
Reason: To safeguard the privacy and amenities of occupiers of adjoining 
residential properties. 

 
5. Before the building hereby permitted is occupied the Willow Hurdel screen as 

shown on the Drawing D1932 SK004 to be erected to the side and rear of the 
raised deck shall be installed and permanently retained as such thereafter. 
Reason: To safeguard the privacy and amenities of occupiers of adjoining 
residential properties. 

 
6. The external play space to the rear of school building and adjoining the rear 

gardens of No's 36 to 46 Ringwood Avenue, and as shown on Drawing 
D1932.L.100 (PL 10) shall not be used outside of normal school hours.  

 
Reason: To protect residential amenity of adjoining residents and to ensure 
that the additional activity on site arising from this consent, and taking place 
outside normal school hours, is confined within the building. 

 
EXTERNAL APPEARANCE & SITE LAYOUT 

 
7. Notwithstanding the description of the materials in the application, no 

development shall be commenced until precise details of the materials to be 
used in connection with the development hereby permitted have been 
submitted to, approved in writing by and implemented in accordance with 
the requirements of the Local Planning Authority.  

 
Reason: In order to retain control over the external appearance of the 
development and in the interest of the visual amenity of the area. 

 
8. Notwithstanding any indication on the submitted drawings, details of the 

siting and design of all walls, gates, fencing, railings or other means of 
enclosure, including details of an acoustic barrier/ fence to be erected next to 
the rear garden boundaries with properties Nos. 36 – 46 Ringwood Avenue, 
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority 
prior to the commencement of the development. The 

Page 189



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

walls/gates/fencing/railings/enclosures shall be erected in accordance with 
the approved details following completion of the building and prior to the 
occupation of the building hereby approved.  
 
Reason: In order to retain control over the external appearance of the 
development and in the interest of the visual amenity of the area. 

 
9. Notwithstanding any indication on the submitted drawings details and 

samples of the materials for those area to be treated by means of hard 
landscaping (permeable surface) shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of the 
development. Thereafter the hard landscaping shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved details following completion and occupation 
of the building hereby approved.  

 
Reason: In order to retain control over the external appearance of the 
development and to provide a permeable surface for better surface water 
drainage on site. 

 
10.Notwithstanding the details of landscaping plan a schedule of those new 

trees and shrubs to be planted together with a schedule of species shall be 
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority prior 
to the commencement of the development. Thereafter the approved scheme 
of planting and landscaping shall be carried out and implemented in strict 
accordance with the approved details in the first planting and seeding 
season following the completion of development. Any trees or plants, either 
existing or proposed, which, within a period of five years from the completion 
of the development die, are removed, become damaged or diseased shall be 
replaced in the next planting season with a similar size and species. The 
landscaping scheme, once implemented, shall be maintained and retained 
thereafter to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority.  

 
Reason: In order to ensure a satisfactory setting for the proposed 
development and in the interests of the visual amenity of the area. 

 
11. A detailed scheme for the provision of refuse and waste storage within the 

site shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority prior to the commencement of the works. Such a scheme as 
approved shall be implemented and permanently retained thereafter to the 
satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority.  

 
Reason: In order to protect the amenities of the locality. 

 
12.No external lighting, floodlighting or other means of external illumination shall 

be affixed to the external elevations of the buildings, or placed/erected within 
the site other than those approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
Any external lighting or other means of external illumination shall be installed 
and thereafter retained in full accordance with the approved details. Reason: 

Page 190



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

To enable the local planning authority to retain control over these matters in 
the interests of the amenities of the adjoining properties.  

 
TREE PROTECTION 

 
13.All works associated with this development shall be undertaken in 

accordance with a Arboricultural Method Statement to be prepared and the 
detail a Arboricultural Method Statement to be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of the 
works  

 
Reason: To safeguard the health of existing trees which represent an 
important amenity feature. 

 
14.A pre-commencement site meeting must take place with the Architect, the 

consulting Arboriculturist, the Local Authority Arboriculturist, the Planning 
Officer to confirm tree protective measures to be implemented. All protective 
measures must be installed prior to the commencement of works on site and 
shall be inspected by the Council Arboriculturist and thereafter be retained in 
place until the works are complete.  

 
Reason: To safeguard the health of existing trees which represent an 
important amenity feature. 

 
TRANSPORTATION 

 
15.Three months prior to the occupation the building hereby approved, a 

satisfactory School Travel Plan shall have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved plan shall then be 
implemented by the applicant in accordance with the timescales, targets and 
other details set out in the plan.  

 
Reason: In the interest of ensuring sustainable travel patterns and to reduces 
reliance on private motor vehicles. 

 
16.The disabled car parking space and cycle parking shown on the approved 

drawings shall be provided prior to the occupation of the building hereby 
approved.  

 
Reason: In the interests of amenity and road safety. 

 
SUSTAINABILITY/ ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMACE 

 
17.A certificated BREEAM Post Construction Review, or other verification 

process agreed with the Local Planning Authority, shall be provided, 
confirming that the agreed standards have been met, prior to the occupation 
of the development.  

 

Page 191



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

Reason: To ensure that the proposal complies with the principles of 
sustainable development 

 
18.Details indicating the location of the air source heat pump system to be 

installed, or alternative renewable energy technology/ system with the 
associated calculations showing how a target energy reduction of 20% can 
be achieved, based on current Building Regulations, shall be provided to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, prior to the occupation 
of the building Thereafter the renewable energy technology/ system shall be 
installed in accordance with the details approved and an independent post-
installation review, or other verification process agreed, shall be submitted to 
the Local Planning Authority confirming the agreed technology has been 
installed prior to the occupation of the building, hereby approved.  

 
Reason: To ensure the development incorporates on-site renewable energy 
generation to contribute to a reduction in the carbon dioxide emissions 
generated by the development, in line with national London and local 
planning policy. 

 
CONSTRUCTION 

 
19.The construction works of the development hereby granted shall not be 

carried out before 0730 or after 1830 hours Monday to Friday or before 0800 
or after 1300 hours on Saturday and not at all on Sundays or Bank Holidays.  

 
Reason: In order to ensure that the proposal does not prejudice the 
enjoyment of neighbouring occupiers of their properties. 

 
20.Prior to the commencement of work a Construction Management Plan 

including a scheme for the management of the construction traffic associated 
with implementing this scheme, shall be submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. The plan will specifically show the how traffic 
around the immediate road network are routed.  

 
Reason: To ensure the construction period of the development does not 
result in unreasonable disturbance for neighbouring properties and to 
minimise vehicular conflict at this location. 

 
21.The developer shall afford access at all reasonable times to any 

archaeologist nominated by the Local Planning Authority, and shall allow that 
person to observe the excavation and record items of interest and finds.  

 
Reason: To enable archaeological investigation of the site. 

 
RESTRICTIONS ON USE  

 
22.The use of the premises for the purposes hereby permitted shall only take 

place between the hours of 7.00am and 10.30pm on weekdays and, 
Saturdays and between 9.00am and 10.00pm on Sundays.  

Page 192



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

 
Reason: To ensure that the use does not prejudice the amenities of 
occupiers of neighbouring residential properties. 

 
REASONS FOR APPROVAL 
 
The reasons for the grant of planning permission are as follows: 
 
(a) The proposal is acceptable for the following reasons: 
 
I. The design, form, detailing and facing materials of this purpose-built school 
building and associated external play space and landscaping are considered 
acceptable;; 
II. The proposal will provide a high quality education facility which will provide 
enhances opportunities for teaching and learning, with wider benefits to the 
local community; 
III. The scheme has been designed sensitively in terms of environmental, 
ecological and sustainability issues and in terms of its relationship with 
neighbouring properties. 
 
(b) The proposed development accords with strategic planning guidance and 
policies as set out in the adopted Haringey Unitary Development Plan (July 
2006); in particular the following G1 'Environment', G2: 'Development and 
Urban Design', G9 'Community Wellbeing', UD2 'Sustainable Design and 
Construction',UD3 'General Principles', UD4 'Quality Design' and OS17 'Tree 
Protection, Tree Masses and Spines' and supplementary planning guidance 
SPG1a 'Design Guidance and Design Statements', SPG4 'Access for All -
Mobility Standards', SPG5 'Safety by Design', SPG7a 'Vehicle and 
Pedestrian Movement', SPG7b 'Travel Plan', SPG7c 'Transport Assessment', 
SPG8b 'Materials', SPG8c 'Environmental Performance' and SPG9 
'Sustainability Statement Guidance'. 
 
INFORMATIVE: Any and all works carried out in pursuance of this planning 
permission will be subject to the duties, obligations and criminal offences 
contained in the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended). Failure to 
comply with the provisions of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as 
amended) may result in a criminal prosecution. 
 
INFORMATIVE: The new development will require naming. The applicant 
should contact the Local Land Charges at least six weeks before the 
development is occupied (tel. 020 8489 5573) to arrange for the allocation of 
a suitable address. 

 

Page 193



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

 
 

APPENDIX A – MINUTES FROM DESIGN PANEL MEETING 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Haringey Design Panel no. 26 
Thursday 14th April 2011 

 
 

ATTENDANCE 
Panel 

Ruth Blum 
Gordon Forbes 

Michael Hammerson 
Leo Hammond 
Chris Mason 

Peter Sanders 
Paul Simms 

 
Observers 
 
Marc Dorfman (Chair) .................. Assistant Director, Planning and Regeneration 

Haringey Council 
Richard Truscott (Facilitator) ....... Haringey Council 
Mortimer MacSweeney ............... Haringey Council 
Sule Nisancioglu ......................... Haringey Counci 
l 
The following schemes were considered by the Panel: 
1) Presentation of proposals for Wood Green Custody Suite (former Police 

Station)  
 
Simon Whitmill ............................ Architect, Raymond Smith Partnership L.L.P  
Robert Atkinson .......................... Metropolitan Police 
Ian McPherson ............................ Metropolitan Police 
 
2) Presentation of proposals for Eden Primary (Jewish free school) at 

Creighton Avenue, Muswell Hill N10 
 
Tim Green .................................... Architect, Capita Symonds Architecture 
anon. ........................................... Architect, first scheme 
anon. ............................................ Architect, second scheme 

Page 194



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

 
Before and after discussion of the schemes - 
Panel Format & Terms of Reference: 
 
Marc introduced his proposals for changes to the panel format, possible future links 
between the panel and the Planning Forum and Conservation Area Advisory 
Committees, and Richard introduced his draft revised Terms of Reference.  After a 
short discussion it was agreed that both would be considered by all the panel 
members between this and the next panel, when there would be further discussion 
and the panel’s decision.   
 
1) Presentation of proposals for Wood Green Custody Suite (former Police 

Station), Panel Observations and questions 

Confidential until planning application submitted.   

 

2) Presentation of proposals for Eden Primary (Jewish free school) at 
Creighton Avenue, Muswell Hill N10 and questions 

Tim Green of Capita Symonds Architecture, representing both the school promoters 
and Partnership for Schools, the Government’s supporting quango, first presented 
the background of the proposals and selection process.  Then separately architects 
for the two competing bidding consortia described their proposals and took 
questions.  Both design teams were presented anonymously.   

The site chosen was originally a large house in grounds, on a north facing slope on 
the south side of Creighton Avenue, a wide and relatively quiet residential street.  To 
the west (right when viewed from the road, where entrances will be located) are the 
long back gardens of large, interwar houses on neighbouring Ringwood Avenue, to 
the east (left) Fortismere School, a Haringey secondary school whose playground, 
which is designated Metropolitan Open Land (MOL), wraps around to the south of 
the site.  The whole site is designated and recognised as a Site of Importance for 
Nature Conservation (SINC) and Ecologically Valuable Site of Local Importance.  
Over Creighton Ave. to the north are more houses and Coldfall Wood, which is 
protected woodland.   

Both Mr Green and both design teams emphasised the importance they were giving 
to not building on the MOL which extends into the southern half of the site (furthest 
away from the road and entrance); this would be playground and landscaping and 
the school are considering extending this by buying twice as much MOL.  They all 
would also seek to avoid any loss of trees along the northern boundary to the road 
which is densely lined with mature Scots Pines, notwithstanding difficulties 
providing vehicular access, and not cut into root protection zones for these or other 
protected trees on and neighbouring the site, including a large sycamore and birch 
to the east just inside Fortismere.  They all also intend to enable a wildlife corridor 
connecting the two pieces of MOL by not building close to the western boundary 
buy providing dense high quality landscaping here; with the back gardens there 
averaging 35m length this should be wide enough to provide adequate 
compensation from the loss of habitat from building the school and playground. 

Page 195



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

With the planned school size of 1 form entry giving seven classrooms, along with 
Hall, ancillary and a desire for generous shared space to accommodate the desired 
“Reggio Emilia Approach” that emphasises community, curiosity, activities and 
engagement with nature, the space requirements on the limited amount of site on 
which can be built mean up to three story will be required.  The desire to express 
openness and embrace the larger community will be balanced against the 
significant security considerations required for Jewish institutions 

Panel Questions & Observations - Scheme 1 

Confidential until planning application submitted.   

 
Panel Questions - Scheme 2 

The second scheme by contrast to the first sought curvilinear organic forms 
generated from the educational approach, response to nature, informality and the 
crucial idea of the arena, intrinsic to the Reggio Emilia approach.  To some extent, 
scale, massing and in particular an idea of elevational treatment was not yet 
determined.  It would be up to 3 stories high, at highest 11m, but set into the 
landscape without significant excavation of outdoor areas.  Outdoor decks would 
organically connect teaching spaces to the landscape to the south and west, with 
infants, on the second level (grade to the rear) most closely connected, juniors 
above also with outdoor balconies, and only the hall / ancillary spaces at ground 
level (grade to the front).   

Panel Observations - Scheme 2 

Concept & Ideas 

1. The way it is being procured and the approach was considered encouraging, for 
the open brief and flexibility being offered.  It was remarked that this proposal 
almost seemed to be a response to a different brief to the other, however it was 
recognised that the differences stemmed from choice of different approach by 
the teams, which was encouraged. 

2. The panel were excited and strongly encouraging of the conceptual approach 
adopted, which was child friendly, rooted in a charming starting point of the 
treehouse and had great potential. 

3. However there was some concern that the proposals were “still stuck in concept 
land” or at the bubble diagram stage and needed to be worked up more to 
demonstrate that the concept can be worked up into a practical building.   

Urban and Natural Context 

4. The panel felt the nature of the site means that proposals need not be overly 
concerned to fit in to the urban context, so that forms, levels, overall massing, 
materials and colour need not pick up on the surroundings; in materials in 
particular the panel encouraged bold choices. 

5. However the panel felt the natural context, particularly the ancient woodland of 
which the site was originally a part, was much more important.  They were 
pleased with the space given for an ecological corridor, especially to the west, 

Page 196



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

and with their efforts to avoid existing trees.   

6. The panel were concerned that insufficient account of natural habitats could be 
taken unless ecological surveys were made in the summer months. 

Layout, Form & Massing  

7. The panel agreed the designs showed great potential and looked hopeful, albeit 
still at an early, “concept” stage.  The informality was considered a good 
response to the tree filled setting and could create interesting spaces that would 
be particularly small-child friendly and exciting. 

8. However there were concerns that as well as not being developed enough at this 
stage, the loose irregular forms could create a lot of awkward leftover spaces 
and that it could be difficult to provide adequate daylight whilst mitigating 
sunlight.   

Materials & Landscaping  

9. No information on materials was provided. 

10.The informal setting, emphasis on trees and integration and seamless flowing of 
internal and external space showed an excellent, strong integration of 
landscaping into the design.  There was some concern at the amount of hard 
paved playspaces, timber decking and balconies, overlooking and whether the 
openness of the landscaping would be maintained and whether that was 
acceptable to MOL.   

Accessibility & Approach 

11.Panel members remarked that transport issues; how pupils, staff and deliveries 
would arrive at the site, the distance from public transport connections, the 
likelihood that pupil catchment would be from a wide area due to the specialist 
nature of the school, parking and turning on and from Creighton Avenue and 
parking/delivery space on site would be huge issues to resolve convincingly for 
the proposals. 

Consensus and Conclusions 

12.The panel were genuinely excited about this proposal and their only real concern 
(apart from the minor ones mentioned above) was that it was still at the concept 
stage and could change substantially in being worked up into a realistic building.  
The panel encourage these applicants to be brave and continue pursuing this 
exciting approach, but to ensure it can be translated successfully into reality.   

Page 197



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

APPENDIX B – DRAWINGS/ VISUAL 

 

   Figure 1: Indicative Landscape Plan 

 
 

Page 198



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

 
 

Figure 2: Indicative Landscape Plan (Including land to the rear, currently not in 
the ownership of the School) 

 

Figure 3: Rear Elevation of School Building 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 199



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

 
 

 
 

Figure 4: Front & Rear Perspectives of School Building 
 

Page 200



Page 201



Page 202

This page is intentionally left blank



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

Planning Sub-Committee 12 September 2011    Item No. 
 
REPORT FOR CONSIDERATION AT PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

Reference No: HGY/2011/0814 Ward: White Hart Lane 
 

Address:  550 White Hart Lane N17 7RQ 
 
Proposal: Development comprising of construction of three industrial buildings 
accommodating a total of 13,251 sqm (142,629 sqft) of gross B1/B2/B8 employment 
floorspace and devided into six employment units, together with revised access and 
associated highway works, parking and sustainable urban drainage 
 
Existing Use: B1, B2 & B8    Proposed Use: B1, B2 & B8                                                     
 
Applicant: Mr Neil Curtis Curtis Real Estates & N.I. Local Government Officers 
 
Ownership: Private 
 

Date received: 21/04/2011 Last amended date: N / A  
 
Drawing number of plans: E10-090 A001, 10-152 A003 REV J, A004, A005, A006, A007, 
A008, B001 REV A, B002 REV B, B003, B004 REV A, B006 REV A, NTH/247/SK01 REV 
P5 & NTH/247/SK02 REV P1. 
 

Case Officer Contact: Matthew Gunning 
 

 
PLANNING DESIGNATIONS:  Road Network: Classified  Road 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION; GRANT PERMISISON Subject to conditions subject to sec.106 
Legal Agreement  
 

 
SUMMARY OF REPORT:  The proposal is for the redevelopmnet of the Bridisco site 
involving the construction of three new industrial buildings, accommodating a total of 
13,251 sqm (142,629 sqft) of gross employment floorspace, to be divided into six 
employment units, together with revised access and associated highway works, parking 
and sustainable urban drainage. The principle of the redevelopment of this site for 
business, industrial and warehousing uses is consistent with existing national strategic, 
London Plan and local planning guidance regarding new employment development. The 
redevelopment of this former brownfiled industrial site for employment purposes is 
welcomed as it will suitably consolidate the function of this defined employment area and 
will enhance the economic viability and job creation potential of this part of the Borough. 
The siting, built form, design and appearance of this proposed industrial units and the 
associated access points to this new industrial estate are considered acceptable. The 
proposal will not adversely affect the residential and visual amenities of nearby residents. 
This application is recommended for approval subject to  conditions subject to sec.106 
Agreement  
 

 

Agenda Item 9Page 203



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

 
1. SITE AND SURROUNDINGS 
 
1.1 The application site which is known as the Bridisco site and is situated on White Hart 

Lane with two access points onto this road. The site is 6.98 acres (2.825 hectares) in 
size and falls within a Defined Employment Area. The site is bounded to the rear/ 
north by the gardens of residential properties on Devonshire Hill Lane while to the 
west the site adjoins Norfolk Avenue and a self storage warehousing unit which sits 
next to St. George Industrial Estate. To the east of the site is 500 White Hart Lane/ 
the former Hubert House site, which has been cleared for redevelopment. There is a 
public footpath running along the eastern boundary of this site which provides 
pedestrian access to properties in Devonshire Gardens. Directly opposite the site, on 
the south side of White Hart Lane lies Haringey FC football ground and car park. 

 
1.2 The existing buildings on the Bridisco site, which comprised of a warehouse building 

of steel portal frame construction with brickwork elevations and a three storey offices 
fronting White Hart Lane, has been recently demolished. 

 
1.3 The site is generally flat, however the surrounding land rises moving south to north, 

with the site forming a plateau cut into the slope.  
 
1.4 The development is enclosed to the north by a retaining wall approximately 7.5 

metres in height at its highest point, above and beyond which is an area of existing 
established vegetation (including mature trees), which separates the site from 
residential dwellings. The retaining wall encloses the eastern and western boundaries 
of the site dropping to ground level towards the front (southern part) of the site. 

 
1.5 There is a grassed area immediately in front of the site, and beyond this, a public 

footpath and a bus shelter. 
 
2. PROPOSAL  
 
2.1 The proposal is for the redevelopmnet of the Bridisco site involving the construction 

of three new industrial buildings, accommodating a total of 13,251 sqm (142,629 sqft) 
of gross employment floorspace, to be divided into six employment units, together 
with revised access and associated highway works, parking and sustainable urban 
drainage. The proposed development will provide employment floor space within the 
B1, B2 and B8 land use classes. The use of the buildings will be predominantly for B2 
and/or B8 use but will include ancillary office space within the buildings proposed. 

 
2.2 The proposed redevelopment of the site will involve a 74.4% reduction to the existing 

warehouse and offices space. This is in part due to the infrastructure required to meet 
the standards and needs of several new units, rather than a single unit. The six new 
units will be of varying sizes and two of the units will have the potential to be split into 
smaller units depending on market conditions. 

 

Unit 1 – 51,484 square feet 

Unit 2 – 30,542 square feet with potential to be split into two units. 

Unit 3 – 13,970 square feet 

Unit 4 – 11,445 square feet 

Unit 5 – 25,146 square feet with potential to be split into two units 

Unit 6 – 10,042 square feet. 

Page 204



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

 
 

Land Use Floorspace (m2) (GIA) 

B1(c.) 6,107

B2 2 2,361

B8 4,783

Total 13,251

 
 
3. PLANNING HISTORY 

 
OLD/1987/2088 - Erection of single storey extension comprising 1300m2 on eastern 
side of existing warehouse. – Approved 13/04/1987 
 
HGY/1990/0722 - Erection of a telecommunication satelite dish to the roof of 
premises. – Approved 24/07/1990 
 
HGY/1993/0610 - Erection of double sided, freestanding, non-illuminated sign. – 
Approved 29/06/1993 
 
HGY/1996/0562 - Variation to Condition 2 attached to HGY/50530 for amendment of 
hours of starting operations to 0700 Monday to Friday and 0800 on Saturday. – 
Approved 16/07/1996 
 
HGY/1996/0623 - Variation to Condition 4 (2 metre storage height) attached to 
permission HGY/50530 seeking to increase the height of storage on the eastern 
boundary to 3 metres. – Approved 23/07/1996 
 
HGY/1996/1566 - Erection of an extension to main building to provide a warehouse. – 
Approved 14/01/1997 
 
HGY/1997/0997 - Erection of a single storey warehouse building – Approved 
12/08/1997 
 
HGY/2000/0580 - Erection of temporary single storey portal framed storage building – 
Approved 13/06/2000 
 
HGY/2001/0366 - Installation of a pedestrian entrance/exit to existing front boundary 
wall/fence. – Approved 25/05/2001 
 
HGY/2002/0067 - Installation of 3 transmission dishes, 3 antennae and an equipment 
cabinet of roof of Devonshire House. – Withdrawn 05/03/2002 

 
3. RELEVANT PLANNING POLICY  
 
3.1 National Planning Policy 
 

PPS1 Delivering Sustainable Development (2005) 
PPS4: Planning for Sustainable Economic Growth 
PPG13: Transport 
PPS23: Planning and Pollution Control 

 

Page 205



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

3.2 London Plan (2011) 
 

Policy 2.7 Outer London: economy 
Policy 2.17 Strategic industrial locations 
Policy 4.1 Developing London’s economy  
Policy 4.4 Managing industrial land and premises 
Policy 5.3 Sustainable design and construction 
Policy 5.3 Sustainable design and construction 
 

3.3 Unitary Development Plan 
 

G1 Environment 
G2 Development and Urban Design 
G4 Employment 
UD2 Sustainable Design and Construction 
UD3 General Principles 
UD4 Quality Design 
UD7 Waste Storage 
UD8 Planning Obligations 
M10 Parking for Development 
ENV2 Surface Water Run-off 
ENV11 Contaminated Land 
EMP2 Defined Employment Areas 
EMP5 Promoting Employment Uses 

 
3.4 Supplementary Planning Guidance / Documents 
 

SPG1a Design Guidance 
SPG7a Vehicle and Pedestrian Movement 
SPG8a Waste and Recycling 
SPG8b Materials 
SPG8d Biodiversity, Landscaping and Trees 
SPG8f Land Contamination 
SPG9 Sustainability 
SPG10 The Negotiation, Management and Monitoring of Planning Obligations 

 
3.4 Other 
 
 Haringey Employment Study - 2008 Update 

Draft Sustainable Design & Construction SPD 
 
 
4. CONSULTATION 
 
 

Statutory Internal External 

Environmental Agency  
 
 
 
 

Ward Councillors 
Transportation 
Legal 
Environmental Health 
Building Control 

Local Residents 
 
1-15 (c) The Green, 
Devonshire Hill Lane 
1 – 31 (o) Devonshire Road
449-470 (e) White Hart 

Page 206



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

Lane 
2-48 (e) Devonshire Road 
133-167 (o) Devonshire Hill 
Road 
167a Devonshire Hill Lane 
1-16 Butterfield Close, 
Devonshire Road 
1-2 Butterfield Close, 
Devonshire Road 
82-156 (e) Devonshire Hill 
Lane 
169-177 (o) Devonshire Hill 
Lane 
1-10 (c) Devonshire 
Gardens 
492-498 (e) White Hart 
Lane 
341, 343, 350 White Hart 
Lane 
335-337 White Hart Lane 
484-490 (e) White Hart 
Lane 
11-24 © Devonshire 
Gardens 
59-67 (o) Fenton Road 
 

 
5. RESPONSES 
 

Building Control  
 
5.1 Due to the nature and complexity of the development it is advised that the London 

Fire and Emergency Planning Authority are consulted formally regarding access for 
fire brigade vehicles and personnel for the purposes of fire fighting and rescue 

 
London Fire Brigade 

 
5.2 The issue of water supply within the site has been considered and in order to provide 

an adequate water supply for fire fighting, the London Fire Brigade (LFB) 
recommends the instillation of 2 Private Fire Hydrants in the position indicated in red 
on the enclosed map. The hydrants should be numbered P100119 and P109079 
respectively.  

 
Transportation 

 
5.3 The application site has a low PTAL level and is served by the W3 bus route, which 

operates with a two-way frequency of 24 buses per hour and provides links to Wood 
Green underground and White Hart Lane rail stations. Furthermore, the site is within 
reasonable walking distance to the Great Cambridge Road (A10), which is served by 
the 144, 217, 231, 318 and 444 bus routes providing links to a number local transport 
services with a two-way frequency of 43 buses per hour. It is therefore reasonable to 

Page 207



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

assume that a number of staff/patrons would use sustainable transport for journeys 
to and from the site. 

 
5.4 The applicant’s consultant Integrated Transport Planning (ITP) Ltd have submitted a 

Transport Assessment (TA) to support the proposed development. Although the 
operating hours are unknown, the application form indicates that the six industrial 
units will have an estimated 250 members of staff. The TA has taken into account trip 
generation data taken from the TRAVL database covering a range of B1, B1c, B2 and 
B8 sites. The low PTAL suggests that prospective staff/patrons may be more likely to 
use private vehicles to travel to and from the site. However, the site selection 
summary and vehicle generation findings indicate that the proposal will have a 
significantly lower level of traffic than that generated by the sites current use, with 
daily peak hour arrivals falling from 516 to 175 vehicle movements and daily peak 
hour departures falling from 498 to 214 vehicle movements. ITP also carried out a 
highway impact assessment of the sites two access points, which indicate that both 
of these accesses will operate with significant spare capacity in both the am and pm 
peak hours. 

 
5.5 Parking provision as illustrated in drawing number 10-152/A003/J has been provided 

in line with the maximum parking standards set out within the Haringey Council 
adopted Unitary Development Plan (UDP). As stated in the TA the application makes 
provision for; 27 lorry bays, 23 car parking bays, 9 disabled parking bays and cycle 
storage for 54 bicycles. Additionally, the site does not fall within an area that has 
been identified within the UDP as that suffering from high on-street parking pressure. 
Parking restrictions are in place along White Hart Lane, which provide on-street 
parking controls during peak traffic times. 

 
5.6 The applicant has put forward a number of travel plan initiatives to minimise the 

impact of the development. As the end users are currently unknown a Framework 
Travel Plan is proposed, with a Site Travel Plan Co-ordinator identified to oversee the 
implementation and management of the individual travel plans. It has been noted that 
the travel plan has been produced in line with requirements set out in Transport for 
London guidance and that all companies locating to the site will be required to 
monitor their individual travel plans using the iTrace system.  

 
5.7 The site is currently served by two vehicular accesses, with one access to the west of 

the site and another to the east. The application involves the relocation of the eastern 
access to a central location along the sites frontage. It is intended that the new 
access serves as a main access to the development and therefore, it is proposed that 
a ghost island right turn facility be installed to minimise vehicular conflict and delay. 
As confirmed in the TA, the associated safety audit indicated a potential point of 
conflict that may arise from the use of the proposed ghost right turn lane. The 
proposal therefore requires the relocation of an existing bus stop. 

 
5.8 To take into account the increased pedestrian/cycling activity arising from this 

development the highway and transportation authority require off-site improvements 
to enhance street lighting and footway conditions within the vicinity of the site. In 
addition, the relevant works required in relation to the ghost island right turn facility, 
amended vehicle access arrangement and relocated bus stop will need to be secured 
via a Section 278 Agreement. 

 
5.9 The highway and transportation authority agree with the findings of the TA and 

consider that the development will not have any significant negative impact on the 

Page 208



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

surrounding highway network. Therefore, the highway and transportation authority do 
not wish to object to this application subject to the imposition of the following 
conditions: 

 
1. The applicant shall be required to enter into a Section 278 Agreement securing a 

£70,000 (seventy thousand pound) contribution for works related to the creation of 
the ghost island right turn facility and relocation of the vehicle access and bus 
stop. Additionally, the agreement is to include a scheme to improve street lighting 
and footway resurfacing within the vicinity of the site.  

 
Reason: To improve pedestrian/cycle conditions in the immediate vicinity of this 
development. 

 
2. Prior to the commencement of the development a Construction Logistics Plan 

(CLP) should be submitted for the approval of the LPA. The CLP should show the 
routeing of traffic around the immediate road network and ensure that freight and 
waste deliveries are timed to avoid the peak traffic hours.  
 
Reason: To minimise vehicular conflict at this location. 

 
3. The designated Site Travel Plan Co-ordinator shall implement the measures as 

detailed in the Travel Plan submitted as part of the application.  
 

Reason: To minimise the traffic impact of this development on the adjoining 
highway network and promote sustainable travel to and from the site. Informative 

 
The new development will require naming. The applicant should contact the Local 
Land Charges at least six weeks before the development is occupied (tel. 020 
8489 5573) to arrange for the allocation of a suitable address. 

 
 Environmental Agency 
 
5.10 The proposed development will only be acceptable if a planning condition is imposed 

requiring the following drainage details. 
 

Condition: Development shall not begin until a surface water drainage scheme for the 
site, based on sustainable drainage principles and an assessment of the hydrological 
and hydro geological context of the development, has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the local planning authority. The scheme shall subsequently be 
implemented in accordance with the approved details before the development is 
completed. The scheme shall include: 
 

The greatest reduction in surface water runoff rates that is practicably 
possible, with greenfield rates being the target. 

The maximisation of Sustainable Drainage Systems (SUDS) on site. Reason: To 
minimise the risk of flooding, and to improve and protect water quality. 

 
 
6. ANALYSIS / ASSESSMENT OF THE APPLICATION 
 
6.1 The main issues in respect of this application are considered to be: 
 

Page 209



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

Background/ Principle of Redevelopment 

Design, Form & Layout 

Landscaping 

Transport and traffic impact 

Sustainable Drainage and Flood Risk 

Sustainable Design 

Ecology 

Impact on Residential Amenity 

Planning Obligations 
 

Background/ Principle of Redevelopment 
 
6.2 The site is within Defined Employment Area 17, and is allocated for employment uses. 

Policy EMP2: Defined Employment Areas – Industrial Locations, protects sites for 
uses within the ‘B’ use classes and established a principle against redevelopment of 
the site for other incompatible uses. The emerging Haringey Core Strategy identifies 
the site under policy SP8 Employment as being within the White Hart Lane ‘Locally 
Significant Industrial Sites’ (LSIS). The policy allows the use of land for a range of 
industrial uses (B1b, c, B2 & B8) where they continue to meet demand and the needs 
of modern industry and business. 

 
6.3 Up until recently, the site was occupied by a three storey office building with 

warehousing to the rear. The buildings which were demolished in February 2001 
comprised of an office building with floorspace totalling some 4,427 sqm over three 
floors. To the rear of the office accommodation was an attached depot of 13,385 sqm 
of floorspace. The maximum height of these buildings was 11.4 metres above ground 
(for the warehouse element) and 11.6 metres (for the office component). Two 
temporary warehouse buildings (with a ridge height of between 10 metres and 10.56 
metres above ground) were sited to the rear of the site and were removed prior to the 
acquisition of the site by the applicant. 

 
6.4 The application site was occupied until late 2008 by the British Distribution Company, 

known as Bridisco. Their operation on the site comprised their UK office headquarters 
and one of their 30 UK distributions centres. The company operated as a wholesaler 
and distributor of a range of electrical goods including appliances, electrical 
components, security systems, lighting and consumer electronics. In November 
2008, Bridisco was put into Liquidation. Since then, operations on the site ceased 
and the buildings became vacant. The site was put to the market in February 2009 
with the buildings remaining unoccupied during that time. As outlined by the 
applicant difficulties have been reported since then with illegal occupation of the site 
leading to nuisance complaints. 

 
6.5 The site was acquired by Curtis Real Estate and the Northern Ireland Local 

Government Officers Superannuation Committee in January 2010. The applicant has 
secured on-site 24 hour security to protect the premises since it was acquired by 
them. In February 2011, the buildings occupying the site were demolished, leaving a 
cleared site ready for redevelopment. 

 
6.6 The principle of the proposed redevelopment of the site for business, industrial and 

warehousing uses (use classes B1, B2 and B8) accords with national, regional and 
local planning policy in that it would be bringing a now vacant/ previous employment 
site back into use. The proposed development will provide new high quality 

Page 210



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

employment floorspace in the Tottenham area which has seen little industrial 
development since the 1980s, in addition to providing investment the proposal will 
provide important opportunities for local businesses and employment benefits. The 
mix of employment floorspace could generate between 200 and 250 full-time 
equivalent jobs, although actual employment generation will be determined by 
occupier requirements. 

 
6.7 The application site is appropriate for light industrial, general industrial and 

warehousing development, but not for B1(a) offices, as these designated areas are 
generally poorly served by public transport, as in this case and is outside a town 
centre. The office element within the redevelopment will be ancillary to the industrial 
and warehousing uses proposed.  

 
6.8 It is recognised that the redevelopment of this site will lead to a quantitative reduction 

in the employment floorspace, however it is accepted that this loss of employment 
floorspace is mitigated by the qualitative improvements that will arise making the area 
more attractive to a wider range of end users and employers. 

 
Design, Form & Layout 

 
6.9 The proposal is for the erection of three new industrial buildings with revised access 

arrangements to the site and associated parking for each of the individual units. The 
new site layout will have a central access/ service road with units to either side. The 
largest building will be on the eastern side of the site and will extend almost the entire 
depth of the site. This building, as per the previous buildings, will be sited next the 
eastern boundary, which is primarily a concrete retaining wall with a wooded steep 
bank fenced in with a 3.2 metre high palisade fence. 

 
6.10 To the back of the site next to the rear gardens of properties on Devonshire Hill Lane 

and Norfolk Avenue will be the smallest of the industrial units. As per the previous 
building in the part of the site the proposed new industrial building will be sited next 
to a brick faced retaining wall to the back of the site, with a 3.2 metre palisade fence 
to the top of a wooded bank that returns on the side next to the gardens to the 
residential properties on Norfolk Avenue. 

 
6.11 The western boundary starts at the front with a 2m brick wall and continues up to the 

return of the retaining wall with a precast concrete plank wall 1.5m to 2.0 metre high. 
White Hart Lane boundary has a low brick wall with vertical black railings between 
brick piers. 

 
6.12 On the other side of the access road parallel to the largest building will be the third 

building. This building will be pulled in from the western boundary of the site, which 
starts at the front next to White Hart Lane with a 2m brick wall and continues up to 
the return of the retaining wall with a precast concrete wall 1.5m to 2.0 metre high. 

 
6.13 Each industrial unit will have a dedicated lorry/van and car parking as well as cycle 

hoops and bin storage, related to the particular unit rather than being centralised. The 
units will have office accommodation at first floor level, 10% to 13% of the size of the 
ground floor, which will be ancillary to the main function of the buildings as B1/B2/B8 
employment units. 

 
6.14 The buildings will have shallow pitched roof with a ridge height of 10.2 to 10.9 metres 

above proposed ground level, which would be lower than the previous office building 

Page 211



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

which had a roof height of 11.6 metres and lower than the ridge height of the previous 
warehouse of 11.4 metres. The finished floor level of Unit 1 will be one metre below 
the other units taking account of the lower level of the south-west corner of the site. 
The ridge height of Unit 2 will line up with the top of the existing palisade fence 
adjoining.  

 
6.15 The predominant material to the industrial blocks will be profiled metal cladding and 

roofing sheets supported by portal steel frames. The cladding on the face of the 
building will be in two different colours - horizontal profile cladding will be in dark blue 
(Sargasso) to allow the low pitch pale blue (Albatross) roof to appear floating with mid 
blue (Denim) vertical cladding as a contrast. There will be feature panels on the front 
elevation and on the prominent corners (Micro rib panels in Sirius silver) to provide 
contrast to the profile cladding to enhance the overall external finish. 

 
6.15 All units will have an electrically operated level access steel shutter each while Unit 1 

will also have three loading docks. Unit 1 and 2 will be provided with secure gated 
service yards with separate car parking while Units 2 to 6  will be served by a number 
of service yards with adjacent car parking. The whole site will be protected with a 
sliding gate which will be closed at night. 

 
6.16 Along the boundaries the proposal is for the retention and replacement of the metal 

pallisade fencing and brick walling. The hardsurfaced areas will be covered in 
macadam and concrete. 

 
6.17 The proposal is to be fully compliant with the principles set out in Approved 

Document Part ‘M’ of the Building Regulations (AD ‘M’) and BS 8300:2009. The 
design intent is to provide safe and inclusive access up to the each building entrance. 

 
6.17 Policy UD4 ‘Quality Design’ identifies that the spatial and visual character of the 

development site and the surrounding area should be taken into account, along with 
the key aspects which affect design. In terms of the overall scale and design, it is 
considered that the proposed buildings are acceptable, taking into account the 
broader site context Importantly the building frontage onto White Hart Lane is broken 
up and will be softened by landscaping. The frontage onto White Hart Lane will be of 
a reduced visual mass in comparison to the previous building. 

 
Landscaping  

 
6.18 As noted above the access into the site is changing, and as a result two existing trees 

along the green strip in between the pavement and back edge of the road will need to 
be removed. An assessment of the condition of these trees is submitted as a formal 
part of the planning application. To compensate for this loss the planting of four 
replacement specimens will be required (secured through S278 Agreement). 

 
6.19 As per the previous buildings on site and the previous site layout, the site had very 

minimal landscaping expect for tree planting along the boundary of the site which 
separates the site from residential dwellings. 

 
6.20 Within the proposed site layout there is minimum scope for soft landscaping owing to 

the nature of the site and the nature of the proposed uses. Some small areas of 
planting will be provided, including an area to the front of the site, which is also to act 
as an attenuation pond. The landscaping proposed will be of shrubs of the long 
life,/low maintenance variety.  

Page 212



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

 
Transport and traffic impact 

 
6.21 The planning application is supported by a Transport Assessment (carried out by ITP) 

and a Travel Plan. The traffic generation from the proposed development and the 
previous lawful site use has been derived based on historic trip rate data within the 
TRAVL database. It is accepted that the proposed development will lead to less traffic 
than that generated by the existing use, thus leading to a reduction in traffic on the 
local road network. 

 
6.22 As already noted a revised access arrangement is proposed, comprising a new main 

central point of access and egress, with an additional secondary point of access into 
the site at the western end of the site serving a small parking area. The new main 
access will be 7.3 metre wide and will include new sliding security night gate, 
dropped kerbs, adapted pavement and the existing brick wall with railing cut back. 
Road markings to White Hart Lane will be added to provide turn right in. A 7.3 metre 
wide turning point at the head of the private service road will be provided. In order to 
provide this new access arrangement an existing westbound bus stop located 
opposite the site frontage, will be moved approximately 35 metres to the west, along 
with the associate relocation of an existing traffic island.  

 
6.22 The application site falls within a low PTAL area and is served by the W3 bus route, 

which operates with a two-way frequency of 24 buses per hour, which provide links 
to Wood Green underground and White Hart Lane rail stations. Furthermore, the site 
is located within reasonable walking distance to the Great Cambridge Road (A10), 
which is served by a number of bus routes (No’s 144, 217, 231, 318 and 444) 
providing links to a number local transport services with a two-way frequency of 43 
buses per hour. It is expected that a reasonable number of staff/patrons would use 
sustainable transport for journeys to and from the site. 

 
6.23 The TA has takes into account trip generation data taken from the TRAVL database 

covering a range of B1, B1c, B2 and B8 sites. The low PTAL suggests that 
prospective staff/patrons may be more likely to use private vehicles to travel to and 
from the site. However, the site selection summary and vehicle generation findings 
indicate that the proposal will have a significantly lower level of traffic than that 
generated by the sites current use, with daily peak hour arrivals falling from 516 to 
175 vehicle movements and daily peak hour departures falling from 498 to 214 
vehicle movements. ITP also carried out a highway impact assessment of the sites 
two access points, which indicate that both of these accesses will operate with 
significant spare capacity in both the am and pm peak hours. 

 
6.24 Parking provision as illustrated in drawing number 10-152/A003/J has been provided 

in line with the maximum parking standards set out within the adopted Unitary 
Development Plan (UDP). The site layout makes provision for vehicle and cycle 
parking on a per unit basis, in accordance with the relevant standards, and makes 
provision for vehicle turning and manoeuvring within the site. In total the proposal 
makes provision for 27 lorry bays, 23 car parking bays, 9 disabled parking bays and 
cycle storage for 54 bicycles. As noted the site does not fall within an area that has 
been identified within the UDP as that suffering from high on-street parking pressure. 
Parking restrictions are in place along White Hart Lane, which provide on-street 
parking controls during peak traffic times. 

 

Page 213



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

6.25 The applicant has put forward a number of travel plan initiatives to minimise the 
impact of the development. As the end users are currently unknown a Framework 
Travel Plan is proposed, with a Site Travel Plan Co-ordinator identified to oversee the 
implementation and management of the individual travel plans. It has been noted that 
the travel plan has been produced in line with requirements set out in Transport for 
London guidance and that all companies locating to the site will be required to 
monitor their individual travel plans using the iTrace system.  

 
6.26 To take into account the increased pedestrian/cycling activity arising from this 

development the Highway and Transportation authority require off-site improvements 
to enhance street lighting and footway conditions within the vicinity of the site. In 
addition, the relevant works required in relation to the ghost island right turn facility, 
amended vehicle access arrangement and relocated bus stop will need to be secured 
via a Section 278 Agreement. 

 
6.27 The Highway and Transportation Authority agree with the findings of the TA and 

consider that the development will not have any significant negative impact on the 
surrounding highway network. Therefore, the Highway and Transportation Authority 
do not object to this application subject to the imposition of a number of conditions, 
as outlined earlier in this report. 

 
Sustainable Drainage and Flood Risk 

 
6.28 A Flood Risk Assessment was carried and submitted with the application in 

accordance with the requirements of PPS25. The Environment Agency has been 
consulted on this and raise no in principle objection. The Environment Agency Flood 
Zone mapping shows the site to be located within Flood Zone 1 (Low Probability). In 
this location, this Flood Zone is defined in PPS25 as land assessed as having a 
greater than 1 in 1000 year annual probability of fluvial flooding. Under PPS25 the 
proposed development is considered less vulnerable. 

 
6.29 The London Plan and the North London Strategic Flood Risk Assessment make clear 

directives to reduce existing discharge rates by at least 50%. As a minimum 
discharge should be restricted to 50% less than the existing discharge as calculated 
by the rational method 

 
6.29 The proposed development will not increase the impermeable area on site. The 

proposed site layout incorporates surface water attenuation in the form of two basins 
located towards the front of the site, which will ensure that outflows of surface water 
are managed and that discharge rates into the surface water sewer are in accordance 
with Thames Water’s requirements.  

 
6.30 It is considered the proposal would meet the requirements of the PPS25 and subject 

to the mitigation measures proposed the development may proceed without being 
subject to significant flood risk. Moreover the development will not increase flood risk 
to the wider catchments area as a result of suitable management of surface water 
runoff discharging from the site. 

 
Sustainable Design 

 
6.31 A Sustainability Report and Energy Assessment have been submitted with the 

application. As outlined in the Sustainabiluty Report a variety of measures to promote 

Page 214



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

sustainability, both in the construction and the operational phase of development, will 
achieved, for example by: 

 

Reuse of construction waste; 

Optimising the use of previously developed land; 

Managing runoff through SuDS; 

Preparation of a Site Waste Management Plan (SWMP) 

Adoption of a Travel plan prepared to assist in the promotion of sustainable 
transport; 

Development will be designed to meet BREEAM ‘Very Good’ standards; 

Use of low energy fittings. 
 
6.32 The applicant’s have agreed to achieve a BREEAM (Building Research Establishment 

Environmental Assessment Method) certification of at least ‘Very Good’. BREEAM 
takes into account factors such as contribution of renewable energy technologies to 
on site energy requirements, sustainable transport methods, grey water recycling, 
building insulation, solar gain, and sustainable sourcing of building materials and 
disposal of construction waste to determine their accreditation system. 

 
6.33 Although the above commitments are welcomed, the proposal will be required to 

demonstrate a reduction of 20% in carbon emission, achieved through the use of 
onsite renewable energy technology as part of the proposed development. Specific 
proposals for the inclusion of renewable technology should be included, and 
justification provided to demonstrate that this requirement will be met; therefore it is 
recommended that this be conditioned.  

 
6.34 The sustainable measures identified together with the use of renewable technology 

will represent a satisfactory commitment to measures to combat climate change in 
accordance with the national, London and local requirements. 

 
Ecology 

 
6.35 An Ecological Assessment has been prepared and submitted with the planning   

application. The Assessment notes that the site has limited ecological value due to its 
developed nature. Those areas of existing landscape forming the northern boundary 
of the site, which comprise of several semi mature trees, are to be retained. 

 
Land Contamination  

 
6.36 The existing site has been historically used as agricultural land, a clay extraction 

operation and more recently a goods distribution depot. Therefore the introduction of 
chemicals into the ground is likely.  

 
6.37 Geotechnical laboratory testing was carried out on selected samples recovered from 

the boreholes. Chemical testing was carried out on 21 soil samples, 6 leachate 
samples and 6 groundwater samples. The levels of contamination were low which is 
not considered to pose a significant risk of significant harm to end users. However, 
inspections for hydrocarbons will be undertaken during demolition works. 

 

Page 215



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

Waste Management 
 
6.38 Each business unit will have its own waste storage facilities and receptacles, as 

shown in drawing number 10-152-A003-J-A3, Master Plan. This means that the 
storage of receptacles will be proximate to the business unit and ensures a direct and 
clear responsibility for managing the cleanliness and security of those facilities 

 
6.39 Receptacle storage areas will be secure and constructed of appropriate materials, 

and will be of sufficient size to accommodate an appropriate number of receptacles 
as required by the occupier and waste collection operator 

 
6.40 The proposed development incorporates specific recyclate and waste receptacle 

storage areas which are individually provided to serve each business units. These 
areas are of sufficient size to accommodate flexibility in the size and number of 
receptacles. 

 
6.41 The receptacle storage areas have been located to ensure that they are proximate to 

each unit and to the main means of access to the site, and that they will be 
accessible in all weathers. They will be designed and located to ensure that 
environmental and fire protection requirements are met, and that they can be 
accessed in accordance with Health and Safety requirements. 

 
Impact on Residential Amenity 

 
6.38 The application site adjoins the rear gardens of properties to the north and west of 

the site. As already pointed out the site is enclosed to the north by a retaining wall 
approximately 7.5 metres in height at its highest point, above and beyond which is an 
area of existing established vegetation (including mature trees), which separates the 
site from these nearby residential properties. The back of the site next to the 
boundary previously contained two warehouse buildings (with a ridge height of 
between 10 metres and 10.56 metres above ground). 

 
6.39 To the back of the site next to the rear gardens to the properties on Devonshire Hill 

Lane/ Norfolk Avenue will be the smallest of the industrial units. The difference in 
levels between the application site and the gardens of the adjoining residential 
properties, with the associated retaining wall and the wooded steep bank above will 
largely conceal the building from view from these residential properties. The distance 
between the nearest industrial unit and the back of the nearest residential property is 
approximately 30 metres. The units at the rear will in fact act as a screen to the 
majority of the back gardens to these residential properties. The revised access and 
parking arrangements to the site will keep traffic movement away from the 
boundaries of the site. The elevation treatment in particular the neutral colours will 
reduce the visual impact of the new buildings on adjoining properties while providing 
a satisfactory appearance for this industrial park. 

 
6.40 Bearing in mind the previous site layout and the building heights and the associated 

difference in levels with the adjoining site, the proposed site layout and associated 
building heights will be sensitive to it surrounding and therefore ensuring a 
satisfactory relationship with the nearby residents properties. The proposal will not 
have an adverse impact on the amenity of these properties in terms of overshadowing 
or loss of daylight/ sunlight. 

 

Page 216



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

6.41 While the actual building forms are not otherwise considered to likely impact the 
amenities and quiet enjoyment of the nearest neighbouring residential properties, 
some consideration should be given to noise and disturbance arising from 
construction works and hours of operation. The imposition of some conditions can 
reduce the impacts of the development on these nearby residents, namely controls 
on hours of construction; control on hours of use; limiting the industrial units to the 
rear of the site to B1 or B8 use. The applicant’s have indicated that the comply with 
the ‘Considerate Constructors Scheme’s’  

 
6.42 Overall it is considered that by virtue of the siting and design of the proposed 

industrial units, there will be no detrimental impact on the visual and residential 
amenities of amenities of surrounding properties. 

 
Planning Obligations/ Section 106 Agreement 

 
6.44 Under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act, the Community 

Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended), the terms of Circular 05/2005 
Planning Obligations, and in line with Policy UD8 and Supplementary Planning 
Guidance 10a ‘The Negotiation, management and Monitoring of Planning Obligations’ 
the Local Planning Authority (LPA) will seek financial contributions towards a range of 
associated improvements immediately outside the boundary of the site. 

 

A revised access arrangement is proposed for the site. This will necessitate works 
under S278 of the Highways Act 1980, as outlined above. The applicant shall be 
required to enter into a Section 278 Agreement securing a £70,000 (seventy 
thousand pound) contribution for works related to the creation of the ghost island 
right turn facility and relocation of the vehicle access and bus stop. Additionally, 
the agreement is to include a scheme to improve street lighting and footway 
resurfacing within the vicinity of the site and the planting of replacement street 
trees within the vicinity of the site. 

 

The applicant will be required to make a financial contribution by way of S106 
Agreement to support local employment opportunities either as part of the 
Haringey Guarantee project, or by other appropriate means agreed with the 
Council. A contribution of £22,500.00 has been agreed. 

 

The applicant will be required to enter into a Construction Training and Local 
Labour Agreement including a requirement for contractors to adhere to national or 
local schemes to promote employment amongst under-represented equality 
groups and local residents from Haringey. 

 
7. CONCLUSION 
 
7.1 The principle of the redevelopment of this site for business, industrial and 

warehousing uses is consistent with existing national strategic, London Plan and local 
planning guidance regarding new employment development. The redevelopment of 
this former brownfiled industrial site for employment purposes is welcomed as it will 
suitably consolidate the function of this defined employment area and will enhance 
the economic viability and job creation potential of this part of the Borough. The 
siting, built form, design and appearance of this proposed industrial units and its 
associated access points to this new industrial estate are considered acceptable. The 

Page 217



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

proposal will not adversely affect the residential and visual amenities of nearby 
residents.  

 
7.2 As such the proposal is in accordance with policy UD2 ‘Sustainable Design and 

Construction’, UD3 ‘General Principles’, UD4 ‘Quality Design’, EMP3 ‘Defined 
Employment Area’, EMP5 Promoting Employment Uses’ and M10 ‘Parking for 
Development’ of the adopted Haringey Unitary Development Plan (2006) and the 
Councils SPG1a ‘Design Guidance’, SPG7a ‘Vehicle and Pedestrian Movement’, and 
SPG8b ‘Materials’ of the Haringey Supplementary Planning Guidance (October 2006). 
On this basis the application is recommended for APPROVAL; subject to conditions 
and subject to a Section 106 Agreement. 

 
8. RECOMMENDATION 
 

RECOMMENDATION 1 
 
8.1 The Sub-Committee is recommended to RESOLVE as follows: (1) That planning 

permission be granted in accordance with planning application no. HGY/2011/0814, 
subject to a pre-condition that the owners of the application site shall first have 
entered into an Agreement or Agreements with the Council under Section 106 of the 
Town & Country Planning Act 1990 (As Amended) and Section 16 of the Greater 
London Council (General Powers) Act 1974 in order to secure:  

 
(1.1) The applicant to enter into a Section 278 Agreement securing a £70,000 

(seventy thousand pound) contribution for works related to the creation of the 
ghost island right turn facility and relocation of the vehicle access and bus 
stop, in addition to a scheme to improve street lighting and footway 
resurfacing within the vicinity of the site; 

 
(1.2) A financial contribution of £22,500.00 be provided by way of S106 Agreement 

to support local employment opportunities either as part of the Haringey 
Guarantee project, or by other appropriate means agreed with the Council; 

 
(1.3) The applicant to enter into agreement to enter into a Construction Training and 

Local Labour Agreement; 
 

(1.4) The developer to pay a administration / monitoring cost of £2,500.00 in 
connection with this Section 106 agreement.   

 
RECOMMENDATION 2 

 
8.2 That in the absence of the Agreement referred to in the resolution above being 

completed by 31st January 2012, planning application reference number 
HGY/2011/0814 be refused for the following reason: 

 
In the absence of a formal undertaking to secure a Section 106 Agreement for 
appropriate contribution for highway and access improvements to this site the 
proposal is contrary to Policy UD8 'Planning Obligations' of the adopted Haringey 
Unitary Development (2006) and Supplementary Planning Guidance SPG10a 'The 
Negotiation, Management and Monitoring of Planning Obligations'. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 3 

 

Page 218



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

8.3 In the event that the Planning Application is refused for the reason set out above, the 
Assistant Director (PEPP) (in consultation with the Chair of Planning Committee) is 
hereby authorised to approve any further application for planning permission which 
duplicates the Planning Application provided that:  

 
(i) there has not been any material change in circumstances in the relevant planning 
considerations, and  
(ii) the further application for planning permission is submitted to and approved by the 
Assistant Director (PEPP) within a period of not more than 12 months from the date of 
the said refusal, and 
(iii) the relevant parties shall have previously entered into the agreement 
contemplated in resolution (1) above to secure the obligations specified therein. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 4 

 
8.4 That following completion of the Agreement referred to in (1) above, planning 

permission be GRANTED in accordance with planning application no HGY/2011/0814 
and the Applicant’s drawing No.(s) E10-090 A001, 10-152 A003 REV J, A004, A005, 
A006, A007, A008, B001 REV A, B002 REV B, B003, B004 REV A, B006 REV A, 
NTH/247/SK01 REV P5 & NTH/247/SK02 REV P1 and subject to the following 
conditions: 

 
IMPLEMENTATION 

 
1. The development hereby authorised must be begun not later than the 

expiration of 3 years from the date of this permission, failing which the 
permission shall be of no effect. 

 
Reason: This condition is imposed by virtue of the provisions of the Planning & 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and to prevent the accumulation of 
unimplemented planning permissions. 

 
2. The development hereby authorised shall be carried out in complete 

accordance with the plans and specifications submitted to, and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 
Reason: In order to ensure the development is carried out in accordance with 
the approved details and in the interests of amenity. 

 
EXTERNAL APPEARANCE / SITE LAYOUT 

 
3. Notwithstanding the description of the materials in the application, no 

development shall be commenced until precise details of the materials to be 
used in connection with the new front boundary treatment, including 
landscaping, have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority and thereafter implemented in accordance with such 
approved detail and prior to the occupation of the residential units hereby 
approved. 

 
Reason: In order to retain control over the external appearance of the 
development in the interest of the visual amenity of the area. 

 

Page 219



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

4. Notwithstanding the details shown on drawing No A003 J details of a scheme 
of hard and soft landscaping including details of the front boundary treatment 
shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority 
before the development hereby permitted, is commenced. 

  
Reason: To ensure a satisfactory appearance to the development. 

 
5. A detailed Waste Management Plan (WMP) (to include details for the disposal, 

processing, recycling and storage of waste for the units hereby approved, in 
addition to details of enclosures and screened facilities for the storage of 
recycling containers and wheeled refuse bins and/or other refuse storage 
containers where applicable, together with a satisfactory point of collection, 
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority 
prior to the occupation of the building. The operations of each unit shall be 
carried out in accordance with the approved WMP in perpetuity unless minor 
variations are otherwise approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

  
Reason: To ensure a satisfactory appearance for the development and 
satisfactory accessibility; and to protect the amenities of the area. 

 
6. Prior to the commencement of construction works on site full details of the all 

proposed external lighting have been submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. Details shall include appearance and technical 
details and specifications, intensity, orientation and screening of lamps, siting 
and the means of construction and layout of cabling. Lighting is to be 
restricted to those areas where it is necessary with additional shielding to 
minimise obtrusive effects. The approved scheme is to be fully completed and 
shall be permanently maintained thereafter. 
 
Reason: In the interest of design quality, residential amenity and public and 
highway safety. 

 
CONTROL ON USE/ ACTIVITIES WITHIN THE SITE 

 
7 Any noise generated by virtue of this development shall not cause an increase 

in the pre-existing background noise level or more than 5db (A) when 
measured and corrected in accordance with BS 4142:1967, as amended, titled 
'Method of Rating Industrial Noise Affecting Mixed Residential & Industrial 
Areas'. In this context, the background level is construed as measuring the 
level of noise which is exceeded for 90% of the time. 

  
Reason: In order to protect the amenities of nearby residential occupiers. 

 
8 No deliveries shall be loaded or unloaded within the site between the hours of 

2100 and 0600 Monday to Saturday or after 1800 hours Saturday until 0600 
hours the following Monday. 

  
Reason: In order to ensure that the proposed development does not prejudice 
the enjoyment by neighbouring occupiers of their property. 

 
9 There shall be no external storage of materials, or construction or placing of 

racks and bins or other storage containers outside the buildings on site without 
the prior written approval of the Local Planning Authority. 

Page 220



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

  
Reason: In order to safeguard the visual amenity of the area. 

 
10 No additional floorspace other than as stated within the application shall be 

created inside the buildings approved without the prior written consent of the 
Local Planning Authority. 

 
Reason: To ensure that the car parking provided meets the needs of the 
buildings approved and that traffic generation does not exceed the allocated 
capacity. 

 
11. No satellite antenna, apparatus or plant of any sort (including structures or 

plant in connection with the use of telecommunication systems or any 
electronic communications apparatus) shall be erected on the roof of any 
building.  

 
Reason: In order to safeguard the visual amenity of the area. 
 

12. No external lighting shall be installed on the site without the prior written 
consent of the local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: In order to safeguard the visual amenity of the area. 

 
13. Units 2a & 2b hereby permitted, as indicated on DWG:A012 shall be restricted 

to use classes B1 ‘Business’ or B8 ‘Storage or Distribution’ only as defined in 
the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order (as amended, or any 
Order revoking or re-enacting that Order) while the other units hereby 
permitted shall be used solely as specified in the application for classes B1, B2 
and B8  
 
Reason: In order to restrict the use of the premises to one compatible with the 
surrounding area and in interests of neighbouring residential amenity. 

 
PARKING / TRANSPORTATION 

 
14. The designated Site Travel Plan Co-ordinator shall implement the measures as 

detailed in the Travel Plan submitted as part of the application. 
  

Reason: To minimise the traffic impact of this development on the adjoining 
highway network and promote sustainable travel to and from the site. 

 
15. Before the development hereby permitted is occupied the parking spaces 

shown on the approved plans shall be provided and shall not thereafter be 
used for any purpose other than the parking of vehicles in connection with the 
approved development. 

  
Reason: To ensure that parking is provided in accordance wit the Local 
Planning Authority’s standards. 

 
SUSTAINABILITY / RENEWABLE ENERGY 

 
16. Development shall not begin until a surface water drainage scheme for the site, 

based on sustainable drainage principles and an assessment of the 

Page 221



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

hydrological and hydro geological context of the development, has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The 
scheme shall subsequently be implemented in accordance with the approved 
details before the development is completed. The scheme shall include: 

 

The greatest reduction in surface water runoff rates that is practicably 
possible, with greenfield rates being the target. 

The maximisation of Sustainable Drainage Systems (SUDS) on site. 
 

Reason: To minimise the risk of flooding, and to improve and protect water 
quality. 

 
17. Prior to the commencement of development, details of energy efficient design 

and the potential for the use of renewable energy sources shall be submitted 
to and approved by the Local Planning Authority and shall be implemented 
prior to the commencement of the use hereby permitted and maintained 
thereafter for the life of the development. 

 
Reason: To ensure the development incorporates energy efficiency measures 
including on-site renewable energy generation, in order to contribute to a 
reduction in carbon dioxide emissions generated by the development in line 
with national and local policy guidance. 

 
18. Prior to the commencement of development in terms of any unit / building 

hereby approved, the developer shall provide a copy of the final Building 
Research Establishment (BRE) certificate confirming that the building design 
achieves a minimum BREEAM rating of Very Good. The BREEAM Post 
Construction Assessment shall be carried out on a sample of the development 
in accordance with an agreed methodology to ensure that the required 
minimum rating has been achieved. 

 
Reason: In the interests of energy efficiency and sustainability. 

 
CONSTRUCTION  

 
19. The construction works of the development hereby granted shall not be carried 

out before 0800 or after 1800 hours Monday to Friday or before 0800 or after 
1200 hours on Saturday and not at all on Sundays or Bank Holidays. 

  
Reason: In order to ensure that the proposal does not prejudice the enjoyment 
of neighbouring occupiers of their properties. 

 
20. No development shall take place until site investigation detailing previous and 

existing land uses, potential land contamination, risk estimation and 
remediation work if required have been submitted to and approved  in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority and these works shall be carried out as 
approved. 

  
Reason: In order for the Local Planning Authority to ensure the site is 
contamination free. 

 

Page 222



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

16. Prior to the commencement of the development a Construction Logistics Plan 
(CLP) should be submitted for the approval of the LPA. The CLP should show 
the routeing of traffic around the immediate road network and reasonable 
endeavours ensure that freight and waste deliveries are timed to avoid the 
peak traffic hours. 

  
 Reason: To minimise vehicular conflict at this location. 
 
INFORMATIVE: The issue of water supply within the site has been considered and in 
order to provide an adequate water supply for fire fighting, the London Fire Brigade 
(LFB) recommends the instillation of 2 Private Fire Hydrants in the position indicated 
in red on the enclosed map. The hydrants should be numbered P100119 and 
P109079 respectively.  
 
INFORMATIVE: At the present time the London Fire Brigade has a policy of free 
annual inspections. If you would like your premises to be included in the test 
programme then please notify the London Fire Brigade, 169 Union Street, London 
SE1 0LLTel 0208 555 1200. 
 

 

 
 

Figure 1: Aerial Photo of Previous Site Layout 
 

Page 223



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

 
 

Figure 2: CGI of Proposed Site Layout 
 
 
 

Page 224



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

 
 

Figure 3: Proposed Layout 

Page 225



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

 

 
 

Figure 4: Indicative Front Elevation 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 226



Page 227



Page 228

This page is intentionally left blank



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

Planning Sub-Committee 12 September 2011    Item No. 
 
REPORT FOR CONSIDERATION AT PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

Reference No: HGY/2011/1254 Ward: Northumberland Park 
 

Address:  26 Lordship Lane N17 8NS 
 
Proposal: Erection of 2 storey terrace of 5 x three bedroom units. Demolition of existing 
two storey building on Bruce Castle Road and erection of two storey building to match 
existing. Demolition of existing building on Birkbeck Road and erection of 2 x two storey 
terrace house. 
 
Existing Use: B1 Light Industrial                               Proposed Use: C3 Residential              
 
Applicant: Mr Fletcher - The Roland Group Of Companies 
 
Ownership: Private 
 

Date received: 30/06/2011 Last amended date: N / A  
 
Drawing number of plans: 10-01-01-09 & 10-01-11 
 

 
Case Officer Contact: Matthew Gunning 
 

 
PLANNING DESIGNATIONS: Road Network: Classified Road 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION: GRANT PERMISSION subject to conditions and to a Deed of 
Variation to the current  S106 Agreement. 
 

 
SUMMARY OF REPORT: The proposal is largely the same as a scheme approved in July 
2010, but differs in terms of the Bruce Castle and Birkbeck Road frontages. The terrrace 
of  5 x three bedroom units along the southern edge of the site, to front onto Lordship 
Lane, are currently being built and are near completition. The buildings now remaining on 
the site are three brick structures, which on close examination are of a very poor 
condition with little or no foundations. As per the current application these Victorian 
workshop buildings are to be demolished, one of which is to be re-built and the others 
demolished and replaced with 2 x two storey terrace houses. The design and form of the 
new terrace block to front onto Birkbeck Road and the replacement building to match the 
form and design of the Victorian workshop buildings are considered acceptable and in 
keeping with its surrounding and the character of the area, and will provide good quality 
family size units. This application is therefore recommended for APPROVAL, subject to 
conditions, and subject to the completion of Deed of Variation to the current  S106 
Agreement. 
 

Agenda Item 10Page 229



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

 
1. SITE AND SURROUNDINGS 
 
1.1 The application site is an irregular shaped site (0.1 ha in size) located on the 

northern side of Lordship Lane in between the junctions of Bruce Castle Road 
and Birkbeck Road. The site contains Victorian workshop buildings to the rear, 
which are brick built with slate roofs and which have gable ends and high level 
circular windows which face towards the Bruce Castle Road and Birkbeck 
Road. To the front of these buildings was a steel frame workshop and office 
building, which up until very recently accommodated an employment use (steel 
works use known as Gosport Engineering Company Ltd). The site is currently 
being developed as per planning permission granted in July 2010. 

 
1.2 The surrounding area is mixed in character and consists largely of three storey 

terraces along Lordship which contain retail uses at ground floor level and 
residential accommodation above. Bruce Castle Road and Birkbeck Road 
contain two-storey residential terrace properties, with the exception of No 2. 
Bruce Castle Road, which is a stand alone property. The site is not located 
within a conservation area but is located close to Bruce Castle Conservation 
Area and Tottenham High Road Corridor Conservation Area. The site is located 
approximately 650m m away from Bruce Grove Station and falls within a PTAL 
3 area. 

 
2. PLANNING PROPOSAL 
 
2.1 The planning application is for the erection of a two-storey terrace of 5 x three 

bedroom units, the demolition of an existing two storey building on Bruce 
Castle Road and the erection of two storey building to match the existing, and 
for the demolition of  existing buildings on Birkbeck Road and for the erection 
of 2 x two storey terrace houses.  
 

2.2 The proposal is largely the same as the scheme approved in July 2010, but 
differs in terms of the Bruce Castle and Birkbeck Road frontages. The terrrace 
of  5 x three bedroom units along the southern edge of the site are currently 
being built and are near completition.  
 

2.3 The buildings now remaining on the site are three brick structures, which on 
close examination are of a very poor condition with little or no foundations. To 
the rear there is a brick and slate built Victorian building of single storey 
running along the rear of the site and interconnecting with a similar brick built 
two-storey building. The single storey buildings were used as workshops and 
the upper part of the two-storey building was used as kitchen and rest 
accommodation for employees. The whole of the rear ground floor section of 
the original Victorian buildings have been opened up and were supported by a 
steel frame and part of the industrial building, which has now been removed. 
 

2.4 As per current application these Victorian workshop buildings are to be 
demolished, one of which is to be demolished and re-built and the others 
demolished and replaced with 2 x two storey terrace houses. 

Page 230



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

 
3. PLANNING HISTORY 
 
3.1 Planning Application History 
 

HGY/1999/1369 - Erection of and extension to existing entrance canopy. 
Installation  of new rooflight. --- Approved 07/12/1999 

 
HGY/2010/0862 - Demolition of existing steel framed workshop and office 
building and erection of 2 storey terrace of 5 x three bedroom units with private 
gardens. Refurbishment of existing building to the rear and conversion to form 
3 x two bedroom units --- Approved 30/07/2010 

 
3.2 Planning Enforcement History 
 

None 
 
4. RELEVANT PLANNING POLICY  
 
4.1 National Planning Policy 
 
 Planning Policy Statement 1: Delivering Sustainable Development 

Planning Policy Statement 3: Housing 
Planning Policy Guidance 13: Transport 
Planning Policy Statement 22: Renewable Energy 

 
4.2 London Plan 2011 

 
Policy 3.3 Increasing housing supply  
Policy 3.4 Optimising housing potential  
Policy 3.5 Quality and design of housing developments  
Policy 3.8 Housing choice  
Policy 3.9 Mixed and balanced communities  
Policy 5.1 Climate change mitigation  
Policy 5.2 Minimising carbon dioxide emissions  
Policy 5.7 Renewable energy  

 
4.3 Unitary Development Plan 2006 
  
 Policy G1 Environment 

Policy G2: Development and Urban Design 
Policy UD2 Sustainable Design and Construction 
Policy UD3 General Principles 
Policy UD4 Quality Design 
Policy UD7 Waste Storage 
Policy UD8 Planning Obligations 
Policy HSG1 New Housing Development 
Policy HSG9 Density Standards 
Policy HSG10 Dwelling Mix 

Page 231



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

Policy ENV13 Sustainable Waste Management 
Policy M4 Pedestrian and Cyclists 
Policy M10 Parking for Development 

 
4.4 Supplementary Planning Guidance / Documents 
 
 SPG1a Design Guidance and Design Statements 

SPD Housing 2008 
SPG5 Safety by Design 
SPG8a Waste and Recycling 
SPG8b Materials 
SPG9 Sustainability Statement 
SPG10a The Negotiation, Management and Monitoring of Planning Obligations 
SPG10c Educational Needs Generated by New Housing 

 
5. CONSULTATION 
 

Internal External 

Ward Councillors 
Transportation
Legal
Building Control 
Transportation
Waste Management 

London Fire & Emergency 
Planning Authority 
3-27 (o) Bruce Castle Road 
(including conversions) 
2-24 (e), 3-23 (o) Birkbeck 
Road (including 
conversions) 
38-42 (e) Lordship Lane, 
Flat a 38 Lordship Lane 
(including conversions) 
25-63 (o) Lordship Lane 
(including conversions)

 
6. RESPONSES 
 
5.1 Tottenham Police Station/ Crime Prevention  
 

It is recommended that the new homes are built to Secured by Design 
standards. The Crime Prevention Design Advisers for Haringey Police can 
provide free, impartial advice and can be contacted on 02083452167 

 
7. ANALYSIS / ASSESSMENT OF THE APPLICATION 
 

Background 
 
7.1 As per the planning consent granted in July 2010 the proposal was for the 

demolition of the steel frame workshop and office building to the front of the 
site and the erection of a terrace of five new houses (3 bedroom). The proposal 

Page 232



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

was also for the refurbishment of the buildings to the rear of the site and 
conversion into 3 x 2 bed units. 

 
7.2 As outlined in Officer Report in respect of this previous application the 

proposal involved the loss of the an employment use which had been actively 
marketed for a period of two years, and the proposed redevelopment of this 
site for residential use was considered acceptable as it was compatible with 
surrounding uses.  

 
7.3 This previous consent is currently being implemented however there are two 

changes to the scheme in terms of the building forms which will front onto 
Bruce Castle and Birkbeck Road 

 
7.4 The terrace of houses to front onto Lordship Lane, which are near competition, 

are staggered and sit at an angle to the road frontage. At the closest point the 
terrace is 3.5m away from the back edge of the pavement. In terms of the side 
frontages onto Bruce Castle Road and Birkbeck Road the terrace block is 
respectful of the building lines along these roads. These terrace properties are 
two-storeys with accommodation within the roof space and overall are 7.7m in 
height at roof ridge level. These terrace properties are designed with projecting 
bays and gables and pitched roofs. These terrace units are faced in brick 
(yellow stock with soft red banding) and render with slate roofs. These 
dwellings will also have timber framed windows top hung windows. 

 
7.5 The metal railings to the front of the site have been kept and a strip of greenery 

between the frontage of these properties and the back edge of the pavement 
will be provided 

 
Layout & Design 

 
7.6 Upon more detailed inspection of the Victorian workshop buildings to the rear 

of the site, following the demolition of the workshop and office building, it was 
apparent that these had little or no foundations and were supported by the 
steel framed building. The existing stock brick walls are very fragile and the 
lime mortar between the bricks is perished and is very loose throughout. These 
buildings are in a very poor state of repair such that the intended conversion/ 
renovations would be very difficult 

 
7.7 For this reason this proposal seeks to remove the building on Bruce Castle 

Road and rebuild the structure in matching materials on new foundations 
providing a unit on two floors with a roof. 

 
7.8 On the Birkbeck Road frontage the proposal is to remove the two existing 

buildings and to build a pair of identically matching three bedroom terrace 
houses to be read as an extension/ completion to the terrace.  

 
7.9 The frontages of the new terrace houses will be in keeping with the existing 

terrace as well as respecting the set back and building line of the terrace. The 
two additional family size units (with additional accommodation within the 

Page 233



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

roofspace) will have a gross internal area of 97 – 101 square metres and meet 
the floorspace standards as set out in SPD ‘Housing’. 

 
7.10 In terms of material the new hoses will be predominantly brick construction, 

therefore providing a visual connection with the existing brick and render 
properties surrounding the site. The proposed rebuild structure will be built of 
reclaimed brick, therefore matching the existing building.  

 
7.11 Overall the siting, design and form of the new terrace block to front onto 

Birkbeck Road and the replacement building to match the form and design of 
the Victorian workshop building, have been carefully considered and designed 
sensitively to be respectful to the character of the surrounding area. The 
proposal is considered to be in accordance with policies UD4 and SPG1a. 

 
Landscaping 

 
7.12 The frontages to the dwellings will have low railings, which will provide a clear 

ownership demarcation from the public footpaths as well as space for soft 
landscaping. Rear gardens will have patio areas directly outside doors from the 
living space and a soft landscaping area to the remaining area. 

 
Access 

 
7.13 The properties will be able to meet the access standards required by both Part 

M and Lifetime Homes due to the provision of level access throughout the site. 
 

Highway & Transportation Issues 
 
7.14 This site is in an area with medium public transport accessibility level and has 

not been identified within the Council's SPG as that with car parking pressure. 
It is also within walking distance of the busy bus route High Road, which offers 
some 68 buses per hour (two way), for frequent connection to and from Seven 
Sisters tube station. There is also the presence of W3 bus route on the nearby 
Northumberland Park which provides some 24buses per hour (two-way), for 
frequent connection to and from Wood Green tube station. 

 
7.15 The issue of on-site car parking provision was considered in the previous 

application. Officers considered that given the nature of the site, the existing 
use on site and the traffic/ parking it generates, as well as the PTAL rating of 
the site, the provision of off street car parking spaces was not considered 
essential in this case.  

 
Impact on Residential Amenity 

 
7.16 As per the previous application the impact of the proposal on the amenity of 

the adjacent properties was considered to be negligible, as the proposal will 
not lead to adverse overlooking or loss of privacy to neighbouring properties. 
The new terrace fronting onto Lordship Lane will be over 15 away from the 
commercial/ residential properties located on the opposite side of the road. 

Page 234



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

While the proposed terraces properties will have windows at first floor level 
along the rear elevation, these will be landings, bathrooms, toilets (secondary 
windows) and as such can be obscure glazed to prevent overlooking into the 
gardens of the new units to be back. 

 
Environmental & Sustainability Issues 

 
7.17 As outlined in the Officers Report for the previous proposal, the scheme is 

sustainable through a number of means: 
 

• Being a brownfield development; 
• Accessible by public transport; 
• Achieving High U values; 
• Solar water heating provided for all units; 
• Water conservation with grey water recycling and rain water harvesting; 
• High efficiency boilers; 
• Meeting Code 3 for Sustainable Homes. 

 
Planning Obligations 

 
7.18 As outlined in the Officers Report for the previous proposal a number of 

planning contributions were secured in respect of the development. An 
education contribution calculated in accordance with SPG 10a amounting to 
£46,000.00 was secured. A contribution of £20,000.00 for works involving the 
re-surfacing the footway along the relevant sections of Lordship Lane and 
Bruce Castle Road with the removal of the redundant vehicle crossovers was 
secured. These works will improve the conditions for pedestrians and will 
provide space for the provision of a Car Club bay. 

 
7.19 While the current scheme increases the number of habitable rooms by two (i.e. 

the building on the Birkbeck Road frontage will now be 2 x 3 bed units rather 
than 2 x 2 bed units); this increase in habitable accommodation is not 
considered to be of a degree significnat enough to reconsider / negociate the 
contribuitons previously secured. However, for procedural reasons there will 
need to be a deed of variation to the current agreement to tie in the new 
application reference (HGY/2011/1254) with the signed S106 Agreemnt. 

 
8. CONCLUSION 
 
8.1 As per the previous consent for this site the loss of the previous employment 

use on site was considered acceptable and the development for residential use 
considered acceptable. The design and form of the new terrace block to front 
onto Birkbeck Road and the replacement building to match the form and 
design of the existing Victorian workshop building are considered acceptable 
and in keeping with its surrounding and the character of the area, and will 
provide good quality family size units.  

 
8.2 As such the current scheme is considered to be in accordance with policies: 

G2 ‘Development and Urban Design’, UD3 ‘General Principles’, UD4 ‘Quality 

Page 235



Planning Sub-Committee Report  

Design’, HSG1 ‘New Housing Development’, HSG9 ‘Density Standards’, 
HSG10 ‘Dwelling Mix’ of the adopted Haringey Unitary Development Plan 2006 
and with supplementary planning guidance SPG1a ‘Design Guidance and 
Design Statements’, and the Council’s ‘Housing’ Supplementary Planning 
Document (2008). Given the above this application is recommended for 
APPROVAL 

 
8. RECOMMENDATION 
 

The Sub-Committee is recommended to RESOLVE as follows: (1) That 
planning permission be granted in accordance with planning application no. 
HGY/2011/1254 subject to a pre-condition that the owners of the application 
site shall first have entered into a deed of variation to the current  S106 
Agreement and following completion planning permission be GRANTED in 
accordance with planning application no HGY/2011/1254  and the Applicant’s 
drawing No’s No.(s) 10-01-01-09 & 10-01-11 and subject to the following 
conditions: 

  
IMPLEMENTATION 

 
1. The development hereby authorised must be begun not later than the 

expiration of 3 years from the date of this permission, failing which the 
permission shall be of no effect. Reason: This condition is imposed by virtue of 
the provisions of the Planning & Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and to 
prevent the accumulation of unimplemented planning permissions. 

 
2. The development hereby authorised shall be carried out in complete 

accordance with the plans and specifications submitted to, and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. Reason: In order to ensure the 
development is carried out in accordance with the approved details and in the 
interests of amenity. 

 
EXTERNAL APPEARANCE / SITE LAYOUT 

 
3. Notwithstanding the description of the materials in the application, no 

development shall be commenced until precise details of the materials to be 
used in connection with the development, including details of the boundary 
railings, hereby permitted have been submitted to, approved in writing by and 
implemented in accordance with the requirements of the Local Planning 
Authority. 

 
Reason: In order to retain control over the external appearance of the 
development in the interest of the visual amenity of the area. 

 
4. Notwithstanding the details of landscaping referred to in the application, a 

scheme of hard and soft landscaping shall be submitted to and agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority before the development hereby 
permitted, is commenced.  

 

Page 236



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

Reason: In order for the Local Authority to assess the acceptability of any 
landscaping scheme in relation to the site itself, thereby ensuring a satisfactory 
setting for the proposed development in the interests of the visual amenity of 
the area. 

 
5. Notwithstanding any indication on the submitted drawings details of the siting 

and design of all new fencing or other means of enclosure, including the 
existing metal railings along the perimeter of the site to be repaired and 
maintained, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority prior to the commencement of construction. The means of 
enclosure thereafter shall be erected in accordance with the approved details 
prior to the commencement of the use of the approved development 

 
Reason: To ensure a satisfactory appearance for the development. 

 
6. Before the development hereby permitted commences, details of enclosures 

and screened facilities for the storage of recycling containers and wheeled 
refuse bins and/or other refuse storage containers shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and shall be provided at 
the site in accordance with the approved details before the development is 
occupied 

 
Reason: To ensure a satisfactory appearance for the development and 
satisfactory accessibility; and to protect the amenities of the area. 

 
PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT 

 
7. Notwithstanding the detail shown on the drawing the first floor window on the 

rear elevation of the proposed terrace shall be glazed with obscure glass only 
and shall be permanently retained as such thereafter unless otherwise agreed 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 
Reason: To safeguard the privacy and amenities of occupiers of this adjoining 
residential property 

 
8. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 

Permitted Development) (Amendment) (No 2) (England) Order 2008 (or any 
order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without modification), no 
development otherwise permitted by any part of Class A, D & E of Part 1 of 
that Order shall be carried out on site 

 
Reason: To safeguard the amenities of neighbouring occupiers and the general 
locality. 

 
CONSTRUCTION 

 
9. No construction work resulting from the planning permission shall be carried 

out on the premises at any time on Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays, before 
8.00 am or after 1.00 pm on Saturdays, or before 8.00 am or after 6.00pm pm 

Page 237



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

on other days unless previously approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority  

 
Reason: To ensure that the proposed development does not prejudice the 
amenities of occupiers of adjoining residential properties. 

 
10.No development shall take place until site investigation detailing previous and 

existing land uses, potential land contamination, risk estimation and 
remediation work if required have been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority and these works shall be carried out as 
approved. 

 
Reason: In order for the Local Planning Authority to ensure the site is 
contamination free. 

 
REASON FOR APPROVAL 
 
The design and form of the new terrace block to front onto Birkbeck Road and the 
replacement building to match the form and design of the existing Victorian workshop 
building are considered acceptable and in keeping with its surrounding and the 
character of the area, and will provide good quality family size units.  As such the 
current scheme is considered to be in accordance with policies: G2 ‘Development 
and Urban Design’, UD3 ‘General Principles’, UD4 ‘Quality Design’, HSG1 ‘New 
Housing Development’, HSG9 ‘Density Standards’, HSG10 ‘Dwelling Mix’ of the 
adopted Haringey Unitary Development Plan 2006 and with supplementary planning 
guidance SPG1a ‘Design Guidance and Design Statements’, and the Council’s 
‘Housing’ Supplementary Planning Document (2008). 
 
INFORMATIVE: The new development will require naming/numbering. The applicant 
should contact the Transportation Group at least six weeks before the development is 
occupied (tel. 020 8489 5573) to arrange for the allocation of a suitable address 
 
INFORMATIVE - Each of the three bedroom units will require storage for the following: 
1x 240ltr refuse bin, 1 x green recycling box, 1 x organic waste caddy & 1 x garden 
waste bag. The two bedroom units will require storage for the following: 1x 240ltr 
refuse bin, 1 x green recycling box, 1 x organic waste caddy & 1 x garden waste bag. 
 
 
 

Page 238



OFFREPC 
Officers Report 

For Sub Committee

    

 
 

Figure 1; Proposed Site Layout 
 
 
 
 

Page 239



Page 240

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 241



Page 242

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 11Page 243



Page 244

This page is intentionally left blank



 APPEAL DECISIONS JUNE 2011

PLANNING APPEALS

12 Forster Road N17 6QD

Proposal:

Conversion of the existing property into 2 x 2 bed flats

Type of Appeal:

Written Representation 

Issue:

The effect of the conversion on the availability of family housing in the Borough

The effect on the living conditions of nearby residents from car parking

Result:

Appeal Dismissed 8 June 2011 

438 West Green Road N15 3PT

Proposal:

Conversion of existing office space on the ground floor to a one bedroom flat 

Type of Appeal:

Written Representation 

Issue:

The effect of the proposal on the long term viability of the commercial frontage unit 

Result:

Appeal Allowed 2 June 2011 

Ward: Bruce Grove

Reference Number: HGY/2010/0767 

Decision Level: Delegated 

Ward: West Green 

Reference Number: HGY/2010/0985 

Decision Level: Delegated 

Page 245



Page 246

This page is intentionally left blank



APPEAL DECISION JULY 2011

102 Arcadian Gardens N22  5AD

Proposal:

Change of use from a single dwelling to a 2 x 2 bedroom self contained flats

Type of Appeal:

Written Representation 

Issues;

The effect on the availability of family housing in the Borough

Result:

Appeal - Dismissed 7 July 2011 

Ward: Woodside

Reference Number: HGY/2010/1892 

Decision Level: Delegated  

Page 247



Page 248

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 12Page 249



Page 250

This page is intentionally left blank



!"#$$%$&'()**%++,,

!""#$%!&$'()*+,%$+,+*-(+,.*+,#,/!&,+*"'0,.)*1,&0,,(

-#(.&/)0$1'!#!,/2

345'678'9:594;8'4<'678'"4=>?'&4@85AB8A6'C#==8;;'64'%A<45B>6D4AE'#=6'FGHIJ'678'K>=LM54:AN'9>985;'DA'58;98=6'4<'678'<4??4ODAM'

D68B;'=4B95D;8'678'9?>AADAM'>99?D=>6D4A'=>;8'<D?8P

+78'9?>AADAM';6><<'>AN'9?>AADAM'>99?D=>6D4A'=>;8'<D?8;'>58'?4=>68N'>6'Q67'3?445J'/D@85'!>5L'R4:;8J'S44N'&588AJ'"4AN4AJ'$TT'

HRUP'#99?D=>6D4A;'=>A'K8'DA;98=68N'>6'674;8'4<<D=8;'GPVV>B'W'IPVV9BJ'*4AN>X'W'35DN>XP'(>;8')<<D=85;'OD??'A46'K8'>@>D?>K?8'

OD674:6'>994DA6B8A6P

%A'>NND6D4A'>99?D=>6D4A'=>;8'<D?8;'>58'>@>D?>K?8'64'@D8O'95DA6'>AN'N4OA?4>N'<588'4<'=7>5M8'@D>'678'R>5DAM8X'(4:A=D?'O8K;D68Y'

OOOP7>5DAM8XPM4@P:L

354B'678'74B89>M8'<4??4O'678'?DAL;'64'Z9?>AADAM['>AN'Z@D8O'9?>AADAM'>99?D=>6D4A;['64'<DAN'678'>99?D=>6D4A';8>5=7'<>=D?D6XP'

,A685'678'>99?D=>6D4A'58<858A=8'A:BK85'45';D68'>NN58;;'64'5865D8@8'678'=>;8'N86>D?;P

+78'18@8?49B8A6'*>A>M8B8A6'2:99456'+8>B'=>A'MD@8'<:56785'>N@D=8'>AN'=>A'K8'=4A6>=68N'4A'VTV'H\HG'F\]HJ'

GPVV>B'W'IPVV9BJ'*4AN>X'W'35DN>XP

2343542366*!(+*2643742366

8!.$(/,9*%'-(%$#

Page 251



"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'R>5DAM8X

"D;6'4<'>99?D=>6D4A;'N8=DN8N':AN85'N8?8M>68N'94O85;'K86O88A

!>M8'T'4<'\]

TV^VQ^TVFF'>AN'TF^VH^TVFF

!:;<=>?@=S#/1Y

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643AA3 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

#9954@>?'4<'N86>D?;'9:5;:>A6'64'=4AND6D4A'I'CN:;6KDA'8A=?4;:58;';=78B8E'>66>=78N'64'9?>AADAM'58<858A=8'

R&_^TVVG^FGVHP

''QW]''/4;8K85X'*8O;''$FV'T"&''

`>?85D8')L8DXD

18=D;D4AY F\^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366435BB )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'M54:AN'<?445'58>5'8a68A;D4A'>AN';8=4AN';6458X'58>5'8a68A;D4AJ'>AN'58DA;6>68B8A6'4<'7D998N'544<'

64'<54A6'544<'8?8@>6D4A

''TF''->5A>5N'RD??''$FV'TR-''

*>6678O'&:AADAM

18=D;D4AY Vb^VH^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366435B7 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<';DAM?8';6458X'58>5'8a68A;D4A'>AN'858=6D4A'4<'6O4'58>5'N45B85;J'OD67'DA;856D4A'4<'6O4'544<?DM76;'64'

<54A6'^';DN8'544<;?498P''CR4:;874?N85'#99?D=>6D4AE

''b''(5>AK4:5A8'/4>N''$FV'T-+''

cD??'S>558A

18=D;D4AY VF^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643C3C )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<';DAM?8';6458X'58>5'8a68A;D4A'CR4:;874?N85'#99?D=>6D4AE

''\]''&54@8'#@8A:8''$FV'T#"''

+>5>'c>A8'3D;785

18=D;D4AY FQ^VH^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643CC5 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'58>5'N45B85J'DA;856D4A'4<'T'544<?DM76;'64'<54A6'544<;?498'>AN'F'544<?DM76'64';DN8'544<;?498

''bT''&54@8'#@8A:8''$FV'T#/''

2:K>;7'c>DA

18=D;D4AY TT^VQ^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643C7B )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

%A;6>??>6D4A'4<'544<'8a68A;D4A^6855>=8'>AN';8N:B'544<

''FG''R>5=4:56'/4>N''$TT']dS''

*D=78??8'-5>N;7>O

18=D;D4AY TF^VQ^TVFF/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/9423664373A )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'58>5'N45B85

''TT''">A;N4OA8'/4>N''$FV'T#0''

`>?85D8')L8DXD

18=D;D4AY FH^V]^TVFF&+1

Page 252



"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'R>5DAM8X

"D;6'4<'>99?D=>6D4A;'N8=DN8N':AN85'N8?8M>68N'94O85;'K86O88A

!>M8'b'4<'\]

TV^VQ^TVFF'>AN'TF^VH^TVFF

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366437BA )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<';DAM?8';6458X'58>5'8a68A;D4A'CR4:;874?N85'#99?D=>6D4AE

''FF''">A;N4OA8'/4>N''$FV'T#d''

`>?85D8')L8DXD

18=D;D4AY TG^VQ^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366437B5 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

%A;856D4A'4<'M?>;;'N445;'4A'8a685A>?'K>=L'O>??'C=856D<D=>68'4<'?>O<:?A8;;E

''QV''&54;@8A45'/4>N''$FV'T12''

`>?85D8')L8DXD

18=D;D4AY TG^VQ^TVFF!,/*'1,`

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366437AD )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,A?>5M8B8A6'4<'8aD;6DAM';DAM?8';6458X'58>5'8a68A;D4A'>AN'58?4=>6D4A'4<'<54A6'8A65>A=8'64'M54:AN'<?445'<?>6

'']F''!>?>=8'&>68;'/4>N''$TT']-S''

/:B>'$4O>e

18=D;D4AY V\^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643E62 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

#B8ANB8A6;'64'958@D4:;?X'>9954@8N';=78B8'R&_^TVFF^VbFV'64'DA=?:N8'954@D;D4A'4<';B>??';:A'6855>=8J'

95D@>=X';=588AJ'9?>A685;'K4a8;'>AN'M5>;;';8N:B'544<'CR4:;874?N85'#99?D=>6D4AE

''F\\#''`D=645D>'/4>N''$TT']dU''

*D=78??8'-5>N;7>O

18=D;D4AY FT^V]^TVFF/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643EC6 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<';DAM?8';6458X'58>5'8a68A;D4AJ'=4A;65:=6D4A'4<'M>5>M8^;6458'>AN'544<'8a68A;D4A'DA=?:NDAM'

>?685>6D4A;'4<'9D6=78N'544<'>AN'58B4N8??DAM'4<'<D5;6'<?445'58>5'>NND6D4A

''bV''#?8a>AN5>'!>5L'/4>N''$FV'T#-''

/:B>'$4O>e

18=D;D4AY FH^V]^TVFF/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/9423664633D )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

#B8ANB8A6;'64'>9954@8N'9?>AADAM'>99?D=>6D4A'R&_^TVFV^VTQV'<45'=7>AMDAM'ODAN4O'<45'>'c:?D86'->?=4AX'4A'

678'N45B85P

''G'',?B;'#@8A:8''$FV'Tc$''

cD??'S>558A

18=D;D4AY TF^V]^TVFF/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/9423664633C )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

%A;6>??>6D4A'4<';4?>5'97464@4?6>D='9>A8?;'64'678'<54A6'8?8@>6D4AP

''QF''#?8a>AN5>'!>5L'/4>N''$FV'T1&''

2:K>;7'c>DA

18=D;D4AY TF^V]^TVFF!,/*'1,`

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236646326 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<';DAM?8';6458X'DA<D??'8a68A;D4A'CR4:;874?N85'#99?D=>6D4AE

''Gb''/4;8K85X'/4>N''$FV'T"1''

`>?85D8')L8DXD

18=D;D4AY TI^V]^TVFF&+1

Page 253



"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'R>5DAM8X

"D;6'4<'>99?D=>6D4A;'N8=DN8N':AN85'N8?8M>68N'94O85;'K86O88A

!>M8'\'4<'\]

TV^VQ^TVFF'>AN'TF^VH^TVFF

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/9423664632B )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<';78N'DA'X>5N

''H]''1>MB>5'/4>N''$TT']/+''

2:K>;7'c>DA

18=D;D4AY TI^V]^TVFF/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366463BA )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'58>5'N45B85'>AN'DA;856D4A'4<'544<?DM76;'64'<54A6'544<;?498'C74:;874?N85'>99?D=>6D4AE

''FVQ''&54;@8A45'/4>N''$FV'T1+''

*D=78??8'-5>N;7>O

18=D;D4AY TH^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366463BE )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<';DAM?8';6458X'58>5'=4A;85@>645X'8a68A;D4A'C74:;874?N85'>99?D=>6D4AE

''FV''">A;N4OA8'/4>N''$FV'T#0''

c47A')M8AM>'!f">L49

18=D;D4AY TI^V]^TVFF/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366463A2 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

345B>6D4A'4<'@87D=?8'=54;;4@85'>AN'=4A;65:=6D4A'4<'A8O'K4:AN>5X'O>??'>AN'5>D?DAM;'C74:;874?N85'>99?D=>6D4AE

''bV''#?8a>AN5>'!>5L'/4>N''$FV'T#-''

/:B>'$4O>e

18=D;D4AY TH^V]^TVFF/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366463AE )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

(4A;65:=6D4A'4<'K>;8B8A6'544B'OD67'58>5'?DM76O8??J'8a68A;D4A'>AN'ODN8ADAM'4<'8aD;6DAM'58>5'LD6=78A'>6'

M54:AN'<?445'?8@8?J'>AN'858=6D4A'4<'58>5'8a68A;D4A'>6'<D5;6'>AN';8=4AN'<?445'?8@8?;

''TV\''`D=645D>'/4>N''$TT']dU''

c8<<58X'R4?6

18=D;D4AY Vb^VH^TVFF/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366463CC )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

18B4?D6D4A'4<'8aD;6DAM'58>5'K>67544B'>AN'LD6=78A'8a68A;D4A'>AN'=4A;65:=6D4A'4<'A8O'(4A;85@>645XJ'

K>67544B'>AN'LD6=78A'8a68A;D4AP

''TG#''(:5e4A'/4>N''$FV'T/-''

*D=78??8'-5>N;7>O

18=D;D4AY TH^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/9423664637A )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

1D;9?>X'4<'F'a'b'W94?8';X;68B';DMAJ'b'a'B>5L86DAM'K4>5N;'b'a'B>5L86DAM'9>A8?;'>AN'T'a'<>;=D>';DMA;

''#?8a>AN5>'!>?>=8''#?8a>AN5>'!>?>=8'S>X''$TT']#_''

c47A')M8AM>'!f">L49

18=D;D4AY Vb^VH^TVFF/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/9423664637E )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<';DAM?8';6458X'B4N:?>5'K:D?NDAM'64'58>5'4<';=744?'<45':;8'>;'>'">AN'34:AN>6D4A'=?>;;544B

''#?8a>AN5>'!>5L'28=4AN>5X'2=744?J''-DNO8??'&>5N8A;''$FF'T#g''

c47A')M8AM>'!f">L49

18=D;D4AY Vb^VH^TVFF&+1

Page 254



"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'R>5DAM8X

"D;6'4<'>99?D=>6D4A;'N8=DN8N':AN85'N8?8M>68N'94O85;'K86O88A

!>M8'I'4<'\]

TV^VQ^TVFF'>AN'TF^VH^TVFF

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366466CE )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'58>5'N45B85'ODAN4O

'']]''(58;=8A6'/4>N''$TT']/0''

2>5>7'*>N4AN4

18=D;D4AY FT^VH^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366466EB )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'6O4';DAM?8';6458X'9>56'M?>e8N'8a68A;D4A;'64'58>5'4<'9549856X'CR4:;874?N85'#99?D=>6D4AE

''\''/4;8K85X'/4>N''$FV'T"R''

`>?85D8')L8DXD

18=D;D4AY FH^VH^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366466E7 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'58>5'N45B85'64'<>=D?D6>68'>'?4<6'=4A@85;D4A'C74:;874?N85'>99?D=>6D4AE

''IT''*:;O8??'#@8A:8''$FV'T,"''

c47A')M8AM>'!f">L49

18=D;D4AY FH^VH^TVFF&+1

1FG>?H*/@;;>S#/1Y

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/9423634267E )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'FJQ]T';h:>58'B8685;'4<'(?>;;'-H';645>M8'<45'2><8;6458'C/8W2D6DAMEP

''-4:AN'&588A'%AN:;65D>?',;6>68J''/DAM'S>X''$FF'T01''

/:B>'$4O>e

18=D;D4AY TG^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643DBE )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

#B8ANB8A6;'64':AD6'#H'C(?>;;'-FE'4<'>9954@8N'9?>AADAM'985BD;;D4A'R&_^TVVG^VIGH'DA@4?@DAM'DA=58>;DAM'

678'<?445'>58>'>AN'=7>AM8;'64'8a685A>?'<8A8;65>6D4A'>AN'DA685A>?'<DAD;78N'<?445'?8@8?

''-4:AN;'&588A'%AN:;65D>?',;6>68''/DAM'S>X''$FF'T01''

`>?85D8')L8DXD

18=D;D4AY V\^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643ADC )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'>'58>5'N45B85J'DA;856D4A'4<'b'544<?DM76;'64'<54A6'544<;?498J'858=6D4A'4<'58>5'M54:AN'<?445'8a68A;D4A'

>AN'678'589?>=8B8A6'4<'678'678'8aD;6DAM'M>5>M8'544<'OD67'>'9D6=7'544<

''Q''!>?B85;64A'/4>N''$TT'H/&''

`>?85D8')L8DXD

18=D;D4AY VF^VH^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366435C7 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

#9954@>?'4<'186>D?;'9:5;:>A6'64'(4AND6D4A'I'C/8<:;8';645>M8'>55>AM8B8A6;E'>66>=78N'64'9?>AADAM'985BD;;D4A'

R&_^TVVH^VHVQ

''F''U:88A;'/4>N''$FF'TUc''

*>6678O'&:AADAM

18=D;D4AY TH^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643C37 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

/89?>=8B8A6'4<'8aD;6DAM'ODAN4O;'OD67'!`(%:'M?>e8N'ODAN4O;'>AN'589?>=B8A6'4<'8aD;6DAM'6DBK85'=?>NNDAM'

OD67'O7D68'!`(:'=?>NNDAM

''QH''(?>58A=8'/4>N''$TT'H!"''

cD??'S>558A

18=D;D4AY TT^VQ^TVFF&+1

Page 255



"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'R>5DAM8X

"D;6'4<'>99?D=>6D4A;'N8=DN8N':AN85'N8?8M>68N'94O85;'K86O88A

!>M8'Q'4<'\]

TV^VQ^TVFF'>AN'TF^VH^TVFF

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643CAC )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

/8654;98=6D@8'9?>AADAM'>99?D=>6D4A'<45'5868A6D4A'4<'8aD;6DAM'0!`('N4:K?8'M?>e8N'ODAN4O;

3?>6'#''FF''!>?B85;64A'/4>N''$TT'HUR''

cD??'S>558A

18=D;D4AY TV^VQ^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643735 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

0;8'4<'9549856X'>;'b';8?<W=4A6>DA8N'<?>6;

''FFQ''*XNN?864A'/4>N''$TT'H$U''

`>?85D8')L8DXD

18=D;D4AY TT^VQ^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643E67 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'T'a'58>5'N4B85;'OD67'DA;856D4A'4<'T'a';LX?DM76;'64'<54A6'8?8@>6D4A'64'<>=D?D6>68'>'?4<6'=4A@85;D4AP'

C>B8AN8N'9?>A;E'CR4:;874?N85'#99?D=>6D4AE

'']V''3DA;K:5X'/4>N''$TT'H!3''

`>?85D8')L8DXD

18=D;D4AY FT^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643E27 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

18B4?D6D4A'4<'8aD;6DAM'8a68A;D4A'>AN'858=6D4A'4<'A8O';DAM?8';6458X'58>5'8a68A;D4A'C74:;874?N85'>99?D=>6D4AE

&54:AN'3?445'3?>6''bI''-5>8B>5'#@8A:8''$TT']-_''

`>?85D8')L8DXD

18=D;D4AY FT^V]^TVFF/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366466D5 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

(856D<D=>68'4<'?>O<:?A8;;'<45'>A'8aD;6DAM':;8'<45'4:6K:D?NDAM'DA'58>5'M>5N8A

''TG'',>;685A'/4>N''$TT']11''

,?De>K867',AADAW&X>;D

18=D;D4AY FF^VH^TVFF!,/*'1,`

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366466DC )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'58>5'N45B85'>AN'DA;856D4A'4<'F'a'544<?DM76'64'<54A6'544<;?498

''TG'',>;685A'/4>N''$TT']11''

,?De>K867',AADAW&X>;D

18=D;D4AY FF^VH^TVFF!,/*'1,`

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366466AE )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<';DAM?8';6458X'58>5'8a68A;D4A

''F]''S44N<D8?N'S>X''$FF'T$!''

2>5>7'*>N4AN4

18=D;D4AY FT^VH^TVFF&+1

1@GI;*/@FJ;S#/1Y

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643B56 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

(856D<D=>68'4<'">O<:?A8;;'<45':;8'4<'9549856X'>;'<D@8';6:ND4'<?>6;

''T\V''!7D?D9'">A8''$FI'\Rc''

cD??'S>558A

18=D;D4AY TG^V]^TVFF!,/*'1,`

Page 256



"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'R>5DAM8X

"D;6'4<'>99?D=>6D4A;'N8=DN8N':AN85'N8?8M>68N'94O85;'K86O88A

!>M8']'4<'\]

TV^VQ^TVFF'>AN'TF^VH^TVFF

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643D2D )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

(7>AM8'4<':;8'<54B'7>D5N58;;85;'C#FE'64'=><8'C#bE

''FII''"45N;7D9'">A8''$F]'Qd,''

c47A')M8AM>'!f">L49

18=D;D4AY TI^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643C72 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

18B4?D6D4A'4<'8aD;6DAM'M>5>M8'>AN'LD6=78A'8a68A;D4AJ'858=6D4A'4<'6O4W;6458X';DN8'^'9>56'58>5'8a68A;D4AJ'

;DAM?8';6458X'58>5'8a68A;D4A'>AN'58>5'N45B85J'>AN'DA;856D4A'4<'67588'544<?DM76;'64'<54A6'544<;?498

''bH''RDM7>B'/4>N''$F]'Q$U''

c47A')M8AM>'!f">L49

18=D;D4AY TF^VQ^TVFF/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643EAD )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'58>5'N45B85'ODAN4O'CR4:;874?N85'#99?D=>6D4AE

''F''2654N8'/4>N''$F]'Q+g''

,?De>K867',AADAW&X>;D

18=D;D4AY VQ^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366466E5 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

(7>AM8'4<':;8'<54B'NO8??DAM74:;8'C(bE'64'=7D?N58Af;'58;DN8A6D>?'=>58'74B8'C(TE

''G''3>D5K4:5A8'/4>N''$F]'Q+!''

*D=78??8'-5>N;7>O

18=D;D4AY FH^VH^TVFF&+1

%@FGIK*,>?S#/1Y

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643BEA )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

(4A@85;D4A'4<'8aD;6DAM'M54:AN'<?445'>AN':9985'<?445'<?>6;'DA64'>';DAM?8'NO8??DAM'74:;8'>AN'858=6D4A'4<'>';DAM?8'

;6458X'58>5'8a68A;D4AP

''IF''S8;64A'!>5L''$H'G2_''

c47A')M8AM>'!f">L49

18=D;D4AY bV^VQ^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643A2A )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

!>56D>?'N8B4?D6D4A'4<'A4AW45DMDA>?'K5D=L'O>??'64'54>N'>AN'8a=>@>6D4A'4<'<54A6'M>5N8A'64'954@DN8'@87D=?8'

=54;;4@85P',58=6D4A'4<'586>DADAM'O>??'64'B>6=7'8aD;6DAM'K5D=L'O>??;P'#NND6D4A'4<'6O4'ODAN4O;'64'K>;8B8A6'

<?445'>6'<54A6'>AN'K5D=L'<8A=DAM'64'8?8@>6D4AP

''FI''S4?;8?8X'/4>N''$H'H//''

,?De>K867',AADAW&X>;D

18=D;D4AY F\^V]^TVFF/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643526 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

$8O'58>5'8a68A;D4A'i'M>5N8A'544B'OD67'DA685A>?'58<:5KD;7B8A6P

3?>6'#''FQ''(54:=7'R>??'/4>N''$H'HR0''

c47A')M8AM>'!f">L49

18=D;D4AY Vb^VH^TVFF&+1

Page 257



"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'R>5DAM8X

"D;6'4<'>99?D=>6D4A;'N8=DN8N':AN85'N8?8M>68N'94O85;'K86O88A

!>M8'H'4<'\]

TV^VQ^TVFF'>AN'TF^VH^TVFF

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/9423664352C )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<';DAM?8';6458X'8a68A;D4A'DA=?:NDAM'>?685>6D4A;'64';DN8'>AN'<54A6'8?8@>6D4A'ODAN4O;'CR4:;874?N85'

#99?D=>6D4AE

''FT''(75D;6=7:5=7'/4>N''$H'GU"''

,?De>K867',AADAW&X>;D

18=D;D4AY TG^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366435EB )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

$4AW'B>685D>?'>B8ANB8A6;'<4??4ODAM'>'M5>A6'4<'9?>AADAM'985BD;;D4A'R&_^TVVG^TFTF

''F''R:5;6'#@8A:8''$Q'I+d''

c47A')M8AM>'!f">L49

18=D;D4AY Vb^VH^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643CDE )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

(4A;65:=6D4A'4<'58>5'544<'6855>=8'>6'<D5;6'<?445'?8@8?P'CR4:;874?N85'#99?D=>6D4AE

''TG''S4?;8?8X'/4>N''$H'H/2''

,?De>K867',AADAW&X>;D

18=D;D4AY TG^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643733 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

(7>AM8'4<':;8'4<'$4P'F\'<54B'58?DMD4:;';6:NX'=8A658'^'68B945>5X';6:N8A6'>==4B4N>6D4A'64';DAM?8'58;DN8A6D>?'

9549856XJ'58B4@>?'4<'=4AA8=6D4A'64'=4BB4A'9>56;'4<'$4P'FQ'DA=?:NDAM'8A?>5M8B8A6'4<'<?>6;'FQ#'>AN'FQ-J'

;8985>6D4A'4<'58>5'M>5N8A;'>AN'954@D;D4A'4<'=>5'9>5LDAM

''F\WFQ''2789785N;'RD??''$Q'I#U''

,?De>K867',AADAW&X>;D

18=D;D4AY TF^VQ^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643763 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

#?685>6D4A;'64'8aD;6DAM'&54:AN'3?445'j'->;8B8A6'3?>6'>AN'3D5;6'3?445'3?>6'64'=58>68'>'<D@8'K8N544B';8?<'

=4A6>DA8N'B>D;4A8668P

''\T''2789785N;'RD??''$Q'I//''

c47A')M8AM>'!f">L49

18=D;D4AY T]^VQ^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366437DB )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<';DAM?8';6458X';DN8'8a68A;D4A'C74:;874?N85'>99?D=>6D4AE

''bI''">AN54=L'/4>N''$H'GR/''

,?De>K867',AADAW&X>;D

18=D;D4AY TG^VQ^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366437A2 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'58>5'M54:AN'<?445'8a68A;D4A;J'>NND6D4A'4<'<D5;6'<?445'K>X;'>AN'>NND6D4A'4<';4?>5'9>A8?;'4A'<?>6'544<'

64'K467'9549856D8;'C74:;874?N85'>99?D=>6D4AE

''bG'j'\F''">AN54=L'/4>N''$H'GR/''

c8<<58X'R4?6

18=D;D4AY TG^VQ^TVFF/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366437C7 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

(7>AM8'4<':;8'4<'8aD;6DAM'#F'C2749E'64'%=8'(58>B'(4<<88'->5'DA=?:NDAM'>?685>6D4A;'64';749<54A6P

''bT''+78'-54>NO>X''$H'G20''

,?De>K867',AADAW&X>;D

18=D;D4AY VI^V]^TVFF/,3

Page 258



"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'R>5DAM8X

"D;6'4<'>99?D=>6D4A;'N8=DN8N':AN85'N8?8M>68N'94O85;'K86O88A

!>M8'G'4<'\]

TV^VQ^TVFF'>AN'TF^VH^TVFF

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643776 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

+588'O45L;'64'DA=?:N8'<8??'64'M54:AN'F'a'"DB8'6588

''TI''26>A7498'/4>N''$Q'I#S''

/:B>'$4O>e

18=D;D4AY VI^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/9423664377A )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'6O4'58>5';6458X'8a68A;D4AJ'A8O'N4:K?8'M?>e8N'ODAN4O;'>AN'954@D;D4A'4<';4?>5'9>A8?;'

C74:;874?N85'>99?D=>6D4AE

''I''(4:56;DN8''$H'H,S''

/:B>'$4O>e

18=D;D4AY VQ^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366437E3 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

%A;6>??>6D4A'4<'T'a'DA685A>?'=44?DAM'^'78>6DAM'>D5'=4AND6D4A'O>??':AD6;P

F\''+49;<D8?N'!>5>N8''+4668A7>B'">A8''$H'H!/''

c47A')M8AM>'!f">L49

18=D;D4AY VQ^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366437ED )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

%A;6>??>6D4A'4<'F'a'12"#*'M588A'68?8=4BB:AD=>6D4A'=>KDA86

+58M>54A'#@8A:8J''2^)'GQ''(54:=7'RD??''$H'G,1''

`>?85D8')L8DXD

18=D;D4AY VI^V]^TVFF/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366437E5 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

%A;6>??>6D4A'4<'F'a'12"#*'M588A'68?8=4BB:AD=>6D4A'=>KDA86

(54:=7'R>??'/4>NJ''2^)'bVWb\'(7>5?4668'(4:56''(44?7:5;6'/4>N''$H'H,d''

2:K>;7'c>DA

18=D;D4AY bV^VQ^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366437EC )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

%A;6>??>6D4A'4<'F'a'12"#*'M588A'68?8=4BB:AD=>6D4A'=>KDA86

!5D45X'&>5N8A;J''2^)'3?>6'FWI''!5D45X'(4:56J''2789785N;'RD??''$Q'IU$''

/:B>'$4O>e

18=D;D4AY VI^V]^TVFF!,/*'1,`

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366437E7 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

%A;6>??>6D4A'4<'F'a'12"#*'M588A'68?8=4BB:AD=>6D4A'=>KDA86

-5X>A;64A8'/4>NJ''2^)'QQ''(54:=7'R>??'/4>N''$H'HR-''

*D=78??8'-5>N;7>O

18=D;D4AY VI^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643E32 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

%A;6>??>6D4A'4<'F'a'12"#*'M588A'68?8=4BB:AD=>6D4A'=>KDA86

-4:5A8'/4>NJ'')^2'/>@8A;N>?8'*>A;D4A;''R>5DAM8X'!>5L''$H'GR2''

`>?85D8')L8DXD

18=D;D4AY VI^V]^TVFF/,3

Page 259



"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'R>5DAM8X

"D;6'4<'>99?D=>6D4A;'N8=DN8N':AN85'N8?8M>68N'94O85;'K86O88A

!>M8'FV'4<'\]

TV^VQ^TVFF'>AN'TF^VH^TVFF

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643E3C )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

(4A@85;D4A'4<'8aD;6DAM'<4:5'<?>6;'DA64'>';DAM?8'NO8??DAM'74:;8

''G''1D=L8A;4A'/4>N''$H'G,$''

c8<<58X'R4?6

18=D;D4AY VQ^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643E23 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'M54:AN'<?445';DN8'586:5A'DA<D??'8a68A;D4AJ'DA=?:NDAM'DA685A>?'>?685>6D4A;'C74:;874?N85'>99?D=>6D4AE'

C>B8AN8N'N8;=5D96D4AE'C>B8AN8N'9?>A;E

''\b''-D5=7DAM64A'/4>N''$H'HR!''

`>?85D8')L8DXD

18=D;D4AY Fb^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643E2B )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

+588'O45L;'64'DA=?:N8'=54OA'58N:=6D4A'KX'TVk'4<'F'a'2X=>B458'6588

''FG''26>A7498'/4>N''$Q'I#S''

2:K>;7'c>DA

18=D;D4AY F\^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643E2D )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

/8B4@>?'4<'8aD;6DAM'N8685D45>6DAM'K5D=L';78N'>AN'858=6D4A'4<';DAM?8';6458X';DN8'8a68A;D4A'C74:;874?N85'

>99?D=>6D4AE

3?>6'F''I\''(44?7:5;6'/4>N''$H'H,0''

,?De>K867',AADAW&X>;D

18=D;D4AY Fb^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643E53 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'M>5N8A'544B'>AN'DA;856D4A'4<'6O4'544<?DM76;'64'8>;685A'8?8@>6D4A

3?>6'F''bH''S8;64A'!>5L''$H'G+c''

2:K>;7'c>DA

18=D;D4AY V]^V]^TVFF/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643E55 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

345B>6D4A'4<'@87D=?8'=54;;4@85'C74:;874?N85'>99?D=>6D4AE

''FT''(?D<64A'/4>N''$H'HR_''

c8<<58X'R4?6

18=D;D4AY FH^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643E75 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<''58>5'N45B85'ODAN4O'OD67'DA;856D4A'4<'F'a'544<?DM76'64'<54A6'8?8@>6D4A'CR4:;874?N85'#99?D=>6D4AE

'']I''(8=D?8'!>5L''$H'G#/''

c8<<58X'R4?6

18=D;D4AY TI^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643E77 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

(7>AM8'4<':;8'<54B'#F'C/86>D?E'64'1T'C_4M>'26:ND4E

0AD6'FWT''\\WI\''(4?85DNM8'/4>N''$H'H,1''

*D=78??8'-5>N;7>O

18=D;D4AY TI^V]^TVFF&+1

Page 260



"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'R>5DAM8X

"D;6'4<'>99?D=>6D4A;'N8=DN8N':AN85'N8?8M>68N'94O85;'K86O88A

!>M8'FF'4<'\]

TV^VQ^TVFF'>AN'TF^VH^TVFF

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/9423664636B )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

(7>AM8'4<'9549856X'<54B'6O4'<?>6;'64';DAM?8'<>BD?X'NO8??DAM'74:;8P

''QG''385B8'!>5L'/4>N''$H'G2#''

,?De>K867',AADAW&X>;D

18=D;D4AY TF^V]^TVFF$)+'1,`

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366463B3 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

(4A@85;D4A'4<'544<'<54B'7D9'64'M>K?8J'858=6D4A'4<'58>5'N45B85'>AN'DA;856D4A'4<'b'544<?DM76;'64'<54A6'544<;?498'

C74:;874?N85'>99?D=>6D4AE

''bI''!5D45X'&>5N8A;''$Q'IU0''

`>?85D8')L8DXD

18=D;D4AY TI^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366463D2 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

(7>AM8'4<':;8'<54B'T';8?<W=4A6>DA8N'<?>6;'64';DAM?8'<>BD?X'NO8??DAM

''TG''&?>NO8??'/4>N''$H'G##''

/:B>'$4O>e

18=D;D4AY T]^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366463AD )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

#9954@>?'4<'186>D?;'9:5;:>A6'64'(4AND6D4A'b'CB>685D>?;E'>66>=78N'64'9?>AADAM'58<858A=8'R&_^TVVG^TFTF

''">AN'#Nl4DADAM'F''R:5;6'#@8A:8''$Q'I+d''

,?De>K867',AADAW&X>;D

18=D;D4AY TH^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366463EA )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'58>5'M54:AN'<?445'8a68A;D4A

'']F''&?>;;?XA'/4>N''$H'H/c''

/:B>'$4O>e

18=D;D4AY V\^VH^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366463EE )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'58>5'N45B85'>AN'DA;856D4A'4<'b'544<?DM76;'64'<54A6'544<;?498

''TV''">AN54=L'/4>N''$H'GR"''

*D=78??8'-5>N;7>O

18=D;D4AY VI^VH^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/9423664666D )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

/8B4@>?'4<'8aD;6DAM'=4A;85@645X'>AN'858=6D4A'4<'A8O'58>5'=4A;85@>645X

&54:AN'3?445'3?>6''Fb''26>A7498'/4>N''$Q'I$,''

c8<<58X'R4?6

18=D;D4AY VI^VH^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236646622 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'58>5'N45B85'>AN'DA;856D4A'4<'544<?DM76;'64'<54A6'>AN';DN8'544<;?498;'4A'<54A6'8?8@>6D4A'

C74:;874?N85'>99?D=>6D4AE

''TV''&?>NO8??'/4>N''$H'G##''

`>?85D8')L8DXD

18=D;D4AY FQ^VH^TVFF&+1

Page 261



"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'R>5DAM8X

"D;6'4<'>99?D=>6D4A;'N8=DN8N':AN85'N8?8M>68N'94O85;'K86O88A

!>M8'FT'4<'\]

TV^VQ^TVFF'>AN'TF^VH^TVFF

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236646625 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

(856D<D=>68'4<'?>O<:?A8;;'<45'858=6D4A'4<';DAM?8';6458X'58>5'8a68A;D4A

''TG''&?>NO8??'/4>N''$H'G##''

/:B>'$4O>e

18=D;D4AY FI^VH^TVFF!,/*'1,`

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366466B7 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

(4A;65:=6D4A'4<'A8O'K>;8B8A6J'858=6D4A'4<'<D5;6'<?445'58>5'DA<D??'8a68A;D4A'>AN'6O4';6458X';DN8''8a68A;D4AJ'

858=6D4A'4<'58>5'N45B85'>AN'>?685>6D4A;'64'<8A8;65>6D4A'>AN'8?8@>6D4A;'C74:;874?N85'>99?D=>6D4AE

''T]''R:5;6'#@8A:8''$Q'I+d''

c47A')M8AM>'!f">L49

18=D;D4AY FV^VH^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366466D3 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'58>5'N45B85

''TG''&?>NO8??'/4>N''$H'G##''

c47A')M8AM>'!f">L49

18=D;D4AY FF^VH^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366466AD )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

+588'O45L;'64'DA=?:N8'TVk'58N:=6D4A'64'T'a')>L'6588;'OD67'@>5D4:;'58B8ND>?'O45L;

*8?D;>'(4:56''TF''#@8A:8'/4>N''$Q'I1R''

2>5>7'*>N4AN4

18=D;D4AY FF^VH^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366466C5 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

1D;9?>X'4<'T'a'<>;=D>';DMA;'>AN'F'a'7>AMDAM';DMA'C>??'A4AWD??:BDA>68NE

''bIWbG''+78'-54>NO>X''$H'H10''

,?De>K867',AADAW&X>;D

18=D;D4AY FT^VH^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/9423664667D )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

18B4?D6D4A'4<'58>5'8a68A;D4A'>AN'858=6D4A'4<'A8O';DAM?8';6458X'58>5'8a68A;D4A

3?>6'#''F]G''385B8'!>5L'/4>N''$H'G-!''

,?De>K867',AADAW&X>;D

18=D;D4AY FT^VH^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366466EE )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'N45B85'8a68A;D4A'OD67'DA;856D4A'4<'T'a'544<?DM76;'64'<54A6'8?8@>6D4A'64'<>=D?D6>68'>'?4<6'=4A@85;D4AP

''I''!>5L'/4>N''$H'H+,''

*D=78??8'-5>N;7>O

18=D;D4AY FH^VH^TVFF&+1

LF@MNH*/@;;>S#/1Y

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942363467CA )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

#9954@>?'4<'186>D?;'9:5;:>A6'64'(4AND6D4A'b'CB>685D>?;E'>66>=78N'64'9?>AADAM'58<858A=8'R&_^TVVH^V]\V

''IF''U:88A;'#@8A:8''$FV'b!,''

*>6678O'&:AADAM

18=D;D4AY VF^VH^TVFF&+1

Page 262



"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'R>5DAM8X

"D;6'4<'>99?D=>6D4A;'N8=DN8N':AN85'N8?8M>68N'94O85;'K86O88A

!>M8'Fb'4<'\]

TV^VQ^TVFF'>AN'TF^VH^TVFF

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366435BD )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<';DAM?8';6458X'58>5'8a68A;D4A'i'=4A@85;D4A'4<'8aD;6DAM'M>5>M8

''F]''/DAMO44N'#@8A:8''$T'G$+''

`>?85D8')L8DXD

18=D;D4AY VF^VH^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366435BA )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'58>5'M54:AN'<?445'8a68A;D4A

''FF''S8;685A'/4>N''$T'Gc-''

2:K>;7'c>DA

18=D;D4AY TF^VQ^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366435C2 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

18B4?D6D4A'4<'8aD;6DAM';DAM?8';6458X'58>5'8a68A;D4A'>AN'858=6D4A'4<';DAM?8';6458X'58>5'8a68A;D4A'

CR4:;874?N85'#99?D=>6D4AE

''T]''/DAMO44N'#@8A:8''$T'G$+''

*>6678O'&:AADAM

18=D;D4AY TH^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366435CB )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'58>5'N45B85'DA=?:NDAM'7D9'64'M>K?8'544<'>?685>6D4A;

''T]''/DAMO44N'#@8A:8''$T'G$+''

+>5>'c>A8'3D;785

18=D;D4AY V]^V]^TVFF/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643C3B )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'M54:AN'<?445'<?>AL'8a68A;D4A'CR4:;874?N85'>99?D=>6D4AE

''\]''+OX<45N'#@8A:8''$T'G$0''

cD??'S>558A

18=D;D4AY TH^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643C6B )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

/868A6D4A'4<'958@D4:;?X'>9954@8N'O45L;'>AN'858=6D4A'4<'<D5;6'<?445';DN8'8a68A;D4A''OD67'544<'=>55D8N'4@85'

C>B8AN8N'N8;=5D96D4AE'C74:;874?N85'>99?D=>6D4AE

''bG''345NDAM64A'/4>N''$Q'\+1''

`>?85D8')L8DXD

18=D;D4AY VF^V]^TVFF/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366437DD )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

1D;9?>X'4<'F'a'A4AWD??:BDA>68N'<>;=D>';DMA'>AN'F'a'A4AWD??:BDA>68N'954l8=6DAM';DMAP

''FIVWFIT''3456D;'&588A'/4>N''$FV'b10''

/:B>'$4O>e

18=D;D4AY TG^VQ^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366437C2 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'58>5'N45B85'OD67'DA;856D4A'4<'b'a'544<?DM76;'64'<54A6'8?8@>6D4A'C=856D<D=>68'4<'?>O<:?A8;;E

''QG''&588A7>B'/4>N''$FV'F"$''

2>5>7'*>N4AN4

18=D;D4AY TG^VQ^TVFF!,/*'1,`

Page 263



"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'R>5DAM8X

"D;6'4<'>99?D=>6D4A;'N8=DN8N':AN85'N8?8M>68N'94O85;'K86O88A

!>M8'F\'4<'\]

TV^VQ^TVFF'>AN'TF^VH^TVFF

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643772 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

+588'O45L;'64'DA=?:N8'O45L;'64'T'a')>L'6588;''76'FQB'NK7'GVVBBYW'!5494;>?';88L;'64';8@85'D@X'>AN'9:??'

N4OA'64'=54OA'K58>LJ'?D<6'=54OA'4@85'M>5>M8;J'67DA'=54OA'KX'TVkP

''IF''!>M8;'RD??''$FV'F,R''

/:B>'$4O>e

18=D;D4AY V]^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643E25 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

18B4?D6D4A'4<'8aD;6DAM';DAM?8';6458X'58>5'8a68A;D4A'>AN'858=6D4A'4<'A8O';DAM?8';6458X'58>5'8a68A;D4A'

C74:;874?N85'>99?D=>6D4AE

''bQ''&5>AN'#@8A:8''$FV'b-!''

c47A')M8AM>'!f">L49

18=D;D4AY FT^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643EE2 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'58>5'N45B85'OD67'K>?=4AX'>AN'DA;856D4A'4<'b'544<?DM76;'64'<54A6'544<;?498P

''I\''">:5>N>?8'/4>N''$T'G"0''

2:K>;7'c>DA

18=D;D4AY TF^V]^TVFF/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/9423664632D )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

(856D<D=>68'4<'?>O<:?A8;;'<45'=7>AM8'4<'M>5>M8'64'7>KD6>K?8'544B

''FI''(7:5=7'`>?8''$T'G!-''

/:B>'$4O>e

18=D;D4AY TG^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236646325 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'58>5'<D5;6'<?445'8a68A;D4A'C74:;874?N85'>99?D=>6D4AE

''\Q''&5>AN'#@8A:8''$FV'b-!''

`>?85D8')L8DXD

18=D;D4AY TI^V]^TVFF/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/9423664637D )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

(4A@85;D4A'4<'544<'<54B'7D9'64'M>K?8'>AN'858=6D4A'4<'58>5'N45B85

''H''3456D;'&588A'#@8A:8''$T'G$#''

2:K>;7'c>DA

18=D;D4AY VT^VH^TVFF/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366463E3 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<';DAM?8';6458X'58>5'8a68A;D4A

''FGH''(58DM764A'#@8A:8''$T'G-c''

`>?85D8')L8DXD

18=D;D4AY FF^VH^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366463E6 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

(856D<D=>68'4<'?>O<:?A8;;'<45'544<'8a68A;D4AJ'58>5'N45B85'>AN'b'a'544<?DM76;'64'<54A6'544<;?498

''FGH''(58DM764A'#@8A:8''$T'G-c''

`>?85D8')L8DXD

18=D;D4AY Vb^VH^TVFF!,/*'1,`

Page 264



"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'R>5DAM8X

"D;6'4<'>99?D=>6D4A;'N8=DN8N':AN85'N8?8M>68N'94O85;'K86O88A

!>M8'FI'4<'\]

TV^VQ^TVFF'>AN'TF^VH^TVFF

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/9423664663C )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

%A;6>??>6D4A'4<';4?>5'97464@4?6>D='9>A8?;'DA'58>5'9D6=78N'544<P'CR4:;874?N85'#99?D=>6D4AE

''FI''#X?B85'!>5>N8''$T'V!,''

/:B>'$4O>e

18=D;D4AY FI^VH^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236646623 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

(856D<D=>68'4<'?>O<:?A8;;'<45'858=6D4A'4<';DAM?8';6458X'58>5'M54:AN'<?445'8a68A;D4A

''\]''295DAM=54<6'#@8A:8''$T'GcR''

2>5>7'*>N4AN4

18=D;D4AY TH^V]^TVFF!,/*'1,`

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/9423664662D )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'58>5'N45B85'>AN'DA;856D4A'4<'T'544<?DM76;'64'<54A6'544<;?498

''TI''+86785N4OA''$FV'F$1''

,?De>K867',AADAW&X>;D

18=D;D4AY VI^VH^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236646627 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

/89?>=8B8A6'4<'8aD;6DAM'=4A;85@>645X'OD67'A8O';DAM?8';6458X'58>5'8a68A;D4A

''\b''S44N;DN8'#@8A:8''$FV'bR_''

/:B>'$4O>e

18=D;D4AY FV^VH^TVFF!,/*'/,U

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366466A3 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

#99?D=>6D4A'<45'>'A4AWB>685D>?'>B8ANB8A6'<4??4ODAM'>'M5>A6'4<'9?>AADAM'985BD;;D4A'R&_^TVFV^FVTV'64'

ND@DN8'K8N544B'DA64'6O4':;DAM'8aD;6DAM';DN8'ODAN4O'>AN'KX'DA;856D4A'4<'DA685A>?'N445'>AN'DA685A>?'9>56D6D4A

''TGG''*:;O8??'RD??'-54>NO>X''$FV'F-_''

`>?85D8')L8DXD

18=D;D4AY TV^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/9423664665D )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'FW;6458X'K:D?NDAM'OD67'K>;8B8A6'64'>==4BB4N>68'1T':;8P

''\HH''*:;O8??'RD??'-54>NO>X''$FV'F-+''

c8<<58X'R4?6

18=D;D4AY FT^VH^TVFF/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236646673 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

%A;6>??>6D4A'4<'#+*

''\]\''*:;O8??'RD??'-54>NO>X''$FV'F-+''

2:K>;7'c>DA

18=D;D4AY FH^VH^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236646235 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<';DAM?8';6458X'58>5'i';DN8'8a68A;D4A'OD67'544<'?DM76;'C74:;874?N85'>99?D=>6D4AE

''TI''+86785N4OA''$FV'F$1''

,?De>K867',AADAW&X>;D

18=D;D4AY FH^VH^TVFF&+1

8=@@N>O=PS#/1Y

Page 265



"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'R>5DAM8X

"D;6'4<'>99?D=>6D4A;'N8=DN8N':AN85'N8?8M>68N'94O85;'K86O88A

!>M8'FQ'4<'\]

TV^VQ^TVFF'>AN'TF^VH^TVFF

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366437B6 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

(7>AM8'4<':;8'<54B'#F'C/86>D?E'64'#b'C(><8'i'->L85XE

'']''S45N;O4567'!>5>N8''$H'V2c''

c47A')M8AM>'!f">L49

18=D;D4AY T]^VQ^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366437D5 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

(4A@85;D4A'4<'8aD;6DAM'T';8?<W=4A6>DA8N'<?>6;'CF'a'b'K8N'>AN'F'a'T'K8NE'DA64'\'a'F'K8N';8?<W=4A6>DA8N'<?>6;'

>AN'F'a';8?<W=4A6>DA8N';6:ND4'<?>6P',58=6D4A'4<'<D5;6'>AN';8=4AN'<?445'?8@8?'58>5'8a68A;D4A

''\F''+:5A9DL8'">A8''$H'V,!''

c47A')M8AM>'!f">L49

18=D;D4AY bV^VQ^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643E66 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,a=>@>6D4A'64'8aD;6DAM'K>;8B8A6'64'954@DN8'K>X'ODAN4O'64'<54A6'8?8@>6D4A'>AN'858=6D4A'4<';DAM?8';6458X'58>5'

8a68A;D4A'>6'M54:AN'<?445'64'=58>68'F'a'6O4'K8N'<?>6'OD67'>;;4=D>68N'DA685A>?'>?685>6D4A;'C3?>6'bEP',58=6D4A'4<'

58>5'N45B85'64'=58>68'F'a'67588'N:9?8a'<?>6'OD67'>;;4=D>68N'DA685A>?'>?685>6D4A;P'C3?>6'TEP

''3?>6'T'i'bJ'Ib''!8BK8564A'/4>N''$\'F#d''

*D=78??8'-5>N;7>O

18=D;D4AY VQ^V]^TVFF/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643EB5 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'<D5;6'<?445'58>5'8a68A;D4A'64'<45B'F'a'FK8N'';8?<W=4A6>DA8N'<?>6

''\TI''&588A'">A8;''$\'F,_''

,?De>K867',AADAW&X>;D

18=D;D4AY F\^V]^TVFF/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643E7B )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,a=>@>6D4A'4<'8aD;6DAM'?4O85'M54:AN'<?445';6458'>58>'64'8aD;6DAM'M54:AN'<?445'<?>6'64'=58>68'>'?D@DAM'>58>J'OD67'

>'A8O'<54A6'?DM76O8??J'64M86785'OD67'>==8;;';689;'64'KDA';6458P

''HF''SDM76B>A'/4>N''$\'F/c''

*D=78??8'-5>N;7>O

18=D;D4AY TV^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366463DC )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'58>5'N45B85'>AN'DA;856D4A'4<'T'a'544<?DM76;'64'<54A6'544<;?498

'']\''3>?L?>AN'/4>N''$H'V$!''

2:K>;7'c>DA

18=D;D4AY TH^V]^TVFF!,/*'1,`

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/9423664635E )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

(7>AM8'4<':;8'4<':9985'<?445;'<54B'-F'CK:;DA8;;E'64'(b'C58;DN8A6D>?E'=4B95D;DAM'T'a';6:ND4':AD6;J'T'a'

4A8WK8N'<?>6;'>AN'b'a'6O4WK8N'<?>6;

''\bI''&588A'">A8;''$\'FR#''

c8<<58X'R4?6

18=D;D4AY TQ^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366463E2 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

0;8'4<'M54:AN'<?445'>;'R*)'C(\E'<45':9'64'I'9849?8

3?>6'F''FH''1:=L866'/4>N''$\'F-$''

c8<<58X'R4?6

18=D;D4AY Vb^VH^TVFF!,/*'1,`

Page 266



"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'R>5DAM8X

"D;6'4<'>99?D=>6D4A;'N8=DN8N':AN85'N8?8M>68N'94O85;'K86O88A

!>M8'F]'4<'\]

TV^VQ^TVFF'>AN'TF^VH^TVFF

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366463EB )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

0;8'4<':9985'<?445;'>;'R*)'C(\E'<45'b'64'Q'9849?8

3?>6'T''FH''1:=L866'/4>N''$\'F-$''

c8<<58X'R4?6

18=D;D4AY Vb^VH^TVFF!,/*'1,`

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/9423664663D )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

0;8'4<'9549856X'>;'67588';8?<'=4A6>DA8N'<?>6;

''b\]''SDM76B>A'/4>N''$H'V$#''

*D=78??8'-5>N;7>O

18=D;D4AY VI^VH^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236646666 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<';DAM?8';6458X';DN8'8a68A;D4A'64'=58>68'F'a';6:ND4'>AN'>NND6D4A>?'544B;'<45'8aD;6DAM'M54:AN'<?445'

<?>6

''F\''SD??4:M7KX'/4>N''$H'VR/''

c8<<58X'R4?6

18=D;D4AY VI^VH^TVFF/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366466CC )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

(856D<D=>68'4<'?>O<:?A8;;'<45'858=6D4A'4<'58>5'M54:AN'<?445'DA<D??'8a68A;D4A

''\F'',<<DAM7>B'/4>N''$H'V##''

c47A')M8AM>'!f">L49

18=D;D4AY F]^VH^TVFF!,/*'/,U

8NOKO=M;S#/1Y

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236346A3D )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

(4A;85@>6D4A'#58>'(4A;8A6'<45'N8B4?D6D4A'4<'8aD;6DAM'K:D?NDAM;'>AN'858=6D4A'4<'67588';8?<W=4A6>DA8N'NO8??DAM'

74:;8;J'>==8;;'54>N'>AN'?>AN;=>9DAM

''24:67O44N'$:5;85D8;J''+4OA;8AN'_>5N''$Q'Ic3''

*>6678O'&:AADAM

18=D;D4AY V]^V]^TVFF/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236346737 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

1D;=7>5M8'(4AND6D4A;'b'CB>685D>?;E'>66>=78N'64'9?>AADAM'985BD;;D4A'R&_^TVVG^VGbT'>AN'>9954@>?'<45'678'

DA;856D4A'4<'6O4'7DM7'?8@8?'ODAN4O;'4A'M54:AN'<?445'58>5'8?8@>6D4A

''FH''$4567'&54@8''$Q''

*>6678O'&:AADAM

18=D;D4AY TF^VQ^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236346ED7 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<';DAM?8';6458X';DN8'8a68A;D4A

''T]''(54BO8??'#@8A:8''$Q'IR$''

/:B>'$4O>e

18=D;D4AY FF^VH^TVFF/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643A2C )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

#9954@>?'4<'N86>D?;'9:5;:>A6'64'=4AND6D4A'I'C#5K45D=:?6:5>?'B8674N';6>68B8A6EJ'=4AND6D4A'Q'CSDAN4O;E'>AN']'

C!5D@>=X'2=588AE'>66>=78N'64'9?>AADAM'985BD;;D4A'R&_^TVFV^VGT]

''THJ'*8?K4:5A8''R>B9;68>N'">A8''$Q'\$d''

*>6678O'&:AADAM

18=D;D4AY V]^V]^TVFF&+1

Page 267



"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'R>5DAM8X

"D;6'4<'>99?D=>6D4A;'N8=DN8N':AN85'N8?8M>68N'94O85;'K86O88A

!>M8'FH'4<'\]

TV^VQ^TVFF'>AN'TF^VH^TVFF

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643556 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

+588'O45L;'64'DA=?:N8'58B4@8'D@XJ'67DA'KX'TVkJ'58N:=8'58M54O67'4<'F'a'(49985'-88=7'6588

''G''`D8O'/4>N''$Q'\1c''

cD??'S>558A

18=D;D4AY TH^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643737 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

/8654;98=6D@8'>99?D=>6D4A'<45'5868A6D4A'4<'<54A6'N45B85'>AN'58>5'358A=7'ODAN4O;

''\FG''#5=7O>X'/4>N''$Q'\R+''

2:K>;7'c>DA

18=D;D4AY TT^VQ^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/9423664375C )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

18B4?D6D4A'4<'58>5'O>??'64'O45L;749'>AN'858=6D4A'4<'58>5'O>??

''TQV''#5=7O>X'/4>N''$Q'I#d''

`>?85D8')L8DXD

18=D;D4AY VI^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366437CD )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<';DAM?8';6458X'8a68A;D4A'>AN'A8O'<?>M94?8'64'<54A6'8?8@>6D4A

3?>6'#''bV''RDM7M>68'RDM7'265886''$Q'Ic&''

*D=78??8'-5>N;7>O

18=D;D4AY V\^V]^TVFF/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366437EE )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

%A;6>??>6D4A'4<'F'a'12"#*'M588A'68?8=4BB:AD=>6D4A'=>KDA86

RD??;DN8'&>5N8A;J''2^)'3?>6'GWFF'RD??;DN8'*>A;D4A;''c>=L;4A;'">A8''$Q'I22''

,?De>K867',AADAW&X>;D

18=D;D4AY V\^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643E6E )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

#99?D=>6D4A'4<'A8O'9?>AADAM'985BD;;D4A'64'589?>=8'>A'8a6>A6'9?>AADAM'985BD;;D4A'R&_^TVVH^FVV]'<45'

858=6D4A'4<'>'<D5;6'<?445';DN8'8a68A;D4A'>K4@8'M>5>M8P

''FV'SD??4ON8A8''`D8O'/4>N''$Q''

`>?85D8')L8DXD

18=D;D4AY F\^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643E26 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

#B8ANB8A6;'64'>9954@8N'9?>AADAM'>99?D=>6D4A'R&_^TVFV^VTbH'64'DA=?:N8'>';86'DA'67D5N'<?445'>NND6D4A'>AN'

4BD;;D4A'4<'K>;8B8A6'?8@8?'64'678'>9954@8N'NO8??DAM

''FQ''`D8O'/4>N''$Q'\1-''

*D=78??8'-5>N;7>O

18=D;D4AY VQ^V]^TVFF/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643EBA )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

/8<:5KD;7B8A6'>AN'8a68A;D4A'4<'678'8aD;D6AM'NO8??DAM74:;8'DA=?:NDAM'N8B4?D6D4A'4<'8aD;6DAM'6O4';6458X'

M>5>M8'K:D?NDAMJ'9>56D>?'N8B4?D6D4A'4<'8aD;D6AM'B>DA'74:;8'DA=?:NDAM';4:67^8>;6'C;DN8^58>5E'8a685A>?'O>??;J'

58B4N8??DAM'4<'DA685D45'>AN'8a=>@>6D4A'64'=58>68'>'A8O'K>;8B8A6'<?445'>AN';DAM?8';6458X'58>5'8a68A;D4A'>AN'

6O4';6458X';DN8'8a68A;D4AP

''b''&5>AM8'/4>N''$Q'\#/''

*D=78??8'-5>N;7>O

18=D;D4AY FI^V]^TVFF&+1

Page 268



"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'R>5DAM8X

"D;6'4<'>99?D=>6D4A;'N8=DN8N':AN85'N8?8M>68N'94O85;'K86O88A

!>M8'FG'4<'\]

TV^VQ^TVFF'>AN'TF^VH^TVFF

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643EBC )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

(4A;85@>6D4A'#58>'(4A;8A6'<45'58<:5KD;7B8A6'>AN'8a68A;D4A'4<'8aD;6DAM'NO8??DAM74:;8'DA=?:NDAM'N8B4?D6D4A'

4<'8aD;6DAM'6O4';6458X'M>5>M8'K:D?NDAMP''!>56D>?'N8B4?D6D4A'4<'8aD;6DAM'B>DA'74:;8J'DA=?:NDAM';4:67^8>;6'

C;DN8^58>5E'8a685A>?'O>??;J'58B4N8??DAM'4<'DA685D45'>AN'8a=>@>6D4A'64'=58>68'>'A8O'K>;8B8A6'<?445P

''b''&5>AM8'/4>N''$Q'\#/''

*D=78??8'-5>N;7>O

18=D;D4AY FI^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643ED5 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

%A;6>??>6D4A'4<'F'a'12"#*'M588A'68?8=4BB:AD=>6D4A;'=>KDA86

(74?B8?8X'(58;=8A6J''2^)'\V''(74?B8?8X'!>5L''$Q''

2:K>;7'c>DA

18=D;D4AY Fb^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643EA3 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

(4A;65:=6D4A'4<'K>;8B8A6'9>56D>??X'K8A8>67'678'8aD;6DAM'9549856X'64'954@DN8'>NND6D4A>?'>==4BB4N>6D4A

''185O8A''(4B964A'#@8A:8''$Q'\"R''

c8<<58X'R4?6

18=D;D4AY Vb^VH^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643EA2 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<';DAM?8';6458X'58>5'8a68A;D4A

''F]''(54BO8??'!?>=8''$Q'IR/''

*>6678O'&:AADAM

18=D;D4AY Vb^VH^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643E5A )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

%A;6>??>6D4A'4<'F'a'12"#*'M588A'68?8=4BB:AD=>6D4A'=>KDA86P

$4567'RD??J''):6;DN8'3?>6'FWFT'RDM7=54<6J''$4567'RD??J''$Q'\/1''

`>?85D8')L8DXD

18=D;D4AY F\^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643EC7 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'58>5'=4A;85@>645X'8a68A;D4A

&54:AN'3?445'3?>6J''bT''$4567O44N'/4>N''$Q'I+!''

*D=78??8'-5>N;7>O

18=D;D4AY FG^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236646365 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

$4AWB>685D>?'>B8ANB8A6'<4??4ODAM'>'M5>A6'4<'9?>AADAM'985BD;;D4A'R&_^TVFV^VGT]'<45'>'=8A65>?'9>56D>?'

9>5>986'>6'544<'?8@8?

''TH''R>B9;68>N'">A8''$Q'\$d''

*>6678O'&:AADAM

18=D;D4AY V]^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366463B2 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

1D;9?>X'4<'F'a'A4AWD??:BDA>68N'<>;=D>';DMA'>AN'F'a'A4AWD??:BDA>68N'7>AMDAM';DMA

''I\WIQ''RDM7M>68'RDM7'265886''$Q'IRd''

2:K>;7'c>DA

18=D;D4AY TH^V]^TVFF&+1

Page 269



"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'R>5DAM8X

"D;6'4<'>99?D=>6D4A;'N8=DN8N':AN85'N8?8M>68N'94O85;'K86O88A

!>M8'TV'4<'\]

TV^VQ^TVFF'>AN'TF^VH^TVFF

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/9423664635D )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

%A;6>??>6D4A'4<'F'a'12"#*'M588A'68?8=4BB:AD=>6D4A;'=>KDA86

$4567'RD??'):6;DN8''FWH'#?8a>AN85'R4:;8''RD??=58;6''$Q'\R"''

2:K>;7'c>DA

18=D;D4AY TG^V]^TVFF/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236646357 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'58>5'N45B85'>AN'544<'8a68A;D4A

''IH''24:67O44N'">A8''$Q'I1_''

*D=78??8'-5>N;7>O

18=D;D4AY TH^V]^TVFF/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236646376 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

/8B4@>?'4<'8A65>A=8';689J'?4O85DAM'4<'8A65>A=8'?8@8?'64'>?DMA'OD67';65886'?8@8?J'>AN'954@D;D4A'4<'A8O'N445'>AN'

DA685A>?'5>B9

''I\WIQ''RDM7M>68'RDM7'265886''$Q'IRd''

2:K>;7'c>DA

18=D;D4AY VT^VH^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236646372 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

"D;68N'K:D?NDAM'=4A;8A6'<45'DA685A>?'58<:5KD;7B8A6'64'M54:AN'>AN'<D5;6'<?445'DA=?:NDAM'A8O'K>67544B'>6'<D5;6'

<?445'?8@8?J'58?4=>6D4A'4<'LD6=78AJ'58<:5KD;7B8A6'4<'<D5;6'<?445'K>67544B'>AN'B4@DAM':6D?D6X'544B'64'8aD;6DAM'

M>5>M8P',a685A>?'O45L;'64'58B4@8'8aD;6DAM';65886'<>=DAM'N445'>AN'58;6458'64'45DMDA>?'K5D=LO45L'<>=>N8'>AN'

58B4@>?'4<';DN8'<>=DAM';=:??85X'ODAN4O'>AN'B>L8'M44N'OD67'K5D=LO45L'64'B>6=7'8aD;6DAM

''G''`D8O'/4>N''$Q'\1c''

/:B>'$4O>e

18=D;D4AY V\^VH^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236646633 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

$4AWB>685D>?'>B8ANB8A6;'<4??4ODAM'>'M5>A6'4<'9?>AADAM'985BD;;D4A'R&_^TVFV^F]GbJ'64';86'<8A=8'K>=L'

VP]B'K87DAN'>'9?>A68N'K45N85J'58N:=6D4A'4<'<8A=8'78DM76'64'FPHB'>AN'>NND6D4A'4<'8a65>';86'4<'K5D=L'9D??>5;'>6'

$4567',>;6'8AN

FT''R854A;'"8>''278?N4A'#@8A:8''$Q'\$-''

2:K>;7'c>DA

18=D;D4AY VQ^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/9423664665A )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

#NND6D4A'4<'67588'ODAN4O;'64'>'M>K?8'8AN'O>??

''I''!>5LO44N'*8O;''$Q'I0/''

`>?85D8')L8DXD

18=D;D4AY FT^VH^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366466CD )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

/89?>=8B8A6'4<'265886'8?8@>6D4A'ODAN4O;J'589?>=8B8A6'4<'58>5'8?8@>6D4A'ODAN4O'DA=?:NDAM'l:?D86'K>?=4AX'>AN'

=58>6D4A'4<'544<'6855>=8'64'58>5'4@85'LD6=78A'954l8=6D4A'C74:;874?N85'>99?D=>6D4AE

''FQ''$4567O44N'/4>N''$Q'I+$''

c8<<58X'R4?6

18=D;D4AY F]^VH^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236646675 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

"D;68N'K:D?NDAM'=4A;8A6'<45'>?685>6D4A;'64'?D<6';7><6;J'58B4@>?'4<';85@D=8'?D<6;'>AN'954@D;D4A'4<'A8O'=>5;'<45'

9>;;8AM85'?D<6;

''RDM7'!4DA6'T''$4567'RD??''$Q'\#g''

*D=78??8'-5>N;7>O

18=D;D4AY F]^VH^TVFF&+1

Page 270



"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'R>5DAM8X

"D;6'4<'>99?D=>6D4A;'N8=DN8N':AN85'N8?8M>68N'94O85;'K86O88A

!>M8'TF'4<'\]

TV^VQ^TVFF'>AN'TF^VH^TVFF

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366466EC )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

#?685>6D4A'64'ODAN4O'>AN'589?>=8B8A6'4<'N445'OD67'ODAN4O'>6'<54A6'K>;8B8A6'?8@8?'C74:;874?N85'>99?D=>6D4AE

''TH(''*D?64A'#@8A:8''$Q'IU,''

`>?85D8')L8DXD

18=D;D4AY FH^VH^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/9423664623C )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

/8<:5KD;7B8A6'4<'<D5;6'>AN';8=4AN'<?445;'64'=58>68'58;DN8A6D>?':AD6'>AN'O45LDAM'LD6=78A'>AN';6><<'544B'<45'

8aD;6DAM'9:K?D='74:;8P',58=6D4A'4<'>'58>5'N45B85'ODAN4OP'!54@D;D4A'4<'A8O'8a685A>?'>==8;;';6>D5=>;8'<54B'

M54:AN'64'<D5;6'<?445J'=58>6D4A'4<'544<'6855>=8;'64'8aD;6DAM'<?>6'544<;'>6'<D5;6'>AN';8=4AN'<?445;'OD67'A8O'N4:K?8'

N445;'<45'>==8;;P

''\F\''#5=7O>X'/4>N''$Q'I0#''

*D=78??8'-5>N;7>O

18=D;D4AY FH^VH^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366462BD )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

$4AWB>685D>?'>B8ANB8A6;'<4??4ODAM'>'M5>A6'4<'9?>AADAM'985BD;;D4A'R&_^TVVH^FTG\'64'>B8AN'678'M?>;;'64'

K8'=?8>5'5>6785'67>A'4K;=:58

''QF''S44N'">A8''$Q'I01''

*D=78??8'-5>N;7>O

18=D;D4AY VF^VH^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366462A5 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

#99?D=>6D4A'<45'A4AWB>685D>?'>B8ANB8A6'<4??4ODAM'>'M5>A6'4<'9?>AADAM'985BD;;D4A'R&_^TVVH^TFQQ'<45'

58N:=6D4A'DA';=>?8'>AN'8a68A6'4<'95494;8N'?4O85'M54:AN'<?445'8a68A;D4A'>AN'>?685>6D4A'64'45D8A6>6D4A'4<'

>9954@8N'8a685A>?';6>D5=>;8

''\\''S44N'">A8''$Q'I0-''

*>6678O'&:AADAM

18=D;D4AY FT^VH^TVFF&+1

8F@>H;PS#/1Y

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643C7C )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'>';DAM?8';6458X'58>5'8a68A;D4A

'']F''/>67=44?8'&>5N8A;''$H'G$,''

c47A')M8AM>'!f">L49

18=D;D4AY TV^VQ^TVFF/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643762 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

(4A@85;D4A'4<'9549856X'DA64'F'a'6O4'K8N'<?>6J'T'a'4A8'K8N'<?>6;'>AN'T'a'67588'K8N'<?>6;P'!54@D;D4A'4<'<54A6'>AN'

58>5'?DM76O8??;J'58>5'8a68A;D4A;'>6'K>;8B8A6'>AN'M54:AN'<?445'?8@8?;J'#?685>6D4A;'>AN'B4ND<D=>6D4A;'64'

8?8@>6D4A;'>AN'8A?>5M8B8A6'4<'58>5'N45B85'ODAN4O;P

''QQ''/4L8;?X'#@8A:8''$H'H$R''

c47A')M8AM>'!f">L49

18=D;D4AY bV^VQ^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366437B3 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

`>5D>6D4A'4<'=4AND6D4A'FV'C4==:9>6D4A'>;'6O4WK8N'58;DN8A6D>?':AD6;E'>66>=78N'64'9?>AADAM'58<858A=8'

R&_^TVVI^VTHF'64'=7>AM8'9549856X'<54B'6O4WK8N'64'67588WK8N

FV''#:N45>'(4:56J''+78'(>B9;K4:5A8''$H']2-''

c47A')M8AM>'!f">L49

18=D;D4AY TG^VQ^TVFF&+1

Page 271



"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'R>5DAM8X

"D;6'4<'>99?D=>6D4A;'N8=DN8N':AN85'N8?8M>68N'94O85;'K86O88A

!>M8'TT'4<'\]

TV^VQ^TVFF'>AN'TF^VH^TVFF

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643773 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'M54:AN'<?445'58>5'8a68A;D4A'DA=?:NDAM'58>5'954l8=6DAM'544<

''bQ''!5D45X'/4>N''$H'],d''

c8<<58X'R4?6

18=D;D4AY bV^VQ^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643E36 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

%A;6>??>6D4A'4<'F'a'12"#*'M588A'68?8=4BB:AD=>6D4A'=>KDA86

RD??<D8?N'#@8A:8J''2^)'bV''R>54?N'/4>N''$H']1,''

c8<<58X'R4?6

18=D;D4AY VI^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643E65 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<';DAM?8';6458X';DN8'^'58>5'8a68A;D4AJ'?4O85DAM'9>56'4<'<?445'64'K>;8B8A6'>AN'?4O85DAM'9>56'4<'<?445'

4<'K>=L'>NND6D4A'C74:;874?N85'>99?D=>6D4AE

"4O85'*>D;4A8668J''G''38558;64A8'/4>N''$H']-d''

c47A')M8AM>'!f">L49

18=D;D4AY FT^V]^TVFF/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643E52 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'58>5'N45B85'>AN'=4A@85;D4A'4<'544<'<54B'7D9'64'M>K?8'DA=?:NDAM'DA;856D4A'4<'T'544<?DM76;'64'<54A6'

8?8@>6D4A'C74:;874?N85'>99?D=>6D4AE

''bI>''#;7<45N'#@8A:8''$H'H"$''

c47A')M8AM>'!f">L49

18=D;D4AY F\^V]^TVFF/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643EE3 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

/89?>=8B8A6'4<'6DBK85';>;7'ODAN4O;'OD67'N4:K?8WM?>e8N'O7D68':!`('ODAN4O;'64'M54:AN'>AN'<D5;6'<?445;P

'']''$DM76DAM>?8'">A8''$H']/#''

c47A')M8AM>'!f">L49

18=D;D4AY TV^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366466C6 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

(856D<D=>68'4<'">O<:?A8;;'<45'858=6D4A'4<'6O4';89>5>68'M54:AN'<?445'58>5'8a68A;D4A;

'']F''/>67=44?8'&>5N8A;''$H'G$,''

c8<<58X'R4?6

18=D;D4AY FQ^VH^TVFF!,/*'1,`

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/9423664626A )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

(4A@85;D4A'4<'R*)'64'954@DN8'I'a'F'K8N544B'<?>6;

''QF''+4668A7>B'">A8''$H'G-,''

c8<<58X'R4?6

18=D;D4AY FT^VH^TVFF&+1

QGHR;::*8N::S#/1Y

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643372 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

/44<'8a68A;D4A'>K4@8'58>5'954l8=6D4A'DA=?:NDAM'858=6D4A'4<'N45B85'ODAN4OP

''FVT''*:;O8??'RD??'/4>N''$FV'bc/''

/:B>'$4O>e

18=D;D4AY TF^V]^TVFF!,/*'1,`

Page 272



"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'R>5DAM8X

"D;6'4<'>99?D=>6D4A;'N8=DN8N':AN85'N8?8M>68N'94O85;'K86O88A

!>M8'Tb'4<'\]

TV^VQ^TVFF'>AN'TF^VH^TVFF

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366432E5 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

%A;6>??>6D4A'4<'K>?=4AX'>AN'8A?>5M8B8A6'4<'O5>9W4@85'544<?DM76'64'N45B85'ODAN4O'>6'58>5'4<'9549856X'

C74:;874?N85'>99?D=>6D4AE

''b\''(5>A?8X'&>5N8A;''$FV'b#!''

`>?85D8')L8DXD

18=D;D4AY TH^VQ^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643D5B )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

(856D<D=>68'4<'?>O<:?A8;;'<45'544<'8a68A;D4A

''Fb''R>58<D8?N'/4>N''$H'HU_''

cD??'S>558A

18=D;D4AY FT^VH^TVFF!,/*'1,`

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643A65 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<';DAM?8';6458X'58>5'8a68A;D4A'>AN'58>5'544<'8a68A;D4A'C74:;874?N85'>99?D=>6D4AE

''I\''3>5585'/4>N''$H'H"-''

cD??'S>558A

18=D;D4AY VF^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643533 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

(4A@85;D4A'4<':9985'<?445'DA64'6O4';8?<'=4A6>DA8N'<?>6;

''FI]''#@8A:8'*8O;''$FV'b$$''

/:B>'$4O>e

18=D;D4AY VF^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366435AC )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

#9954@>?'4<'186>D?;'9:5;:>A6'64'(4AND6D4A'b'C*>685D>?;E'>66>=78N'64'9?>AADAM'985BD;;D4A'R&_^TVFV^F]QF

''bWIbJ'+78'!5D45X''GH'!5D45X'/4>N''$H']R2''

cD??'S>558A

18=D;D4AY TH^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643CCA )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

#?685>6D4A'4<'544<'<54B'7D9'64'M>K?8'>AN'858=6D4A'4<'58>5'N45B85

''GH''!>5L'#@8A:8'24:67''$H'H"2''

`>?85D8')L8DXD

18=D;D4AY TV^VQ^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643CC7 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

#?685>6D4A;'64'544<'DA@4?@DAM'=7>AMDAM'4<'544<;7>98'>AN'DA;856D4A'4<'544<?DM76'64'<54A6'8?8@>6D4A

''bT'',??DAM64A'/4>N''$FV'b1&''

*>6678O'&:AADAM

18=D;D4AY TV^VQ^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/9423664373D )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'58>5'N45B85'>AN'DA;856D4A'4<'b'544<?DM76;'64'<54A6'544<;?498P

''b\''->55DAM64A'/4>N''$H'HU2''

/:B>'$4O>e

18=D;D4AY T]^VQ^TVFF!,/*'1,`

Page 273



"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'R>5DAM8X

"D;6'4<'>99?D=>6D4A;'N8=DN8N':AN85'N8?8M>68N'94O85;'K86O88A

!>M8'T\'4<'\]

TV^VQ^TVFF'>AN'TF^VH^TVFF

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643723 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<';DN8'^'58>5'N45B85;'64'<>=D?D6>68'>'?4<6'=4A@85;D4A'CR4:;874?N85'#99?D=>6D4AE

''T\''(>;=>N8'#@8A:8''$FV'b!0''

`>?85D8')L8DXD

18=D;D4AY TG^VQ^TVFF/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/9423664372D )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

(856D<D=>68'4<'?>O<:?A8;;'<45'858=6D4A'4<'58>5'N45B85'ODAN4O'>AN'DA;856D4A'4<'b'a'544<?DM76;'64'<54A6'544<;?498

''Q''"8DA;685'/4>N''$FV'b#$''

2>5>7'*>N4AN4

18=D;D4AY TG^VQ^TVFF!,/*'1,`

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366437DE )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

(856D<D=>68'4<'?>O<:?A8;;'<45'858=6D4A'4<'58>5'N45B85

''bI''(>5X;<456'/4>N''$H'H/#''

2:K>;7'c>DA

18=D;D4AY TG^VQ^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366437A6 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'58>5'N45B85;J'DA;856D4A'4<'T'544<?DM76;'64'<54A6'544<;?498J'>AN'>?685>6D4A'4<'>??'ODAN4O;'>AN'N445;'

<54B'!`('64'6DBK85'<5>B8N

''I''(>5X;<456'/4>N''$H'H/#''

2:K>;7'c>DA

18=D;D4AY V\^V]^TVFF/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643757 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

(4A;65:=6D4A'4<'O7D68'N4:K?8'M?>e8N'=4A;85@>645X'64'M54:AN'<?445'<?>6'OD67'?8>A'64';6X?8'544<

3?>6'F''T''!5DA=8;'#@8A:8''$FV'b"/''

*D=78??8'-5>N;7>O

18=D;D4AY V]^V]^TVFF/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643777 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

1D;9?>X'4<'F'a'DA685A>??X'D??:BDA>68N'<>;=D>';DMA

''TIQ''*:;O8??'RD??'-54>NO>X''$FV'b2R''

/:B>'$4O>e

18=D;D4AY V]^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643EB6 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

#NND6D4A'4<'N45B85'K4a'64'8aD;6DAM'544<'C=856DD<=>68'4<'?>O<:?A8;;E

''Fbb''!5D45X'/4>N''$H'H$#''

*>6678O'&:AADAM

18=D;D4AY F\^V]^TVFF!,/*'1,`

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643EDB )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<';DAM?8';6458X'58>5'8a68A;D4A

''b\''S44N'`>?8''$FV'b1!''

*>6678O'&:AADAM

18=D;D4AY FH^V]^TVFF!,/*'1,`

Page 274



"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'R>5DAM8X

"D;6'4<'>99?D=>6D4A;'N8=DN8N':AN85'N8?8M>68N'94O85;'K86O88A

!>M8'TI'4<'\]

TV^VQ^TVFF'>AN'TF^VH^TVFF

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643EA5 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

18B4?D6D4A'4<'8a685A>?';6458J'858=6D4A'4<'58>5'DA<D??'8a68A;D4A'>AN'8a=>@>6D4A'4<'=8??>5

'']''3D5;'#@8A:8''$FV'b"_''

`>?85D8')L8DXD

18=D;D4AY V]^V]^TVFF/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643E5C )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

%A;6>??>6D4A'4<'A8O';749<54A6'>AN'<8A8;65>6D4A

''TIQ''*:;O8??'RD??'-54>NO>X''$FV'b2R''

/:B>'$4O>e

18=D;D4AY FH^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643ECC )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

1D;9?>X'4<'F'a'8a685A>??X'D??:BDA>68N'<>;=D>';DMA

''FHI''*:;O8??'RD??'-54>NO>X''$FV'b/2''

*>6678O'&:AADAM

18=D;D4AY FH^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643E73 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

%A;6>??>6D4A'4<'A8O';749<54A6

''FHI''*:;O8??'RD??'-54>NO>X''$FV'b/2''

*>6678O'&:AADAM

18=D;D4AY FH^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643E76 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

18B4?D6D4A'4<'8aD;6DAM'58>5'8a68A;D4A'>AN'858=6D4A'4<'A8O'58>5'M54:AN'<?445'8a68A;D4A'DA=?:NDAM'985M4?>J'9?:;'

;DAM?8';6458X';DN8'8a68A;D4A'>AN'M>5N8A';78N

''H]''S44N?>AN'/D;8''$FV'b0$''

*D=78??8'-5>N;7>O

18=D;D4AY FG^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643EEC )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

!54@D;D4A'4<'B4A49D6=7'544<'64'58>5'8a68A;D4A'>AN':9M5>NDAM'4<'58AN858N'O>??;'64'8a68A;D4AP

''\F''*:;O8??'RD??'!?>=8''$FV'b/!''

/:B>'$4O>e

18=D;D4AY TF^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/9423664636E )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'58>5'N45B85J'544<'=4A@85;D4A'<54B'7D9'64'M>K?8'OD67'DA;856D4A'4<';LX?DM76;'64'<54A6'8?8@>6D4A'

CR4:;874?N85'#99?D=>6D4AE

''\b''(4AA>:M76'&>5N8A;''$FV'b"&''

`>?85D8')L8DXD

18=D;D4AY TI^V]^TVFF/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366463DE )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

(856D<D=>68'4<'">O<:?A8;;'<45'858=6D4A'4<';DAM?8';6458X'58>5'8a68A;D4A

''IT''/8N;64A'/4>N''$H']R,''

*>6678O'&:AADAM

18=D;D4AY TH^V]^TVFF!,/*'1,`

Page 275



"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'R>5DAM8X

"D;6'4<'>99?D=>6D4A;'N8=DN8N':AN85'N8?8M>68N'94O85;'K86O88A

!>M8'TQ'4<'\]

TV^VQ^TVFF'>AN'TF^VH^TVFF

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366463AB )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<';DAM?8';6458X';6:ND4'K:D?NDAM'DA'58>5'M>5N8A'C74:;874?N85'>99?D=>6D4AE

''Gb''!5D45X'/4>N''$H'H"_''

*D=78??8'-5>N;7>O

18=D;D4AY TH^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366463C5 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

18B4?D6D4A'4<'8aD;6DAM'=4A;85@>645X'>AN'858=6D4A'4<'M?>e8N';DAM?8';6458X'58>5'8a68A;D4AJ'858=6D4A'4<';DN8'^'

58>5'?8>A'64'8a68A;D4A'64'954@DN8';8=:58'58=X=?DAM'>AN'B4645'KDL8';645>M8'>?4AM'OD67'<D5;6'<?445'K>67544B'

>AN'<>BD?X'544BP

''FF\''(5>A?8X'&>5N8A;''$FV'b#R''

c47A')M8AM>'!f">L49

18=D;D4AY VF^VH^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236646636 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<';DAM?8';6458X'58>5'^';DN8'8a68A;D4A

''bH''S44N'`>?8''$FV'b1!''

c47A')M8AM>'!f">L49

18=D;D4AY VI^VH^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236646632 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'6O4';6458X'58>5'>AN'?4<6'8a68A;D4AJ'DA;856D4A'4<'544<?DM76;'64'<54A6J';DN8'>AN'58>5'544<;?498;J'>AN'

589?>=8B8A6'4<'ODAN4O;'6754:M74:6

''bH''S44N'`>?8''$FV'b1!''

c47A')M8AM>'!f">L49

18=D;D4AY VI^VH^TVFF/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/9423664663A )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<';DAM?8';6458X'58>5'M54:AN'<?445'8a68A;D4A

'']H'',678?N8A8'#@8A:8''$FV'bU-''

/:B>'$4O>e

18=D;D4AY V\^VH^TVFF/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/9423664666A )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

/89?>=8B8A6'4<'8aD;6DAM'<54A6'?D@DAM'544B'ODAN4O'OD67'A8O'O7D68W9>DA68N'O44N8A';>;7'ODAN4O

''bb#''(5>A?8X'&>5N8A;''$FV'b##''

c8<<58X'R4?6

18=D;D4AY VI^VH^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/9423664666C )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

%A;856D4A'4<'544<?DM76'64'<54A6'544<;?498'64'<>=D?D6>68'>'?4<6'=4A@85;D4A

''\T'',678?N8A8'#@8A:8''$FV'bUR''

2:K>;7'c>DA

18=D;D4AY FF^VH^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236646656 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'>'<588W;6>ANDAM';65:=6:58'<45';8??DAM'=:6'<?4O85;

''#?8a>AN5>'!>?>=8'&>5N8A'(8A658J''#?8a>AN5>'!>?>=8'S>X''$TT']--''

c47A')M8AM>'!f">L49

18=D;D4AY FT^VH^TVFF&+1

Page 276



"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'R>5DAM8X

"D;6'4<'>99?D=>6D4A;'N8=DN8N':AN85'N8?8M>68N'94O85;'K86O88A

!>M8'T]'4<'\]

TV^VQ^TVFF'>AN'TF^VH^TVFF

(F;:*"=@SS#/1Y

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/9423664367E )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

(7>AM8'4<':;8'<54B'#F'C586>D?E'64'#b'C58;6>:5>A6E

''IQ''RDM7'/4>N''$TT'Q-d''

cD??'S>558A

18=D;D4AY FH^V]^TVFF/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643D5E )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

(4A6DA:>6D4A'4<'M54:AN'<?445'>;'BDADW=>K'4<<D=8

''FT''"XBDAM64A'#@8A:8''$TT'Qc#''

,?De>K867',AADAW&X>;D

18=D;D4AY FI^VH^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643A2D )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

(7>AM8'4<':;8'<54B'9>6D;;85D8';749'C#FE'64'58;6>:5>A6'C#bE'>AN'DA;6>??>6D4A'4<'8a65>=6D4A'<?:8'64'58>5

''FV''RDM7'/4>N''$TT'Q-d''

,?De>K867',AADAW&X>;D

18=D;D4AY TT^VQ^TVFF/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643732 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

(4A@85;D4A'4<'T'<?>6;'DA64'\'<?>6;

''b]#'i'bG#''RDM7'/4>N''$TT'Q-R''

/:B>'$4O>e

18=D;D4AY TT^VQ^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366437B7 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

(856D<D=>68'4<'">O<:?A8;;'<45'858=6D4A'4<'58>5'N45B85

''bb''(4?85>DA8'/4>N''$H'VUc''

2>5>7'*>N4AN4

18=D;D4AY TG^VQ^TVFF!,/*'1,`

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643E63 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

0;8'4<'9549856X'>;'6O4';8?<'=4A6>DA8N'<?>6;

''TF''-:5M7?8X'/4>N''$H'VU&''

*>6678O'&:AADAM

18=D;D4AY FF^VH^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643E6A )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<';DN8'>AN'58>5'M54:AN'<?445'8a68A;D4A'C74:;874?N85'>99?D=>6D4AE

''b\''R45A;8X'!>5L'/4>N''$H'Vc!''

c8<<58X'R4?6

18=D;D4AY FT^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643E5D )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

%A;6>??>6D4A'4<'F'a'12"#*'M588A'68?8=4BB:AD=>6D4A'=>KDA86

1>5ODA'/4>NJ';^4''FGQ''&?>N;64A8'#@8A:8''$TT'Q",''

*D=78??8'-5>N;7>O

18=D;D4AY V]^V]^TVFF&+1

Page 277



"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'R>5DAM8X

"D;6'4<'>99?D=>6D4A;'N8=DN8N':AN85'N8?8M>68N'94O85;'K86O88A

!>M8'TH'4<'\]

TV^VQ^TVFF'>AN'TF^VH^TVFF

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643EC3 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

(7>AM8'4<':;8'4<'678':9985'9>56;'4<'678'K:D?NDAM'<54B'-F'C)<<D=8E'64'/8;DN8A6D>?'C(bE'DA@4?@DAM'678'=4A@85;D4A'

4<'678'<D5;6'>AN';8=4AN'<?445;'>AN'678'544<;9>=8'64'954@DN8';Da';8?<W=4A6>DA8N'<?>6;J'64M86785'OD67'

8A7>A=8B8A6'4<'678'M54:AN'<?445'-F',B9?4XB8A6';9>=8P'#?685>6D4A;'>AN'?>AN;=>9DAM'4<'678'<54A6'=>5'

9>5LDAM'>58>

''FV]''*>X8;'/4>N''$TT'Q0!''

,?De>K867',AADAW&X>;D

18=D;D4AY FH^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643ECB )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

/89?>=8B8A6'4<'8aD;6DAM'O44N8A'ODAN4O;'OD67'A8O'N4:K?8'M?>e8N'ODAN4O;

''\V-''&?>N;64A8'#@8A:8''$TT'Q""''

2:K>;7'c>DA

18=D;D4AY F\^V]^TVFF/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643EC5 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

1D;9?>X'4<'b'a'DA685A>??X'D??:BDA>68N'<>;=D>';DMA;J'F'a'A4AWD??:BDA>68N'<>;=D>';DMA'>AN'F'a'A4AWD??:BDA>68N'

954l8=6DAM';DMAP

''GHWFVV''RDM7'/4>N''$TT'QR,''

+>5>'c>A8'3D;785

18=D;D4AY FG^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/9423664633B )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

1D;9?>X'4<'F'a'DA685A>??X'D??:BDA>68N'<>;=D>';DMA'>AN'F'a'DA685A>??X'D??:BDA>68N'7>AMDAM';DMA

''HF''RDM7'/4>N''$TT'Q-,''

*>6678O'&:AADAM

18=D;D4AY TV^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/9423664636D )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

18B4?D6D4A'4<'8aD;6DAM'58>5'M54:AN'<?445'8a68A;D4A'>AN'858=6D4A'4<'A8O';DAM?8';6458X'58>5'M54:AN'<?445'

8a68A;D4A'C74:;874?N85'>99?D=>6D4AE

&54:AN'3?445'3?>6''bH''#?8a>AN5>'/4>N''$H'V!!''

c8<<58X'R4?6

18=D;D4AY TI^V]^TVFF/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/9423664632A )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

(58>6D4A'4<'A8O'K>;8B8A6'<?>6J'>?685>6D4A^8a68A;D4A'4<'8aD;6DAM'<?>6;J'>AN'858=6D4A'4<'58>5'M54:AN'<?445'

8a68A;D4A

'']]''*>X8;'/4>N''$TT'Q+$''

,?De>K867',AADAW&X>;D

18=D;D4AY FG^V]^TVFF/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366463D5 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

/89?>=8B8A6'4<'8aD;6DAM'ODAN4O;'OD67'A8O'!`(:'O7D68'9>DA68N'ODAN4O;

''HG''3>55>A6'#@8A:8''$TT'Q!1''

/:B>'$4O>e

18=D;D4AY TG^V]^TVFF/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366463C7 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

(4A@85;D4A'4<'9549856X'DA64'T'a'4A8'K8N';8?<W=4A6>DA8N'<?>6;

''HG''#?8a>AN5>'/4>N''$H'V"&''

`>?85D8')L8DXD

18=D;D4AY VT^VH^TVFF&+1

Page 278



"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'R>5DAM8X

"D;6'4<'>99?D=>6D4A;'N8=DN8N':AN85'N8?8M>68N'94O85;'K86O88A

!>M8'TG'4<'\]

TV^VQ^TVFF'>AN'TF^VH^TVFF

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366463E5 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

1D;9?>X'4<'T'a'DA685A>??X'D??:BDA>68N'<>;=D>';DMA;

''S44N'&588A'27499DAM'(D6XJ''RDM7'/4>N''$TT'Q_1''

,?De>K867',AADAW&X>;D

18=D;D4AY Vb^VH^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366466A2 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

#99?D=>6D4A'<45'>'A4AWB>685D>?'>B8ANB8A6'<4??4ODAM'>'M5>A6'4<'9?>AADAM'985BD;;D4A'R&_^TVFF^V]Q]'<45'

>?685>6D4A;'64'7>AN5>D?'>AN'K>?:;65>NDAM'KX'=7>AMDAM'678'B>685D>?'<54B'>?:BDAD:B'64'6DBK85

''#?8a>AN5>'%A<>A6;'>AN'c:AD45'2=744?''S8;685A'/4>N''$TT'Q0R''

,?De>K867',AADAW&X>;D

18=D;D4AY FF^VH^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366466CA )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'6O4';6458X'6O4'K8N';DAM?8'NO8??DAM74:;8

">AN'#Nl4DADAM''FV''-5>B964A'!>5L'/4>N''$TT'Q-&''

,?De>K867',AADAW&X>;D

18=D;D4AY FT^VH^TVFF/,3

(F@MKGTU;@:=>?*"=@SS#/1Y

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643AE2 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

(856D<D=>68'4<'">O<:?A8;;'<45':;8'4<'9549856X'>;'6O4';8?<'=4A6>DA8N'<?>6;

'']V''-5>A6O44N'/4>N''$F]'V,0''

cD??'S>558A

18=D;D4AY TH^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643727 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

#99?D=>6D4A'<45'>'A8O'9?>AADAM'985BD;;D4A'64'589?>=8'>A'8a6>A6'9?>AADAM'985BD;;D4A'R&_^TVVH^VQGI'<45'

=4A@85;D4A'64'<45B'T'a'4A8'K8N544B';8?<'=4A6>DA8N'<?>6;P

''\G''-D5LK8=L'/4>N''$F]'H$R''

*>6678O'&:AADAM

18=D;D4AY T]^VQ^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366437DC )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

0;8'4<'8aD;6DAM'M>5>M8'958BD;8;'<45'*P)P+'26>6D4AP

0AD6'ITQ''/>D?O>X'#5=78;''(7:5=7'/4>N''$F]'H#U''

`>?85D8')L8DXD

18=D;D4AY TG^VQ^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643EC2 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

/89?>=8B8A6'4<';DAM?8'M?>e8N'ODAN4O;'^'K>?=4AX'N445'OD67'N4:K?8'M?>e8N':AD6;'C74:;874?N85'>99?D=>6D4AE

3?>6'Hb''+78'"DAN>?8;''&5>;B858'/4>N''$F]'VR,''

/:B>'$4O>e

18=D;D4AY FG^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643E7E )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'58>5'M54:AN'<?445'=4A;85@>645X'8a68A;D4A

''FIH''!>5L'">A8''$F]'Vc$''

c8<<58X'R4?6

18=D;D4AY FG^V]^TVFF&+1

Page 279



"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'R>5DAM8X

"D;6'4<'>99?D=>6D4A;'N8=DN8N':AN85'N8?8M>68N'94O85;'K86O88A

!>M8'bV'4<'\]

TV^VQ^TVFF'>AN'TF^VH^TVFF

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236646362 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

(4A@85;D4A'4<'8aD;6DAM':9985'<?445;'64'58;DN8A6D>?':AD6;'=4B95D;DAM'4<'\'a'F'K8N':AD6;J'b'a'T'K8N':AD6;'>AN'F'

a'b'K8N':AD6;'>AN'858=6D4A'4<'58>5'8a68A;D4AP

''HQI''RDM7'/4>N''$F]'H,_''

c47A')M8AM>'!f">L49

18=D;D4AY TF^V]^TVFF/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366463A5 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

(856D<D=>68'4<'">O<:?A8;;'<45'858=6D4A'4<';DAM?8';6458X'58>5'M54:AN'<?445'8a68A;D4A

''I]''1:5K>A'/4>N''$F]'H,1''

c8<<58X'R4?6

18=D;D4AY TQ^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/9423664663B )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

0;8'4<'9549856X'>;'6O4';8?<W=4A6>DA8N'<?>6;

''bH''2:6785?>AN'/4>N''$F]'V-$''

2:K>;7'c>DA

18=D;D4AY VI^VH^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236646635 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

(58>6D4A'4<'F'a'4A8'K8N';8?<W=4A6>DA8N'<?>6'64':9985'<?445;'C'28=4AN'<?445'i'"4<6'3?445E'OD67'A8O'58>5'

8A65>A=8'N445'>AN'B86>?';6>D5=>;8'64'<D5;6'<?445'?8@8?PC#B8AN8N'N8;=5D96D4APEP

''F''S7D68'R>56'">A8''$F]'H10''

2:K>;7'c>DA

18=D;D4AY VI^VH^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366466B6 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

/868A6D4A'4<'N4B8;6D='4:6K:D?NDAM

''GQ''!>5L'">A8''$F]'Vc!''

*D=78??8'-5>N;7>O

18=D;D4AY FV^VH^TVFF/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/9423664665E )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<';DAM?8';6458X'58>5'8a68A;D4A

''bT''#5MX?8'/4>N''$F]'V-,''

c47A')M8AM>'!f">L49

18=D;D4AY FT^VH^TVFF/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236646B3E )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

#99?D=>6D4A'<45'>'A4AWB>685D>?'>B8ANB8A6'<4??4ODAM'>'M5>A6'4<'9?>AADAM'985BD;;D4A'R&_^TVVG^VHFV'<45'

N8B4?D6D4A'4<'8aD;6DAM'K:D?NDAM'>AN'858=6D4A'4<'A8O'O>5874:;8'>;'>9954@8NJ'8A6>D?DAM'4BD;;D4A'4<'

B8ee>ADA8'>AN';DN8'8?8@>6D4A'ODAN4O;'<54B'>9954@8N';=78B8

0AD6'F''">L8'-:;DA8;;'(8A658J''+>5D<<'/4>N''$F]'V_d''

*D=78??8'-5>N;7>O

18=D;D4AY FI^VH^TVFF&+1

)M*!>>HS#/1Y

Page 280



"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'R>5DAM8X

"D;6'4<'>99?D=>6D4A;'N8=DN8N':AN85'N8?8M>68N'94O85;'K86O88A

!>M8'bF'4<'\]

TV^VQ^TVFF'>AN'TF^VH^TVFF

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643736 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'58>5'N45B85

T''24:67N4OA'`D??>;''26'#AA;'/4>N''$FI'b22''

c8<<58X'R4?6

18=D;D4AY VI^V]^TVFF!,/*'1,`

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643766 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

(7>AM8'4<':;8'4<';DAM?8'NO8??DAM'74:;8'64'>'CR*)E'R4:;8'DA'*:?6D9?8')==:9>6D4A

''TT''-?>=L'-4X'">A8''$FI'b#/''

2:K>;7'c>DA

18=D;D4AY T\^VQ^TVFF/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643767 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

%A;6>??>6D4A'4<'TW;6458X'=>A49X'64'58>5'4<'9549856X

''TQFWTQb''S8;6'&588A'/4>N''$FI'b-R''

c47A')M8AM>'!f">L49

18=D;D4AY bV^VQ^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366437CC )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

/8654;98=6D@8'9?>AADAM'>99?D=>6D4A'<45'5868A6D4A'4<'8aD;6DAM'0!`(''ODAN4O;J'N445;'>AN';8=:5D6X'M5D??'

CR4:;874?N85'#99?D=>6D4AE

''\T''`D=645D>'(58;=8A6''$FI'I"0''

,?De>K867',AADAW&X>;D

18=D;D4AY TH^VQ^TVFF/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643E2A )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

$4AWB>685D>?'>B8ANB8A6;'<4??4ODAM'>'M5>A6'4<'9?>AADAM'985BD;;D4A'R&_^TVVG^V\QT'<45'544<'=>A49X'>6'

M54:AN'<?445'64'=4@85'O>?LO>X'>6'58>5'4<'7>??J'8A?>5M8B8A6'4<':6D?D6X'>58>;'>6'58>5'64'954@DN8'<45'>BK:?>A6'

;6>D5=>;8'>==8;;'64'<D5;6'<?445':AD;8a'64D?86J'8A?>5M8B8A6'4<'<D5;6'<?445'64'954@DN8'DA685A>?';8>6DAM

''(4BB:AD6X'(7:5=7'4<'&4NJ''26'#AA;'/4>N''$FI'Q$&''

,?De>K867',AADAW&X>;D

18=D;D4AY FI^VH^TVFF/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643EAE )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

/8654;98=6D@8'9?>AADAM'>99?D=>6D4A'<45'=7>AM8'4<':;8'4<'#F'64'#b'C/8;6>:5>A6'^'(><8'2749E'>AN'B4ND<D=>6D4A'

64'8a65>=6'N:=6

'''T\''&5>AN'!>5>N8''$\'F"&''

c47A')M8AM>'!f">L49

18=D;D4AY bV^VQ^TVFF/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643E7A )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

(4A@85;D4A'4<'8aD;6DAM'9549856X'DA64'T';8?<'=4A6>DA8N'<?>6;'DA=?:NDAM'858=6D4A'4<';DAM?8';6458X'58>5'8a68A;D4AP

''IH'',6785?8X'/4>N''$FI'b#c''

c47A')M8AM>'!f">L49

18=D;D4AY TV^V]^TVFF/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/9423664633A )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

/868A6D4A'4<'#+*'DA;6>??8N'6754:M7'M?>e8N';749'<54A6P

''bTb''S8;6'&588A'/4>N''$FI'b!#''

c47A')M8AM>'!f">L49

18=D;D4AY TF^V]^TVFF&+1

Page 281



"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'R>5DAM8X

"D;6'4<'>99?D=>6D4A;'N8=DN8N':AN85'N8?8M>68N'94O85;'K86O88A

!>M8'bT'4<'\]

TV^VQ^TVFF'>AN'TF^VH^TVFF

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236646335 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

1D;9?>X'4<'F'a'DA685A>??X'D??:BDA>68N'<>;=D>';DMA'64'#+*P

''bTb''S8;6'&588A'/4>N''$FI'b!#''

c47A')M8AM>'!f">L49

18=D;D4AY TF^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366463A7 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

(4A@85;D4A'4<'<45B85'DAN:;65D>?'K:D?NDAM'DA64'586>D?':AD6'>6'M54:AN'<?445'?8@8?J'T'a';6:ND4;'>6'<D5;6'?8@8?'>AN'F'a'

T'K8N'<?>6'>6';8=4AN'<?445'?8@8?

'']TT''28@8A'2D;685;'/4>N''$FI'I$R''

*D=78??8'-5>N;7>O

18=D;D4AY VT^VH^TVFF/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236646353 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

/89?>=8B8A6'4<'<54A6'8A65>=8'N445;'>AN'<5>B8;'OD67'!`('<5>B8;'^'N445;

''F]T'i'F]\''26'#AA;'/4>N''$FI'I/!''

c47A')M8AM>'!f">L49

18=D;D4AY TI^V]^TVFF/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366463E7 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

0;8'4<'9549856X'>;'<D@8';8?<'=4A6>DA8N'<?>6;

''H'',6785?8X'/4>N''$FI'b#c''

,?De>K867',AADAW&X>;D

18=D;D4AY Vb^VH^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366466B3 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

#99?D=>6D4A'<45'>'A8O'9?>AADAM'985BD;;D4A'64'589?>=8'>A'8a6>A6'9?>AADAM'985BD;;D4A'DA'45N85'64'8a68AN'678'

6DB8'?DBD6'<45'DB9?8B8A6>6D4A'<45'858=6D4A'4<'N45B85'ODAN4OJ'DA;856D4A'4<'T'a'544<?DM76;'>AN'8A?>5M8B8A6'4<'

8aD;6DAM'ODAN4O'C45DMDA>?'58<858A=8'R&_^TVVH^F\Q\E

''FQ''26>A7498'&>5N8A;''$\'FR+''

c8<<58X'R4?6

18=D;D4AY FV^VH^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/9423664626C )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<';DAM?8';6458X'58>5'8a68A;D4A'DA=?:NDAM';DN8'586:5A'C74:;874?N85'>99?D=>6D4AE

''TQ''/4;8K855X'&>5N8A;''$\'Fcc''

,?De>K867',AADAW&X>;D

18=D;D4AY FH^VH^TVFF&+1

);J;>*)NHM;@HS#/1Y

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643A22 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

%A;6>??>6D4A'4<'5>D?DAM;'64'<?>6'544<'>AN'A8O'N8=LDAM'64'=58>68'544<'6855>=8

''T]''`>565X'/4>N''$FI'Q!/''

,?De>K867',AADAW&X>;D

18=D;D4AY V\^V]^TVFF/,3

Page 282



"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'R>5DAM8X

"D;6'4<'>99?D=>6D4A;'N8=DN8N':AN85'N8?8M>68N'94O85;'K86O88A

!>M8'bb'4<'\]

TV^VQ^TVFF'>AN'TF^VH^TVFF

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643ABD )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

/86:5A'4<'9549856X'<54B'K8N;D6;'64';DAM?8'NO8??DAM74:;8J'DA=?:NDAM'A8O';8=4AN'<?445J'B4ND<D8N'^'8A?>5M8N'

8aD;6DAM'8a68A;D4A'>AN'58DA;6>68B8A6'4<'<54A6'8A65>A=8

'']G'',?B'!>5L'#@8A:8''$FI'Q0g''

c47A')M8AM>'!f">L49

18=D;D4AY V]^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643CB2 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

345B>6D4A'4<'58>5'N45B85'64'<?>6'DA=?:NDAM'DA;6>??>6D4A'4<'6O4'544<?DM76;'64'<>=D?D6>68'>'?4<6'=4A@85;D4A

''TQ''`>565X'/4>N''$FI'Q!0''

c8<<58X'R4?6

18=D;D4AY TT^VQ^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643753 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

%A;6>??>6D4A'4<'=4BB:A>?'>=6D@D6X'544B'DA'58>5'M>5N8A

''FHH''`>565X'/4>N''$FI'QR#''

,?De>K867',AADAW&X>;D

18=D;D4AY TG^VQ^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366437C3 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

"4<6'8a68A;D4A'OD67'58>5'N45B85'>AN'DA;856D4A'4<'6O4'544<?DM76;'64'<54A6'8?8@>6D4A'CR4:;874?N85'#99?D=>6D4AE

''GI''`>565X'/4>N''$FI'QU1''

2:K>;7'c>DA

18=D;D4AY TG^VQ^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366437C5 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'<54A6'>AN'58>5'N45B85;'DA=?:NDAM'DA685A>?'>?685>6D4A;

''FF''/4;658@45'#@8A:8''$FI'Q"#''

c8<<58X'R4?6

18=D;D4AY TV^VQ^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643EDA )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'<54A6'>AN'58>5'N45B85;'C74:;874?N85'>99?D=>6D4AE

''FV''S8??DAM64A'#@8A:8''$FI'Q#2''

/:B>'$4O>e

18=D;D4AY FH^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643EAB )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'58>5'N45B85'ODAN4O'64'<>=D?D6>68'>'?4<6'=4A@85;D4A'C(856D<D=>68'4<'">O<:?A8;;E

''Ib'',5BDA8'/4>N''$FI'Q11''

,?De>K867',AADAW&X>;D

18=D;D4AY VQ^V]^TVFF!,/*'1,`

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236646336 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<';DAM?8';6458X'58>5'8a68A;D4A'C(856D<D=>68'4<'">O<:?A8;;E

''T\#''`>565X'/4>N''$FI'Q!0''

,?De>K867',AADAW&X>;D

18=D;D4AY TI^V]^TVFF!,/*'/,U

Page 283



"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'R>5DAM8X

"D;6'4<'>99?D=>6D4A;'N8=DN8N':AN85'N8?8M>68N'94O85;'K86O88A

!>M8'b\'4<'\]

TV^VQ^TVFF'>AN'TF^VH^TVFF

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236646327 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

#?685>6D4A'64'8?8@>6D4A;'DA=?:NDAM'A8O'544<'>AN'>NND6D4A>?'=?>NNDAMP

*=14A>?Nf;'/8;6>:5>A6''''SD??D>B;4A'/4>N''$\'F1/''

c8<<58X'R4?6

18=D;D4AY TI^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/9423664632E )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

1D;9?>X'4<'H'a'DA685A>??X'D??:BDA>68N'<>;=D>';DMA;P

*>=14A>?N;'/8;6>:5>A6''''SD??D>B;4A'/4>N''$\'F1/''

c8<<58X'R4?6

18=D;D4AY TI^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366463A6 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'58>5'N45B85'>AN'58>5'M54:AN'<?445'8a68A;D4A'CR4:;874?N85'#99?D=>6D4AE

''bF''$45<4?L'#@8A:8''$FI'Qcd''

c8<<58X'R4?6

18=D;D4AY TH^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236646356 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

(7>AM8'4<':;8'<54B'-T^-H'64';4=D>?'=?:K'C;:D'M8A85D;E

''\T''+8OL8;K:5X'/4>N''$FI'Q2,''

c8<<58X'R4?6

18=D;D4AY TQ^V]^TVFF/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236646637 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'<54A6'>AN'58>5'N45B85;'>AN'858=6D4A'4<'<D5;6'<?445'58>5'8a68A;D4A

''Fb\''(5>@8A'!>5L'/4>N''$FI'Q#-''

c47A')M8AM>'!f">L49

18=D;D4AY VI^VH^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366466E6 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

/868A6D4A'4<'\'a'67588'K8N'>9>56B8A6;

''FJ'bJ'I'i']'')@85K:5X'/4>N''$FI'Q/R''

c47A')M8AM>'!f">L49

18=D;D4AY FT^VH^TVFF&+1

)M@FG?*/@;;>S#/1Y

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643D65 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'<D5;6'<?445'58>5'8a68A;D4A

''FV''!8567'/4>N''$\'bR-''

,?De>K867',AADAW&X>;D

18=D;D4AY FT^VH^TVFF/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643D6C )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'<D5;6'<?445'58>5'8a68A;D4A

''F\''!8567'/4>N''$\'bR-''

,?De>K867',AADAW&X>;D

18=D;D4AY FT^VH^TVFF/,3

Page 284



"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'R>5DAM8X

"D;6'4<'>99?D=>6D4A;'N8=DN8N':AN85'N8?8M>68N'94O85;'K86O88A

!>M8'bI'4<'\]

TV^VQ^TVFF'>AN'TF^VH^TVFF

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/9423664352B )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'58>5'N45B85J'858=6D4A'4<'58>5'K5D=L'8a68A;D4AJ'DA;856D4A'4<'T'a'544<?DM76;'DA=:?NDAM'46785'DA685A>?'

>?685>6D4A;

''T''09?>AN;'/4>N''$H'G$"''

c47A')M8AM>'!f">L49

18=D;D4AY VH^V]^TVFF/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/9423664352A )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'58>5'M54:AN'<?445'8a68A;D4A

''FHV''26>9?864A'R>??'/4>N''$\'\U"''

c8<<58X'R4?6

18=D;D4AY TT^VQ^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643C7E )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

18B4?D6D4A'4<'8aD;6DAM';DAM?8';6458X'8a68A;D4A'>AN'858=6D4A'4<';DAM?8';6458X'58>5'8a68A;D4A

''FVV''3?458A=8'/4>N''$\'\1/''

c47A')M8AM>'!f">L49

18=D;D4AY TT^VQ^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/9423664373C )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

#B8ANB8A6;'64'8aD;6DAM'?4<6'=4A@85;D4A'>AN'DA685A>?'>?685>6D4A;'64'678'M54:AN'<?445

''\'');;D>A'/4>N''$\'\,#''

c47A')M8AM>'!f">L49

18=D;D4AY T]^VQ^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366437A5 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

(856D<D=>68'4<'?>O<:?A8;;'<45'858=6D4A'4<';DAM?8';6458X';DN8'8a68A;D4A

''FG''*>X<D8?N'/4>N''$H'G""''

`>?85D8')L8DXD

18=D;D4AY TG^VQ^TVFF!,/*'/,U

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366437AC )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

+588'O45L;'64'DA=?:N8'<8??DAM'4<'F'a'*DB4;>'+588P

''F''09?>AN;'/4>N''$H'G$$''

/:B>'$4O>e

18=D;D4AY FH^V]^TVFF/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/9423664375B )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

(7>AM8'4<'544<'4@85'8a68A;D4A'64'544<'6855>=8

''bb(''385B8'!>5L'/4>N''$\'\,-''

/:B>'$4O>e

18=D;D4AY Tb^VQ^TVFF/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643755 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'58>5'N45B85'>AN'DA;856D4A'4<'T'544<?DM76;'64'<54A6'544<;?498

''FTQ''%AN85OD=L'/4>N''$H'Gc_''

c8<<58X'R4?6

18=D;D4AY V\^V]^TVFF&+1

Page 285



"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'R>5DAM8X

"D;6'4<'>99?D=>6D4A;'N8=DN8N':AN85'N8?8M>68N'94O85;'K86O88A

!>M8'bQ'4<'\]

TV^VQ^TVFF'>AN'TF^VH^TVFF

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366437CB )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

(4A@85;D4A'4<'8aD;6DAM'<D@8'K8N;D6;'DA64'\':AD6;'=4B95D;DAM'Fa\K8NJ'F'aTK8NJ'>AN'T'aFK8N'<?>6;P

''FV]''09985'+4??DAM64A'!>5L''$\'\$1''

,?De>K867',AADAW&X>;D

18=D;D4AY VI^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/9423664377B )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<';DAM?8W;6458X'58>5'>AN';DN8'586:5A'8a68A;D4A'>AN'DA685A>?'58=4A<DM:5>6D4A'4<'>'M54:AN'<?445'<?>6'

CR4:;874?N85'#99?D=>6D4AE

&54:AN'3?445'3?>6'']T''">A=>;685'/4>N''$\'\!+''

`>?85D8')L8DXD

18=D;D4AY TG^VQ^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366437E6 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

%A;6>??>6D4A'4<'F'a'12"#*'M588A'68?8=4BB:AD=>6D4A'=>KDA86

&5>A@D??8'/4>NJ'2^)')99''\Q>'W'\QN''*4:A6'`D8O'/4>N''$\'\Rd''

,?De>K867',AADAW&X>;D

18=D;D4AY VI^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366437EB )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

%A;6>??>6D4A'4<'F'a'12"#*'M588A'68?8=4BB:AD=>6D4A;'=>KDA86

*4:A6'!?8>;>A6'`D??>;J''2^)'F\K''*4:A6'`D8O'/4>N''$\'\2"''

c47A')M8AM>'!f">L49

18=D;D4AY VI^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643E33 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

%A;6>??>6D4A'4<'F'a'12"#*'M588A'68?8=4BB:AD=>6D4A'=>KDA86

385B8'!>5L'/4>NJ'')99'I\WI\>''385B8'!>5L'/4>N''$\'\,1''

c47A')M8AM>'!f">L49

18=D;D4AY VI^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643E35 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

(4A@85;D4A'4<':9985'<?445;'DA64'T';8?<'=4A6>DA8N'<?>6;

''FG''385B8'!>5L'/4>N''$\'\12''

c8<<58X'R4?6

18=D;D4AY VQ^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643E6C )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

+588'O45L;'64'DA=?:N8'94??>5N'=54OA'KX'IVk'4<'6O4'a'"DB8'6588;P

''GI''*>X<D8?N'/4>N''$H'G"$''

*>6678O'&:AADAM

18=D;D4AY TI^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643E22 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

#99?D=>6D4A'<45'>'A8O'9?>AADAM'985BD;;D4A'64'589?>=8'>A'8a6>A6'9?>AADAM'985BD;;D4A'R&_^TVVH^V]F\'<45'

>?685>6D4A'64'B>A;>5N'544<'64'954@DN8'DA685A>?'78>N544B'>AN'>==8;;'64'544<'>58>

''H\'')>L<D8?N'/4>N''$\'\"-''

/:B>'$4O>e

18=D;D4AY FH^V]^TVFF&+1

Page 286



"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'R>5DAM8X

"D;6'4<'>99?D=>6D4A;'N8=DN8N':AN85'N8?8M>68N'94O85;'K86O88A

!>M8'b]'4<'\]

TV^VQ^TVFF'>AN'TF^VH^TVFF

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643EB7 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

%A;6>??>6D4A'4<'b'a'544<?DM76;'64'<54A6'544<'8?8@>6D4AJ'DA;6>??>6D4A'4<'A8O'6DBK85';>;7'ODAN4O'>AN'A8O'358A=7'

N445;'OD67';8=:5D6X'5>D?DAM;'64'58>5'8?8@>6D4AP'%A;6>??>6D4A'4<'F'a'544<?DM76'64'544<'>AN'DA685A>?'>?685>6D4A;'64'

=4A@856'<?>6'<54B'F'K8N'64'T'K8N'<?>6J'64';8=4AN'<?445'<?>6P

''Q\'W;8=4AN'<?445'<?>6''385B8'!>5L'/4>N''$\'\,1''

,?De>K867',AADAW&X>;D

18=D;D4AY FI^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643ED2 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,A?>5M8B8A6'4<'8aD;6DAM'58>5'8a68A;D4A'CR4:;874?N85'#99?D=>6D4AE

''I''#NNDAM64A'/4>N''$\'\/!''

2:K>;7'c>DA

18=D;D4AY Fb^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643EA6 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'N45B85'544<'8a68A;D4A

''GT''385B8'!>5L'/4>N''$H'G21''

`>?85D8')L8DXD

18=D;D4AY FT^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643EAC )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

$4AWB>685D>?'>B8ANB8A6;'<4??4ODAM'>'M5>A6'4<'9?>AADAM'985BD;;D4A'R&_^TVV]^TTIG'64'954@DN8'58>5'

8?8@>6D4A'N5>ODAM;'>AN'>?685'544<'N86>D?;

''IG''26>9?864A'R>??'/4>N''$\'bU3''

,?De>K867',AADAW&X>;D

18=D;D4AY TG^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643EE6 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

(4A@85;D4A'4<':9985'<?445;'<54B';DAM?8'NO8??DAM'64'F'a'F'K8N'<?>6'>6'<D5;6'<?445'?8@8?'>AN'F'a'T'K8N'<?>6'>6'

;8=4AN'>AN'67D5N'<?445'?8@8?;P

''\F''U:85AB458'/4>N''$\'\U!''

c8<<58X'R4?6

18=D;D4AY FG^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/9423664633E )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

(58>6D4A'4<'<D5;6'<?445'58>5'544<'6855>=8'CR4:;874?N85'#99?D=>6D4AE

''F\''*4:A6'!?8>;>A6'`D??>;''$\'\R1''

c8<<58X'R4?6

18=D;D4AY FI^VH^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/9423664636C )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'M54:AN'<?445'8a68A;D4A'CR4:;874?N85'#99?D=>6D4AE

''FFH''S8;64A'!>5L''$H'G!$''

c47A')M8AM>'!f">L49

18=D;D4AY TI^V]^TVFF/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366463D7 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'58>5'M54:AN'<?445'8a68A;D4A'C74:;874?N85'>99?D=>6D4AE

''FFH''S8;64A'!>5L''$H'G!$''

c47A')M8AM>'!f">L49

18=D;D4AY TH^V]^TVFF/,3

Page 287



"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'R>5DAM8X

"D;6'4<'>99?D=>6D4A;'N8=DN8N':AN85'N8?8M>68N'94O85;'K86O88A

!>M8'bH'4<'\]

TV^VQ^TVFF'>AN'TF^VH^TVFF

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366466A5 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

#99?D=>6D4A'<45'>'A8O'9?>AADAM'985BD;;D4A'64'589?>=8'>A'8a6>A6'9?>AADAM'985BD;;D4A'R&_^TVVH^FFVI'<45'

858=6D4A'4<'>'A8O';78N'>6'58>5'4<'M>5N8A'64'589?>=8'>A'8aD;6DAM';78N

''H\'')>L<D8?N'/4>N''$\'\"-''

c8<<58X'R4?6

18=D;D4AY FF^VH^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236646223 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

(856D<D=>68'4<'">O<:?A8;;'<45'858=6D4A'4<';DAM?8';6458X'58>5'8a68A;D4AP

''H'');K45A8'/4>N''$\'b23''

cD??'S>558A

18=D;D4AY FI^VH^TVFF!,/*'1,`

&FMM;>K=T*/@;;>S#/1Y

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/9423664376B )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'6O4';6458X'K:D?NDAM'>6'58>5'4<'H]#'-54>N'">A8'64'954@DN8'F'a'6O4'K8N'<?>6P

''H]#''-54>N'">A8''$FI'\1S''

,?De>K867',AADAW&X>;D

18=D;D4AY TT^VQ^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/9423664376A )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

18B4?D6D4A'4<'8aD;6DAM';78N'>AN'858=6D4A'4<'6O4';6458X'K:D?NDAM'=4B95D;DAM'586>D?':AD6'>6'M54:AN'<?445'?8@8?'

>AN'4A8WK8N'<?>6'>6'<D5;6'<?445'?8@8?'>6'<54A6'4<'H]#'-54>N'">A8P

''H]#''-54>N'">A8''$FI'\1S''

,?De>K867',AADAW&X>;D

18=D;D4AY TT^VQ^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366437AA )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<';DAM?8';6458X';DN8'DA<D??'>AN'858=6D4A'4<';DAM?8';6458X'58>5'8a68A;D4A

''FTb''28><45N'/4>N''$FI'I1d''

c47A')M8AM>'!f">L49

18=D;D4AY T]^VQ^TVFF/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643E6D )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

(856D<D=>68'4<'">O<:?A8;;'<45':;8'4<'9549856X'>;'<D@8';8?<'=4A6>DA8N'';6:ND4'<?>6;P

''G'',?De>K867'/4>N''$FI'I"&''

2:K>;7'c>DA

18=D;D4AY Fb^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643EBB )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

#NND6D4A'4<'*)+';6>6D4A'C2D:'&8A85D;E'64'8aD;6DAM'-F'>AN'-H':;8;

'']''(4A;6>K?8'(58;=8A6''$FI'\Ug''

c8<<58X'R4?6

18=D;D4AY TH^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643ECD )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

/89?>=8B8A6'4<'8aD;6DAM'7>5N'O44N'>?:BDAD:B'ODAN4O;'OD67'O7D68'!`(0'ODAN4O;

''bQ''264A8K5DNM8'/4>N''$FI'I!3''

c8<<58X'R4?6

18=D;D4AY FG^V]^TVFF&+1

Page 288



"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'R>5DAM8X

"D;6'4<'>99?D=>6D4A;'N8=DN8N':AN85'N8?8M>68N'94O85;'K86O88A

!>M8'bG'4<'\]

TV^VQ^TVFF'>AN'TF^VH^TVFF

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236646367 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

0;8'4<'9549856X'>;'T';8?<W=4A6>DA8N'<?>6;'C(856D<D=>68'4<'?>O<:?A8;;'<45'>A'8aD;6DAM':;8E

''FH''-8>=4A;<D8?N'/4>N''$FI'\2c''

c47A')M8AM>'!f">L49

18=D;D4AY TG^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366463AC )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'<54A6'N45B85;'>AN'58>5'K>X'ODAN4O'8a68A;D4A;'64'=58>68'6O4'>NND6D4A>?'67588WK8N'B>D;4AA8668;'

>6'<D5;6^;8=4AN'<?445'?8@8?

''bW']''S8;6'&588A'/4>N''$FI'I-d''

c8<<58X'R4?6

18=D;D4AY VT^VH^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366463CB )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

(7>AM8'4<':;8'64'9>56'#b'DA@4?@DAM'DA;6>??>6D4A'4<'=44LDAM'<>=D?D6D8;'64'8aD;6DAM';4=D>?'=?:K'OD67'8a65>=6D4A'

;X;68B'DA=?:NDAM'<?:8'>6'58>5'8?8@>6D4AP

''FII''S8;6'&588A'/4>N''$FI'I,#''

,?De>K867',AADAW&X>;D

18=D;D4AY TG^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366463CD )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

%A;6>??>6D4A'4<'A8O'B4N:?>5'K:D?NDAM'OD67DA';=744?'M54:AN;P

''S8?K4:5A8'!5DB>5X'2=744?''26>DAKX'/4>N''$FI'\,#''

,?De>K867',AADAW&X>;D

18=D;D4AY TH^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236646373 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

/8;D6DAM'4<'F'a'.dFVV';6X?8'68?8974A8'LD4;L

)^2''T\bWT\I''RDM7'/4>N''$FI'I-+''

*>6678O'&:AADAM

18=D;D4AY V\^VH^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236646375 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<';DAM?8';6458X'58>5'M54:AN'<?445'8a68A;D4A

''QGI''28@8A'2D;685;'/4>N''$FI'I"#''

,?De>K867',AADAW&X>;D

18=D;D4AY TH^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236646663 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

/8;D6DAM'4<'8aD;6DAM'9:K?D='68?8974A8'LD4;L'OD67'>'LD4;L'=4BKDADAM'9:K?D='68?8974A8';85@D=8'>AN'#+*'

;85@D=8

):6;DN8''T\bWT\I''RDM7'/4>N''$FI'I-+''

*>6678O'&:AADAM

18=D;D4AY VI^VH^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366466D7 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'8a68A;D4A'64'8aD;6DAM'K:D?NDAM'64'8A=?4;8'678'8aD;6DAM'4985>6D4A;'>6';D68

*>5L<D8?N'R4:;8''HT''*>5L<D8?N'/4>N''$FI'\U3''

c47A')M8AM>'!f">L49

18=D;D4AY FF^VH^TVFF&+1

Page 289



"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'R>5DAM8X

"D;6'4<'>99?D=>6D4A;'N8=DN8N':AN85'N8?8M>68N'94O85;'K86O88A

!>M8'\V'4<'\]

TV^VQ^TVFF'>AN'TF^VH^TVFF

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366466AB )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

#?685>6D4A;'64'<54A6'<>=>N8'DA=?:NDAM'58B4@>?'4<'8aD;6DAM'ODAN4O;'^'N445;J'DA<D??DAM'58;:?6DAM'>9856:58;'>AN'

=58>6DAM'A8O'ODAN4O;'^'N445;'DA'A8O'94;D6D4A;

0AD6;'TVWTT''RDM7'(54;;'(8A658''34:A6>XA8'/4>N''$FI'\U$''

*D=78??8'-5>N;7>O

18=D;D4AY FF^VH^TVFF&+1

&FMM;>K=T*8=:;S#/1Y

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236346E63 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

#9954@>?'4<'N86>D?;'9:5;:>A6'64'=4AND6D4A;'TK'C58<:;8'i'O>;68';645>M8EJ'TN'C;:;6>DA>KD?D6X'<8>6:58;EJ'T8'C7>5N'

;:5<>=8;'i'985B8>KD?D6XE'>AN'=4AND6D4A'b'C7>5N'i';4<6'?>AN;=>9DAME'>66>=78N'64'9?>AADAM'985BD;;D4A'

R&_^TVV]^TT\I

''QIHW'QQV''RDM7'/4>N''$F]'V#-''

,?De>K867',AADAW&X>;D

18=D;D4AY TT^VQ^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366436E7 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

#9954@>?'4<'186>D?;'9:5;:>A6'64'(4AND6D4A'T('C=8A65>?'ND;7^>85D>?';X;68BE'TR'CK4:AN>5X'<DAD;7'64'9>5LDAM'

>58>E'>66>=78N'64'9?>AADAM'985BD;;D4A'R&_^TVV]^TT\I

''QIHW'QQV''RDM7'/4>N''$F]'V#-''

,?De>K867',AADAW&X>;D

18=D;D4AY FG^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643BA3 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

#9954@>?'4<'N86>D?;'9:5;:>A6'64'=4AND6D4A'b'C;>B9?8;'4<'B>685D>?;E'=4AND6D4A'Fb'C>AA468N'>AN'NDB8A;D4A8N'

8?8@>6D4A;E'>AN'=4AND6D4A'FI'C8?8@>6D4A'N5>ODAM;E'>66>=78N'64'9?>AADAM'985BD;;D4A'R&_^TVVG^FIbT

''QT\''RDM7'/4>N''$F]'G+"''

,?De>K867',AADAW&X>;D

18=D;D4AY VF^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643DED )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

#9954@>?'4<'N86>D?;'9:5;:>A6'64'=4AND6D4A'T'C2>B9?8;'4<'B>685D>?;EJ'=4AND6D4A'b'C">AN;=>98'O45L;EJ'

=4AND6D4A'\'C-4:AN>5X'658>6B8A6EJ'=4AND6D4A'I'C(X=?8'>AN'-DA'2645>M8E'>AN'=4AND6D4A']C!>5LDAM'29>=8E'

>66>=78N'64'#998>?'58<858A=8'#!!^_^I\TV^#^FV^TFT\]QI

''FHT''278?K4:5A8'/4>N''$F]'G_#''

,?De>K867',AADAW&X>;D

18=D;D4AY VF^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643CB7 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

#9954@>?'4<'N86>D?;'9:5;:>A6'64'=4AND6D4A'FV'C,a685A>?'"DM76DAME'>66>=78N'64'9?>AADAM'985BD;;D4A'

R&_^TVFV^TVGV

''&"2'18946''3855X'">A8''$F]''

c8<<58X'R4?6

18=D;D4AY VH^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643CAD )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

#9954@>?'4<'N86>D?;'9:5;:>A6'64'(4AND64A'67588'CB>685D>?;E'>66>=78N'64'9?>AADAM'58<858A=8'R&_^TVFV^TVGV

''345B85'&"2'18946''*D??'*8>N'/4>N''$F]'GUU''

c8<<58X'R4?6

18=D;D4AY VH^V]^TVFF&+1

Page 290



"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'R>5DAM8X

"D;6'4<'>99?D=>6D4A;'N8=DN8N':AN85'N8?8M>68N'94O85;'K86O88A

!>M8'\F'4<'\]

TV^VQ^TVFF'>AN'TF^VH^TVFF

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643765 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

$4AWB>685D>?'>B8ANB8A6'<4??4ODAM'>'M5>A6'4<'9?>AADAM'985BD;;D4A'R&_^TVFV^TVGV'64'985BD6'678'DA=?:;D4A'

4<'\'8a65>'K8N544B;'>6'M54:AN'<?445

''345B85'&"2'18946''3855X'">A8''$F]'GUU''

c8<<58X'R4?6

18=D;D4AY TV^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366437D7 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

%A;6>??>6D4A'4<'?8>AW64';6X?8'=>A49X'64';4:67'8?8@>6D4A

''+78'&588A'('4<','!5DB>5X'2=744?''24B85;86'/4>N''$F]'G,c''

,?De>K867',AADAW&X>;D

18=D;D4AY TG^VQ^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366437A7 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'6O4';6458X'8a68A;D4A'DA=?:NDAM'DA685A>?'>?685>6D4A;'CR4:;874?N85'#99?D=>6D4AE

''FI''/8<45B'/4O''$F]'G2g''

*D=78??8'-5>N;7>O

18=D;D4AY TG^VQ^TVFF/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366437C6 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

#9954@>?'4<'186>D?;'>99?D=>K?8'64'-?4=L'$SF'>AN'9:5;:>A6'64'(4AND6D4A;'\'C"D<86DB8'R4B8'26>AN>5N;EJ'

(4AND6D4A']'C28=:5D6X'4<'/8;DN8A6D>?'-:D?NDAM;E''bV'C2D68'!8654?'^')D?'%A685=896D4A;EJ'(4AND6D4A'\b'

C3?445;9>=8'3DM:58;'W'@87D=?8'9>5LDAM^>==8;;EJ'(4AND6D4A'\\'CSDAN'+:5KDA8;EJ'(4AND6D4A'\I'CSDAN'+:5KDA8;'

DB9>=6EJ'(4AND6D4A'\Q'CSDAN'+:5KDA8;'<?D=L85EJ(4AND6D4A'\]'C/8;DN8A6D>?'#==4BB4N>6D4AEJ'(4AND6D4A'\H'

C26:N8A6'#==4BB4N>6D4AEJ'(4AND6D4A'\G'C+>??'-:D?NDAMEJ'(4AND6D4A'I\'C(4A6>BDA>6D4AEJ'(4AND6D4A'II'

C*8674N'<45'!D?DAM'34:AN>6D4AEJ'(4AND6D4A'IG'C!?>A6DAM'2=78B8EJ''(4AND6D4A'QF'C#56D<D=D>?'"DM76DAMEJ'

(4AND6D4A'Qb'C/>D?O>X'2><8M:>5NDAME'>AN'(4AND6D4A'QH'C">AN;=>98N'#58>E''>66>=78N'64'9?>AADAM'985BD;;D4A'

R&_^TVVQ^FF]]'>AN'/8;85@8N'*>6685;'#99?D=>6D4A'R&_^TVVH^FG]V

''&"2'18946''3855X'">A8''$F]'G$&''

c8<<58X'R4?6

18=D;D4AY F\^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643E5E )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

(7>AM8'4<':;8'<54B'#F'C2749E'64'#b'C/8;6>:5>A6E

''I\V''RDM7'/4>N''$F]'G2_''

,?De>K867',AADAW&X>;D

18=D;D4AY F\^V]^TVFF/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366466BD )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

#9954@>?'4<'N86>D?;'9:5;:>A6'64'=4AND6D4A;'FI'C;85@D=DAM'B>A>M8B8A6'9?>AE'>AN'\b'C<?4459?>A'>AN'?>X4:6'4<'

586>D?':AD6E'>66>=78N'64'9?>AADAM'58<858A=8'R&_^TVVQ^FF]]

&54:AN'3?445'-?4=L'S''345B85'&"2'18946''3855X'">A8''$F]'GUU''

c8<<58X'R4?6

18=D;D4AY FV^VH^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366466BA )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

%A;6>??>6D4A'4<'>A'#+*

&54:AN'3?445'-?4=L'S''345B85'&"2'18946''3855X'">A8''$F]'GUU''

c8<<58X'R4?6

18=D;D4AY FV^VH^TVFF&+1

Page 291



"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'R>5DAM8X

"D;6'4<'>99?D=>6D4A;'N8=DN8N':AN85'N8?8M>68N'94O85;'K86O88A

!>M8'\T'4<'\]

TV^VQ^TVFF'>AN'TF^VH^TVFF

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366466BE )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

%A;6>??>6D4A'4<'A8O';749<54A6

&54:AN'3?445'-?4=L'S''345B85'&"2'18946''3855X'">A8''$F]'GUU''

c8<<58X'R4?6

18=D;D4AY FV^VH^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366466D6 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

%A;6>??>6D4A'4<'9?>A6'8h:D9B8A6'>AN'>;;4=D>68N';=588ADAM

&54:AN'3?445'-?4=L'S''345B85'&"2'18946''3855X'">A8''$F]'GUU''

c8<<58X'R4?6

18=D;D4AY FV^VH^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366466D2 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

1D;9?>X'4<'T'a'DA685A>??X'D??:BDA>68N'<>;=D>';DMA;'>AN'F'a'DA685A>??X'D??:BDA>68N'7>AMDAM';DMA

&54:AN'3?445'-?4=L'S''345B85'&"2'18946''3855X'">A8''$F]'GUU''

c8<<58X'R4?6

18=D;D4AY FV^VH^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366466CB )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

1D;9?>X'4<'F'a'DA685A>??X'D??:BDA>68N'954l8=6DAM';DMA'>AN'G'a'A4AWD??:BDA>68N'46785';DMA;

''\\H''RDM7'/4>N''$F]'Gc1''

*D=78??8'-5>N;7>O

18=D;D4AY FQ^VH^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/9423664667C )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

`>5D>6D4A'4<'=4AND6D4A'T'C498ADAM'74:5;E'>66>=78N'64'9?>AADAM'985BD;;D4A'R&_^T\\F\'64'8a68AN'498ADAM'

74:5;'64'I'>B'64'F'>B'678'<4??4ODAM'*4AN>X'64'+7:5;N>X'>AN'T\'74:5;'>'N>X'35DN>XJ'2>6:5N>X'>AN'2:AN>X'

COD67'678'58;6>:5>A6'=?4;DAM'>6'T'>B'4A'2:AN>X'ADM76'*4AN>X'B45ADAME

''IVVWIVH''RDM7'/4>N''$F]'Gc3''

c8<<58X'R4?6

18=D;D4AY FH^VH^TVFF/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236646255 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

#9954@>?'4<'186>D?;'>99?D=>K?8'64'-?4=L'2,'>AN'9:5;:>A6'64'(4AND6D4A'\]'C/8;DN8A6D>?'#==4BB4N>6D4AE'

(4AND6D4A'\H'C26:N8A6'#==4BB4N>6D4AEJ'(4AND6D4A'I\'C(4A6>BDA>6D4AEJ'(4AND6D4A'QV'C">AN;=>9DAM'

*>A>M8B8A6E'>AN'(4AND6D4A'QF'C#56D<D=D>?'"DM76DAME'>66>=78N'64'9?>AADAM'>99?D=>6D4A'58<858A=8'

R&_^TVVQ^FF]]J'R&_^TVV]^TTIVJ'R&_^TVVH^FG]F'i'R&_^TVFV^FGH]

''&"2'18946''3855X'">A8''$F]''

c8<<58X'R4?6

18=D;D4AY FH^V]^TVFF&+1

0;HM*/@;;>S#/1Y

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366436DE )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

(856D<D=>68'4<'">O<:?A8;;'<45':;8'4<'K:D?NDAM'>;'<D@8';8?<'=4A6>DA8N'<?>6;

''G''(54;;<D8?N'/4>N''$F]'Q#_''

cD??'S>558A

18=D;D4AY F\^V]^TVFF!,/*'1,`

Page 292



"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'R>5DAM8X

"D;6'4<'>99?D=>6D4A;'N8=DN8N':AN85'N8?8M>68N'94O85;'K86O88A

!>M8'\b'4<'\]

TV^VQ^TVFF'>AN'TF^VH^TVFF

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643CA6 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'58>5'N45B85'OD67'DA;856D4A'4<'T'a'544<?DM76;'64'<54A6'544<;?498

''F''2>AN5DAM7>B'/4>N''$TT'Q/-''

/:B>'$4O>e

18=D;D4AY TV^VQ^TVFF!,/*'1,`

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/9423664377D )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

(4A@85;D4A'4<'8aD;6DAM'>AN';8=4AN'<?445'B>D;4A8668'64'T'a'4A8'K8N';8?<'=4A6>DA8N'<?>6;P

''\TH''S8;6'&588A'/4>N''$FI'b!0''

c8<<58X'R4?6

18=D;D4AY TG^VQ^TVFF/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643E2E )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<';DAM?8';6458X'58>5'8a68A;D4A'>AN'858=6D4A'4<'58>5'N45B85'ODAN4O

''gDAAD>J''26>AB458'/4>N''$FI'b!/''

/:B>'$4O>e

18=D;D4AY F\^V]^TVFF!,/*'1,`

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643ED3 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

(58>6D4A'4<'@87D=?8'=54;;4@85

''TT''14OA7D??;'S>X''$F]'Q-#''

`>?85D8')L8DXD

18=D;D4AY F\^V]^TVFF/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/9423664663E )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

#9954@>?'4<'N86>D?;'9:5;:>A6'64'=4AND6D4A;'b'C58<:;8'i'O>;68';645>M8E'>66>=78N'64'9?>AADAM'58<858A=8Y'

R&_^TVVG^FGGF

''TG''(54;;<D8?N'/4>N''$F]'Q#_''

*>6678O'&:AADAM

18=D;D4AY FG^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366466BB )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'9>56';DAM?8'^'9>56'6O4';6458X';DN8'8a68A;D4A'>AN'8a68A;D4A'4<'8aD;6DAM'58>5'N45B85

''I\''14OA7D??;'S>X''$F]'Q--''

2:K>;7'c>DA

18=D;D4AY FV^VH^TVFF/,3

0KNM;*8=@M*#=>;S#/1Y

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643CCB )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'58>5'<D5;6'<?445'8a68A;D4A

''FH''3?8aB858'/4>N''$F]']#+''

`>?85D8')L8DXD

18=D;D4AY TV^VQ^TVFF!,/*'/,U

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643C7D )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'58>5'N45B85'ODAN4O'OD67'DA;856D4A'4<'T'a'544<?DM76;'64'<54A6'8?8@>6D4A'64'<>=D?D>68'>'?4<6'=4A@85;D4A

''FFI''+4O85'&>5N8A;'/4>N''$F]']!,''

`>?85D8')L8DXD

18=D;D4AY T]^VQ^TVFF/,3

Page 293



"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'R>5DAM8X

"D;6'4<'>99?D=>6D4A;'N8=DN8N':AN85'N8?8M>68N'94O85;'K86O88A

!>M8'\\'4<'\]

TV^VQ^TVFF'>AN'TF^VH^TVFF

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/9423664377C )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

/8A8O>?'4<'>'6DB8W?DBD68N'9?>AADAM'985BD;;D4A'R&_^TVV]^TQVI'64':;8'=>5'9>5L'>;'>'B>5L86';8??DAM'A8O'

>AN';8=4ANW7>AN'M44N;'4A'2>6:5N>X;'>AN'2:AN>X;'4A?X'K86O88A'V]YVV'>AN'FbYVV'<45'b'X8>5;

''(4?8;'!>5L'!?>XDAM'3D8?N;J''S7D68'R>56'">A8''$F]']c!''

2:K>;7'c>DA

18=D;D4AY VQ^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643E72 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<';DAM?8';6458X'58>5'8a68A;D4A'C(856D<D=>68'4<'">O<:?A8;;E

''IV''+78'/4:ANO>X''$F]']RR''

*>6678O'&:AADAM

18=D;D4AY TV^V]^TVFF!,/*'1,`

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236646366 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'58>5'=4A;85@>645X'C74:;874?N85'>99?D=>6D4AE

''G''3?8aB858'/4>N''$F]']#0''

2:K>;7'c>DA

18=D;D4AY F\^V]^TVFF/,3

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366463AA )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

(856D<D=>68'4<'">O<:?A8;;'<45'858=6D4A'4<'58>5'N45B85J'>?685>6D4A'4<'544<'<54B'7D9'64'M>K?8'>AN'DA;856D4A'4<'T'a'

544<?DM76;'64'<54A6'8?8@>6D4A

''TT''$45<4?L'(?4;8''$Fb'Q#$''

2>5>7'*>N4AN4

18=D;D4AY TH^V]^TVFF!,/*'1,`

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/9423664666E )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

/89?>=8B8A6'4<';DAM?8'M?>e8N';4<6O44N'6DBK85';>;7'i'=>;8B8A6'ODAN4O;'OD67'N4:K?8'M?>e8N';4<6O44N'

6DBK85';>;7'i'=>;8B8A6'ODAN4O;

''T\Q''/D;?8X'#@8A:8''$F]'],$''

*D=78??8'-5>N;7>O

18=D;D4AY VI^VH^TVFF&+1

0FF?HN?;S#/1Y

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643CBC )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

#9954@>?'4<'N86>D?;'9:5;:>A6'64'=4AND6D4A'FV'C24:AN'%A;:?>6D4AE'>66>=78N'>998>?'N8=D;4A'#!!^_I\TV^#^VH

''Q\\WQ\Q''"45N;7D9'">A8''$TT'IcR''

*>6678O'&:AADAM

18=D;D4AY VF^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643CE5 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

1D;9?>X'4<'\'a'DA685A>??X'D??:BDA>68N'<>;=D>';DMA;'>AN'F'a'DA685A>??X'D??:BDA>68N'7>AMDAM';DMA

''Q\Q''"45N;7D9'">A8''$TT'IcR''

*>6678O'&:AADAM

18=D;D4AY VF^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643CEC )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

%A;6>??>6D4A'4<'#+*'64';749<54A6

''Q\Q''"45N;7D9'">A8''$TT'IcR''

*>6678O'&:AADAM

18=D;D4AY VF^V]^TVFF&+1

Page 294



"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'R>5DAM8X

"D;6'4<'>99?D=>6D4A;'N8=DN8N':AN85'N8?8M>68N'94O85;'K86O88A

!>M8'\I'4<'\]

TV^VQ^TVFF'>AN'TF^VH^TVFF

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643CE7 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

%A;6>??>6D4A'4<'A8O';749<54A6'>AN'BDA45'8a685A>?'>?685>6D4A;

''Q\Q''"45N;7D9'">A8''$TT'IcR''

*>6678O'&:AADAM

18=D;D4AY VF^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643CEE )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

%A;6>??>6D4A'4<'F'58<5DM85>6D4A'=4AN8A;85':AD6J'67588'>D5'=4AND6D4ADAM':AD6;'>AN'>;;4=D>68N'8A=?4;:58'>AN'>'

;>68??D68'ND;7

''Q\Q''"45N;7D9'">A8''$TT'IcR''

*>6678O'&:AADAM

18=D;D4AY VF^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366437AE )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<';DAM?8';6458X'58>5'8a68A;D4A'C=856D<D=>68'4<'?>O<:?A8;;E

''bG''1:AK>5'/4>N''$TT'I-&''

2>5>7'*>N4AN4

18=D;D4AY TG^VQ^TVFF!,/*'1,`

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643775 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

#9954@>?'4<'N86>D?;'9:5;:>A6'64'=4AND6D4A'F\'C(4BB85=D>?'3?445;9>=8E'>66>=78N'64'#998>?'18=D;D4A'$46D=8'

#!!^_^I\TV^#^VH^TVHbQFT

''Q\Q''"45N;7D9'">A8''$TT'IcR''

*>6678O'&:AADAM

18=D;D4AY VQ^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643E3D )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

#9954@>?'4<'186>D?;'9:5;:>A6'64'(4AND6D4A'\'C;4<6'?>AN;=>9DAMEJ'(4AND6D4A'F\'C8A85MX'8<<D=D8A=X'B8>;:58;EJ'

(4AND6D4A'FI'C?>AN;=>9DAM'B>A>M8B8A6'9?>AE'>AN'(4AND6D4A'TF'C95494;8N'9?>X'8h:D9B8A6E'>66>=78N'64'

#998>?'18=D;D4A'#!!^_I\TV^#^VH^TVH]VIH

''TI''S>6;4A;'/4>N''$TT']+g''

*>6678O'&:AADAM

18=D;D4AY TH^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643E37 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

#9954@>?'4<'186>D?;'9:5;:>A6'64'(4AND6D4A'T'C<>=DAM;EJ'(4AND6D4A'I'C7>5N'?>AN;=>9DAM'B>685D>?;E'>AN'

(4AND6D4A'FH'C8=4?4MD=>?'544<E'>66>=78N'64'#998>?'18=D;D4A'#!!^_I\TV^#^VH^TVH]VIH

''TI''S>6;4A;'/4>N''$TT']+g''

*>6678O'&:AADAM

18=D;D4AY TH^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643E3E )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

#9954@>?'4<'186>D?;'9:5;:>A6'64'(4AND6D4A'b'CN86>D?8N'<DAD;78N'<?4445'?8@8?'9?>AEJ'(4AND6D4A']'CN86>D?;'4<'58<:;8'

;645>M8EJ'(4AND6D4A'FQ'CK4:AN>5X'O>??'658>6B8A6EJ'(4AND6D4A'F]'C=X=?8'9>5LDAM'<>=D?D6D8;EJ'(4AND6D4A'TT'

CK>?=4AX';=588ADAM'N86>D?;E'>66>=78N'64'#998>?'18=D;D4A'#!!^_I\TV^#^VH^TVH]VIH

''TI''S>6;4A;'/4>N''$TT']+g''

*>6678O'&:AADAM

18=D;D4AY TH^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643E57 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

/8B4@>?'4<'=4AND6D4A'FT'C7DM7O>X'O45L;E'>66>=78N'64'>998>?'N8=D;D4A'58<858A=8'#!!^_I\TV^#^VH^TVHbQFT

''Q\\WQ\Q''"45N;7D9'">A8''$TT'IcR''

*>6678O'&:AADAM

18=D;D4AY V]^V]^TVFF&+1

Page 295



"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'R>5DAM8X

"D;6'4<'>99?D=>6D4A;'N8=DN8N':AN85'N8?8M>68N'94O85;'K86O88A

!>M8'\Q'4<'\]

TV^VQ^TVFF'>AN'TF^VH^TVFF

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643EEA )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

/8<:5KD;7B8A6'4<'8aD;6DAM'K:D?NDAM'DA=?:NDAM'A8O'9D6=78N'544<'64'589?>=8'8aD;6DAM'544<P

''/8>5'4<'\b''!>5L'#@8A:8''$TT']R#''

2:K>;7'c>DA

18=D;D4AY TI^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366463D6 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'6O4';6458X';DN8'8a68A;D4A

''\H''S>5K855X'/4>N''$TT']+U''

*D=78??8'-5>N;7>O

18=D;D4AY TI^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366463DA )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<';DAM?8';6458X'58>5'8a68A;D4A

''bT''26D5?DAM'/4>N''$TT'I-+''

/:B>'$4O>e

18=D;D4AY TH^V]^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366463EC )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

0;8'4<'9549856X'>;';Da';8?<'=4A6>DA8N'<?>6;

''GH''S44N;DN8'/4>N''$TT'IR+''

,?De>K867',AADAW&X>;D

18=D;D4AY Vb^VH^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/942366466A7 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

(4A;65:=6D4A'4<';645>M8'>58>'64'58>5'M>5N8A'>A=D??>5X':;8'64';749

''bVQ''RDM7'/4>N''$TT'Hc/''

`>?85D8')L8DXD

18=D;D4AY FF^VH^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236646652 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'58>5'N45B85'64'<>=D?D6>68'>'?4<6'=4A@85;D4A

''bVQ''RDM7'/4>N''$TT'Hc/''

`>?85D8')L8DXD

18=D;D4AY FF^VH^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236646657 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'M54:AN'<?445'58>5'DA<D??'8a68A;D4A

''\b''+78'/4:ANO>X''$F]']R#''

c8<<58X'R4?6

18=D;D4AY FT^VH^TVFF&+1

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236646672 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'58>5'N45B85'ODAN4O'OD67'DA;856D4A'4<'T'a'544<?DM76;'64'<54A6'8?8@>6D4A'C>B8AN8N'9?>A'58=8D@8N'

V\^VH^TVFFE

''bI''(5>AK544L'!>5L''$TT'I$#''

*D=78??8'-5>N;7>O

18=D;D4AY FT^VH^TVFF&+1

Page 296



"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'R>5DAM8X

"D;6'4<'>99?D=>6D4A;'N8=DN8N':AN85'N8?8M>68N'94O85;'K86O88A

!>M8'\]'4<'\]

TV^VQ^TVFF'>AN'TF^VH^TVFF

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/9423664667B )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

,58=6D4A'4<'58>5'N45B85

''FQ''345<>5'/4>N''$TT'IU,''

,?De>K867',AADAW&X>;D

18=D;D4AY FF^VH^TVFF!,/*'1,`

(FM*!VV:NI=U:;*W*'GMHN?;*1F@FGOKS#/1Y

#99?D=>6D4A'$4Y' 8/94236643E56 )<<D=85Y'

!5494;>?Y'

18=D;D4A'1>68Y'

"4=>6D4AY'

)K;85@>6D4A'64'"4AN4A'-454:M7'4<'->5A86'<45'B>685D>?'BDA45'>B8ANB8A6'<45'678'@>5D>6D4A'4<'(4AND6D4A'FV'

C4K;=:58'M?>eDAME'4<'9?>AADAM'985BD;;D4A'(F]bVH^V]'N>68N'VH^VF^VHP''@>5D>6D4A'4<'O45NDAM'4<'=4AND6D4A'64'

58>NY'K8<458'678'K:D?NDAM'7858KX'985BD668N'D;'4==:9D8N'678'95494;8N'ODAN4O;'DA'678';DN8'8?8@>6D4A'>6'<D5;6'

>AN';8=4AN'<?445;'?8@8?;'<>=DAM'F\'#X?B85'/4>N';7>??'K8'M?>e8N'OD67'4K;=:58'M?>;;'4A?X':9'64'FPH'B8658;'

<54B'678'544B^<?445'?8@8?'>AN';7>??4A?X'K8'498A>K?8'<45'=?8>ADAM'>AN'B>DA68A>A=8'9:594;8;Y'>AN'678'

95494;8N'<D5;6'<?445'ODAN4O;'<>=DAM'FH'#X?B85'/4>N';7>??'K8'M?>e8N'OD67'4K;=:58'M?>;;'4A?X'>AN';7>??'K8'

985B>A8A6?X'<Da8N';7:6'OD67'4A?X'>'<>A?DM76'498ADAM

''FQ''#X?B85'54>N''$T'V-d''

/:B>'$4O>e

18=D;D4AY V]^V]^TVFF/$)

Page 297



Page 298

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 13Page 299



Page 300

This page is intentionally left blank



DM Statistics – Planning Committee 11.07.2011  1

Planning Committee 12 September 2011 

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PERFORMANCE STATISTICS 

NATIONAL INDICATOR NI 157 -  
DETERMINING PLANNING APPLICATIONS

June 2011 Performance   

In June 2011 there were 153 planning applications determined, with performance in 
each category as follows - 

No major applications were received 

80% of minor applications were determined within 8 weeks (32 out of 40 cases) 

84% of other applications were determined within 8 weeks (95 out of 113 cases) 

For an explanation of the categories see Appendix I 

Year Performance – 2011/12

In the financial year 2011/12, up to the end of June, there were 422 planning 
applications determined, with performance in each category as follows - 

0% of major applications were determined within 13 weeks (0 out of 2) 

70% of minor applications were determined within 8 weeks (69 out of 98 cases) 

75% of other applications were determined within 8 weeks (243 out of 322 cases) 

The monthly performance for each of the categories is shown in the following 
graphs: 

Page 301



DM Statistics – Planning Committee 11.07.2011  2

Major Applications 2011/12

Percentage of major applications

 determined within 13 weeks

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

A
p
ri
l

M
a
y

J
u
n
e

2011-12

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

Performance

Haringey &

DCLG target

Minor Applications 2011/12

Percentage of minor applications

 determined within 8 weeks

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

A
p

ri
l

M
a

y

J
u

n
e

2011-12

P
e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e

Performance

Haringey &

DCLG target

Page 302



DM Statistics – Planning Committee 11.07.2011  3

Other applications 2011/12

Percentage of other applications

 determined within 8 weeks

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

A
p

ri
l

M
a

y

J
u

n
e

2011-12

P
e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e

Performance

Haringey &

DCLG target

Last 12 months performance – July 2010 to June 2011

In the 12 month period July 2010 to June 2011 there were 1786 planning 
applications determined, with performance in each category as follows - 

25% of major applications were determined within 13 weeks (2 out of 8) 

76% of minor applications were determined within 8 weeks (299 out of 392 cases) 

83% of other applications were determined within 8 weeks (1147 out of 1386 cases) 

The 12 month performance for each category is shown in the following graphs: 

Page 303



DM Statistics – Planning Committee 11.07.2011  4

Major applications – last 12 months

Percentage of major applications

 determined within 13 weeks

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

J
u
ly

 1
0

A
u
g
 1

0

S
e
p
t 

1
0

O
c
t 

1
0

N
o
v
 1

0

D
e
c
 1

0

J
a
n
 1

1

F
e
b
 1

1

M
a
r 

1
1

A
p
r 

1
1

M
a
y
 1

1

J
u
n
e
 1

1

Last 12 months

P
e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e

Series1

Series3

Minor applications – last 12 months

Percentage of minor applications

 determined within 8 weeks

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

J
u

ly
 1

0

A
u

g
 1

0

S
e

p
t 
1

0

O
c
t 
1

0

N
o

v
 1

0

D
e

c
 1

0

J
a

n
 1

1

F
e

b
 1

1

M
a

r 
1

1

A
p

r 
1

1

M
a

y
 1

1

J
u

n
e

 1
1

Last 12 months

P
e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e

Series1

Series3

Page 304



DM Statistics – Planning Committee 11.07.2011  5

Other applications – last 12 months

Percentage of other applications

 determined within 8 weeks

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

J
u

ly
 1

0

A
u

g
 1

0

S
e

p
t 
1

0

O
c
t 
1

0

N
o

v
 1

0

D
e

c
 1

0

J
a

n
 1

1

F
e

b
 1

1

M
a

r 
1

1

A
p

r 
1

1

M
a

y
 1

1

J
u

n
e

 1
1

Last 12 months

P
e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e

Series1

Series3

Background/Targets

NI 157 (formerly BV 109) is one of the Department for Communities and Local 
Government (DCLG) National Indicators for 2011/12. 

It sets the following targets for determining planning applications: 

a. 60% of major applications within 13 weeks 
b. 65% of minor applications within 8 weeks 
c. 80% of other applications within 8 weeks 

Haringey has set its own targets for 2011/12 in relation to NI 157. These are set out 
in Planning & Regeneration (P&R) Business Plan 2010-13 and are to determine: 

a. 60% of major applications within 13 weeks 
b. 65% of minor applications within 8 weeks 
c. 80% of other applications within 8 weeks 

Page 305



DM Statistics – Planning Committee 11.07.2011  6

Appendix I

Explanation of categories

The NI 157 indicator covers planning applications included in the DCLG PS1/2 
statutory return. 

It excludes the following types of applications - TPO's, Telecommunications, 
Reserve Matters and Observations. 

The definition for each of the category of applications is as follows: 

Major applications -  

For dwellings, where the number of dwellings to be constructed is 10 or more 
For all other uses, where the floorspace to be built is 1,000 sq.m. or more, or where 
the site area is 1 hectare or more. 

Minor application - 

Where the development does not meet the requirement for a major application nor 
the definitions of Change of Use or Householder Development. 

Other applications - 

All other applications, excluding TPO's, Telecommunications, Reserve Matters and 
Observations. 

Page 306



DM Statistics – Planning Committee 11.07.2011  7

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PERFORMANCE STATISTICS 

GRANTED / REFUSAL RATES FOR DECISIONS 

June 2011 Performance

In June 2011, excluding Certificate of Lawfulness applications, there were 125 
applications determined of which: 

72% were granted (90 out of 125) 

28% were refused (35 out of 125) 

Year Performance – 2011/12

In the financial year 2010/11 up to the end of June, excluding Certificate of 
Lawfulness applications, there were 353 applications determined of which: 

73% were granted (259 out of 353) 

27% were refused (94 out of 353) 

The monthly refusal rate is shown on the following graph: 

Percentage of planning applications refused

 2011-2012

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Page 307



DM Statistics – Planning Committee 11.07.2011  8

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PERFORMANCE STATISTICS 

LOCAL INDICATOR (FORMERLY BV204) -  
APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF PLANNING PERMISSION 

June 2011 Performance   

In June 2011 there were 2 planning appeals determined against Haringey's decision 
to refuse planning permission, with performance being as follows - 

50% of appeals allowed on refusals (1 out of 2 cases) 

50% of appeals dismissed on refusals (1 out of 2 cases) 

Year Performance – 2010/11

In the financial year 2011/12, up to the end of June, there were 12 planning appeals 
determined against Haringey's decision to refuse planning permission, with 
performance being as follows - 

8% of appeals allowed on refusals (1 out of 12 cases) 

92% of appeals dismissed on refusals (11 out of 12 cases) 

The monthly performance is shown in the following graph: 

% of appeals allowed against the 

decision to refuse planning permission 

0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

40.0%

50.0%

60.0%

70.0%

80.0%

90.0%

100.0%

April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

2011-2012

Performance

LBH target

DCLG target

Page 308



DM Statistics – Planning Committee 11.07.2011  9

Last 12 months performance – July 2010 to June 2011

In the 12 month period July 2010 to June 2011 there were 81 planning appeals 
determined against Haringey's decision to refuse planning permission, with 
performance being as follows - 

21% of appeals allowed on refusals (17 out of 81 cases) 

79% of appeals dismissed on refusals (64 out of 81 cases) 

The monthly performance for this period is shown in the following graph: 

% of appeals allowed against the 

decision to refuse planning permission

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Jul 10 Aug 10 Sept 10 Oct 10 Nov 10 Dec 10 Jan 11 Feb 11 Mar 11 Apr 11 May 11 June 11

Series1

Series2

Series3

Page 309



DM Statistics – Planning Committee 11.07.2011  10

Background/Targets

This is no longer included in DCLG’s National Indicator set. However it has been 
retained as a local indicator. 

It sets a target for the percentage of appeals allowed against the authority's decision 
to refuse planning permission.  

The target that was set by DCLG in 2007/08 was 30%^ 

Haringey has set its own target for 2011/12 in relation to this local indicator. This is 
set out in P&R Business Plan 2010-13.  

The target set by Haringey for 2011/12 is 35% 

(^ The lower the percentage of appeals allowed the better the performance)

Page 310



DM Statistics – Planning Committee 11.07.2011  1

Planning Committee 12 September 2011 

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PERFORMANCE STATISTICS 

NATIONAL INDICATOR NI 157 -  
DETERMINING PLANNING APPLICATIONS

July 2011 Performance   

In July 2011 there were 144 planning applications determined, with performance in 
each category as follows - 

67% of major applications were determined within 13 weeks (2 out of 3 cases) 

77% of minor applications were determined within 8 weeks (20 out of 26 cases) 

72% of other applications were determined within 8 weeks (83 out of 115 cases) 

For an explanation of the categories see Appendix I 

Year Performance – 2011/12

In the financial year 2011/12, up to the end of July, there were 566 planning 
applications determined, with performance in each category as follows - 

40% of major applications were determined within 13 weeks (2 out of 5) 

72% of minor applications were determined within 8 weeks (89 out of 124 cases) 

75% of other applications were determined within 8 weeks (326 out of 437 cases) 

The monthly performance for each of the categories is shown in the following 
graphs: 

Page 311



DM Statistics – Planning Committee 11.07.2011  2

Major Applications 2011/12

Percentage of major applications

 determined within 13 weeks

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

A
p
ri
l

M
a
y

J
u
n
e

J
u
ly

2011-12

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

Performance

Haringey &

DCLG target

Minor Applications 2011/12

Percentage of minor applications

 determined within 8 weeks

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

A
p

ri
l

M
a

y

J
u

n
e

J
u

ly

2011-12

P
e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e

Performance

Haringey &

DCLG target

Page 312



DM Statistics – Planning Committee 11.07.2011  3

Other applications 2011/12

Percentage of other applications

 determined within 8 weeks

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

A
p

ri
l

M
a

y

J
u

n
e

J
u

ly

2011-12

P
e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e

Performance

Haringey &

DCLG target

Last 12 months performance – August 2010 to July 2011

In the 12 month period August 2010 to July 2011 there were 1770 planning 
applications determined, with performance in each category as follows - 

36% of major applications were determined within 13 weeks (4 out of 11) 

78% of minor applications were determined within 8 weeks (298 out of 380 cases) 

82% of other applications were determined within 8 weeks (1126 out of 1379 cases) 

The 12 month performance for each category is shown in the following graphs: 

Page 313



DM Statistics – Planning Committee 11.07.2011  4

Major applications – last 12 months

Percentage of major applications

 determined within 13 weeks

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

A
u
g
 1

0

S
e
p
t 

1
0

O
c
t 

1
0

N
o
v
 1

0

D
e
c
 1

0

J
a
n
 1

1

F
e
b
 1

1

M
a
r 

1
1

A
p
r 

1
1

M
a
y
 1

1

J
u
n
e
 1

1

J
u
ly

 1
1

Last 12 months

P
e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e

Series1

Series3

Minor applications – last 12 months

Percentage of minor applications

 determined within 8 weeks

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

A
u

g
 1

0

S
e

p
t 
1

0

O
c
t 
1

0

N
o

v
 1

0

D
e

c
 1

0

J
a

n
 1

1

F
e

b
 1

1

M
a

r 
1

1

A
p

r 
1

1

M
a

y
 1

1

J
u

n
e

 1
1

J
u

ly
 1

1

Last 12 months

P
e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e

Series1

Series3

Page 314



DM Statistics – Planning Committee 11.07.2011  5

Other applications – last 12 months

Percentage of other applications

 determined within 8 weeks

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

A
u

g
 1

0

S
e

p
t 
1

0

O
c
t 
1

0

N
o

v
 1

0

D
e

c
 1

0

J
a

n
 1

1

F
e

b
 1

1

M
a

r 
1

1

A
p

r 
1

1

M
a

y
 1

1

J
u

n
e

 1
1

J
u

ly
 1

1

Last 12 months

P
e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e

Series1

Series3

Background/Targets

NI 157 (formerly BV 109) is one of the Department for Communities and Local 
Government (DCLG) National Indicators for 2011/12. 

It sets the following targets for determining planning applications: 

a. 60% of major applications within 13 weeks 
b. 65% of minor applications within 8 weeks 
c. 80% of other applications within 8 weeks 

Haringey has set its own targets for 2011/12 in relation to NI 157. These are set out 
in Planning & Regeneration (P&R) Business Plan 2010-13 and are to determine: 

a. 60% of major applications within 13 weeks 
b. 65% of minor applications within 8 weeks 
c. 80% of other applications within 8 weeks 

Page 315



DM Statistics – Planning Committee 11.07.2011  6

Appendix I

Explanation of categories

The NI 157 indicator covers planning applications included in the DCLG PS1/2 
statutory return. 

It excludes the following types of applications - TPO's, Telecommunications, 
Reserve Matters and Observations. 

The definition for each of the category of applications is as follows: 

Major applications -  

For dwellings, where the number of dwellings to be constructed is 10 or more 
For all other uses, where the floorspace to be built is 1,000 sq.m. or more, or where 
the site area is 1 hectare or more. 

Minor application - 

Where the development does not meet the requirement for a major application nor 
the definitions of Change of Use or Householder Development. 

Other applications - 

All other applications, excluding TPO's, Telecommunications, Reserve Matters and 
Observations. 

Page 316



DM Statistics – Planning Committee 11.07.2011  7

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PERFORMANCE STATISTICS 

GRANTED / REFUSAL RATES FOR DECISIONS 

July 2011 Performance

In July 2011, excluding Certificate of Lawfulness applications, there were 120 
applications determined of which: 

66% were granted (79 out of 120) 

34% were refused (41 out of 120) 

Year Performance – 2011/12

In the financial year 2010/11 up to the end of July, excluding Certificate of 
Lawfulness applications, there were 473 applications determined of which: 

71% were granted (338 out of 473) 

29% were refused (135 out of 473) 

The monthly refusal rate is shown on the following graph: 

Percentage of planning applications refused

 2011-2012

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Page 317



DM Statistics – Planning Committee 11.07.2011  8

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PERFORMANCE STATISTICS 

LOCAL INDICATOR (FORMERLY BV204) -  
APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF PLANNING PERMISSION 

July 2011 Performance   

In July 2011 there was 1 planning appeal determined against Haringey's decision to 
refuse planning permission, with performance being as follows - 

0% of appeals allowed on refusals (0 out of 1 case) 

100% of appeals dismissed on refusals (1 out of 1 case) 

Year Performance – 2010/11

In the financial year 2011/12, up to the end of July, there were 13 planning appeals 
determined against Haringey's decision to refuse planning permission, with 
performance being as follows - 

8% of appeals allowed on refusals (1 out of 13 cases) 

92% of appeals dismissed on refusals (12 out of 13 cases) 

The monthly performance is shown in the following graph: 

% of appeals allowed against the 

decision to refuse planning permission 

0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

40.0%

50.0%

60.0%

70.0%

80.0%

90.0%

100.0%

April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

2011-2012

Performance

LBH target

DCLG target

Page 318



DM Statistics – Planning Committee 11.07.2011  9

Last 12 months performance – August 2010 to July 2011

In the 12 month period August 2010 to July 2011 there were 82 planning appeals 
determined against Haringey's decision to refuse planning permission, with 
performance being as follows - 

21% of appeals allowed on refusals (17 out of 82 cases) 

79% of appeals dismissed on refusals (65 out of 82 cases) 

The monthly performance for this period is shown in the following graph: 

% of appeals allowed against the 

decision to refuse planning permission

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Aug 10 Sept 10 Oct 10 Nov 10 Dec 10 Jan 11 Feb 11 Mar 11 Apr 11 May 11 June 11 July 11

Series1

Series2

Series3

Page 319



DM Statistics – Planning Committee 11.07.2011  10

Background/Targets

This is no longer included in DCLG’s National Indicator set. However it has been 
retained as a local indicator. 

It sets a target for the percentage of appeals allowed against the authority's decision 
to refuse planning permission.  

The target that was set by DCLG in 2007/08 was 30%^ 

Haringey has set its own target for 2011/12 in relation to this local indicator. This is 
set out in P&R Business Plan 2010-13.  

The target set by Haringey for 2011/12 is 35% 

(^ The lower the percentage of appeals allowed the better the performance)

Page 320



BC Statistics – Planning Committee 12.09.11  1 of 6

Planning Committee 12 September 2011 
 
 

Building Control Performance Statistics 
 
 
June & July 2011 Performance   
 
In June and July 2011 Building Control received 368 applications which were 
broken down as follows:- 
 

107 Full Plans applications; 
132 Building Notice applications;  
123 Initial Notices and 
6 Regularisation applications. 

 
 
The trend for the number of Full Plan applications received in 2011-12 and for the 
pervious four years is shown on the following graph: 
 
 

Full Plan applications

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Month

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

A
p

p
li
c

a
ti

o
n

s

2007-08

2008-09

2009-10

2010-11

2011-12

 
 
 
 
The trend for the number of Building Notice applications received in 2011-12 and 
for the pervious four years is shown on the following graph: 
 
 
 

Page 321



BC Statistics – Planning Committee 12.09.11  2 of 6

Building Notice applications

20

70

120

170

220

270

320

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Month

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

A
p

p
li
c

a
ti

o
n

s

2007-08

2008-09

2009-10

2010-11

2011-12

 
 
 
Performance on applications received in June & July was as follows: 
 
June: 83% of applications were validated within 3 days (against a target of 85%) 
July: 94% of applications were validated within 3 days (against a target of 85%) 
 
The monthly performance is shown in the following graph: 
 

Building Control Performance - 

Applications Validated within 3 days

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

A
p
ri
l

M
a
y

J
u
n
e

J
u
ly

A
u
g

S
e
p
t

O
c
t

N
o
v

D
e
c

J
a
n

F
e
b

M
a
r

2011-2012

P
e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e

BC performance

Haringey target

 

Page 322



BC Statistics – Planning Committee 12.09.11  3 of 6

In terms of applications which were vetted and responded to, performance in June 
& July was as follows:   
 
June: 92% were fully checked within 15 days (against a target of 85%)  
July: 77% were fully checked within 15 days (against a target of 85%)  
 
The monthly performance is shown in the following graph: 
 

Building Control Performance - 

Applications Checked within 15 days

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

A
p

ri
l

M
a

y

J
u

n
e

J
u

ly

A
u

g

S
e

p
t

O
c
t

N
o

v

D
e

c

J
a

n

F
e

b

M
a

r

2011-12

P
e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e

BC Performance

Haringey target

 
 
Within the same period, Building Control also received: 
 

Notification of 31 Dangerous Structures – 100% of which were inspected 
within the target of 2 hours of receiving notification, and     

 
33 Contraventions - 100% of which were inspected within the target of 3 
days of receiving notification. 

 
Also in June & July 2011, there were 155 commencements and 1555 site 
inspections were undertaken to ensure compliance with the Regulations. 
 
In terms of site inspections, in June & July 2011 the average number of site visits 
per application was 5.6 & 7.4 (against a target of 5). The monthly figures are shown 
in the following graph: 
 
 
 

Page 323



BC Statistics – Planning Committee 12.09.11  4 of 6

BC Performance - 

number of site visits per application

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

2011-12

N
u

m
b

e
r

BC Performance

Haringey Target

 
 
 
 
 
 
For an explanation of the categories see Appendix A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 324



BC Statistics – Planning Committee 12.09.11  5 of 6

Appendix A 
 
Explanation of categories  
 
 
Full Plans applications –  Applications for all types of work, where the 

applicant submits fully annotated drawings and 
details that are required to be fully checked by 
Building Control. When these are checked in 
the majority of cases a letter is sent to the 
applicant or their agents requesting clarification 
and/or  changes to be made to the application 
in order to achieve compliance; 

 
Building Notice -   Applications for residential work only, where 

the  applicant only has to submit the Notice 
and basic  details, most of the compliance 
checks are carried out through site inspections; 

 
Regularisation application - Where works are carried out without an 

application having been made the owner may 
be prosecuted. However to facilitate people 
who wish to have work approved, in 1999 
Building Control introduced a new process 
called Regularisation. A regularisation 
application is a retrospective application relating 
to previously unauthorised works i.e. works 
carried out without Building Regulations 
consent, started on or after the 11 November 
1985. The purpose of the process is to 
regularise the unauthorised works and obtain a 
certificate of regularisation. Depending on the 
circumstances, exposure, removal and/or 
rectification of works may be necessary to 
establish compliance with the Building 
Regulations; 

Validation - All applications that are received have to be 
validated to ensure that the application is 
complete and ready to be formally checked; 

Site Inspections -  Inspections carried out by Building Control to 
ensure compliance with the Building 
Regulations and/or in the case of Dangerous 
Structures, inspections in order to determine 
the condition of the structure being reported as 
dangerous.

Page 325



BC Statistics – Planning Committee 12.09.11  6 of 6

Dangerous Structures -  Building Control are responsible for checking all 
notified dangerous structures on behalf of the 
Council within 2 hours of notification, 24 hours a 
day 365 days a year; 

Contraventions -  Contraventions are reports of works being 
carried out where no current Building Control 
application exists.  

Page 326



PLANNING COMMITTEE STATS FOR COMMITTEE MEEETING
June 2011

S.330 – REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION SERVED
None 

ENFORCEMENT NOTICES SERVED (S188)
1. 113 Bruce Grove N17- works to a Listed Building 
2. 50 West Beech Road N17-change of use to 2 flats 
3. 69 Roseberry Gardens N4- change of use to HMO 
4. 56 Roseberry Gardens N4- erection of 3 satellite dishes 
5. 65 Roseberry Gardens N4- change of use to 2 flats 
6. rear of 636 Green Lanes N8-change of use to 5 flats 
7. 8 Alroy Road N4- change of use to HMO 
8. 5 Mattison Road- change of use of 1

st
 floor to 4 flats 

9. 316 Philip Lane N15- Change of use to 8 self-contained flats 
10. 34 Sutherland Road N17- change of use to 8 flats 
11. 13 Bounds Green Road N22- use of outbuilding as a self-contained flat 
12. 106 Allison Road N8- use of outbuilding as self-contained flat 
13. 5 Hatherley Road N8- erection of satellite dishes 
14. 14 Farifield Road N8- erection of satellite dishes 
15. 18 Topsfield Parade N8- erection of satellite dishes 
16. 20 Topsfield Parade N8- erection of satellite dishes 
17. 102 Warham Road N4- change of use to HMO 
18. 5 Alfoxton Avenue N8- change of use to social club 
19. 74 Crowland Road N15-change of use to 4 flats 
20. 18 Ashmount Road N15-change of use to 3 flats 
21. 52 Bruce Grove N17- change of use to 7 flats 
22. 36 Avenue Road N15- changes to allow roof terrace 
23. 171 Harringay Gardens n15- change of use to 8 flats 
24. 36 Malvern Road N15- change of use to 2 flats 
25. 123 Gladesmore Road- extensions 
26. 21 Norfolk avenue n15- rear extension 

BREACH OF CONDITION NOTICE SERVED
None 

TEMPORARY STOP NOTICES SERVED
None 

PLANNING CONTRAVENTION NOTICES SERVED
1. 9 Osier Crescent N10 
2. 498 Archway Road N6 
3. 111 Wightman Road N4 
4. 6 & 7 Wordsworth Parade N8 
5. 144 – 146 Falkland Road N8 
6. 677 Queens Head, Green Lanes N8 
7. Flat B, 2 Woollaston Road N4 
8. 12 Willoughby Road N8 
9. 333 Green Lanes N4 
10. 8 Wordsworth Parade N8 
11. 33 Umfreville Road N4 
12. 2 Cranleigh Road N15 
13. 53 Myddleton Road N22 
14. 111a Frobisher Road N8 
15. 11 Wordsworth Parade N8 
16. 229 Hermitage Road N4 
17. 6 – 50 and 80 Beaconsfield Road 
18. 513 – 525 High Road N17 

Page 327



19. 509 – 511 High Road N17 
20. 135 Perth Road N22 
21. 143 Perth Road N22 
22. 149 Perth Road N22 

SECTION 215 (Untidy Site) NOTICE SERVED
None 

PROSECUTIONS SENT TO LEGAL
None 

APPEAL DECISIONS
69 Effingham Road N8- change of use to 2 self-contained flats- Appeal Dismissed 

PROSECUTION OUTCOMES
None 

CAUTIONS
None 

Page 328



PLANNING COMMITTEE STATS FOR COMMITTEE MEEETING
July 2011

S.330 – REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION SERVED
None 

ENFORCEMENT NOTICES SERVED (S188)
1. 1 Meads Road N22- erection of roof terrace 
2. 91 Mount Pleasant Road N17 - change of use to HMO 
3. 16 Langham Road N15 
4. 20 Trulock Road N17 
5. 2 Kings Road N17- works to a Listed Building 
6. 108 Cranley Gardens N10 – roof terrace 
7. 229 Hermitage Road N4- change of use from 2 to 4 flats 
8. 12 Willoughby Road N8- erection fo outbuilding and change of use 2 to 6 flats 

BREACH OF CONDITION NOTICE SERVED
None 

TEMPORARY STOP NOTICES SERVED
None 

PLANNING CONTRAVENTION NOTICES SERVED
1. 13 Moselle Avenue N22 

SECTION 215 (Untidy Site) NOTICE SERVED
None 

PROSECUTIONS SENT TO LEGAL
1. 22 Black Boy Lane N15- Change of sue to 8 flats 
2. 75 Hermitage Road N4- Change of sue to 6 flats 
3. 89 Burgoyne Road N4- change of sue to 5 flats-re-prosecution 
4. 23 Hewitt Road N4- change of sue to 4 flats- re-prosecution 
5. 13 Bounds Green Road N22- conversion into 5 flats 
6. 13 Whitley Road N17- creation of 5

th
 flat and erection of rear dormer 

7. 38 Thackeray road N17- creation of 3
rd

 flat and erection of rear dormer 
8. 216 West Green Road N15- change of sue to 3 flats 
9. 22 Cumberton Road N17 – breach of article 4 policy 
10. 25 Cumberton Road N17- breach of article 4 policy 

APPEAL DECISIONS
12 Kimberly Gardens N4 – change of use to 2 flats. Dismissed 

PROSECUTION OUTCOMES
None 

CAUTIONS
None 

Page 329



Page 330

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 14Page 331



Report Template: Formal Bodies  2

 
4. Reason for recommendation 
4.1. Good progress continues with maintaining the number of open cases at a manageable level, 

which were 310 at 1st July 2011. This quarter has seen a high degree of formal enforcement 
activity with 36 Enforcement Notices served. 

 

 

 
5. Other options considered 
5.1.Not applicable 
 

 

6. Summary 

6.1. This report advises members on service performance for the first quarter of 2011/12 and the 
management within Development Management within Planning and Regeneration from 16 
May 2011.  

 

7.  Chief Financial Officer Comments 

 
7.1  No comments received 
 

8. Head of Legal Services Comments 

 
8.1 No comments received 
 
 

9.  Equalities & Community Cohesion Comments 

9.1 There are no equalities, and community cohesion issues raised by this report as it 
updates members on Planning Enforcement’s performance April-June 2011 inclusive.  

 

Page 332



Report Template: Formal Bodies  3

 

10. Consultation  

 
10.1 The report identifies steps to consult service users.  

 
 

11. Service Financial Comments 

11.1  The service will continue to ensure that Planning Enforcement remains within budget. 
The Team Currently has three Planning Officers and a Team Leader. Increase in the 
number of enforcement cases in the last quarter has been in part due to the reduction 
in staff numbers but also the undertaking of formal enforcement action for a large 
number of cases.     

 
       

12. Use of appendices /Tables and photographs 

Appendix 1 - The number of open cases by the year received  
Appendix 2 – 2010/11 Performance indicators 
Appendix 3 -  2010/11 Outcomes of Planning Enforcement Closed Cases 
Appendix 4 – Table showing planning enforcement prosecution & caution outcomes  

 

13.Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 

 
13.1  Case files held by the Team Leader for Planning Enforcement 

 

 
 
14. Planning Enforcement Performance  
 
14.1   Appendix 1 provides a table showing cases still open by the year the case was 

opened. Our current caseload is 241. These include 168 cases received in 2010/11 
which remain open. 65 cases received from before April 2010 remain open. Eight 
cases opened before 2007 remain open and non compliant. All of these cases are at 
an advanced stage and actions against these are ongoing. The overall caseload 
compares favourable with the end of 2009-2010 when the overall caseload was 301. 
The number of cases one or more years old at approximately 25% of the overall live 
caseload is encouraging especially given the loss of 1.5 members of staff and the 
increased overall workload for existing staff. 

 
14.2   Appendix 2 reports on Planning Enforcement’s performance indicators.  Performance 

remains broadly consistent across the suite of indicators. There has been a slight 
decline in the proportion of cases resolved within 8 week and 6 month. However this is 
largely explained by the resolution of a significant number of older cases which lies 
outside of the 6 month bracket.  

Page 333



Report Template: Formal Bodies  4

 
14.4  Customer feedback response remained very low and did not provide any real insight 

into general perception by service users.  The Enforcement Response Service Manager 
had contacted a random sample of clients whose cases have been closed. Responses 
still remain too low to provide a representative sample. 

 
14.5 Appendix 3 is a table of closed cases 2010/11 by outcomes. Of the cases closed 54% 

was due to no breach, or those allowed under permitted development rights. Of the 
cases closed, 7% was due to immunity from enforcement action. In 19% of the cases 
closed, it was considered that enforcement action was not expedient and 20% were 
closed as a result of compliance, remediation or regularisation of the development 
including formal enforcement action.  

 
14.6 Appendix 4 is a table of planning enforcement prosecution and caution outcomes. As 

the table shows good process through prosecution cases has been made. During 
2010-11 the total fines accrued for convictions was £36,900 and the total costs 
awarded to the Council was £16,415,50. Costs recovered by the Council when 
defendants accepted simple cautions was £8784.63.  

 
 Other matters 
 
14.7. During the 2009-2010 Development Management undertook a process of revoking 

Established Use Certificates at several properties where it was found that the evidence 
submitted which led to their issue was false. Enforcement Action was taken in the 
autumn of 2010 and the following progress has been made: 

 

10 Hampden Lane N17 Prosecuted and convicted. Notice now complied with 

69 Roseberry Gardens Enforcement Appeal withdrawn. Notice complied with 

13 Harringay Gardens Enforcement Appeal withdrawn. Notice now in breach 

82 Warham Road   Enforcement Appeal allowed. Case closed 

49 Warham Road  Enforcement Appeal ongoing 
 
14.8 It is worth noting that the decision to revoke has been upheld on all of the above. 82 

Warham Road was allowed due to material planning considerations outweighing 
development plan policy. The grounds of challenge which if successful would 
undermine the decision to revoke the Certificates has been upheld on each appeal or 
the appeal has been withdrawn. The Planning Inspectorate was awarded costs against 
the appellant 

    
 

Page 334



Report Template: Formal Bodies  5

 
  

Appendix 1 – Table demonstrating Planning Enforcement Caseload 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*Of the 8 open cases pre 2007 
 

1 warrant case   

3 convictions secured for re-prosecution (bundles submitted to Legal Services)  

1 cases referred to Crown Court for confiscation proceeding under Proceedings Of 
Crime Act (POCA) (2 further cases to referred) 3 convicted- appeal against the 
sentence to be herd December 2010 

1 owner bankrupt- compliance works anticipated.   

1 appeal against re-issued Enforcement Notice  
 

Year 

No. cases 
opened for 

investigation
No. of cases 

remaining open  

2001/2002  401 0 

2002/2003 782 0  

2003/2004         881 0 

sub total 2001/2 - 2003/4 2064 0  

2004/2005         898 1 

2005/2006         939 5 

2006/2007         686 2 

sub total 2004/5- 2006/7 2523 8* 

2007/2008 914 7 

2008/2009  1052  23 

sub total 2007/8 - 2008/9 1966  30 

2009-2010  878 35 

2010-2011 (up to 1.7.11) 187 168 

Total for all years  310 

Page 335



Report Template: Formal Bodies  6

 
Appendix 2 Table indicating Performance indicators for Planning Enforcement 2010/11 
 

Table of performance indicators  

Performance 
Indicator Number 

Performance Indicator description Performance 
Indicator 
target 

Performance 
Output April 
June 2011 

ENF PLAN 1 
 

Successful resolution of a case after 8 
weeks  

40%    48 out of 124 
39% 
 

ENF PLAN 3 
 

Customer satisfaction with the service 
received 

To be 
determined  

10% of 
closed cases 
to be 
contacted by 
the service 
manager 
 

ENF PLAN 4 
 

Cases closed within target time of 6 
months 

80% 91 out of 124 
73% 
 

ENF PLAN 5 
 

Cases acknowledged within 3 working 
days 

90% 156 out of 
173  
90% 
 

ENF PLAN 6 
 

Planning Enforcement Initial site 
inspections 3, 10, 15 working days  

90% 151 out of 
158 96% 
 

 

Performance 
Indicator Number 

Performance Indicator description Performance output April –
June 2011 
 

ENF PLAN 7 
 

Number of Planning Contravention 
Notices served 

33 

ENF PLAN 8 
 

Number of Enforcement Notices Served 43 

ENF PLAN 9 
 

Number of enforcement notices 
appealed 

5 

ENF PLAN 10 
 

Number of enforcement notices 
withdrawn by Council 

1 

ENF PLAN 10a Number of Enforcement Appeals 
Allowed 

0 

ENF PLAN 10b Number of Withdrawn Appeals 0 

ENF PLAN 11 
 

Number of prosecutions for non-
compliance with enforcement notice 

3 

ENF PLAN 12 Number of Notices (Other) served 1 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 336



Report Template: Formal Bodies  7

Appendix 3 – Table showing Outcomes of Planning Enforcement Closed Cases April-
June 11 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Closure reason 
 

Output 2010/11 

 
No breach/Permitted 

Development  
 

 
71 (56%) 

 
Not expedient 

 

 
22 (17%) 

Compliance/ 
Remediation/Regularisation 

 

 
22 (17%) 

 
Immune from enforcement action 

 

11 (10%)  

 
Total 
 

 
126 

Page 337



Page 338

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 339



Page 340

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	FINAL draft minutes - special - 200711

	6 Planning Applications
	7 Coronation Sidings, North of Turnpike Lane, Hornsey, and Hornsey Depot, South of Turnpike Lane N8
	Site_Plan_1

	8 Eden Primary, 79 Creighton Avenue, N10 1NR
	Site_Plan_2

	9 550 White Hart Lane, N17 7RQ
	Site_Plan_3

	10 26 Lordship Lane, N17 8NS
	Site_Plan_4

	11 Appeal Decisions
	Appeals_June
	Appeals_July

	12 Delegated decisions
	Delegated_decisions

	13 Performance Statistics
	Stats_DM_June
	Stats_DM_July
	Stats_BC_JuneJuly
	Stats_ENF_June
	Stats_ENF_July

	14 Planning Enforcement Update
	Planning_Enf_Report_Appendix


